
Horror's mind was any kind of gas. Your Honor ffik ed this 
question on p.320: 11 Q. Leaving a side any breach ••••••• bei ng 
used". 

HIS HONOR: Do you say Mr. Menzies, fr om the way I asked t he 
question, thought I wa s only r ef erring to infla~~able ga s? 

MR. REYNOLDS: Ye s. 

HIS HONOR: What leads you t o tha t belief. 

lffi . REYNOLDS The part I am going t o r ead now wher e the 
witne ss saidi 11 I accepted t he fact tha t CH4 was found in the 
shunt 11 • Your Horror then sa id,- 11You based your answer on the 
as sumption that CH4 had been found in the shunt?" he answered, 
"Yes11 • Then Your Horror puts the very question: 11 Q. Assume 
a deputy had found C02 in the shunt ••••••• not black damp but 
Illawarra bottom gas11

• 

HIS HONOR: I think tho deputie s conc ede the po sition that t hey 
were suspecting black cliamp whm making their t e sts. 

MR . REYNOLDS: It may be in Your Horror's ultimate conclusion 
in this case tha t tha t par agraph of Mr. Menzies will have a 
ver y important bearing. Hr. Donnegan said, on a purview of 
the whole situation, that the whol e ger m of t his case is that 
this gas was no t identified a s being Illawarra bo ttom ga s and 
Mr. Lee bases th~ whole t heme of his submissions on tha t 
propo sition. 

30. If the for egoing be correct the r eal and effective cause 
of this accident was t he f ailure of the management to provide 
for circumstance s which on t he informa tion available t o it, 
it had no c ause t o ant i cipate. The system of ventila tion wa s 
in fact inadequate t o deal with those circums tance s. 

The cause s of its inadequacy may be a ttributed t o a failure 
to provide f or the chanc e of inflammable gase s from the goaf 
pene tra ting the brattice stopping and t o appr ecia t e tha t t he 
vent tube vmuld not adequa t ely dilute such ga ses in such event. 

I suggest, with grea t r e spect, it would be unwise 
to substitute conclusions ba sed upon inductive r ea soning a s 
oppo sed t o the opinion of a man itJho has spent a l ife time in 
coal mine s. The lawyer could be right but ther e is always the 
t errible danger of him being vlrong. Mr. Menzies d ealt with 
this in his r eport at p.300 of the transcript. He was asked 
11 Gi ven normal circumstances this syst em devi sed W3.s adequate 
bu t it c ould not cope with t he abnormal?A. Correct". Your 
Honor asked another que stion and he said 11 I think I c an r efer 
to my answer - obviously inadequate t o deal with the situation. 11 

(page 301) Coming fro m Mr. Menzies I a sk Your Honor t o say 
tha t the management did deal with t he situation r ea sonably 
having r egard to the informa tion which they then had in 
their po ssession. I point out uThe sys t em of ventilation wa s 
in fact inadequa t e to deal with those circumstance s". 

HIS HONOR: You are asking me to discard inductive reasoning 
alone a s a t e st but one must look a t these thing s in t he light 
of what one imagine s goes on in the mine and wha t ought t o go 
on. Would you say a practical man would have sa id, knm.vi ng 
the shunt and the bra ttic e , t ha t the management should not 
have checked on deputie s? It may be you do s ay tha t. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I say, with r e spec t t o Mr . Lee 's submissions 
that the management c annot check on the deputies, r eally. 
Mr. Lee blandly submits t ha t the management has no right to r ely 
on t he deputie s. I 'I..Jould put it t o Your Honor tha t t he sdlruc ture 
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of this legislation is such tha t they are the people to be 
r elied upon. 

HIS HONOR: Ye s, but is the management to be satisfied it is 
compliance with the Act and Regula tions? 

}ffi. REYNOLDS: Not as an absolute situation, and I would n~ 
put that for a minute. 

HIS HONOR: We have evidence from Mr. Puddle tha t he gave 
instructions t o the deputies other than the statutory r equire­
ments to do something more than tha t, to keep a look out for 
gas in this area. Mr. Lee argued that he '\AJas aware of the 
possibilitie s of a situa tion of danger. That lends one to 
the conclusion tha t he thought the bleed tube situa tion and 
the brattice would adequately deal ·with it. Does he go and 
make a test himself or does he say to the under manager, nGo 
and test in the shunt0 ? 

MR. REYNOLDS: We are speaking about the under manager, Your 
Honor. 

HIS HONOR: I am sorry, the assistant under manager, Mr. Wright. 
Does he say 11 Go and t e st in the shunt to see if it exists". 
Is tha t not rea sonable to expect? 

MR. REYNOLDS: I do not think it is. If you have a man whom 
you have no r ea son to distrust and in r ela tion to whom you have 
no indication he is not doing his job properly and if he says 
it is clear, why should one not accept him? 

HIS HONOR : If one wer e outside the mine and dealing, for 
exampl e , with an ordinary situation which is common above the 
gr ound, for example if one were dealing with somebody in a car 
yard, a yard fill ed with c ars, and the manager said to one of 
his men 11 Go outside and see whether ther e is a clear path for 
all c ars coming in and out of the yard to ge t throughu, and he 
came back and said, 11 0h ye s, it's all right", he might be 
entitled t o r ely on it but now you are dealing with something 
in mining situa tions wher e it is recognised that although coal 
has t o be extracted ther e is such an extremely hazardous situation 
that the utmost precaution must be t aken. It is a situation 
where everybody must be on the alert, particularly wher e there 
has been some r eport of gas and ther e has been a method devised 
for dealing with it. Is not tha t the true situa tion from a 
practica l man's point of view as distinct from a lawyer 
theorising by inductive r easoning? 

MR. REYNOLDS: I don't know, the situation may be terribly 
~ifferent if ther e is the faintest sniff of inflaiT~able gas, 
1f I may put it tha t way. Once the official mind was a l erted 
t o the possibility of inflammable gas the whole situa tion of the 
necessity for vigilance and cross-checking and perhaps doing it 
yourself bec ome s obvious. We know now there wa s inflammable 
gas ther e . Aren't we t ending to say nTha t is what it wa s, 
why didn't he check on tha t and do that and cross-check? 11 

HIS HONOR: You might have got the same r e sult. 

MR. REYNOLDS: It depends on a view of what wa s there at the 
time and what wa s shown when the c onditions wer e simulated 
and ~fter. I c onc ede , a s I must, that the ventilation system 
was ln fact inadequate to deal with those circumstances. 

Your Honor says it may be due to the f ac t that ther e 
~hould have been possibly more f or e sight. Then I say 1vhat 
lilduced po ssibly t hese failur e s and I put it this way: 
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31, These failures were caused or contributed to by the fact 
that despite many tests that were done or were believed to ha"..O 
been done in the shunt the presence of inflammable gas had not 
been detected or reported either in the vicinity of No. 3 
cut through or this shunt. 

At p ,~29 Mr. Menzies said there was no evidence tha t 
methane existed in large quantitie s as a separate gas anywhere, 
it only existed, on his information, as a component of bottom 
gas. This gives poLnt t o Mra Lee 1 s submission that the r eal 
trouble was the failure to identify this insidious bottom ga s. 

32. One question is whether irrespective of the information 
provided by reports of Deputies and others, the management -
should have allowed for such an eventuality. 

I only put it to Your Horror tha t the consideration 
of such a matter is r eally outside Your Honor 1 s province in 
this case. This is a f ac tor but to go into fine questions 
of foreseeability lllsolving the problem and what was the cause 
in the circumstances is, in our submission, outside the ambit 
and can safely be left with the tribunal that has to deal with 
such a matter, Your Honor knows my client company has no 
control over this. The legislation has seen fit to have a 
Coal Mines Insurance and I can mw{e no concessions about such 
a matter as this. It is not within our province to say we 
will or will not pay civil claims. However, tha t is 
incidental. 
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MR. REYNOLDS: 
33. It may be said that in the circumstances that existed the 
use of A Heading as a shunt with a brattice stopping could be 
justified if ther e was instituted and maintained a system of 
vigilant inspection of it. 

· Now, this is tied to what Your Honor put to me 
about what Mr. Puddle said and it may be that you can fine this 
case down in another analysis and say "If they were going to 
use it they should have stationed a man there permanently to 
check it, and secondly if they decided to use this shunt, not 
a sufficiently vigilant inspection of it was instituted and 

mmintained,n but of course this is refining the causes of causes 
too much. 

HIS HONOR: When one r eally gets down to the basis of the 
proposition, I suppose what you say, Mr. Reynolds, is tha t if 
there had been a proper test done which must have identified a 
gas, then this would not have happened? 

MR. REYNOLDS: It would not have happened. Those instructing 
me say, and for what it is worth I put it to Your Honor, 
11Fundamen tally this is a problem of de tee tion and elimination 
and the system broke down there. Once there was proper detection 
and proper identification, proper measures would have been taken." 

HIS HONOR: I must say this frankly: I have been considerably 
disturbed, particularly as the evidence drew to its conclusion, 
as to whether the whole picture has been given to me. I cannot 
illlderstand a failure by any sort of r ea sonable tester to have 
de tected bottom gas, and methane content in bottom gas, in the 
~uantities that have been described here. That has disturbed 
me and I am still disturbed by it. One gets the feeling after 
some years experience of practising in the law·, and particularly 
in various jurisdictions, that there is something more to the 
picture. 

MR. REYNOLDS: This is always a grat problem. There are two 
views about this. The management can say, 11 Look, we have 
complete faith in our deputies and we just can't believe that 
men whose own safety was at stakeu - because indeed it is - nwho 
have had it drilled into them over the years 7 that if there was 
gas there afterwards they could have missed 1t, therefore it 
could not have been there." 

HIS HONOR: That is one argument which the rompany itself does 
not accept because the view put to me is that these simulated 
conditions were as they ware before . I suppose to that extent 
the company accepts it by saying 11 It was not there before, and 
something happened to bring it there. 11 That was in fact a 
mere coincidence because in fact C02 was detected and reported. 

MR. REYNOLDS: But the company has the added problem which Your 
Honor has not, that the company knows these men and it has had 
them working for it for years and has personal ties and beliefs 
about them, and they can find it hard to believe that any man 
would be so derelict to his dutj or so careless in its execution 
that he could miss it. That may be one side of the picture. 

HIS HONOR: Yes, but we have had a number of witnesses, including 
Mr. Sellers v.ho says that 11 If it were there, I can't see how they 
failed to detect it." 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is right. 

HIS HONOR~ And if that is the position, and if I come to the 
conclusion that it wa s there - and so far that seems to be a 
conclusion I must draw - I am forced to say, 11 Then how could 
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they possibly have missed it? 11 I have heard deputies come 
here and give descrip tions of t e sts they have made. It has 
been said by counsel for the Department, the Minist er, that these 
t ests wer e obviously inadequate in the light of the proper t e sts 
Which were de scribed. At the same time my assessors who advise 
me, and my own c ommon sense, all ~rive me to theconclusion tha t 
even with these inadequate tests a s they wer e described, me thane 
must have be en detected in bottom ga s. That is my worry, and 
I have a fe eling her e tha t it is not just a question of certain 
men, deputies, coming here and saying, nwe t e sted 11 when they 
did not test at all; that there is some thing more behind it. 
I say that at the moment that is a f eeling. It is not an 
inferenc e . It is a fe efing based upon the picture tha t has been 
pre sented to me and, as I will describe it again, it is a f eeling 
tha t the whole pictur e has not been put to me and I am very 
disturbed about it. 

1ffi. REYNOLDS : I cannot comment on this. 
Honor 1 s dilemma. 

I can und erstand Your 

HIS HONOR: I do not know that it is a matter for you, because 
you had instructions, and Mr. McNally had instructions, as did 
all other counsel. Counsel only puts to me, in an endeavour 
to assist me - and does it of course with the integrity that 
counsel have - what their instructions are. 

1m. REYNOLDS: I am not urging any particular instructions on 
Your Honor exc ept to deal vli th the evidence a s it appears, and 
if I may s~so with resp ect, I understand fully the problem 
which confronts Your Honor about what existed afterwards and the 
inference that probably existed before and wha t follows from 
tha t. We have these reports. 

HIS HONOR: I can only go on the evidence, Mr. Reynolds. 

HR. REYNOLDS: Ye s. We had started debating 33 to some extent, 
but r eally it does come down in its final analysis to a problem 
of det ection and identifica~ion and there was no detection - for 
·whatever r eason one does not know - and there was no identification. 

34. The failure to r eport inflammable gas must be bec~use: 
(a) It was not present. 

(b) A belief that the occurrence of Illavlarra bottom gas 
was so rare that its absence cruld be assumed when 
carrying out routine testing. 

I have some references there, but I think Your Honcr 
is well aware of those. 

(c) Faulty testing technique s. 

(d) The inadequacy of the oil flame safety lamp in the 
hands of an ordinary operator to detect mefuane in 
a mixture or 

(e) tests were omitted. 

b 
There is some evidence to support each of these propositions 

ut alternative (e) is highly unlikely. 

By ~e) being unlikely, I mean that the man did not 
go with his lamp and carry out some procedure. Mr. Lee has 
put that he did not carry out a proper test for bottom gas. 
That, I would rather put in (b), that when carrying out the 
~outine testing for C02 at the floor and methane at the roof 
lt may be that the belief induced by a long period of no kno~ledge 
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of this gas which l ed to an assumption tha t in doing wha t migtt 
be termed routine t e sting you do not have t o w~ry a grea t deal 
about seeing whether there was any inflammable component of gas 
on the floor; I do not know. 

35. Ther e is no credible evidence to suggest tha t any officer 
of the Company consciously jeopardised the safe ty of the men 
in his charge. 

HIS HONOR: When you say "consciously jeopardised," do you 
mean deliberately jeopardised? 

MR. RETI~ OLDS: That is right - took a decision to take a risk 
consciously to place them in any situa tion of danger to life.or 
health. 

HIS HONOR: And by noffic er of the Company11 do you include 
depu ties'? 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is right. Insofar as it is withi n my 
provinc e , I am more particularly concerned in this submission 
wi th Hr. Stone and Mr. Puddle. 

HIS HONOR: Yes, but of course it is quite obvious Mr. McNally 
would put the same proposition to me, and you do not disassociate 
yourself from it'? 

MR . REYNOLDS: Yes, but it comes be tter from him. 

HIS HONOR: Yes. 

MR. REYNOLDS: 
36. It is not established that the installation and siting of 
the auxiliary f ans caused or contributed to the accumulation 
of ga s in the shunt and intersection which was the subject of 
the ignition. 

Mr. Longworth said in effect uwe did have this view 
when we first inspected this, but then we carried out tests and 
they did not substantiate the view we held. 11 Mr. Wasson 
gave evidence to the same effect, and the only importance of thRt 
is it could be argued tha t we did not have the permission to put 
these fans in this place and it is a breach of -

HIS HONOR: You say tha t even if you were in breach of that, 
which is arguable, there was nothing in the breach'? 

~ffi. REYNOLDS• Yes, I would suggest it is not e stablished that 
the action of the fans had any material effect in making those 
gases come into the shunt and the intersection which led to 
the fire. 

HIS HONOR: I do not think Mr. Lee, who r epresents the Department, 
had this view? 

MR . REYNOLDS~ He did not put it, Your Honor. Others may put it, 
but I am content to leave that submission with Your Honor. I 
want to put this general thought, that concerning the institution 
of a ventila tion system in a given situaion - and by this I do 
not mean the general circulatory system of the mine- as I put to 
Y?ur Honor earlier, this is some thing which has to be done fro m 
t1me to time by a man on the spot who does not indulge in an 
appr ecia tion of all the scientific facts involved . He draws on 
an experience and on knowledge he has gained, he is ex hypothesi 
the holder of a first class or second class certificate of 
competency. He has had to be li1 the mine for a certain number 
of Y~ars befor e he got tha t, and he has a general understanding 
not ln a highly scientific way of the principles of t he ventila tion 
of a mine or of a place in a mine. He does not know about the 
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number of cubic feet per second which are necessary. He does 
not work out the velocities that are necessary. He knows that 
by the use of brattice in this way or by putting a stopping her e 
a certain effect will be achieved generally. Whether he has 
been successful in what he ls instituting as adequate and 
proper can only be determined by testing thereafter, he ~a~ing 
used this empirical method, whether indeed it has been sat1sfactory 
or successful. If the tests he ge ts are incomplete or 
inaccurate, then he never really knows whe ther the system which 
he has instituted is in fact good or bad. Your Honor see s 
once again how vital it is that he ge ts, generally speru{ing 
through the agen~y of his deputies~ reports as to how it is 
working. The knowledge of the erfectiveness of his system 
is withheld if his reports are not accurate or complete. 

I want to say this, perhaps finally, just before I 
say some thing about recommendations. The expression nlax and 
off-handedu was used by my fri end Mr. Lee yesterday and, not 
unnaturally that phrase, attractive as it is to those whose 
s~pathies do not lie with the company, has been widely publicised, 
and it was used in respect to the company's attitude to gas. 
It seems to me that tha t description is altogether too harsh 
and is not, on the evidence, warrcnted. It comes of course from 
counsel for the Department which is charged with the duty of 
inspecting our mine and other IDines, and whilst we did not make 
any such allegation we suggest it is fair to say that whatever 
description is apt to fit our attitude to gas it can just as 
equally and fairly be applied to the departmental inspectors 
and to the check inspectors who are members of the Federation. 
No mines inspector and no check inspector has detected and 
identified bottom gas in our mine in recent years. 

So far as recommendations are concerned, the company 
supports what Mr. Lee has put and I cannot really add anything to 
it because the company is of course vitally concerned with 
improving, wherever it is possible, the conditions in the mining 
industry and the safety of the men employed in it. 

HIS HONOR: Before you sit down, Mr. Reynolds, did you ever 
discover whether there was any other special mGaning of the 
v1ord ttreferenceu in the Act, other than the meanings referred to? 

MR. REYNOLDS: As a matter of fact I have not looked, Your Honor, 
but my junior will do so overnight. 

HIS HONOR: I wonder whether I am compelled to give a finding in 
this way or not. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I agree entirely with Mr. Lee. 
cannot see Your Honor 1 s problem in it. 

Frankly, I 

HIS HONOR: If you were in my position you would r ealise the 
problem because by the Act I may be constrained to do something. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I submit s.32 answers it, uThe Minister may cause 
••••••• think fit. 11 In my submission that resolves Your 
Honor's problem because it is dealing with reports. 

HIS HONOR: What do I do Hith s.33(6)? 
which was inserted in 1941? 

How do I construe tha t, 

MR. REYNOLDS: What ever Your Honor does, it is not to decide 
but to report, ru1d what Your Honor does cannot be a decision. 
Your Honor does not decide anything. I do not mean to canvass 
my submiss~on I put before about deciding q~es~ions of fact, 
but essentlally what Your Honor does, even lf 1t involves the 
resolution of questions of fact contrary to my submission is in 
essence a report. It is not a decision, it is a report.' In s.32 
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it states, and we know it is a report to the Minister, that this 
Act confines to the Minister the decision 7 if and when and by 
what means that report shall be made publlc. 

HIS HONOR: Do you agree with that, Mr. Lee? 

MR. LEE: Yes, that is our submission. 

HIS HONOR: Thank you for your assistance, Mr. Reynolds. 

(Short adjournment) 

MR. MURRhY: Your Honor, I thli1k it can be fairly said tha t it 
became fairly clear early in this Inquiry that as far as the 
1.;ork performed by my clients - that is Mr. Kent and also the 
other electricians - it had been discovered, despite earlier 
pronouncements to the contrary, that their work was in no way 
subject to criticism, so that mostly during this Inquiry our ro+e 
has been an objective one. That must be considered in the light 
that we are workmen, employees of the company, and that we work 
together with others, members of other industrial organisations, 
in a hazardous industryo 

I was going to make a submission to Your Honor on 
my view of the act, but a short conversation with my l earned 
friend Mr. Lee of Queen's Counsel pursuaded me I was wrong. 
Therefore I revert to a suggestion I made some weeks ago in tills 
Inquiry when the initial problem arose as to where Your Honor 
stood at the conclusion of Your Honor 1 s deliberations. It 
would seem to me as a practical solution 1 and I repeat one I made 
earlier, that if s.32 is to be the decid~g thing - and not as 
I was going to submit, as I will now tell Your Honor 7 that s.33(6) 
clearly applies, since before Your Honor can ascertalll under s.31(2) 
Your Honor must make a decision- the argummt against that is 
of course tha t the decision in s.33(6) - and I think this carries 
the day as far as I am concerned - refers to a judicial determination 
It concerns a certificate,against the refusal of the issuing of a 
certificate, and so on - the matters set out there in s.32. 
However, the Minister does have the power to enable the report 
to be made public and that may be an administrative matter tha t 
could easily be cleared up before the time comes for Your Honor 
to complete your report. 

HIS HONOR: I cannot inhibit his department, clearly. If the 
Minister in his wisdom decides that the method of making the 
report or tha~ certain parts of it bemade public lies with me 
or with the Court, then I should carry out the desires of the 
Minister. 

MR. LEE: I propose to get certain instructions on that. The 
machinery will be put in train concerning that today. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Lee, I would ask you to bear this in mind: 
there is always a difficulty about presenting the whole of a 
report, as it contains a number of ancillary matters relating to 
the nature of the inquiry, and so on. 

MR. LEE: Yes. 

l1R. MURRAY: Firstly I would like to direct my attention briefly 
to one or t1vo remarks contained in the submissions of my 
l earned friend Mr. Reynolds yesterday. He referred to 
legislative regulations to which this ·industry is subject, inviting 
Your Honor to agree that this employer was already bound up by 
~e gulations to an inordinate degree, pointing out forcibly - and 
lf I might say so with r e spect, pursuasively - tha t even its awn 
empl~yees were certific~ted and independent of the managemerrt, 
and 1ndeed had statutory duties. Now, fhis is not unusual and 
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this industry is by no means unique in tha t r egard. My oWl 
people from the Electrical Trades Union are familiar with the 
detailed legislative and quasi l egisla tive supervision of their 
work, and this is of c ourse accepted and .accepted for a good 
r ea son: saf e ty. It is in my submission no longer good enough 
and it has not be en good enough for decades, in workmens' safe ty 
to rely merely on the experience, the common sense and the good 
judgment of their employers tD avoid the tragedy of industrial 
accidents. For Mr. Reynolds yes terday in effect put what I 
submit is the extraordinary proposition that in the coal mining 
industry, it would be better r egulated if the employersr 
0 bliga tion 'I.<Tere to be merely tha t of the common law, vli thou t 
statutory r egulations a t all, the employer to be left to provide 
reasonably safe working systems and ventilat .i.Qn such a s in the 
circumstances are r ea sonably available , or some words like that, 
and be subject to be sued in civil Courts should it br each this 
du ty of care and someone be hurt or killed. Remarks were made 
about r egulative minimums becoming practical maximums. I would 
submit an extraordinary concession from ~~ employer whose 
organisation produces RX~~~25 per cent of this State's coal 7 an employer who is duty7ofLJ.course to introduce his own addit1onal 
standards in the light of his ovJn experience and his own 
operations. Therefore I would submit t o Your Honor tha t we 
should not shrink from supporting legislative restrictions in 
this industry. History has proved them t o be one of the working 
man s best safe ty safeguards and it must surely be self-evident 
that in industry generally there is workers' insurance 
legislation, factory legislation, scaffolding legislation, 
exp l osives legislation as 'l.vell as mining legislation. And in 
every State of every developed country, not only at a comp ensation 
and r egulation level but, above a ll, prevention. Coal mining 
ha s t o be especially looked a t and has its own legislation 
ranging from pensions to its own industrial tribwLals. Can we 
therefore, as Mr. Reynolds would appear to want us t o do, throw 
out of the window the safety l egi slation and r evert to, accept 
and have the mining cow~unity accept, and have the families of 
dead mine workers and living mine workers accept the concept of 
fatalism 1 of the inevitability of accident, of the inevitability 
of fatal1ty and l eave to the employer his common law obligation 
to provide r ea sonably safe working conditions, and if someone is 
hurt or killed, to be suedi Tha t is the crux of the submission 
\<Jhich was put forward, in my submission, on this point yesterday 
on behalf of Australian Iron & Steel. The company's approach 
was, as I have said, put smoothly and pursuasively, but in my 
submission it is out of touch with r eality today. It is not 
good enough to imply that occasionally men must be injured or 
presumably be killed; that occasionally managers make errors 
of judgment. Our submission t o the c ontrary is that men need 
not die, that mistakes need not be made, and our submission is 
~hat this Inquiry should endeavour t o make recommendations which, 
lf adopted, should try to ensure an impossibility - namely that 
no mine worker need die in the course of his daily labour. 

In r elation t o this, as an illustration of this point 
and perhaps of wha t must be accepted, which is that familiarity 
~i~h- the problems of safety does lead to a degree of complacency 
111 everybody, naturally, may I just read this: urn conclusion, 
the Commission are well aware that no matter how stringent the 
reg~latior;.s, or perfect the discipline, in a mine, or hmvever 
str~ctly li1dustry may be fenced in by Acts of Parliament, 
accidents will happen. 

Where gas exists the safety of the whole workmEn is ~ependent 
u~on the care and attention with which every individual deports 
hlmself. The lives of all hang on the actions of an individual 
and the momentary c arelessness of one may imp eril the lives of ' 
those observing the regulations. It is impossible to suppo se 
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that men will not attempt to deviate from rules obviously 
necessary for the safe conduct of a mine. In such cases 
accidents must and will happen which no Act of Parliament, 
skillful management or human foresight can avert; but it is 
none the less necessary to frame r egulations for the preservation 
of human life and to maintain the observance of these, while 
strict and close discipline will certainly decrease the risk 
or number of accidents; and for this reason they should be 
rrhgidly enforced. 11 That is a quotation from p.33 of the 
recommendations of the Commissioners into the Bulli disaster 
and it is dated 12th July 1887. 

HIS HONOR: I have read tha t. 

HR. HURRAY: And in my submission, equally applies today. 
Our interest in bhese proceedings is very real. Mr. Barry 
Kent, one of my clients, has a vital interest in the Inquiry 
for a number of reasons. For instance, his workmates were 
killed. He himself was injured and he was the shift electrician 
in the panel. The Electrical Trades Union has something 
approaching 400 members employed in coal mines. We are familiar 
with close legislative sup ervision of the way our work is to 
be carried out in other industries, of which I can give instances 
if Your Honor r equires them. 

With increased mechanisation the proportion of 
tradesmen (members of craft unions) increases. With the 
increa sing use of electricity in mining, the numbers of 
electrical tradesmen in the industry have increased and will 
f urther increase markedly in the future. The electrical 
trade sman wherever he works is, like all workmen, concerned with 
industrial safety. This concern particularly applies to the 
electrical tradesman as wherever he works he is dealing with a 
lethal energy source - electricity. 

For these reasons my clients as a body have a general 
interest in this Inquiry and the mine e lectrical tradesmen have 
a particular and vital interest in this accident and in the 
solution of any mine safe ty problems that are r evealed. There­
for e I propose to consider several aspects of the evidence in 
the Inquiry and to suggest certain observations to Your Honor 
and recommendations as appropriate and necessary. 

I sugge st the following are valid and necessary 
conclusions as to matters of fact and I propose to list a 
number of them briefly. However, before I turn to them I 
would like to make a gener a l submission and, if I may with 
r espect, sound one brief note of warning. In an administrative 
Inquisition such as this, although there is no matter in issue 
on the party versus parties ba sis, there must n ec e ssarily be 
r esolution of factual controversy. These matters may _ 
range in administrative situa tions such a s this from the 
waiver or imposition of a l a te f ee by a postal clerk to the 
~e t ermination by a magistra te of a public servant's guilt or 
mnocenc e of misconduct in an Inquiry instituted under ss.56 and 
58 of the State Public Service Act for the purpose of the 
magistrate r eporting ther eon to the Public Service Board. The 
magistrate makes nothing but a r ecommenda tion. 

In such an inquiry as this there may emerge factual 
controversies the r e solution of \vhich has grea t implications to 
t~ose conc erned and which may grea tly affect peoples personal 
l1ve s. In my submission to Your Honor, the l aw has very wide 
standards to be applied by a judicial tribunal .. These I sUmit 
in general §erms vary in d imension ac cording to the importance 
of the subj ect matter of the decision. Here we have considered 
- and the se are words which from time t o time have been used by 
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Your Honor and by my l earned friends - uinformation, 11 11Under­
standing of witne sse sz." 11 Hearsay,u llAdvic e f r om Asse s sors, 11 

indeed a great dea l or material t ha t would ord~narily be .. 
excluded entirely fr om a Court of l aw. And, 1n my subm1s s1 on, 
rightly it has been c on s ider ed so tha t the Court may infor m 
itself and no avenue of fruitful inquiry l eft unexplored if 
only f or these r ea sons: 

(a) Any t opic suitable f or further investiga tion may 
emerge : 

(b) the public see s wha t appears t o be the fullest 
possible inve stiga tion; and 

(c) my submission is tha t this is the mo st important, 
in order t o a ssist in uncoverin g the evidence. 

True , this me thod of inquiry can hurt. Th~re are 
other instance s of similar inquisa t orial tribunals allowing 
informa tion t o be publicised whi ch proved no thing but harmed 
bystanders. Our submission her e is t ha t Your Honor will make 
no positive finding on any matter of importanc e and controversy 
unle s s t here is a sa tisfactory preponder anc e of evidenc e in 
t he str i ct l egal sen se t o support t ha t f inding. 

HIS HONOR: You may r est a ssured t ha t tha t i s my a ttitude , 
Mr. Murray. 

MR. MURRAY: If your Honor pl ea ses. Some examp l e s at r andom 
of the issue s tha t may have t oJ be r e solved and t her efore 

explored can only be r e solved positively with the support of 
overwhelming evidenc e or a pr eponder anc e of evidence: 

(a) did t he c ompany intend to hol e the goaf in No. 2 
cut-through? 

(b) Did Deputy Stewart t e st for Illawarra bo ttom ga s 
in the shunt? 

(c) Were t he r egula t ors moved t o alter the air split into 
8 Right just bef or e t he fire? 

(d) Wher e did the management intend t o split the n e1v pillar? 

The se ar e ma tters which, a s I have sa id, would r eq uire 
a pr eponderanc e of evidenc e in the l ega l sense bef or e any 
po sitive conclusion c ould be arrived a t. I am no t suggesting 
in u sing those a s ill ustra tions tha t any one of them had any 
particular r elevanc e t o t he cause and circumstance s of t he fir e , 
but they ar e matters which have been mentioned, cross- examined 
on, and there are others which no doubt have occurred t o Your 
Honor and of which mention will be made . I am grateful t o 
Your Honor for indica ting tha t you do agree with my submission 
and I submit tha t is the ba sis on which the matter should be 
approached. 

We suggest the f ollowing are valid and n ec e ssary 
conclusions a s t o matters of f act: 

(l) Ther e wa s no f ault in the e l ectrical sy stem in 
8 Right on 9th November 1965 and ther e wa s no 
error or other dereliction of duty by the el ectrical 
tradesmen c onc erned with t his wor k in 8 Right or the 
servicing of the equipment used. 

(2) That Mr. Kent showed some degree of s elfle ss c ourage 
when he went back t o see whe t her Bobby Stewart had 
the warning, an a ttitude which I submit is typical 
of the t eamwork Hhich develops amongst men who work 
t oge ther in difficult conditions. 
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(3) 

(4) 

( 5) 

(6) 

( 7) 

(8) 

The plan of the management for the development of 
the pillar extraction outby of No. 4 cut-through 
was c ontrary t o good mining practice and led to 
ven tilation improvisation. 

The deliberate erection of the brattice in the 
A heading shunt was an error. 

Some gas wa s present in t he section and had been 
present for some weeks prior t o 9th November 1965. 

There is no direct evidence tha t this gas was 
Illawarra bottom gas. 

The presence of noxious gas or inert or extinctive 
gas and inflaw~able gas had been de tect ed in 8 Right 
in the weeks prior to 9th November 1965. 

Responsible members of the staff - the manager, the 
under manager and others as well as the deputies -
were not fully aware of the significance of the 
presence of methane, CH4, in noxious or inert or 
extinctive mine gases known to occur and found to 
occur in this mine. 

Now, f or what it is worth, Your Honor, this is no~, 
in my submission, a new t hing. The re were two Royal Commissions 
into the indust:ry t aken in the late 1930's and ea rly 1940's 
and conducted by His Honor Mr. Justic e Davidson. I have the 
documen t here . I am sorry I only have photostats of parts. 
They a r e very voluminous. There are two reports and I am not 
avmre of which s ec tion this one is in, having discovered only 
this morning the fact tha t th er e are two r eports. This one is 
in fact four pages taken from one of those reports, pp.ll6 to 
119, and I would like t o r ead the first paragraph, then perhaps 
r efer Your Horror t o t he CJntext and a f act which emarges from 
reading it: 11 The pr e sence of several gases in some of the mines 
constitute s one of the ma jor menaces in coal mining. Fortunately 
the severity of the ir ~onsequences has in mos t instances le~ to 
successful study of the manner of their appearance and of the 
method s for the de t ection of their presence and of their 
tr ea tmen t. The r esult has been so s a tisfactory that during the 
l a st eleven years ih New South Wale s there have be en very f ew 
fatalities or even serious acciden ts due to this cause. There­
fore it is not necessary t o discuss the subject at any length." 
Then His Honor goes on t o consider the mine gases found in the 
course of his very lengthy inquiry, and not once do e s he mention 
the presence of CH4 with inert, noxious or extinctive gases or 
any problem associated vJi th its de t ection there in. 

(~) 

(10) 

(ll) 

The responsible members of the staff and the deputies 
did not expect to find inflammable ga s n ear the floor 
of these workings. 

The only direct evidence is tha t tests were, however, 
carried out for inflammable gas as a constituent of 
noxious ga s. Tha t of c ourse is sworn t es timony. 

Not less than 13 people (members of the staff, 
deputies, and members of the Federation) would 
ordinarily have carried out tests for gas in 8 Right 
section during the week before the fire with negative 
results. I justify this statement by the reference 
to Mr· Puddle's evidence in cross-examination by me 
and also this f actual deduction. Certain men in 
mines have lamps to detect gas. They are always 
carried by thos men and they are carried not to warm 
their lunch but to test for gas. These are the 
men of the managerial heirachy. Mr. Stone ru1d 
Mr. Puddle were both in this section in a period 
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not long before the fire. On the day shift, 
Mr. Wright, who has not been called. Mr. Charles 
Stewart the deputy; Mr. Deputy Gordon, who 
relieved him for two weeks previously when ~IT. 
Walker was off. Bobby Stewart, the miner driver, 
who according to my understanding is required to be 
able to test for gas. The afternoon shift, Mr. 
Eager, the staff man and the overman whose name 
does not appear in the transcript. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Fears was the new overman. 

~ffi . MURRAY: Yes. He was on the day shift. I think the name 
is Taylo~ but I do not think it appears in the transcript. 
The afternoon shift miner driver, again whose name does not 
appear in the transcrip t that I can r ecall; and Deputy Cambourn. 
Now , the maintenance shift, - Your Horror will recall there is 
some responsibility on the maintenance shift to get the place 
ready for the day's work and there is also other evidence that 
other deputies not included in my 13 or staff men go into the 
pit on uvertime on Sundays to turn on the fans. Those men 
carry lights. But the final three of the lJ are Mr. Overman 
Ryan on the maintenance shift Mr. Deputy Walker and the unknown 
miner driver, so that makes lJ men. One of the questions Your 
Honor will have to answer, and again I would submit on the 
basis on what is the preponderance of ev:id ence is: Can 13 men 
be wrong? 

(12) There is just no evidence that these tests or any 
of them were carried out in a conscientious and 
competent manner. 

(13) The maintenance shift (which included staff and 
employees equipped with test lamps) tested for 
gas with n ega tive results prior to 6 a.m. on the 
morning of the fire. We may assume they tested 
- in fact they did, there is no need to assume it, 
the deputies r reports show it. 

(14) Deputy Stewart tested for gas twice between ten to 
eight and quarter to nine in t he shunt with negative 
results as far as inflammable gas was concerned. 

(15~ That inflammable gas was present in the shunt prior 
to the fire. How much or how long it had been 
there it is not possible to say on the evidence, in 
my r e spectful submission. 

(16) That at the time of the fire the gas in the shunt was 
goaf gas in the form of an inflammable mixture of CH4 
and extinctive gases. 

There is no number 17. 

(18) Oil flame safety lamps have a number of inadequacies. 
For example (a) it will not test for CH4 n ear the 
floor or roof; (b) it will not test for a low per­
centage of CH~; (c) it will not accurately test for 
CH4; (d) it will not test for N2; and (e) it will 
only with great skill test for CH4 in noxious or 
inert mixtures. 

HIS HONOR: That is not the evidence of certain experts. }tt. 
S~l~ers, for example, was quite positive and some of the other 
m1n1ng inspectors, that providing you have got on9Per cent 
Upwa rds, certainly if you have two per cent, of methane, it 
nu s t show. 
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MR. MURRAY: To what expert is Your Honor referring? 

HIS HONOR: I mentioned one , but ther e are other mining 
in spec tors. 

MR. MURRAY: For instance, Mr. Longworth does not agree with 
Your Horror's proposition. 

HIS HONOR: That may be, but I think you will find Mr. Menzies 
doe s. 

MR. LEE;. I think Mr. Longworth did agree with it, but in 
cross-examination he did ultimately admit tha t with some 
imcompetence you could have troubles. 

MR. MURRAY: From the t able, my l earned fri end Mr. Sullivan 
say s that Mr. Parkinson 7 the check inspector, says you must 
find it. He was in thls mine numbers of times over a period 
of months prior to the fire, as Mr. Reynolds pointed out. 

HIS HONOR: What is the evidence as to Mr. Parkinson being last 
in 8 Right section? 

MR . MURRAY: I do not know. 

HIS HONOR: The f act tha t a man is in a mine doe s not necessarily 
mean he is in the place where ga s is. 

}ffi. MURRAY: Not nec essarily, but Illawarra bottom ga s was not 
de t ected by Mr. Parkinson. Look wha t }~. Longworth says at 
p .l53. I have no interest in this except tha t my men do not 
l ike working in coal mines wher e t he equipment supplied does not 
enable dangerous ga s t o be de t ected. Tha t i s t he point I am 
making. At p.l53 the diff icultie s are r ef erred to: 

11 Q. When you have t he small fl ame of the me thane, that is 
when the disc ernible cap on the flame appears?A. Ye s. That 
is when you disc ern or a sse ss the actual percentage. 

Q. So that t o use t he normal or n ear-normal flame as a test 
for me thane , if you happen to miss t he luminosity - A. Ye s, 
you would not know. 

Q. Your t e st ha s gone?A. Yes. 11 

Then a t pp.l88-189, that is conc erning t he difficultie s of 
t esting with it, at the bottom of p.l88: 

11 Q. So ther efor e tha t lamp cannot be used to examine ga s 
an inch from t he c eiling - an inch from the roof?A. If 
you put it in a c avity above the roof you can t e st a bove 
roof level but gen erally it is dif ficult to t e st a t roof 
l evel for a l ayer of ga s. 

Q. To that extent then that lamp has deficiencie s, hasn't 
it? In tha t it is difficult with it t o t e st at roof l evel? 
Tha t is right?A. Ye s. 

Q. Would you show me how with tha t lamp you could t e st ga s 
an inch from the floor?A. It would be difficult - as equa lly 
difficult. 

Q. It is impossible , isn't it?A. Unless ther e wa s a hol e in 
the floor and then you c ould t e st by ge tting the lamp more 
or less at floor l evel.n 

ms HONOR: But that is a t est for Illawarra bottom ga s? 
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MR. MURRAY: And testing for me thane at pp.l89-90. At p.l90: 

11Q.The answer is Yes, isn't it?A. It is inadequa t e to 
determine the correct percentage in it. 

Q. It is inadequate to detect with any worthwhile 
accuracy the presence of methane, isn't it?A. Yes. 11 

Towards the bottom of p.l90: "Q. Therefore the lamp does not 
give an adequate test - 11 

HIS HONOR: To assist your argument I think you should r ead the 
next question and answer there. 

MR. MURRAY: Yes. 

nQ. Once you have turned the flame down and you are testing 
in a mixture which contains black damp, in other words 
where testing in bottom gas, you run the r eal danger of the 
flame being lost before methane can be ignited inside the 
lamp?A. There is that possibility. 

Q. That is a likelihood?A. It is a likelihood ••••••••••• 
A. If the lamp wer e lowered into this concentration then 
it would be lost. 11 

And of course it was a concentra tion higher t han that which was 
found after t he fire. At the bottom of thatpage: 

11 Q. Therefore the lamp does not give an adequate test for 
me thane in bottom gas?A. It would depend on the operator, 
I would say •••••• 
Q. How many yea rs experience have you had?A. More t han you. 11 

Then he goes on to t alk about the question of diffusion. 
Irrespective of what Mr. Longworth may have said in-chief , my 
submission is tha t we all know tha t one of the tests of testimony 
is wha t is said in cross-examination. We have the experts her e , 
all of whom differ; indeed criticise each other, without going 
thr ough it. From r ecollection I think we have seen Mr. Cambourn 
demonstra ting the light; Mr. Longworth demonstra ted at l ength 
the method, and I am certain Mr. Sellers did. My impre ssion 
is that Mr. Sellers was criticised by Mr . Menzies, but all I am 
poin tang out at this s tage is that they were saying that the 
oil flame safe ty lamp is still the piece of equipment and must 
face this inadequacy, that it doe s r equire a great deal of skill 
and experience to t est for inflammable gas in the presence of 
extinctive , inert or noxious gases. 

·. (19) These inadequacies have been r ecognised f or many 
years and have been known to Mines Department 
officials. 

I refer again to the evidence of Mr. Menzies and Mr. Longworth 
1n pa rticular. 

(20) The methanometer is a simple and r eliable t e sting 
instrument for methane. 

(21) Its value has been known t o senior Mines Department 
officials for t en year s. 

(22) It would appear that it has not been approved by the 
chief inspector for purpose s in the Gener a l Rules 
in s.54 despite his knowledge, constructively, and 
c ertainly t ha t of his offici als of its value . 
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I refer Your Honor to the questions asked yesterday and I make 
this statement which I challenge to be contradicted. It has 
been approved under s.54 so therefore it cannot be used, and I 
will refer to this again shortly. 

MR. LEE: So that members of the public who r ead the papers 
may not ge t any wrong ideas, are these inspired guesses or 
statements of fact? 

MR. t1URRAY: Your Honor yesterday asked my fri end whether or 
not the methanometer he.d been approved. After some delay my 
fri end said it had been approved and referred to the 7th Schedule. 
I am instructed tha t this methanometer has not been approved by 
the chief inspector as an alternative to the oil flame safety 
lamp for the_ purpose of s.54. 

MR. LEE: Of course we would not and we never would, as an 
alternative to t he oil· flame safety lamp. We would have it 
with it but never a s an alternative. 

MR. HURRAY: That is now made clear. 

MR. LEE: The methanometer is going t o look a bit silly trying 
to de tee t C02. 

l1R. MURRAY: It was appr oved under the 7th Schedule following an 
incident involving an electric welder on direct action by the 
combined mining unions in 1964. Your Honor will note tha t the 
7th Schedule on p.217 wa s amended in October 1964. I will 
refer t o what I submit is of any significance , if anything. 

(24) There is no evidence tha t the chief inspector has: 

(a) introduced any l egal provision augmenting the 
oil flame safe ty lamp as a testing devic e ,or 

(b) introduced any l egal provision encouraging or 
requiring the use of self-lighting flame safe ty 
lamps. 

Indeed the evidence of Mr. Menzies is tha t they are in fact n~ 
approved although they have been in existence for some time. 

(25) The self-lighting l amp ha s been known t o senior 
Depar t mental officE.ls for 25 years. 

MR. LEE: It has only just been approved becau se they have a 
t ype tha t is satisfactory. 

MR. MURR.AY: My fri end says these things from the Bar table. I 
am here r epr e senting a group of men working in coal mines. 
W~ look to the Department to ensur e tha t our employers are, 
onher by pursuasion or l egislative sanction, using the best 
safety equipment mon ey can buy. 

(26) The knowledge tha t he can simply re-light the lamp 
would be of assistance t o a deputy and give him 
confidence in t e sting for CH4 with the lamp in 
extinctive situa tions yet no approval ha s been 
given t o it. 

I r efer there t o the evidence of Mr. Menzies given only a 
couple of days ago. 

(27) Ther e is and has been f or years a r eal and important 
requirement for gas alarms for the working place s. 
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(28) There is no evidence tha t the Department has done 
anything, 

(29) 

(30) 

(01) 

(32) 

(33) 

(34) 

(35) 

(36) 

(37) 

(a) to stimulate their production, or 

(b) t o enc ourage or r equire their use. 

Self-rescue devices of the type in evidence have 
been known for years and are a valuable safety 
device. 

There is no evidence tha t the Department has done 
anything t o have their use introduced on a compulsory 
basis. 

No written plan of the development of the pillar 
extract~on exQsted in this mine, it was only a 
matter of post-factum maps. 

No fire hoses were closer than 38 phone some 
500 yards outby of the working place. 

The water r e ticulation system in section 8 Right 
was not fitt ed with fire hose taps. 

There was no rescue equipment of any sort in or 
n ear the section. 

No foam machine existed at the mine. 

There was no emergency line on the telephone system 
in existence. 

Barometer: 

I merely quote somewha t lightheartedly from the 1887 Royal 
Commission, Po32, r ecommenda tion six: 

11The Commission would not insist upon a barometer being 
provided at each mine. Experience has proved that this 
is a tardy index t o atmospheric conditions. Serious 
changes in the atmospheric pressure occur 1 and are felt 
befor e they are indicated by a barometer.' 

So, that matter was consider·3d at that time alro. 

HIS HONOR: I wonder, in view of that, what caused it to be 
introduced. 

MR. MURRAY: We use United Kingdom l egi slation as a precedent. 
There the changes in atmosphere may be of much grea ter extent. 

HIS HONOR: I agree tha t the atmosphere may be different. 

MR. MURRAY: These are my suggested conclusions: 

(1) Methanometers should be carried by the deputies. 

It is implicit in these suggestions that wha tever legislative 
changes or r ecommendations or approvals are necessary should 
follow. 

HIS HONOR: I take it you mean in addition t o and not in 
substitution for t he oil safety lamp. 

MR. MURRAY: It wa s said by Mr. Lee tha t his clients would not 
allow the oil flame safety lamp t o be superseded because the 
me thanometer would not t est for C02. 
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MR. LEE: I said we would not substitute the methanometer 
as an alternative for the safe ty lamp~ 

MR. MURRAY: Because the methanome t er won't t e st for C02? 

MR. LEE: Yes. 

MR. MURRAY: My submission is that neither will the oil flame 
safety lamp test for C02 in any accurate sense. It is 
useless, in my submission, except as a warning to know tha t 
C02 or nitrogen is pre sent. The danger of the presence of 
inert gases is tha t it will alter the capacity of the light to 
detect methane and, above all, the proportion of me thane to 
oxygen. I think it is clear from the evklence that you can 
dilute a mixture of CH4 and inert gase s with air and produce, 
from a safe mixture, an explosive one by the dilution process 
because of the introduction of oxygen. So unless the device, 
and this ha s been a scientific fact known f or years, this 
problem has been known because in 1928 there was a pamphle t 
written by the C.S.I ~ R.O. people and I think that was referred 
t o by Mr. Reynolds, and I have photostats of it, and there 
are se t out the proportions of the mixture s between CH4 and 
C02 which will explode , and this ha s been known for 50 years 
ye t the oil flame saf e ty lamp is still supported by Mr. Lee 
and those instructing him a s the device. If we follow o ther , 
countries, surely we ar e able down her e , with a very extensive 
coal mining industry, to say it is time we ceased to follow them. 

HIS HONOR: How would you de t ect C02 without the oil flame 
safety lamp? 

MR. MURRAY: I am sure had the Department or the Minister 
indica t ed 20 years ago we needed an accurate device for deter­
mining the C02 conten t in the air we would have had one at 
l east 15 years ago. Surely today n othing is beyond us. Ther e 
is evidence befor e us tha t me thanometer alarms are now common 
and we have had them her e I would submit a device which 
will not only de t ect C02 must be ther e for the r e search as 
with a devic e which will de t ect nitrogen in air. 

HI S HONOR: Mr. Buck t ells me ther e are other devices for 
t esting C02 which ar e known t o the Department in the n a ture of 
i ndicators. Mr. Buck t ells me in f act the Mines Department 
i n spectors carry them but they ar e not used by deputie s. The 
oil flame saf e ty lamp is adequate to de t ect C02 in the air and 
the lamp will not go out unle ss the oxygen content f alls too 
low. The regulations simply say tha t once the lamp goe s out 
tha t's it. So, the oil flame saf e ty lamp is enough t o show 
that it is dangerous. Apparently that is the Departmental 
attitude up t o the pre sent day. 

MR. MURRAY: Hy recollection is that certainly it was mentioned 
in cross-examination that the se devic e s have been known for 
Year so 

(2) Met:~.ane alarms should be available t o the deputies. 

(3) The conti.nuous miner machines should be fitted with 
an effective CH4 a larm. 

(4) The developmenta l plan should exist in deta il as 
a future plan for pillar extrac.tion and be put up 
at the pit t op and in the section where the deputies 
and all others can see ito 

~ h~ve l earnt enough about mining and mY instructions are that 
lt 1s not easy to plan pillar extraction and the man on the spot 
must make decisions in the light of wha t he sees and I go along, 

l 047o. Mr. Murray's address. 



to some extent with the submission made on tha t ba sis. So, 
therefore if it c anno t be put up and rigidly adhered to the 
variations dictated by practical decisions made by the 
r esponsible officials should be put on it as soon as practicable 
and then the Mines Departmen t inspectors visiting will be able 
to see at a glance whether an error is cont empl a ted and the 
deputies will know exactly what the amendments on the plmare. 
This may involve some amendment, for instance, t o s.35. 

(5) A map showing the exact sta t e of the workings should 
be kept at the pit t op f or fir e-fighting purposes, 
including the state of the workings, all stoppings , 
screens e t ce tera and be brought up t o date at the 
end of each shift. 

Your Honor will r ec all that the fire-fighting teams ente r ed 
the section and put up a brattice at C heading, there being one 
alr eady there. There is n o evid enc e but the presumption is 
tha t they did not know there wa s a brattice stopping or screen 
at the inby end of C he ading. Your Honor can see the very 
serious implications tha t c ould follow if the fire-fighting 
crews did not knm·J tha t brattice screens or headings existed. 

(6) Fire-fighting hoses should be kept, say, in the crib 
room or o ther places handy t o the working place. 

I am not suggesting tha t is a magic answer but it seems to me 
rather strange t ha t the se men were so far from anything with 
which to fight a substantial fir e . 

(7) The water r e ticulation system should have a tap 
for fir e hoses every so often. 

It is a matter of someon e who knows de t ermining how far and 
certainly not a matter of having a man coming down with his 
tools, with the fire r aging, and having t o t ap into the line . 

(8) Each mine t el ephone system should have a line reserved 
for emergency c alls which rings in a per manen tly 
manned cen tral office (see Mr. J on es' evidence at 
p.53 and Mr. Menzies' evidence a t p.32l). Mr. 
Menzie s said the Mines Re scue Sta tion '\1as not notified 
till 9. 25. 

HIS HONOR: You ar e suggesting a nhot line11 as it is called today? 

MR. MURRAY: Yes. 

(9) Air r egula tors should be locked and the issue of the 
key r ecorded. 

(10) Devic e s for carbon dioxide and nitrogen should be 
available t o the deputie s when r equired and in 
this r egard my instructions are tha t we agree whole 
heartedly with the 28th and 29th points put forward 
by Mr. ReY.nolds in t his c ontext. 

(11) Future inquirie s where the Judge is to do it, should 
have appointed a counsel to assist the Judge , counse l 
who doe s not r epr e sen t any sectiona l inte r es t. 

This 7 Your Honor, will be something t o 9bviate the occurrenc e of 
feell.ngs such a s Your Honor gave expre ssion to this morning, 
When any person can be calledo 

. - I might add a t this stage tha t ther e is 
nothing known to me or, to my knowledge, t o my instructing 
solicitors or to any per son I have intervi ewed fr om the union 
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~ho knows anything about this fire, that has not been put 
before Your Honor and v.1e work there and we are involved in 
safety. There were 12 men and my mind boggles at tbere being 
anything which viOuld not be known to themQ 

I will now deal with the submissions of the Mines 
Department. 

(1) 

(2) 

Yes. Let the shuttle car be inspected, and the 
wheeling road. We do not accept the wood block 
theory - we submit that it is so likely that men 
would have smelled smoulder odour that the 
probability of them smelling it combined with the 
difficulties encountered in workshop reconstruction 
make the theory improbable and the brru{e fluid is 
more likely, we submit, if the ignition occurred in 
the vicinity of the brake. If brake fluid were 
dropped it would be dropped continually and men may 
get used to it but wood smoulders for some time and 
me~ would, certainly, in my submission, smell it. 

The lamp with the probe and re-lighter should be 
d.ntroduced. 

In r elation to the third submission, the methanometer, the 
fourth submission of a device to be attached to the miner and 
the fifth submission, the self-rescue - yes please - because 
it is an extraordinary submission t o this effect: Mr. Lee 
said~ and, of course, these are not his words but the best I 
could get it down, 11 I am instructed by the Chief Inspector 
that through me the Chief Inspector would like to see Your 
Honor recommend the introduction of the methanometer. 11 What 
a state of affairs, when after ten years the man now in the 
position of having the power and the responsibility through 
counsel for the Minister asks Your Honor to do his job. He 
did not give evidence. He has not told us what he has done 
to introduce these devices or, if there are any, what 
difficulties t here are in his way. We have heard from Mr. Muir, 
Mr. Menzies and Mr. Longworth, men with wide experience and 
greatly respected, as I am informed, in the industry 1 and rightly 
s~, and in my respectful submission they have been or great 
assistance in this matter. The fact is that these devices 
were known to the Department, they say, before these men died. 
Why not the self-rescuer which may have encouraged ---

MR. LEE: This is purely inflammatory. This is not an inquiry 
into the Department. I do hope the Press realises the 
r esponsibility and does not carry wha t is a wanton attack 7 really, on the Depa_rtment. My friend is making submiss1ons 
along the lines that there is no evidence of this and that of 
course, is right,but how it appears to the public is that there 
should have been evidence. Now, if we had put the evidence 
as to what the Department has done~ briefly r eferred to in 
evidence before Your Honor as to this liaison with other 
~ol.llltries, with the English Re search Authoritie s and wit~ the 
establishment in Norway and other places, if that evllience was 
put before you and it had been shown over the years what the 
department had done no doubt vJe would have added another 
fortnight to the length of this Inquiry~ It was n ever incumbent 
upon the Department to put any such evidence, in our submissiona 

MR. MURRAY: Why not the self-rescuer which may have encouraged 
~r. Sullivan 1 s clients' husbands to try to follow Kento This 
ls not wanton. If my friend is stunned I am sorry but; it is a 
fact that in mines on this coast a device has been usod for some 
time now which may have assisted these men to do wha t Kent did~ 
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There is no explana tion as to why these devices are not r equired. 
I am merely drawing attention t o that f act. 

HIS HONOR: There wa s some explanation made tha t they are 
unpopular with the men. Tha t was a sugge stion put before me . 

~. MURRAY: Surely that would not be given a moment's consideration. 

HIS HONOR: True. I am merely answering your query. 
as I say, an explanation put forward. 

It wa s, 

MR. MURRAY: No doubt prohibition of smoking underground is 
unpopular with some men. As I say, they may have done wha t 
Mr. Kent did. The fact of Mr. Lee being here partly analagous 
to counsel assisting the Inquiry should not, in my r e spectful 
submission, prevent the se questions being asked. Why should 
not the device have been brought forward, and instead of being 
put on t he t able , and they were not mentioned in Mr. Lee 's 
opening address - -

MR. LEE: They arrived here during the Inquiry. 
t he trouble of ge tting them from America. 

We vJen t to 

MR. MURRAY: It may have been a gocd idea if they had been here 
some years ago. 

HIS HONOR: The fact tha t they were produced at all was something 
for which I wa s r e sponsible , not that I suggested the productl on 
but when I \.Ja s inf ormed of them I sugge sted tha t it might help 
clear up wha t devic e s were available . I do not think ther e is 
any sinister significance in t he f act that Mr. Lee did not 
mention them in his op ening. 

MR. MURRAY: I am not sugge sting anything at all sinister in 
t his, I am mer ely pointing out wha t I be lieve to be empirical 
f acts and indicating tha t at p.439 I asked Mr. Donnegan this 
question, 11 In your vie\.r ••••••• thank. you Your Honor. 11 

(Lunche on adjournment) 

MR. LEE: Your Honor ·vrill probably give an indica tion on this 
matter so that t he Department will be protected. May I 
assume tha t? In vi ew of the attack made on Mr. Anderson 
personally and t he Department may I a ssume that Your Honor at 
some stage before the Inquiry closes will give an indication 
as t o Your Honor's view as to the relevance of evidence as to 
the non-production or non-introduction prior to this flr e of 
any automatic devic e s? 

HIS HONOR: Ye s. I will c ertainly consider tha t. 

MR. l~RAY: Before I l eave the que stion of device s, Mr. Lee 
said 11 We do not make the se things her e". Shortly before 
lunch he did make some comments about the se things arriving 
from overseas. It may well be if tha t is the ca se and we 
have been depending upon wha t is done in the countrie s of our 
great and powerful fri ends, it may be it · is time tha t tha t 
situa tion wa s changed because we ar e large producers and ar e 
becoming largo exporters of coal and I would submit the evidence 
befor e Your Honor may well pursuade Your Honor to sugge st tha t 
some grea t er mea sure s be tru{en for us either to initia t e the 
production of devices which our own experience leads us to 
consider we need, or to mak e more vigorous efforts t o obta in 
these from overseas. 

HIS HONOR: I do not r ec all ther e is any evidenc e before me , 
apart fr om the Mine s Department itself, of any organisa tion 
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such as the C.S.I.R.O. which specialises in equipment or any 
kind of research connected with the coal mine. 

MR. MURRAY: There is the Australi an Coal Re search Organisation 
but I am instructed it is concerned more with the question of 
production, quality of extraction and ash. 

MR. SULLIVAN: There is the Australian Fire Protective Associa tion 
which has its headquarters in Collins Stree t, Melbourne, and I 
have mentioned this to my l earned friend Mr. Lee and I have had 
some discussion about that with him and those instructing me were 
in contact with a Mr. Marriott who is an expert on fire prevention 
and Mr. Marriott sen t up t o Mr. Lee, which I do not ha .,e in my 
possession at the moment in Court, but which is in my possession, 
the I.L.O. code which I am sure the Department is well aware of, 
that is, the International Labour Organisa tion in r elation to 
reports on fire prevention in mines and methods of fighting fires 
in mines. I am sure they could be made available to Your Honor 
if Your Honor would like to see them. 

HIS HONOR: Is there any body apart from the Mines Department, 
any institution e~pecially se t up to consider matters such as 
these for safety measures, as distindt from, say, produotion? 

MR. SULLIVAN: I was informed by people interested that as far as 
the Austra lian Association is conc erned it has ~ite a laxgo 
library in Melbourne which deals, inter alia, with mine fir e s, 
their prevention, cause and so on but we found it difficult to 
get anybody from that body up here because of the expense of it. 
I mentioned the matter to Mr. Lee . We t ell Your Honor that 
because Your Honor may feel .at some stage that you want further 
information on these matters and that is a possible source of it. 
That is all I can put. 

HIS HONOR: The evidence befor e me, and as I r ecall it it came 
from Mr. Menzies, or perhaps it is Mr. Donnegan 1 s e vidence, 
is that t he Mine s Department has to liaison with other organisations 
in other parts of the vwrld and that they send offic ers abroad 
to keep up to date with fr e sh steps being taken. That is not, 
of course , t he same as having an organisa tion such as Mr. Murray 
contempla t e s which c arrie s out its own practical experiments and 
actually produces equipment of this kind. 

MR' SULLIVAN: I think the Underwriters are r e sponsible for this 
other organisation. Had they been in Sydney I might have 
endeavoured t o get somebody along but it was too difficult for 
us from the expense point of view. 

HIS HONOR~ I wish you had mentioned that because I have power 
to ask for witnesses and I have power to arrange for their costs 
to be paid. 

MR. SULLIVAN: He is a highly qualified t echnica l witness. It 
would have been expensive. 

MR. McNALLY: On the top of p.439 of the transcript Mr. Donnegan 
was asked, 11Do you know of any organisa tion ••••••• ". 

HIS HONOR: Thank you. 

MR. MURRAY: Tha t was in answer to a series of questions asked 
by me. My learned friend r efer.red to what I have said in a 
Certain way and tha t is entirely a matter for him but I have 
asked questions of each witne ss, as far as I can r ecollect, from 
the Depa rtment along these very lines. Indeed, the material 
~rom which I am able to make these points was largely elicited 
1n cross-examination 1;,reeks and weeks ago , indeed, Mr. Donnegan 
for instance, was called o~ 17th December of last y 0:1 r. ' 
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As I have said we, the workmen, have f~r good reason 
in the past looked to the Department and, lest by not saying it 
it be thought we do not adhere to this point of vim.,r, we are 
conscious of very grea t improvements which have been brought 
into mining safety by legislative enactments which are, no 
doubt, initiated by officers of the Department, because we 
cannot r ely upon our employers to introduc e thls equipment. 
Everything I have said conc erning the responsibility of the 
men to whom we look in the Mines Department, applies even more 
so th the employers. The employer, as I have said, produoas 
something like a quarter, if not 33-l/3rd per cent of this 
State's coal and is the person immediately responsible to us 
under the law for the organisa tion of its system of work and 
abiding by the provisions of the Act but none of this equipment 
has been introduced by our employer, c ertainly, it would appear, 
not voluntarily, bec ause in this mine there was no provision 
of the individual rescue device, for what · it is worth, there is 
no provision a s I indicated earlier in cross- examination of any 
safety device whatever in the place. There is provision of 
the methanometer to the deputies although the management kno\IJS 
their value and has them , it is quite clear, in my submission 
that they are there because they are r equired when welding go e s 
on underground. That is why they are there. There is no 
evidence at all of them being available to the deputie s. 
Indeed, the evidence is that they were notavailable and one 
might have thought that A.I.S. itself being in the industry in 
such a large way, as my learned fri enJ said, in the business 
of winning coal and conscious of safety, a s my friend has also 
said, may well have itself been carrying out some developmental 
work so as to improve the devices available to its employees 
in its own gaseous mine. 

HIS HONOR: Is the B.H.P/A.I.S. group the gr eatest producer of 
coal in Australia? 

MR. MURRAY: I only know they produce about one quarter or one 
third of the coal in the State. 

HIS HONOR: In this State? 

MR. MURRAY: Ye s. 

HB HONOR: This State , I take it is the grea test producer of 
coal. 

MR. MURRAY: I think it is al~ost the exclusive produeer. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Queensland. 

HIS HONOR: I suppose one could say probably the A.I.S/B.H.P. 
group produces more coal than any other single company or 
group of companie s? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Not quite. 

HIS HONOR: At any rate its production is high. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Very high. 

MR. MURRAY: Certainly it is one of the biggest employers of 
labour. I might indicate it would appear that the example 
of others, for instance, \1/e have now b.een informed that 
Huntley Colliery have for some time been using the individual 
safety mechanism and also, I think, Clifton, the colliery 
over the range. I do not suppose it matters which ones have 
been using the methanometer for some time - I do not say it 
belongs to our employer --

MR. REYNOLDS: It does. 
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MR. MURRAY: Another colliery in its own group is using the 
methanometer. Huntley Colliery belongs to the Electricity 
Commission. 

The inspectors who ar e men who have the r espect of 
the entire industry do carry methanometers and do have the Toka 
device and the devic e of which Your Honor was informed before 
lunch for t he de t ection of C02 and they t ake t hem t o the mine 
and use them when they inspect, thereby giving to the IDEnagement 
an example of these t hing s being avai lable. All of this leads, 
it would appear to indifference - not indiffer enc e - perhaps 
I am unable to justify tha t - but c ertainly not taking the 
example by the A.I.S. here . I mer ely mention that point 
because it seems, coming back t o t he question of l egisla tive 
r egulation, if these devic e s are t o be introduc ed into the 
industry it will only be by t he sanction of law. 

The sixth and seventh points made by counsel for 
t he Department conc ern the education of deputies. I am not 
in a po sition to assist except t o say that so f ar as we are 
conc erned the best standard. available should be the one that 
we have and if th9 deputies would benefit by r efr e sher courses 
certainly, l e t t here be ~efreeher courses but ther e are others 
who t es t in mine s from the management down, I \.U\der~tand tllGra 
are other trade smen who are r equired to t e st from time to time 
and l e t t hem al so have the r efr esher course s if anybody is 
~ven the m because everybody who t e sts should be able to t est 
accura tely. 

I r efer to my earlier submission that is uncontradicted 
on tho evidence that at l ea st 13 men of various stations in 
the mine t es ted in this mine over what I am submitting is the 
r elevant period. 

On t he que stion of pillar extraction, we do not think 
it would be pr actical for our employer to have to get approval, 
as it were, in advance as Mr. Lee sugge sted and our ~ubrtission 
would be it would be a practical alternative her e if the plan 
were approved initially and kept in the office so that Mr. 
Menzies, Mr. Donnegan and others would be able to see at a 
glanc e what was going on t hroughout the workings rather than 
have t o 1-Jai t till t he time came r ound when they visited. 

The question which is very much befor e this Inquiry, 
it would appear, is the question of the deputy. Our only 
r e l a tionship is tha t he is a f ellov1 workman, a fellow employee 
and he is, of course , separately r epresented here and I merely 
r ef er again t o wha t I said befor e lunch and that is tha t we 
have c erta inly put up ever y thing we know that could possibly 
assist the deputie s. That is what he is, as are my pe op le 
they a.t"'e not mining engineers. They are l eading hands and 
they are on about a 15 c en ts an hour margin over the miner and 
they should be so c on sider ed a t all 

1
:t ime s, in my submission. 

The only other matter my fri end 1~ . Le e raised which 
I would submit wa s, again, a rather strange submission, was 
~his: Your Honor was asked by the Mines Department, through 
~ts counsel, tha t is, thr ough couhsel for the Minister, to 
r ecommend to the Minister for Mines that he ask someone, 
presumably his Department, the Mines Department, to r e-draft 
the Coal Mines Regula tion Act. That is an extraordinary 
state of affairs. 

HIS HONOR~ I do not know that Mr. Lee said that in so many 
words. 

MR. LEE: I do not r emember anything r emotely r e sembling that 
but I did say it was apparent there wor e some sections of it 
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which might not b~ accord with present day conditions ani 
Your Honor might c onsider it an appropriate time t o make an 
observation on it. I do not f ee l ther e is any thing strange in 
putting into Your Hono r 1 s hands such a sugges tion. 

HIS HONOR~ I though t you mGant the Act in some r e spects is out 
of dato in that it doe s not c onform with modern pr actic e and 
therefore if I dr ew t he a tten tion of the Minister t o t he fact 
he might ge t a draughts1nan on the advic e of his Departmenta l 
offi cers t o go through it ·with him. I only took it in tha t 
light. 

MR. MURRAY: Now my fri end ha s expl a i ned what he meant I understand. 
I can only go from wha t fall s from his lip s. My i mp r ession 
wa s he sa id t ha t the Act should be looked a t and brought into 
accord with modern c onditions and modern t echnology . If tha t 
is not a j ob for the Min e s Department and its offic ers, what is? 
It is the public department which administers t he Coa l Min es 
Regulations and if we have t o wait for a tragedy L~ t he industry 
and have a judicia l per son ask the Hinister to a sk the Hine s 
Departmen t t o r eview the Coa l Mines Regula tion Act and bring it 
into a ccord with modern cohditions and moder n t echnology it is 
a strange sta t e of affairs. I leave it a t tha t. 

As far as t he employer is c oncerned I have made earlier 
my submissions conc erning t he factual matters t o be de t ermined 
but I would like to make t his c l ear, a s I have made c ertain 
comments conc er ning other individuals in t he industry which are 
par t of or ganisa tions r epr e sented her e : as far a s we are 
conc erned Mr . Stone and Mr. Puddle and the other officials -
personally, we believe , would n ever deliber atel y do anything 
which crea t ed delibera_te danger t o the men and , a fortiori, 
because they ar e working beside us t he deputie s would never 
knowingly do, or omit to do, ~nything, the doing or omi ssion of 
which would prevent the safest po ssible C8nditions prevailing 
and , in our re spectful submission t he evidence ha s underlined 
this t o be a valid a ttitude. 

The se t hings are clear: a t the door of the manage­
men t lie s t he r e sponsibility for t his accident and, t her efore, 
the dea t h of t hese men ru1d it lie s t here for r ea sons which I 
1vould submit are now a bundantly clear and despite the way the 
ground ha s been ploughed and r e- pl oughed , are ver y largely 
conc eded by t he r e sponsible peopl e and the management is r esponsible 
because (a) t he pl an of development was c ontrary t o good mining 
practice and l ed to ventila tion improvisa tion, (b) the delibera t e 
er ection of t he bra ttic e in t he A heading shunt wa s an error 
and, (c) t he management failed to pr ovide adequate t e sting 
devices for t he deputies and other offic ers t e sting for gas 
particularly in t he ligh t of t he hi stor y of t hi s mine and the 
presence of extinctive gase s and CH4 in diffused mixture . 

Fina lly, it seems to be a tragedy of this industry 
tha t it needs a major incident of t his na ture for the r e t o be 
any r eal revim>~ of t he r equirements which one would have thought 
would have been every day a ttracting t he a ttention of all 
conc erned. 

HIS HONOR : 1~. Lee ha s a sked me t o make some c omment in r egard 
to the Department's action in bringing t o this Inquiry saf e ty 
devic e s. I have only this t o say: the safety devic e s pr oduc ed 
have , in f act, been in t he pr ec i nc ts of· the Court for some 
consider able time t o my knm.J"ledge and t hey wer e produced a s 
l at e a s t hey wer e in the Inquiry bec ause I indic a t ed tha t wo uld 
be t he most convenient time a t vJhich to produc e t hem. I can 
see nothing improper, l e t a lone sinister , in t he time or the 
manner in which t hey wer e produc ed by counsel f or t he Minister. 
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MR. MURRAY: I was not sugges ting 1n any way tha t wa s a matter 
to which I drew attention. Ther e is no suggestion of 
anything sinister in the timing of their production. I 
personally have seen those devic e s in Court for some time and 
I did not intend my r emarks to be appli ed to the circumstanc es 
or manner of their production, it wa s a question of the 
significance r e the industry. 

/ 
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HIS HONOR: Before I hear Mr. Sullivan, I want to hear another 
witness who may as sist me to r e solve c ertain matters in my 
mind. I have had this witness brought to the Court by summons -
not tha t it was needed - and I understand he is out .. side the 
Court. Call Mr. Stewart, plea se. 

CHARLES ROBERT STEWART 
Re-Sworn 

Examined as under: 

HIS HONOR: Q. You are Charle s Robert Stewart?A. Ye s. 

Q. You have already given evidence in this Inquiry?A. Ye s. 

Q. And you have been a t work and have come straight f rom work, 
is t ha t right?A. Ye s. 

Q. Hr. Stmvart, I '\<TOnder whe t her you c ould give me some 
assistance on certain matters I want to know a bout and whifh 
h::tve not r eally been dealt \<Tith in the ev:id ence so far. Firstly 
we have heard a de scription of this shunt in which the shuttle 
car was working and in which you say you c onducted certain 
t ests in r egard to ga ses. You have seen the shunt since the 
fire, have you?A. Ye s. 

Q.And you r ecall the shunt a s it wa s immediate ly befcr e the fir e? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. We know that t he bra ttic e stopping wa s de stroyed by t rn fir e .· 
Wa s ther e any other differ ence in the shunt, in the appearanc e 
of the shunt, befor e t he f ire fr om its appearanc e at the 
pr e sent time?A. Ye s, it had been cle aned out~. tha t is like from 
rib to rib, and that actually made ~t just l~e a square f ac e 
and ribs.. But befor e t he fir e t he ribs had frett ed and ther e 
was a fair bit of debris behind it, like prop ends and coal 
running up, and you would proba bly find a height of roughly about 
two f ee t goLng back in , say, three f ee t from t he actual rib 
face itself. 

Q. Wa s t ha t in front of t he bra ttic e?A. Ye s, on this side of the 
br a ttice . 

Q.Tha t is on the working side , the outby side , of t he ~attic e? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. Did these things t ha t wer e ther e interfer e a t all with the 
t e sting for gase s?A •. In what way? 

Q. Well 1 did they make it more difficult to t e st?A. 
they actual l y woul d - in one way t hey would, ye s. 
another way, you c ould ge t up on t o the rib and g-e t 
the r oof. 

Oh yes, 
But in 
right to 

Q. You c ould ge t higher, but what a bout ge tting do~ t o the 
f loor l evel?A. No, you c ouldn't ge t to floor l eve l behind tbe 
timber, the props itself. 

Q. You have told us of c ertain t ests tha t you carried out there . 
Have you ever suspected me thane, inflammable ga s - whe ther it 
be in the form of bottom ga s or free me t hane - in tha t ar ea or 
any other working in t he mine , any other part of t he mine in 
which you have worked'?A. _Ye s", I did ~C Qlitc:rot me thane ob two 
or three oce~ion s ·a-11.d I diet r ·oport it. . ! . 

Q. Was t her e any time you inspected and suspected there might 
have been methane ther e but you have been doubtful about it? 
A. No. 
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Q. ·Have you ever seen anybody using the methanometer at all? 
A. Yes, on one occasion. 

Q. When wa s t ha t?A. It could have been 3 months before . 

Q. · About 3 months before ?A. I wouldn't say exactly 3 months, 
but in tha t vicinity, and it 1>las -

Q. Who had it on tha t occasion?A. Fred Wright and it wa s up 
on the top side of t he Horking places in A, B or C heading. 

Q. Have you ever a sked for any me thane t e st to be c onducted? 
A. No , I haven't. 

Q. You have never a sked?A. No , not in t ha t section. 

Q. Have you anywhere else?A. Yes. 

q ~ Whom did you a sk?A. The under manager. 

Q·. The under manager - is t ha t Hr. Puddle?A. Yes. 

Q. And was the me t hane t est conducted at your request?A. Yes. 

Q. Now, you have told me about t he t e sts tha t you make on those 
occasions when you ar e working. Is yours a busy _job during the 
shift4'A. Yes. 

Q. Is ther e any pre ssure at all on you to keep produetion going? 
A. No t exactly pressure, but there is q)..lite a fair bit ·or time 
taken up with the production sido of it, yes. 

Q. And is t her e any ·check kept on you at all as to whe ther you 
keep production going.? A. We have production shee ts we have to 
fill in, and delays and so on on t hem. 

Q. Do . you ever get any inquirie s from the management or any 
official of t he management as_ to why there may be delays such 
a s you have spoken of?A. Well, usually when you have a delay 
you note it .on t hi s shee t and when you hand it in ther e may be 
que stions a sked about wha t \va s wrong and how long it took to 
r ectify that stoppage and so on.. 

Q. Le you ever ge t any t elephone calls from t he surface as to 
what is happening down ther!3?A. No - I cantt say directly from 
the surface , no. 

Q·. And do e s the overman come round fr equently? A. No, not in 
my section. 

Q. vJhat about the a ssistant under mana ger?A. Yes, he is in there , 
~ would say - it would vary from half p&st eight till half pa st 
t en on I would say almost every morning. 

Q. ~~d does he come back aga in later in t he shift?A. No. If he 
come s .in the morning he doesn't come i n the aft ernoon, but if 
he doesntt come in the morning he usually c ome s in the af t ernoon. 

Q. And do you have more than one man like thqt c oming down -
more than one official .coming down to have a look at vJha t is going 
on?A. The under manager and mana~er. 

Q. And the manager?A. Ye s. 

Q. Tell me how you ·decide when it is time for you to make a t e st 
for gas?A. Well, by the Coal Hines Regula tion Act ther e is a 
two-hourly t es t and -

C.R. Stewart, r ec a lleq . 



Q. But I wsnt to knmw what goes on during the shift, you see. 
We know that you are r equired under the Act to m~certain t e sts 
as certain time s. What do you do? Assume you are eng aged in 
doing something with r egard to production; ther e may be a 
difficulty arise or you have to instruct the men wha t to do. 
I take it that goes on?A. Ye s. 

Q. Then what goes on? What happens when it c om~s closo . to the 
time you are about -to mak e a test?A. You l eave lnstructlo.ns to 
the men what you want doing and thon you go to your r e sp ective 
places for your t e sts. You always l eave word with the men 
where I am going in ca se any emerg ency arise s so they can contact 
me. 

Q. Do you look at your wa tch?A. Oh no. 

Q. How do you knmAJ when it is time? A. When 
you have to know your times of your tests. 
your tests may start at 1 say, 7.40 and the 
round about 8.30 or 9.3u or some thing like 
how you verify your t e sts and your t i mes. 

you leave - yes, 
You may start -

first t e st may finish 
that, and tha t is 

Q. And you just knock off your work, your othor work, to carry 
out your tests, is tha t right?A. Ye s. 

Q. Have you ever lost your flame in your safety l a. fi$?A. Have I? 

Q. Ye s. A. ~e s. 

Q. How long ago?A. Oh, it would be some considerable time before 
t he fire. 

Q. So you had. not lost the flame in your safe ty lamp f or some 
consider able time before t he fire?A. That is right. 

+ Q. What do you call 11 some considerable time 11 - months?A. Yes, 
months before- I mean, I c ouldn't say exactly, butround about 
month before. 

Q. And during all this time you had been testing for both 
me thane - A. Yes. 

Q. - and C02, black damp?A. Black damp, yes. 

Q. And also for a mixture of the two?A. Yes. 

Q. Known a s bottom gas?A. Yes. 

Q. You had been testing for that specifically?A. That is what I 
thought I was t e sting for. 

Q. You thought you were testing for bottom ga s spe cif~ally?A.Ye~ 

Q. And having tested carefully right up to your last test, which 
was something like half an hour you say before tm fir e?A. Ye s, 
round about that. 

HIS HONOR: Are there any questions by any counsel? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Q. You told His Honor it might have been a bout 
a month before that you lost the flame on your lamp?A. Months -
it could have been a month. 

HIS HONOR: Months? 

MR. SULLIVbN: Q. I think you said it could have been a month? 
A. Ye s. 

(Question and answer ·marked + above :re-ad by -c-ourt 
Reporter) 
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Q. You agree with tha t, don't you?A. Ye s, it could have been. 

Q. That of c our se w.-)uld have been i n 8 Right?A. Ye s. 

Q And it \<Jo uld have been early i n Octobor?A. It could have 
been in Oct ober, it may have been a little bit befor e . 

Q. But early in Oct ober?A. Very early, ye.s. 

Q. And tha t would have been inby Ho . 3 cut-through?A. Ye s, it 
would. 

Q. And t ha t wa s wher e a tight bra ttic e wa s pu t up, is tha t ri ght? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. And a s I underst and it t he position is t his: t ha t is the 
occasion on which you r eported noxious ga s?A. Ye s. 

Q. knd the position wa s of course tha t you lost your lamp?A. Ye s. 

Q. Then you went out to the r e-lighting . sta tion?A. N~, we have no 
r e-lighting sta tion. 

Q. What did you do a bou t i t?A. Go t anothe r li ght. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Wher e from?~. The machine man carri es a light. 

Q. You took t he mac hine man 1 s li ght?~ . Ye s. 

MR . SULLIVAN : Q. Wha t did you do wit h your own l amp?A. Put it 
in t he crib room I i magine . 

Q. iou have t o re t urn it yourself, l~ ven 1 t you?A. Ye s. 

Q. And did you gi ve an explanation a t the l amp ca bin a s to 
how it became extin gui s hed?A. No , I don 1 t t hink I would. 

Q. You didn 1 t - n o one a sked you?A. No. 

Q. When you l ose your ligh t, it is a ver y strong warning, isn't 
it, t o a man carrying a Davis saf e t y l amp?A. Ye s, it is. 

Q. And it doe sn't mean n ec e ssarily only carbon dioxide , doe s it? 
A. No. 

Q. It c ou l d be me t hane5A. It c ould be , ye s. 

Q. I gather t ha t you did not a sk Mr. Wright aft er t ha t inc i dent 
t o t e st with a me thanome t er did you?A. No . 

MR . McNALLY : Q. This wa s t he occa sion when Mr. Puddl e wa s t her e 
with you?A. Well, I 1m not sure . No, I wouldn't say t ha t wa s 
t he occ a sion, but it wa s r ound a bout tha t ar ea , ye s. 

Q.And you had reported inflammable ga s t he ver y day Mr. Puddle 
t e st ed, I think tha t is t he position?A. I c an't say f or sure 
but the r ecords would be thGr e . 

MR . McNALLY: A pi ec e of knowl edge came t o my att en tion ye st erday, 
Your Honor. 

Q. F?llowing ~por: t he f i:: e involvir;g Mr. Emery in the welding, 
I thlnk . c ertaln lnstru?·tlons wer e :tssued t o Deputie s; is tm t 
the posl tion?A. Ye s ~ lt came t o us fr om our union r ep tha t 
I_think during t he Inquiry or the t a lk about this incident,' 
Oll flame saf e ty l amps wer e n o t good enough to t e st roughly 
3, 4 and 5 inche s fr om t he r oof and the same fr om t he floor. ' 
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Q. Perhaps I misunderstood t he instructions I had. ·.You r emember 
there was a fir e in the Bulli Colliery involving Mr. Emery 
in t he welding. Do you know of t ha t occasion?A. Ye s, I have 
a rough idea . 

Q. We r e c erta in instructions issued t o you f ollowing upon tha t 
concerning t he use of safe ty lamp s?A. I can't say . specifk ally. 

Q. I could be in error. You did not r ec e ive a screed of 
paper or- A. No , we didn't. It was just from our union 
r epr e senta tive t ha t said tha t some body fr om the Mines Department 
had se1 id it was not advisable - well, you c ouldn't t est 5 inche s 
or 4 inche s or wherever it was fr om t he r oof and t he same f r om 
the floor with t he oil lamp , and t he r e would have t o be a 
me thanome t er used f or t es ting bef ore lvelding. 

Q. Did you yourself ever know tha t before?A. No sir, not before 
tha t incident. 

HIS HON OR: Q. You just said tha t befor e this Inquiry you did not 
lmow tha t you could not te st f or me thane which existed in ~ 
strip 3, 4 or 5 inche s wide at the r oof- is tha t right?A. I 
didn't Y~ow- no, tha t is not wha t I mean t. I didn 1 t know tha t, 
but t ha t is wha t t hey said i n the inquiry, tha t this light wa s 
not good enough t o t e st for tha t a r ea . 

MR . REYNOLDS: Q. Tha t is the inquiry aft er the welding inciden t? 
A. Ye s, after t he welding incident. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Well, you kn.ew a t tho t ime of this Inquiry, did 
you - tha t is t he t ime of the fire?b.. Oh yes. 

Q. Tell me how you t e stod for me thane a t t he roof?A. With this 
light? 

Q. You .~ ell us you had no me thanome t er?A. Ye s, wil~ 
I lowe~d my flame to the non-luminous blue, r a ised 
r oof, t e sted it across t he ar ea and then low·er ed it 
the flame . 

the s ame way. 
it t o the 
and r a ised 

Q. Assume the me t hane 1.va s existing in, say, to take a neutral 
number, a thr ee inch l ayer a t t he r oof. Tell me how you got 
a t e st f or me t hane on your oil fl ame safe ty lamp?f... I \vould 
i magine you c ouldntt. 

Q.What did yo u do - just go in there in any ca se and put your 
l amp up?A. Yes , a s high a s possible. 

Q. Did you ever c omp l a in t o anybody t ha t you c ould not find any 
me t hane tha t might be up thc3 r e?.A. No . 

Q, And of course you knew, didn't you , tha t me t hane in its 
f r ee state a lmost invariably is up high?A. Ye s. 

Q. It is only a que stion of how t hick the layer is, is tha t 
right?A. Ye s. 

MR . HURRAY: No questions. 

HIS HONOR: Are ther e any further que stions from anybody? 
(No r e sponse) 

HIS HONOR: Thank you, Mr. Stewart. i make the ordinary 
order for payment of witness 1 s exp en se s. 

(Witne ss r e tired) 
(Counse l c on tinued t o addr es s) 
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r.m . :iULLIVAN: n~ay it please Your I-Ionor: both l.lr. Reynolcls and 
~r. Murray spoke ab out the reeulation in this industry apparently, 
ac cording to I~ . Rcyno ld c , on the ba sis of over-rogu l ntion of 
worl{ in this industry, and 1 .. 1r. ~/~urray in comparinc it ,~, i th safety 
ree ulation in other industries. In a way , tho se remark s l~nk up 
with the manner in v; hich Your IIonor wil l make your r eport 1n 
this Inquiry because of the type of regulation in this industryi 
wbi lst ~ t t'.lali ttiJpear . superfici~lly ~o be th~ same a s ?ther safety 
regulat1ons 91 i1 ::-w a d1:fferent h1stor1cal bn.s 1s. For 1nstancc, 
one mi ght ~:e ll he ar the .qu~s~ion ask~d b! s omebody ~ "\Yell9 v~vb~ 
arc v; e hav1ng a formal JUd 1c1a l Inqu1ry oecause four m1nor~nr'Ot 
v.p at the Bu lli Pit, v,;hen in an undertaking conducted by the same 
Company , tbe Stee 1 Workn, four o.en r.1ight be burnt and t ·here might 
be no suggestion of any judioie. l inquiry." It is in the historic­
al aspect s of this legislation tha t the difference lies, and it 
i s in thi s particula r aspe ct that Your Honor' s duties and funct­
ion s in this Inquiry are bound up. 

Regulation of mining in New South Wa le s is of course not a 
recent thing, as You.r Ho nor probably knows, and the fundament a l 
Act is not the Coal T:Iines Regulation Act but t he l:lining .Act. And 
indeed, there ha s been reg~:t lation of minera l resources under the 
Mining Act s ince about 1874. ~e present Act in force is the 
1906 Act and the reason wby there hc s been s o much attention to 
mining by the New South Wales legislature is because the ninera l 
being mined does not belong t o the people nining it. In the ear ly 
day s , cert a in very early Crm-v n gre.nts cont a ined no reservation of 
miner a l s for the Crown exce pt of course t he co mmon law reser­
vations of go l d and silver ? but fron very ea rly on 9 all grants 
i ssued by the Cro·wn conta ined a reser·vation of minerals genero,lly 
and the purcha se of a freehold did not involve the ovnership and 
r i ght to nork t he ninera ls under the s oil. And of course, incl­
uded c>JIJOng such minerals j_s coa l. 

That leads to an interesting position. It means this; when 
the Parliane nt is dealinB with coal and other minerals, it is not 
sir:1ply de a ling v1 it h it as an outside body regulating in the same 
sense as it regulates building under the Scaffo lding and Lifts 
Act 9 bu.t the executive government is in fact the owner of the 
coal a nd i.t only allows pe ople to wor k the coal on lease s . Those 
leases are entered into and the body which on behalf of the 
executive GOVernment looks after those leases and the way they 
are worked is of cour se the Linister : or 1Jines and his Depart ment, 
the fu ines Department . That has caused Parliament a l ways to have 
a very intimate regar~ for coa l. It i s part of the pe ople's 
assets. It f oes not belone to Australian Iron & Steel or IIunt ley 
Colliery or Uoal & All i ed 9 or anybody e l se ; it belongs to the 
pe opleo :Sy VJay of royalties the exe cutive government is a 
partner in the activities carried on by rn ini ng co mpanies. And 
to spe nk of "ovcr-r:::gu l a tion" as if this \'ias o. free private 
~nterprise i n the widest sen se in the context of the leg islation 
Just does not hold Dater. The Australian Iron & ~teel cannot 
spea1.-c of over-re~t,~ l n t i on. All it is is a lessee, and the Crown 
~ hroug h it s ~ inos De; art oent has nid e powers of regu l at ion wh ich ·· 
lt ha_~ ext:rcj_sec\ . IncJoed, if Your Hono:r looks a t the ~ .~ ining Act, 
Yo~r Lonor will see th .?i.t there ::.-. re provisions in the hlining .Act 
wh1ch provide fo r l abour conditions be ing put in l eases, o..nd thot 
sort of thing . This i s the St at e ' s prob lem, and the Stat e is the 
one thnt so..ys how it i s worl:ed; and t h ~ .t is why t hi s is the only 
safet y Act in Bh ic h in spe ctors ar e g iven s t atutory powers confer­
red by P~1rli a.ment --~~- t ic b amount to a pm-~cr to intrucle into private 
enterpri se to Q much ereater extent than they aro. 

, 'l'be Act itself lw.s the sections to Y! hicb E'-Y learned fri end, 
l.lr. Rcynolrls, referre d. At s . 27 9 if Yotn' 1Ionor ,-iOuld tur n to it 
~~ P· 33, it e ivos a n in spe ctor for t he purpose of th e execution of 

e Act po~er to do a ll or any of the f ollowi nG things
9 

a nd he of 
course has ouch n iJ or 90ners tha n an inspector ~ ou ld generally 
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speald.ng hav e under the Labour (-l.nd I ndust r y Act. Among s t th ose 
th i ngs i s the po1er s et out in G. 27 (l)B( i i ) t o a scerta i n a ny 
matt er e;pearing to t he i ,s9ector to aff e ct or r e l a t e to t he 
saf ety or he a l th of pe r s ons emp l oyed j_n tbe r~1 i ne or· t he car e or 
treat nent of nnima ls emp loyed tbe rea t 9 "and in p::Lrt i cular l)ut 
,r;i t hout pre j udi ce . . • required by thi s Act to be r; i v-cn." He ha s 
th e pone r 9 e.ncl. t hat pm··;er i s t hen i mp l encnt ed by Cl a use C (read )· 
Then cert a in sav i ne;s a r e made i n r e l ati on to o.nsner s Q Tbc n he 
can t ?.ke sO.R::J l e so 

HI S IIOl': OR : I nterrupting yo tJ., i f I may: I mn,y say I had i n f a ct 
cons i dered that s ect ion myse lf e.nd I menti oned t hi s morn :i n& 
cert o. in mat t ers Y'lb ich are cxerci s i ng my mind. I wonder ed ·nhether 
I hnd t he povi er t o conduct an examinati on of any persOL\ - not on 
o~th ? one re quiri ng hi m t o s i gn a decla r at i on - i n t he a bsence of 
certai n other person s who had been pre sent a t t hi s Inqui ry ; but I 
wns constra ined to tbe vi ew t hat s i nce I am r equired to cond uct 
my InQuiry i n open court , that was not a permi s s ible cour se. 

r.IR. St..i"LLIVAN: As a matt er of f act, Your Uonor~ I prorJ ose to t ry 
to ass ist t he court - and I a m putt i ng t his to Your Honor i n t he 
f orm of submissions - by t ak ing a look at t he s e s ect ion s of the 
Act be cause i t may be t hat Your Honor still has one unreso lved 
Question 9 I underst a nd froo my learned junior, and t hat is about 
the publicity of t he report, Your Ilonor's findings. My jun i or 
has inf or med I!le t hat we lcnmv Your Honor d id express some de s ire 
to hav e us add re ss on aspect s of that natur e. 

Returning to C (i),(ii) a nd (iii) 9 t he t wo things contem­
pl at ed are an examination - which obv i ou s l y refers to the seizure 
of machinery f or t b.e l)Ur pose of loo1~ i ng at i t 9 a nd Mr . Do nege.n 
seems t o have done some of that i n th is particul ar catte - :::nd 
inquir y. So the lJOY1er s of the in spector th er e a.:re t o exami ne 
th i ns s and tb .itiquire, i n the sense of a sk ing questions of 
per sons. Those are t he in spec t ors' po~ ers a nd it shows a peculiar 
interest on the part of the l egi s l ature i n investigo.ting a ccidents 
i n it s coa l seams, 2nd I emphas i se "it s" coa l seams. Then the 
next section i s s .28 (read ). So he has a power spring ing from the 
·:>ar t icul ar relat i onshi ps i n t his indtJ.stry, '>'Vh ich ex ceed s f ar and 
~ay t he powers that a rc normally conferred by s afety regulations. 
Then by s.29 , hi s intimc.t e co nnect i on wit h t he I·J inistcr, t hat i s 
the execut i vc government, e. nd the Parli ament, t he NOpJ.e' s 
representat ive s , t he repre sentative s of t hose wh o oBn the coa l 
i s revea led by thi s (read ). So it is more than just a safety 
supervi s ion? it i s be ca use t he rarli ament is interested in its 
asset s . Now, s.30 (r c 8.d ). I a n indebt ed to my l earned frtend,my 
f ri end i.Ir . Reynolds, f or so me submis s ions he mad e during t he course 
of t he cnse on th ese sect ions and, as he pointed out , tha t doe s 
not ad d to the powers the inspector a lready ha s under the earli er 
section. Tboy are still to conduct an exanination and a n inquiry, 
but the Minister may - and t his of cour se shows t he interest of 
the leg i s l at ure in ex~ lo s ions and a ccidents a nd t hat type of thing­
where such an event h8s occurred, direct a n in spector to make a 
specia l r eport. Th nt i s a specia~ report with respe ct to the 
exp losi on or a ccide nt , o.nd t hat LS obvious ly so t h2t t he crat ter 
can co me t hrough t he r.I ini st er, if nece s sary, t o Parliament. 

The next one, and this is the crux of the situntion , nit h 
i t s intiGate connecti on \i i th t he coa l r e sources, t he leg isla t ure 
has provided a most unusua l ad hoc procedure - the t ype of proced­
ure whic h could not po ss ibly, 2s the l a test safety leg islation i n 
ot he: a re2. s oper t1 t e s , be con cJ ucted ex cept by mea ns of a Roya l 
Cor:m1s s ion , a nd tllc..t i s 9 a f orma l investi go.t i on. ·Nhere it 
appear s to t be Th ni :;tcr that a forma l i nve stign.tion of any 
explo si on or cccident a nd of its ca uses and ci r cums t ances i s 
expedient, th e T~iniotcr may direct such invc stigntion be he l d

7 
and then f ol lort the su>-clauses. I n s ub- s . 3 ( r ead ), s o Yotlr 
Donor cnn exami ne and inqui re , as an in spe ct or can, a nd in 
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ad di t ion the follov1 ing po\·i e :c s, "to enter a nd inspect ••• for the 
sa id purpose," s ·J YoL r Honor h:J s unlimited powers of ente~ing1 
"by summons • • • s igning of a declaration." lVly l earned :fr1cnd put 
it to Your Honor tha t Your Honor only had the po~crs of an 
inspector i n relation to thi s . Well, the Court i s def ined a s the 
court of Coa l Line s Hcgu l ::'.tion, anC! I "; ould submit th2.t nobody 
would dispute the proposition tha t wh en a Court wh ich a lread y 
ex ists is i nve sted by st ~tute with a further j ur isdiction , the 
i nvesting authority- th ~·.t is the Pevrliament j_n thi s ca se - t alres 
the Court with all its procedures a nd a uthorities . AmonBst the 
pro cedl)_re s a nd a utl."loritie s is of course t he l)Ower to a~point 
Asses s ors 7 wh ich Lour Honor has dona. Sub-s. 5 (read; - in ~ ny 
proceeding before the Court y ou could sunmon witnesses , a ncl this 
is a jurisd iction inve sted in the Court, people ca n appear 7 ther e 
are certain ord er s and determina tions whi c h can be made by the 
Court, the cost s question , a nd of course the g enera l po~er to 
exercise what a re usua lly knonn as judicial powers. 

Nm~T 9 i s there anything subsequently in that '17hich takes av;C?.y 
any of the :_J owers under the conferring section~ s.3l? 'fho.t i s the 
ql)_eotion. S .J2 provi c.l es "The liinister CJ..ay ••• thinl: fit'." It 
refers specifically to the special rep ort dealt \-~ith further ba ck 
n.nd t he type of re port ,~lhic b presumably may be made by the Court, 
o.nd it may be th ::,t tha t may be regarded, and it is a matter for 
Your IIonor, because I a m afra id in this new jurisdiction Your 
Honor \r) ill perhaps have to make decisions a bout the scope of your 
jurisdiction -

HIS HONOR : I am told there has never been an Inqu.iry Sl)_ch as this 
one before. 

MR . SULLIVAr::-: And thi s stJ.h-s. 6 of s.33 is the one ~,-ih ich this s.J2 
may affect. n ov1, much as ffiY. clients would like the deci s ion to 
be e iven in open Court, we recognise that this t'!lay create diff­
iculties. r:o•:1 evcr, botb the Federation v;~h ich I represent and the 
widows "''horn I represent feel that the Minister has g iven an under­
t aking in t he House - it i s in Hansard - t hat the re ·p ort will be 
tabled. An d , havine tabled it~ we rely on him to glve it t: .e 
?Ublici ty v1h ich it shoLJ.ld have, a nd indeed, if he does not hon.our 
his undertak ing vv e can ca ll on members of Parliament to see that 
the matter is vent i l a,ted. 

The position therefore is this, that the inquiry section of 
t his ond the exa.mina t ion of it now takes on a sort of judicial 
tine e, even t hough it nay still be a judicia l Inquiry, and it is 
for Your Honor to ex8.r.line the f a cts and circumstances. Your 
Honor Yi ill undoubtedly have to decide between conflicting evidence 
or evidence whi ch does not quite fit in. I ~m sure Y ur Honor 
will draw inferences in the s a r.1e oanner as any other court will do 
a.nd a s this is ·a jurisdiction in which Your Honor reports, we feel 
sure Your Honor ~ ill not hinder the effectiveness of t hat report 
by hesitating to apportion blame nhere, on the facts and inferences, 
Your Honor may f eel tha t blame is due. ·,·te intend~ my friend a nd 1 9 

to ad dress you generally in respect of a ll our clients. We ho.ve 
the four vJidmcvs a nd t viO indtJ.stria l organisntions. We do not feel 
t hat a ny separate submissions will be put on behalf of one group 
rather t han the othe r group; ~ e do not feel it calls for that. 
If ,-, e s pee.k more abo1Jt the disa Gt cr and the t r agedy of these men, 
it is because v1 e f e el ~~~ e 01."i e n pecLllio. r duty t.o the widows li'l ao 
have bee n bereav ed by t: :is a ccide nt. 

In our submission, tbcne v1ill be t\~10 oue stions ~·; ith which 
Your· Honor L'lust do a l if l)arliament is to hnvo o, rounded picture 
of the occurrence at B L..' .. ll i Colliery on 9th novembEr, 1965. 'N e 
~ubm~t t hr t Parliament n ill D~nt to knon, t hrouRb the ~inict or 9 
ov1 1t h;:::.ppe ne c.1 , r-md PG:.rli Rmcnt i"ii ll v1u.nt to knmv: ·;;h ~r did it 

happen ? They are t he t~ o que s tion s . In the ans~ er to the sccon~ 
Of tho c·e que&tions, the qu.cstion c.' .. s to \Nby it hap cJ e ned , it is O' 'l.r 
subo~s s ion t o Your IIonor th::.•t there will be implica tions of srors 
nee l1gence - 2.nCi I use the ·.'tord "e;ross•' advisedly i n thj_r:J context-
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on the pe.r t of those \~J ho we re conducting the m.1n1ng operat~on s in 
8 Right sect ion of the Bullj_ Colliery. I used the express1on 
"P"ro ss nc~ligenco" n.dvisedly becc:wse perhaps t hG word "gui lt" 
,7~Llld be too extre 10.e in the s e circ~,;tmstance s. Cert a inly, in our 
submiss ion, there 7as t he gro ssest ncg lie once. In report ine , 
Your BonD~ will prob~bly - and I say this beca use we are making 
~ubmissions, a s Your IIonor und erstands - try to g ive the leg i s­
lat ure, through th e Linistcr , ~ pi cture of the scction9 it s 
l ocation in the colliery 7 and it s genera l contours. From look ing 
nt the notes I have of the nddrcsscs of my l earned frj_enc1 s , n e 
wo uld subr!l i t t hat Yo ur Honor has not been sufficiently di rected to 
'··'l ho.t we would s u.bmit a re very s s. lie nt points. in the genes is of 
th i s tragedy . Probab ly at t hi s stage it s ounds like t he ut most 
redundancy to say tha t Section 8 lli ~ht is part of a v entilation 
S!Jlit in the Bulli Colliery n hich i s known as No. l North ;; t hat 
it i s t f e first stJ.b- sp li t of t he mJ. in s:p li t 9 and that it i s 
re ceiving in the order of 28 , 600 cubic feet of nir per minute, or 
it was receivine in t bat order in its ~o~c i nes . It is obvi 0us 
that by def i nit ion in the Coa l Vines ~egu l ~t i on Act 9 it i s a gassy 
pl ace. Fu.rt hcrmore 9 ap::trt f r or1 the legal def i n ition of a "e;assy 
pl ace," it v·Jas mi ning coa l from the Bulli No. l sea.n wb ich, i n t he 
evidonc o of Mr . Se llers ;,.·ih o i s the Company' s o•;m expert 7 shov; s 
inflammable gas in the whole of its r ange from He lensburgh Colliery 
vihi ch is the lr!etropolita n Colliery? to Mt. Kemb l a . This V? a s 
mining in No. l seam, a seam ,,:!h ich cont ains infl ammable gas through­
out its r 2.nge . 

Nov77 rJ e would submit the evidence has esta;l lished without 
any cont r adi ction that such inflam.r.fle,ble gas v1h ich is fou.nd in the 
Bulli seam is metha ne, or, ns some ca ll it, carburc:.ted hydrogen. 
In add ition, in the course of wort: ing the coa l i n 3 Right, carbon 
di oxide was liberated, an~ i t is our submission that a s we ll as 
cont a ining met hane and carburated hydrogen , this area conta ined an 
inseparable mixture of those t wo gases , methane and ca rbon dioxide 9 

nb ich has been referred to here as Illawarra botto~ ga s. The 
presence of these cases in ·e1ines is no a1ystery. It is particular­
ly no mystery to peop le VJh o work tn t he :Oulli scan. They lcnov-1 
t here is methane there, they know there i s carbon dioxide there ; 
and if one looks a t the chart issu.ed by ll/Ir. Do negan, "~ he gas c hart 
conta ining the li et of mine gases, there is a n obvious re f erence 
t o carburated hydrogen and carbon dioxide. It is not a n unknown 
cuantity. T~~e the ) Os ition of a person uninstructed in chemistry 9 

for instance, kno~ ina there was carbon diox ide and methane coming 
out of a coa l s eaB9 even if he knew nothing at a ll about mine gases 
the possibility of the ir be ing mixed would occur to him. It i s 
probab ly the first thing that would occur to hi m9 s o there is no 
myst ery about thi s so-ca lled Ill rlviarr a bottom e;as. 

The colliery commen ced to extra ct coal fro m t his Section 8 
RiGht i n I!Iay of 196 5, and a t the?-t s t agG 'it was using the normal 
bard and pillar methods nh ich are l a i d down by s.5JB( a ) of the Act . 
You.r Hon or h2vs probably ha d your attention dravm to that, v1hi ch 
lays d o~n vs a genera l rule that the nethod of extraction shall be 
?Y means of bord a nd p il.l ar o:per nti ono. Th ·-_,_ t is at ~) .75 (l"e ~,;.d). 
1k i s exercising b i s r i .:;; bts a s less or tboTe too 9 I wou. l d submit. 
T~ey Bere using a three-heading system nnd it Bas ventilated by 
<nr cou1ing up the int ake located t o the ri ,3 ht of the work i ngs -
that is looking inby - an d that has beGn referred to in those 
proceedings as C headine , e..nd returning by an ::.irv;ay t oc2.t ed to 
~b e loft lool ·:: in3: i nby . Tha t ,,,as the A headin[; , v-th ic b set - U.l) Your 
&onor will remo~ber. In J u l y of 1965 - and in our submi ss ion 
~hese da tes are iw11 ortant , o.s to bov_; t hi.s hai;pe ned - ·oilla r extra ct-
10l'1 eommcncecl in an area fou.r p-illa r l encths inby of the part where 
the men were burnt. The evidence is that the cessa tion of so lid 
extraction was dictated by thG existence of a fault inby the area 
~here solid extraction ceased. That bri ngs us up to the nt uge 
v~ here we start pilla r extraction to come baclc. Nov1 , the f eatu.re -
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and t hi s i s a feature wh i ch in our s ubmi ssion has not been 
emphasised sufficiently - of the headings a lready dr iven7 which 
are A, B nnd C and the solid workings , was that the contours of 
the worki ngs sloped sharp l y from C heading to A heading , and th i s 
little cont our map that was prepar ed for us by Mr . Sellers is 
the document which i s the ver y r e l evant one i n this . I t sloped 
shar p l y and those contours go right through. I think this was 
marked as an exh i bit? 

HIS HONOR: It is part of the repor t 9 at any rate . 

MR . SULLIVAN~ Yes . And th i s was an unusual ly st.eep type of fal l 
to one side of the wor kings . We a l so know this , that roof con­
ditions wer e bad due to the proximi ty of the fault. We knov~ also 
that there were dykes pr esent in the working area and again we 
rely on llfll' . Sel l ers ' uncontradicted evidence that these dykes are 
commonly assoc i ated with emissions of gas. Tbe Under Manager 9 

Mr . Puddle 7 was in charge of the pillar ext r a ction 9 and if I may 
refer Your Honor to pp . 7l9 and 720 where he gives the order of 
work 7 there is one omission in his description of what he did 
which I am sorr y I did not think it was necessary to remedy at 
the time 7 but we do not know the dates. Your Honor wil l remember 
the witness Mr . Muir when he was being asked qu.estions by my 
learned friend Mr. Reynolds about the order of extra ction 7 said 
he could not come to cer tain conclusions because datGs were not 
given . Your Honor wi l l recollect that . At any rat e 9 at p . 720 
and perhaps the yellow plan 9 the one with the orange on it, could · ~ 
be used . That is Exhibit JJ. Pi l lar extraction comrnenced in 
July 1965, as I say 9 and relating to that a piece of evidence 
from other matter s in the mine , at that stage, July 1965, the 
metering of return ai r showed that 8 Right Section was putting 
into the return airway - not necessarily mak i ng but putting into 
the return airway - 28 cubic feet per minute of methane . That is 
when they started in on their p illars . The procedure adopted , 
as Your Honor will follow on the map, was that the position l, 
this colour here , was driven and we are not to l d whether l was 
driven with its right angle on it - it is nearly a right angle, 
but really an obtuse angle 9 going up to the bard, but certain l y 
No . l v1as driven . It may have bGen driven to the bard or it may 
have been left at the end of the heading 9 bQt at any rat e that 
was the first drive . Presumably when l was driven , the pillars 
wh ich are mar ked with the figures 6 and 4, those two groups of 
pillars, were still intact. That would appea r to be the position 
because this is intended as wh at ha s been refer red to as a 
ventilation heading, as Your Honor wi l l reco l lect . At tha t 
stage there wa s no goaf . 

The next split that was made w:::ts No. 2, and that certainly 
was dri vcn through to the bord, becatJ.se Mr . Puddle says so . They 
worked then from A heading and they cut through, a nd also of 
course from No . 2 which is the pinkish chalk t here 9 and they took 
various haphazard lifts from t lw area marked 7 a nd all of t hat 
sloped downwards from the or i ginal headings . And if there was 
present whilst that work was being done 7 a ny gas heavier than 
air, it would tend to accumulate in the bottoms of those yellow 
lifts . It would g o down under the influence of gravity, a nd 
of course once the fans were taken out there was nothing at all 
to dravi it back into the return o.irway 7 and if the gas continued 
to m.ake in those headings it would stay there until it spil]_ed 
out. There wa s no rea l goaf thore, and we know this about the 
~ature of the area in which they were working, how close it was 
~o the f a ult and therefore the possibility of ~ gas r:1ake, tha t 
ln the process of extraction from 7- tbis i s Mr . Pudd l e ' s 
evidence - the continuous miner and a shuttle car were buried by 
a roof fall from the face. As Your Honor can s ee - and it is 
not a matter ofcri:1i cism by me but a ma tter of sheer fact - tbif:! 
was obviously the comme ncement by the ma nagement of a period of 
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dangerous m1n1ng . I t was dangerous m1n1ng because they noarly 
lost their continuous mi ner and the shutt l e car ; roof cond i tions 
as Mr . Puddle kopt emphasising , wer e bad, at1d that was a fal l 
at the face. 

The next move afte r they took out those orange parts was 
to drive 3 again down to the low er contours. These are like 
bags in the ear th, these things they are driv i ng . At the and 
of tho~ , the dead end of them i s a l ways l owe r than the mouth, 
and l ooki ng at a fl :1t pbn 9 probab l y very few of us apprecia ted 
that in the ear l ier part of this hearing . I t was not unti l Mr . 
Se ll er s brought this in, and remember hG sa i d the manager and 
tho under- manager would have a contour p l an, that we appreci a ted 
what they we r e rea l ly mak i ng here every time they wer e driving 
one of these headings. Tiey were making ga s bags. 

1066. Mr. Sullivan's address. 



HIS HONOR: Gas sumps. 

MR. SULLIVAN: V2ry well, Your Horror. And, ha ving driven 
t hr ee down they start ed to sna tch irregularly po sitioned 
piece s of c oal on a quite obvious ba sis of i mp r ovisa tion. 
There is 5 driven through her e and 6 ther e and 8 ther e , two 
l ifts on e ight 1 two little lifts, just r a iding an unst able 
ar ea to the ler t of t he workings and gett ing a s much coal 
out a s po s sible , apparently trying t o keep the roof and every 
time they drove t owards the lmver c ontours t hey w·er cJ making a 
sump for any heavie r t han a ir ga s. To this stage n o gae .. 
of any capacity had been f or med al though in Sep t ember a glance 
a t t he r e turn air c ount f or me thane would have shown a mrute 
ge tting into the r e t urn a irway fr om the se sump s of 56 c.f. m. 
of me thane . Tha t wa s happening a t t ha t stag(3 and i t c ould 
be s een by tho under manager when he looked a t the air returns. 

At last we a r e able t o more or l es s arrive a t a da t e . 
We know a l l that wa s done be tween July when t hey start ed 
extracting pillars and t he 5th October bec ause we know from 
evidenc e given by Hr. Lake , t he bricklayer, and the subs(3 quent 
evidenc e to identify the time a t which tha t bra ttic e was put 
up in No . 3 cut-through , tha t it was pr oba bly r o1md. about 5th 
October and I go t frorr1 Mr. S t ewar t today the final lit tla 
brick to show it wa s 5th October when tha t wa s put up. I am 
gra t eful t o Your Honor for r ec a lling hi m. 

The position then wa s t ha t on or about 5th October 
No . 3 cut- t hr ough wa s ext ended again d o1.vn t o the lower contours 
and, judging from t he maps, a distanc e of a bout 120 yards, 
may be more may be l e ss, over lOO yards, No . 3 cut-through 
was extendeJ by No . 9 by t he po sition marked No . 9 on this plan 
and then t hey connected up 7 with 2 with 1 with 3. May I 
give you t he order agElin: 7 with 2 \IJ it h 1 with 3 and tha t wa s 
connected t o t he r e t urn airway inby of 3. There is one t h ing 
tha t c anno t be knovJn about t hi s particular se t-up: we can 
knovr how much me t hane i ·Ja s ge t ting out of t he se sumps or 
working plac e s into t he r e turn a irway and t ha t was probably 
the fr ee me t hane c oming out from the f ac e workings but proba bly 
wa s not t he me thane mixed wi t h c arbon dioxide which would t end 
t o l i e a t t he bottom of the sumps 1 but we do n o t kno\v how much 
of a make t here wa s, but we do know t his from Mr. La lte ' s 
evidence and fro m Mr. Stewart's evidenc e today about putting his 
l amp in t he ga s and ha ving it extinguished on or a bout 5th October, 
we do know tha t t ho accumula tion of gas in those we st workings 
had by 5th Octobor for med a pool in t he se goavos sufficiently 
deep t o spill over into A h eading. It is not a ma tt er of ga s 
be ing blo-vm out by air, it is a ma tte r of t he ga s spilling out. 

HIS HOHOR~ Is the intersection of A heading and No . 4 cut-
through a lmvor point t han the intersection? 

l'1R. SULLIVAN: 'l'ha t is a higher point, Your Honor. 

HIS HONOR : The fall in con t our i s over t owards the coloured 
a r ea t owar ds t he to p? 

MR . SULLIVM~ : (By l eave approache s His Hon or) The s e contour 
line s I have a s sumed t ha t wher e Mr . Sell ers wrote , s ay , 
11 ?0" t here , he.moan s it is 50 t her e and 50 there , a l ong t ha t 
llne . There lS a gen eral slope t hat way a t the se -vwrkings . 
~ha t i s why I r egard t hese headings ss -sump s or bag s, bec ause 
lf it is heavier than a ir it ge ts dovJn and t he only way it c an 
come out, tmle ss it is blown or pumped out, is by building up 
a l eve l of t he make and in tha t way , until it r eache s a l eve l 
~~~er e it c an spill over. It is a question of it spilling over 
llke vJa t er and tha t i s \vha t happen ed when Mr. Stm.,a rt and the 
bricklayer, Hr. Lake , put up t he bra t tico , t he c emen t washed 
br a ttice in No . 3 , inby of No . 3 cu t- t ln"'ough. 
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HIS HONOR: Tha t is all ba sed on the as sumption tha t this 
make of ga s in the goaf had been f or ming for some time . 

HR . SULLIVAN : I will c ome t :) t ha t later. We submit it must 
have been becau se t he next t hing t hat happened shows tha t wha t 
I have just put t o Your Honor a s wha t happened in No . 3 cut­
thr ough is correct. It appear ed t o t hose who did it t hat t he 
putting up of t he c ement ·wa shed bra ttic e was ·effective in 
keep i ng the· gas back. So then we have ano ther look at the 
r e turn airway fo r October, tha t is ano ther da t e we have and 
tha t is f or t he whole of October and we find, looking a t t hat, 
t ha t the amoun t of methru~e gas, n o t necessarily the make of 
ga s, but t he amount of me t hane ga s ge tting into the r e t urn airway -

HIS HONOR: The amount ge tting out? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Ye s. It may ge t out bec ause it c ome $6ut in 
a fr ee form and goe s up against the r oof and differenc e s of 
pressure got it out or it may c ome out o t herwise but a t any 
r a t e the make t hen had suddenly dropped back t o 28 c.f. m. and 
we would submi t what happened was obvious bec ause you will 
re member t ha t by October t he size of t he goaf had been greatly 
increased with t en having been t aken out and 11 probably had 
been t aken out. 

HIS HONOR : ~IT . Reynolds shakes his head. 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is quite wrong on the evidence: when 9 
wa s being driven 10 and 11, as f ar a s the evidence goes, were 
still pillar s. 

MR. SULLIVAN: 10 would be but 11 had been taken out. 

MR. REYNOLDS: The evidence wa s 10 and 11 were taken out 
t oge t her . 

MR. SULLIVAN : The evidenc e is ther e , Your Honor and the 
posi tion is t his tha t a t t hat stage t ha t instead of it being the 
bra ttice t hat kept the gas back it wa s just r e trea t ed into the 
sump crea t ed by t he n ew work. 

Le t us ge t back t o the und oubted f acts abou t wha t ga s 
was found in t he headings: Carbon dioxide wa s f ound , there is 
no doub t about t ha t, and me t hane wa s found. Me thane \va s f ound 
by t hen in the safe ty lamp. Of course , it was present in the 
r e t ur n airv1ays. Common prudenc e in any ca se , even if it had 
not been fow~d, by people who Her e mine managers and mire under 
managors, I mean, it is not us conducting t hese operations, we 
do not put ourselve s in their pl ace i n t he sense of looking a t 
t hem a s if t hey had t he same qualifica tion a s we have , vle l ook 
at t hem objectively a s people r epr e sen t ed by t he A.I.S. a s bei ng 
compe t ent t o c onduct mining oper a tion s with safe ty and we 
submit strongly tha t r ea sonabl e prudenc e would have dictated t o 
anybody a t all \vorking thGr e on t he No. 1 Bulli Seo.m a t l east 
the probability of there being carbon dioxide t her e or of thGr e 
being carburre tted hydrogen t here , even if t hey had never found 
a mixture of t he tw o. ¥IT. Puddle ha s an under managerts 
certificate . We will say tha t perhap s tha t is not good enough 
for t he wor k he was engaged in f or t he A.I.S., per haps he 
should have had a manager's certifica t e . But, Mr . Stone had 
a manager 1 s cer tificat e . He wa s nct ~unqualified man , he 
was a pr actical expert minor with t he c ertif i ca tion the 
Department wants bef or e it will allow ru~ybody t o op er a t e a mine 
as manager. We put ourselves in his place t o t his ex t en t 
and say , looking a t it ob j ectively again, if I had t ho s e 
qualifica tions , if I had t o pa ss t hr ee examina tions and go t a 
firs t cla ss c ertificate in which I had t o show myself c ompG t ent 
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to deal wi6h nune ventilation, compe tent to deal with gases 
and, if I had the practical experience nec e ssary to allow me 
t o qualify under the Act should not I have known of the danger 
of those three gases being present in those workings where g2s 
sump s wer e being crea ted? 

We say the drop fr om .20 in the r e turn a irway in 
September t o .10 in October, and tha t means the · whol e of 
October up t o about October 30th when certainly 10, 11 and 12 
would have been t aken out- 12 doe snrt matter so much because 
it is on the higher c ontour and in f act would t ond t o go through 
t he sump from there , certainly the drop in t rn me t hane c ontent 
in the r e turn airway in October was a sign of danger, no t a 
mattor t o be complac en t about, a s Mr. Stone wa s. It has got 
to be looked a t, wher e it is coming from and why it is forming. 
That means tha t by early in October or, r a ther, in November 
befo r e the fir e when t he methane c onten t had again risen to a 
mru{e of 56, an obvious make of 56 from 28 it means the trap 
\vas se t in ~Alhich those men wer e caught. (Approaches map ) This 
trap was se t a s truly as if they had been condemned to dea th 
by the management bec ause bef or e this a ccident happened, and 
this is undoub t ed on the evidenc e of Mr. Sellers, the expert 
Mr. Reynolds call ed, along with Mr. Wa sson, there was the goaf, 
the c ontour of t he goaf was dovn towards this sump here, the 
level of ga s or t he specific gravity, greater t han a iri was 
building up t o such an ext en t tha t a ccording t o Mr. Se l ers on 
the day of t he tragedy when these men wer e trapped and 
suffocated and burnt it wns so high tha t it spilled a matter 
of seven fe e t from t he pavement i n t o the shQnt. Tha t was a 
death trap , Your Honor, and tha t was made by the management. 
It mean s this: If thoy had not killed them one way they would 
have k illed t hem another. 

MR. REl~OLDS~ Be a little mor e t emp erate in your language. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Looking a t the' con tour map the bottom of the 
poo l t o which t his heading was being driven, and tha t is the 
bottom of t he pool, wa s about 30 f ee t deep 'With ga s and the 
people r e sponsible f or t hose deaths, in our submission, were 
the on e s who wer e doing t ha t and I am not singling out any 
individual. What do we know a bout that pool of ga s? We 
know now it vJas ther e because thoir own expert knm..;r s. Ther e 
was a large goaf ar ea t her e , the lowe st part of it was t o the 
lef t of A heading and a t a lovel of 40 feet be low the inter­
section of A heading and No . 2 ~ut-through. If Your Honor 
looks a t t he contour map and take s t he int ersection of A heading 
and No. 2 cut-through it is 40 f ee t below where this ga s spilled . 

HIS HOl'T OR : Would you say t ha t again? 

MR. SULLIVJiN : Just befor e the tragedy, according t o Mr. Sellers, 
there was a large goaf area . 

HIS HONOR: Wher e is the point of 40 f ee t? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Just a t the very lowe st c ont our. (By l eave 
approache s Hi s Horror) Jus t inby the ond of his second li~t. 
That is t he lowest po int. 

HIS HON OR: What is the r eading there ? 

MR . SULLIVAN: The r eading a t t ha t poin·t would be a bout 60 
because your c ontour there is 60 and it go e s ' up through ther 8 • 

HIS HONOR~ Would you po int · t o it again? 

Vill . SULLIVJ~N: This particular point. Whatever Mr. Reynolds 
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says about 10, 11 and 12 not being r emoved in October, they 
certainly had been r emoved by November. · 

MR. REYNOLDS: Yes. 

MR. SULLIVaN: So this was the position: we know fr om Mr. 
Sellers tha t as the gas formed so the level of this pool rose 
just the same a s wa t er in an irregularly shaped conta iner, the 
l evel r emains the same , and we know now tha t it contained, 
on Mr. Donnegan 1 s c ount, 40 per cent of methane. Even later 
than tha t Mr. Sellers got a count of 20 per cent of methane 
and it amply de serve s the adjective which vJas used which vias 
11 ric:h11 in methane, much as my l earned fri end Mr. Reynolds 
ob j ected t o me using tha t phrase at the time. 

HIS HONOR: From tha t area of 60, the lowest point, the ga s 
must have either accumulated to such an extent that it rose 
t o the time it wa s some thing like 110 fe e t -

MR. SULLIVAN: Ye s fr om 60 t o 110, about 40 or more. 
the measurement made by Mr. Sellers, and I do propose 
t o his evidence perhaps in more de t ail tomorrow is in 
ord er of it being, in January, a matter of 7 fe e t. 

HIS HONOR: From flo or l evel. 

I think 
to refer 
the 

MR. REYNOLDS: It wa s 107 f ee t a bove sea l evel and the inter­
section wa s 103 f ee t a bove sea l eve l so it was four feet at 
the bra ttic e . 

HIS HONOR: Ther e is quite an amount of evidence and this has 
caused me some conc ern: ther e was an addition of fre e methane 
coming , apparently past the bra ttic e in the shunt higher up at the 
time of the fire. 

MR. REYNOLDS: It was found subsequently. 

HIS HONOR: It was put to me the fir e wa s close to roof level 
through the elephant's tube burning but in f act subsequent 
t e sts showed fr ee methane wns c oming out a t ro of level at the 
time of the fir e and part of the fir e wa s being f ed by fr ee 
me thane coming t hrough the bra ttic e. That is an a spect to 
which nobody seems t o have paid very much a tt ention so far. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ Not even the inspectors, Your Honor. 

HIS HONOR: Tha t is t he evidence. 

tffi. l~~Y: Only afterwards. 

HIS HONOR: It is true in the simulated conditions this was 
discovered. 

MR. MURRAY: No one has suggest ed there 1.-1a s anything burning 
at roof l evel except - -

HIS HONOR: Except wha t? People say ther e is only a tube of 
ga s burning. The evidence is the flame extended from the 
r oof down. I think it wa s ~tt. Kent who ran through the fire 
and go t a bit burnt but he ducked down and his body escaped 
burning after ducking down. The flame wa s, in the main, above 
him. 

MR. McNALLY: Mr. Donnegan dea lt with c onvection currents. 

HIS HONOR: I remember tha t evidence. 

MR. LEE: I am remind ed of the samples he took. Whetter they 
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were up in the r oof or down in the bottom they wer e a l l samples 
of bottom gas so when we are t alking about fr ee methana up there 
we should r eally be t alking about bottom ga s as far a s what 
was discover ed af t er t he fire a s far a s the inspectors ar e comer ned . 

MR. REYNOLDS: Mr. Henzie s said ther e wa s n o e v.:id:mce of rm thane 
in his interpre t a tion in any quantitie s in its fr ee state. 

HIS HONOR: I do no t r ecall tha t but I wil l have a look a t it. 

MR. SULLIVsN: I will be giving r ef erenc e s, Your Honor. I am 
not just giving evidenc e fr om the Bar t able , I am making 
submissions a t the moment. I am trying t o l e t Your Horror know 
how this came about or, mruce submissions a long t hose lines. 
The suggestion was made tha t pr eviously bleeder or ventilation 
headings had been put in for t he purpo se of ~leedli1g off the 
ga s and it was further put t o the Court by Mr. Puddl e tha t the 
extension t o No . 2, tha t is No. 3, wa s intended a s a bleeder 
heading. Le t us have a look at it from the point of vi ew of 
a bleeder heading: Firstly, it drops in its c ontours fr om 
contour 110 t o c on tour 70. The next c on tour wher e it wa s going 
to hola into the goaf was con t our 60. You have got a ga s which 
is heavier thlli! air down ther e . How would it bleed a s a 
bloed heading? Ther e we have the situa tion a bout t he week 
commencing 2nd November, the fatal week. 

HIS HONOR : Assuming the company believed it \va s not bottom ga s 
but c arbJn dioxide with which t hey wer e dealing, ther e still 
would be a ga s which was heavier t han a ir? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, tha t is right. 

HIS HONOR: How do the se bleeders dra in off t ha t gas? 

MR. SULLIV.AN: Page s 366 and 367 of the transcript. It is in 
re-examination by Mr. Lee : 11 .Just t o finish off tha t l a st ma tt er 
•••••.•• completel y inadequat e t o deal with it •••••••• asphyxi~tion 
would f ollow. 11 Then he a sked him about his experienc e and t hen 
in t he second-last question on p.,367 he a sked: "In your view 
would it be usual practice •••••••• I ~ould hate t o be in t ha t 
position myself though". He is de scribing t he se t-up behind 
the work place immediat ely befor e the men wer e trapped. 

(On Mr. Murray's applic a tion His Honor granted 
leave to him t o be a bsent fr om t he further 

hearing of t he Inquiry on the understanding 
tha t he c ould be c ontacted and brought back 
at short notice. Mr. Murray informed His 
Hon or tha t a r epr e senta tive of the Union would 
be pre sent but he did not seek any right of 
audience f or that representa tive). 

(Further hearing adj ourned t o 10 a.m. on 
Wedne sday 16 th February 9 1966 ) 
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IN THE COURT OF 
COAL MINES REGULATION 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) 
) 

jr 

No.. 1 of 1965. 

BEFORE HIS HONOR JUDGE GORAN 
ASSESSORS~ Messrs. MAHON and BUCK. 

WEDNESDAY: 16th February, 1966. 

IN THE MATTER OF Jill INQUIRY IN PURSUANCE OF THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION ACT rnTO AN ACCIDENT V.JHICH OCCURRED AT 'I'HE BULLI 
COLLIERY ON 9th NOVEMBER 1965 AND ITS CAUSES AND CIRCUMSTANCES. 

(PART HE!..RD) 

~ffi. REYNOLDS: Just before my learned friend Mro Sullivan 
resumes his submissions, I have been instructed to mention here 
because this is the only way this can be redressed, ~at 
appears on p.4 of the Daily Meroury. It quotes me as s~g 
that the company felt it most likely that the deputies did n~ 
carry out tests. All I can say is that that is the direct 
opposite of what I submitted. And this journal, circulating 
amongst the people concerned in this Inquiry, it could lead to 
a grave misunder standingo I ,.,rould only ask that the newspaper 
take steps to report tha t aspect of what I said correctly. 

HIS HONOR: I do not see tha t I have the power, Mr. Reynolds, 
but thank you for mentioning it to me.. You certainly did noc 
say that .. 

Yes, Hre Sullivan? 

MR. SULLIVA.l."\f: Your Honor ~ at the adjournment yesterday I had 
read what Mr .. Henzies, the Departmental inspector, said at 
pp.366-67 of the transcript and Your Honor will recollect that 
Mr. Menzies was referring to the situation prior to the fire 
when the large area of goaf - a comparatively large area of goaf -
obviously had this pool of gas 7 the gre a test depth of \vhich 
would be at the lowest contour point and in fact directly where 
it is suggested by Mr~ Puddle that the miner crew should hole in. 
Mr. Menzies in the passage I read to Your Honor dealt with the 
possible, perhaps even probable~ consequences of adopting such 
a course. On 2nd November? Deputy Gordon placed a tight 
brattice acra ss A heading attempting to crea te a stopping which 
it was suggested would operate as it did in No. 3, and the 
purpose of tha t stopping being put there wa s the same purpose 
asit was intended to serve in No. 3; tha t is to hold back the 
goaf gases. Let us ta_k:e the position as it was at No. 3, and 
I now refer Your Horror to the evidence of Mr. Hangles. We know 
now from the question I asked Mra Deputy Stewart tha t this 
occurred on or about 5th October 1965, the occasion on which 
Mr. Deputy Stewart lost his lamp 5 his light~ At p.454 Mr. Lake 
speaks of meeting Hr .. Fred Wright~ the assistant under manager, 
being told by ~~. Fred Wright to get to 8 Right straight away 
"as quick as you cano11 He said to Mr., Mangles who was driving 
a loco, "Take these fellows to Three 8 phone straight away,n 
and then they ~Jent ·eo 8 Righto The position we now know almost 
accidentally on or about 5th Occober was this~ Noe 3 cut-through 
was being extended into wha t is now the ·goaf area, one pillar 
length ahead of Noo 2 cut-through. The work was well under 
v1ay and it was approximately 100 feet from the intersection of 
A heading - the miner vlas down approximately lOO fe e t from A 
h~ading down the extensJon of Noo 3 cut- througho Your Horror 
Wlll recollect Mr& Lake thought it wa s Non 2o Charles Stewnrt 
was erecting a brattice Gtopping across the heading. He said 
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11 It' s pretty creak : isn r t it? ro and Mr c Stewar t s a id further 
11 It' s pretty crook , Cliff~ and v.rhen you ge t ba ck in ther~ , you 
know, when you feel like it~ go out and ge t some fr e sh a 1ro 
Don't stay here and choke sor ·i~ of thing ... n And we know now 
as a r esult of Mr~ Stewart going back into the box y e st e rday 
that he lost hts ltght o He admitted it yesterday - he lost 
his light a t tha t time. did nochin.g about it, apparently, 
othe r than to go a.Yld get the miner driver 1 s ligh t.. Why the 
miner driver gav e i t t o him :~s a nothe r question 1 se e ing he is 
supposed to have one und <J r the Coal Mines Regulation Act ~ but 
he went and took the mi_ner dr:Lver ' s J.j_ght l eaving his own out, 
and did nothing more than r eport .rwxiou s gas be ing dilutedo 

HIS HONOR; Do you say that the time of the er ection of the 
brattic e was the time he lost hi s light ''? Did you actually 
put that to me ? 

MR. SULLIVAN~ Ye s e I die put ~ t to him- I have not actually 
the transcript r efer ence s; but in any even t if I am wrong 
Your Honor 1ATill see t t " 

HIS HONOR. It was c ertainly aroun.d that t i me ., The only re a son 
I queried..you about it is tha t you t hen say he did nothing 
about it" but he had a bra t ~ice erectedo 

I 

MR. SULLIVAN~ But h e 1-vas t o:_d to by Wright. 

MR. McNALLY ~ Your Honor 9 he d.j_d on ~hi s day r eport inflammable 
gaso 

MR. SULLIVAN~ B"J.t h~ repo1·ted. noxl.ous gas tooa 

MR. McNALLY = ILf lamma bl8 ga s - Your Ho:ctor sees the report? 

MR. SULLIVAN~ I aslr cl him y es ·:_,erday and he said he did report 
noxious gaco 

MR. McNALLY: I am n 0 t quite sure whe 'C: he1· it was noxious gas 
or inflammable gaso He d. iC:: !.'e l.)or'l.; inflammable g a s - whether 
he did r eport both : he d.:i_d repor t inflammable ga s .. 

MR . SULLIV.AN~ I thtilJ{ that :nakef~ :L t; '\AJ orse .. 
am not cri ·cici .sj_ng him" 

At any r a te, I 

HIS HONOR ~ I suppose your po:i .. n t~ Mr, McNally, is that on that 
occ a sion he was able to de t ect inflammable gas? 

MR. McNALLY~ No, c :1 the very day the S·~r een wa s put up~ when 
Mr. Puddle t es t ed , i .n.flarnmable gas i:Jas a ·:~ the goaf edge. Tha t 
is the point I make j_ i~ was r epo r ted that day and the next day. 
~yway, the r eport is ~hereo 

MR. SULLIVAN~ I had intcr-<3..ed to deal with the deputies separa tely 
a t a later sta ge '" I am try2ng to giv·e Your Honor V<Jha t happened 
and hm·J it happened ? no~_; really the 11 \·ihy~ 1 , It is our submission 
to Your Honor that at thcl'l~ stage the 3Umps t o the l eft of A 
heading had fill ed up sufficien tly vti .t;h this gas which had a 
specific gravity he av5 er ·'·.:han aj_r n ha d fi lled up sufficiently 
to spill out , as I put t o Your Honor yesterday , h a ving r egard to 
the contour s) and ~:he _ p a~J.:i;a tiv~ taken 1va s to put up this bra ttice, 
and when vle are -vhlnk ; .. g of vJhe·cher they kne\v or ought to have 
known what vJas go ing on j ·s is .Ln o~~" su~Jmi ssion most significant 
that at tha t stage ~":"" Job-l.1 Puddle? the under manager, without 
consulting Mro Dennis Stone~ the manager, who sai.d tha t he 
blocked out t he -.• JOrkj ng s to' t h e l ei' f. of A he nding ~ decided. to 
t ake out No tt 10 before h e dro\-e No ~ 13 ~ Now. whether he 

J 
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intended it or not is a matter for Your Honor. There is 
circumstantia l evidence in this case as 1JJell as direct evidence, 
and some times circumstantial evidence is more convincing than 
the type of direct evidence we have been getting here from soma 
of the officials. But the f act remains.tha t taking out 10 
pillar did have t he effect of crea ting a larger sump which would 
have the effect of causing these ga ses which were spilling out 
at that stage against the brattice in No. 3 heading to r ecede. 

HIS HONOR: If he intended that - if it was his intention to 
bring about that result? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes. It also means he would know that gas had 
been building up there over this area in these sumps, and Your 
Honor of course r ealises the importance of that decision at 
that t ime which r e sult ed in the creation of tha t big sump. 
He abandoned the use of bleeder ventilation headings, or 
ventila tion headings. Is tha t coincidental? It may be, but 
I will drmv Your Honor' s attention to further coincidences tha t 
occurred. The next thing , Mr. Wright, from \•Thorn we ha ve not 
heard, ivas party to this decision- the man who, according to 
Hr. Stewart's evidence yesterday, was seen by Mr. Stewa rt 
around 8 Right with a methanometer. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Before this goes any further can we have one thing 
clear conc erning not having heard Mr. Wright. I think it 
should be made clear tha t I said t o Your Honor v ery early in 
this matter tha t we would cal l any person whom Your Honor 
indicated because it was Your Honor' s investiga tion, and tha t 
has always been the situa tion. 

HIS HONOR : If I think Mr. Wright should have been called, I 
will still a sk for him. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ I thought tha t was t he position, and I do nd 
think it is appropriate for my fri end to keep reiterating th~ 
as though he is a ttaching blame to anybody tha t he has not been 
called. 

MR. SULLIVAN: I am only doing it bec ause of ·what Mr. Reynolds 
said at p.421: 11 MR. REYNOLDS: Does Your Honor want Mr. Wright 
called? HIS HONOR: Ye s. MR. REYNOLDS~ He is the assistant 
under manager. HIS HONOR: That is so. At a conveni en t time 
••••••• l{R. REYNOLDS: We will arrange for him to come to the 
Court. '1 

MR. REYNOLDS ~ If Mr. Sullivan will not do the fair thing, 
Hi s Honor subsequently indica ted he did not r equire Mr. Wright 
to be call ed. 

HIS HOIJOR. That is so. If Mr. Wright has no t been called it 
is my fault and if I still t hink he needs t o be c a lled I will 
ho. ve him called. Yes, Mr. Sullivan? 

MR. SULLIVAN: If Your Honor plea ses. Whe ther Hr. Wright \va s 
called or not he made the decision or was party to the decision 
to put up the tight bra ttice. What they did when they got dovm 
to No . 2 cut-through, r emembering they had t aken 10 out, for 
the f~rst time they had changed their system- t aken 10 out, 
crea t1ng the sump for gases to rec ede before ·they started in on 
the extension to 2 cut-through. 

HIS HONOR~ Taking 10 out ·would mean tha t t he ga se s on the sump 
theory -vmuld spill into 10 or where 10 wa s? 

MR. SULLIV.b.N: Yes, to where 10 wa s, and t empor arily r elieve the 
gas problem without ventila ting - tha t is t emporarily. When they 
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got t o No . 2 - and Mr. Wright as we know was in the section 
virtually every day 2 according t o Hr. Stewart - on 2nd November 
Deputy Gordon pl ac ed a tight brattice across A heading , again 
a ttemp ting to r e-crea te a stopping simila r t o t he one in No . 3, 
t o hold back , and he did t his with the know l edge and approva l 
of Hr. Puddle - indeed , almost the sugges tion of Mr . Puddle -
and lvfr . Puddle said it \•7a s to hold back gas . This 1tJas 
inevitably ineff ective because t he on ly r ea son why t he goaf 
ga se s had not pushed their way through the bra ttice screen was 
because on succ eeding days t hey vJere going into the posit ion 
wher e No. 10 had. been. Ther e was n o similar place into which 
they could go a t No. 2 and the bra ttic e must inevitably be 
ineff ective f or its purpose becaus e ~s the l evel of t he pool 
r ose - t ha t is the one which was a t l ea st 30 feet deep back 
towards t he working pl ace - and r eached a l evel a bove t he top 
of the shunt a t A heading on t he edge of the goaf, it must 
inevitably ~rea to pressure on t he back of t he bra ttic e and 
consequently l eak into t he shunt. A moment's r eflection by 
people \4ho are qualified - we do not know \vha t qua lifica tions 
the a ssistant under manager, Mr . vJrigh t, has , but presumably he 
has an under manager's ticke t - a moment's r efl ection by anybody 
would have enabl ed them t o arrive a t t ha t c onclusion with a 
contour map in their hand. Yet Mr. Puddle and Mr. Wright, 
Wo are both qualified, compe tent persons appointed by the 
hustLa lian Iron & Steel t o look af t er their mining operations, 
either knew of it and decided t o take a risk or they were so 
incompe t ent t ha t t hey did not work it out. And I am not 
talking about mindsight, Your Horror, I am t alking of be ing on 
the job. 

HIS HON OR: I suppose wha t you are putting is r eally summed up 
in a c omment or a que stion I made just a f ew days ago 1 or it 
may have been a day or t·vm a go: tha t a t l east inquir1e s should 
have been made a s t o where this ga s wa s coming from when it 
wa s f ound? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Hore than tha t, Your Honor. If Your Honor would 
allo\v me just t o c ontinue , t o shoitJ Your Honor what else wa s 
going on? 

HIS HONOR: Ye s. 

MR . SULLIVf~T~ The r eal effec t of t his brattice was first of all 
to pr event t his goaf edge from being inspected a t the t op of 
A shunt. 

HIS HONOR : The purpose ? 

~ffi . SULLIVAN: No , the r eal effect. I am not saying tha t is 
a purpo se . Your Honor ~y be able t o infer it wa s t o keep 
the deputies a1.vay , but I am not putting tha t t o Your Honor. 

HIS HOHOR: You may t ake t ha t t o be t he last t hing I \vould infe r. 

HR . SULLIVAN : Unti 1 Your Honor ha s looked a t the whol e matt er 
of wha t happened he r e , perhaps Your Horror may re turn to the 
position you put t o c oun sel yes t erday , tha t you ar e not c er t a in 
the whole story has been t old. But it had t he eff ect of 
pr eventing t he goaf edge fro~ be ing inspect ed , a nd of course in 
the schedule t o the Coal Mines Regul a tion Act the goaf edge s 
abuttLYJ.g the ;,vor king plac e should be inspected , and ypu

4
dou't_ put 

Up a br a ttice to, preven t_ • peopl e fr om going in ther e , other wise 
you make a monkey of t he Regula tions. So f r om 2nd November 
when ~ha t bra t t i ce -v!ent up , a goaf . Gdg13 which l ed to a sump , 
abutt1ng on •.vha t wa s r ea LLy a work1ng place, I would t h.ink , with 
r espec t, or a travelling road - it is one or t he othor - could 
not be inspected . The other t hing it did is tha t it preven t ed 
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the goaf edge from ~eing ventilated so as t o dilute any 
dangerous gas - noxious or inflamma ble , it does not matter 
1tJh ich - but any dangerous ga s being given off. They did not 
have t o make any inquiries when they put t ha t bra ttice up to 
know tha t they wer e doing tha t. They knew wha t they were doing 
and they knew tha t those two c onsequences mus t inevitably flow -
men with under manager's cer tif i ca t e s. 

That was don e on 2nd November. Now , the chain 
of events tha t l ed t o the dea ths happened f airly quickly . At 
10.10 p . m. on Friday the 5th the goaf wa s not ho l ed. If Your 
Horror accepts Mr. Menzie s, thi s meant at l east tha t the minor 
crew on tha t shif t were lucky. Instead another lift in the 
unholed working pl ace wa s commenc ed next t o t he previous one . 
At or amut t his time - r emembering tha t the fir e occurred on 
the Tue sday - although t here wa s a surveyor's peg and an 
ex t ension of t he ven t tube s positioned here - if I may c ome 
r ound t o t he plan - which was approximate ly the s ame position 
a s t he splits parallel t o A heading had been made in the previous 
two pillars, the idea was changed to split the pillar adjacent · 
t o the goaf from end t o end ( ~IT . Puddle's evidenc e ) and when the 
me ssage wa s put through to Mr. Wright tha t t hey had not holed 
into the goaf - allegedly because he had made a mistake, and we 
must not forget he had not made a mistake - the d eputy in charge, 
Wright 2 told them not t o hole into t he goaf but to come back and 
do a lift next to it. Coincidences are increa sing, are they 
not? Is it not a po ssible inferenc e from tha t, a change in 
the me thod of splitting the pillar , failure to hole into the 
goaf , tha t Wright a t l east knm-1 about tha t pool of gas? 

Then t he fans \•Tere turned off for the week end after 
that shift, and for a period up till 9.15 a . m. on 9th November 
1965 the goaf ga ses, comple t ely uninspected, comple t ely 
unventilated , c ompl e t ely undrained , were l eft t o continue 
increasing and t he logical point of egre ss from them wa s behind 
the brattice in A heading. And to add to this silent menace 
tha t wa s forming behind the bra ttice, the bra ttice was er ected 
in such a way a s t o stop t hem coming out. Now, that is the 
build-up of the trap, and it wa s sprung about 9.15 a.m. when 
the goaf ga se s spilled through t he brattice and were brought 
into c on tact with the point of ignition and burst into flame. 
Smith, Hunt, Hurray , Stewart, were t rapped in the working place 
by fir e and t hey died over t he next hour - t ha t is all we can 
say - either by suffocation or burning. They died over the 
next hour.- deadly trap . Tha t is how it happen ed. It is 
only a brief outline but I am prepar ed t o submit, ex~ept for 
a mis take I made ye sterday, I meant t o say 10 was extracted 
before 13, except for on e mistake I made yes t erday, ev erything 
I put t o Your Horror is absolutely substantia t ed by uncon tradicted 
evidence, every matt er of f act in the transcript. . The 
infer enc e s, of course , are ours. Tha t is how it happened, 
and it is t o be a ssumed you will ge t to nhow" well within your 
jurisdiction. 

Why this Inquiry wa s constituted wa s no t, a s my 
l earned fri end Mr. Reynolds submitt ed, t o find the se f actual 
ma t ters only and put t hem befor e the public but t o go furthor 
c:nd rep~rt t o t he Hinister \.Jho, a s I s aid ye s t erday , undertook 
1n Parllamen t t o t 2ble the re~ort and say why it happened. 

Re turning t o wha t I sa id in _my op ening submission, 
the deaths occurred in the coal seam owned by the Government 
and peopl e of New South Wale s and worked by persons to whom 
~he Gov:rn~ent had granted a l ease for exploita tion. They are 
ln t he ou sllle ss. The Government, the Mines Department and t he 
people is not just int er es t ed i n these mechanic a l facts I ha ve 
put, they a r e interested in how, under t he control of peopl e t o 
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whom the exploitation of this seam is more or less de l ega t ed 
by the Government by way of l ease , how four men who were 
supposed to be prot ect ed by persons skilled in mining and t e st ed 
by examination, how four persons came t o die as ~is~rably as 
this. Tha t is what Your Horror r eports on. Flndlng the 
f acts is one thing - the facts are clear as crystal, I wo uld 
submit, but why it happened must be consider ed . In a scertaining 
why it happened t he inspectors who have given us their assistance 
here in pursuance of their duties under t he section to examin e 
and enquire have put befor e Your Honor most valuable and cog ent 
evidence to a ssist you. The inspectors have not only the 
int erest but t he duty, the same a s the mine manager Mr. Ston e 
ha s, t o see t he pr ovisions of t he Coa l Mine s Re gula tion Act 
and every single provision of t he Coal Mines Regulation Act 
is carried out by people exploiting t he l ea se and the very first 
Gener a l Rule , Rule 1 at p.78 say s (Read). In r e l a tion to 
this working place, 8 Right, the management wa s under an 
obliga tion t o send suf fici ent pure air to dilut e and r ender 
harmless inflammabl e and noxious ga s. It has be en glibly 
·sa id in this Court tha t ga s presents a problem of de t ection and 
dilution - tha t is the wrong way round. As f a r a s ga s is 
conc erned their first duty is to send sufficient air t o the 
war king pl ace to dilut e it, whe t her it be noxious or inflam.mble , 
and r ender it harmless. The detection pr ovisions of t he Act 
r ela t e t o wha t is to be done by deputies aft er tha t Number one 
duty has been carried out, t o check on t he way it is operated 
from time t o time t o see whether any inflamnmble or noxious gas 
is ge tting into the working pl ace$ The a tt emp t to throw the 
r e sponsi bility for this syst em of ven t i l a tion back on t o the 
deputies in t his case has been disgraceful. They ar e not 
responsible for see ing enough a ir gets into a place to dilute 
and r ender harmless noxious gas. Tha t has got t o be done first 
of all and then arise s the problem and the deputy is continuously 
under the control and dir ection of the under manager and all 
statutory of f icials. If Mr. Puddle - not Mr. Wright - Mr. 
Wright is outside the statutory heirachy - if Mr. Puddle say s 
t o Hr. Stewart "put a bra ttic e up t her e 11 it vJOuld not matter 
if one hundred thousand cubic f ee t of noxious gas wer e c oming 
through thor o every minut e , under the schedule Mr. Stewart is 
bound to obey Hr. Puddle and Mr. Puddle is bound. to obey Mr. 
Stone. It is a s bad as a shipo It is exactly the same se t-up 

the captain, first ma t e and sec ond ma t e . You have got t:J 
do what you are t old and this at t emp t to t hrow this b ack on to 
t he Deputies Association - and I am not saying the Deputi e s 
Association is comple tely blamel e ss within their own 
r e sponsibility - but they arc certainly not r equir ed t o undertake 
the duty of t he manag ement t o obey Rule 1. All they have to 
do is r eport and ther e is a pro forma r eport ther e which they 
fill in and they have done tha t. 

I wa s sp eaking abou t the Department. The Dep artment, 
in the proc ess of carrying out its duty, and if I may say with 
r e sp ect in vi ew of some criticism l evelled a t the Department 
~esterday, very ably and very thor oughly did t he Department do 
~ Inspectors Longworth, Griffiths, Menzie s, the analyst fr om 
the Department, Mr. Donnegan and others, Mr. J ame s, exercised 
their powers under s.27(l)(b)(ii) of the Act immedia t e ly 
aft er this fire, or very shortly after this fir e and they have 
got a great mass of informa tiono The first thing to which 
they dir ected their attention, and I am going t o dea l with the 
role of the Department in the se proceedings in helping Your 
Honor t o decid e the question of why - the first thing tha t wa s ' 
produced - it was not the first thi ng, but the first thing in 
order of understanding the why of this ca se , the first thing 
to which I will r ef er is Mr. Muir's evidence about this fire. 
~t is 11 B11 and 11 Z". I think it has been divided into two hut 
1t is all in one fil ec This file commmc ed on 20th August 1959 
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and I d o not expect to r ef er to Mr. Wasson 1 s · evidenc e v~ y 
much but it app ears t ha t at about tha t time auxiliary f ans were 
starting . t o be used by collierie s. I would like t o r efe r Your 
Honor t o the .Act before it was amended . Gener al Rule 3 at 
tha t time provided - (Read). It is my impression, although 
Your Honor 1 s a s sessor s could probably t ell you, that t his was 
introduced in 1947 or thereabouts: nA.ny mechanical contrivanc e 
••••••••• ventila ting sy s t em11 • Mr. Stone said t o me in 
t he course of his evidenc e t ha t he quibbled about tha t however 
tha t is not very r e l evan t a t t he moment. .At any r a t e in 1959 
ther e wa s n o quibbling about it and the t hen manager, Mr. Ryan, 
in his first r equ est t o Mr. Muir a sked t he Department about t he 
installation of auxiliary fans. Hr. Muir t hen l a id down 
c ertain c ondition s a bout t hese fans and the colliery and the 
Dep artment seemed to be completely ad idem on each occasion t ha t 
the ·r equest was made t o put in auxilia ry f ans t o a ssi s t 
ventilation. The Department, t hr ough its inspector, and the 
colli er y , the A.I.S. colliery, seemed t o be working quite 
armoniously t oge ther and when t hey wan t ed t o put an auxiliary 
fan in they got per mission, a sked for t he conditions, t hen t he 
i n spector would c ome and have a lo ok a t the pl a c e , a sse ss it, 
have a look a t the general mi ning practice in the place · and 
t hen if he t hought t hey wer e al l right, O. K., t hey c oulJ go 
ahead with t heir f an s. The value of t hat, the value of t he 
obedienc e to tha t, and I say nobed i enc e 11 t o General Rule 3 wa s 
shown in connection with an applica tion t ha t was made on 15th 
July 1960, again by Mr. R~ an and this wa s a c a se of pillar 
ext raction , and I t hink t his is t he first one in the file. 
The o t hers had been mainly solid workings. Mr. Ryan say s: 

·
11 1 wish to advise ........... Mr. Muir wrote back t o Mr. Ryan 
and in t he l as t paragr~ h said (Read). This is 1960. The 
ot he r acc iden t occurr ed in 196~. His r e port is on t he f ollowing · 
page da t ed 15th July 1960. Then he wro t e again t o Mr ·. Ryan 
following on t ha t and then on 19 th October he inspected the 
pl ace . Your Hono r will r emember he had advised stoppings on 
the goaf edge . It was a two heading system. The sk e tch is 
ob t a ined in t he r eport da t ed 25th November 1960. It was a 
t wo heading system , t he air intake in No . 1, by two bra ttice 
screens and sen t down t o t he extension of the cut-through , and 
t hey tried t o block off goaf gases with bra ttic e . We do not 
know any t hing a t all about t he c on t ours of t he pl ace, it might 
have been fla t workings fo r all we know and irre sp ective of 
wha t t he making of goaf gas was Hhen Mr. Muir came a long he 
f ound t \vO per c en t of inflammable ga s in t he vicinity of the 
bra ttic e stopping er ected in No . 2 he ading. Tha t is t he advan t age 
t he A.I.S. ge ts from obeying t he law . They sought per mission 
t o put these fans i n . Tha t is t he advan t age the miners get 
from t he ~.I.S. obeying the l aw, t he Governmen t inspector co me s 
and has a look a t t he pl ac e and t es ts for gas, it is not left 
t o deputies. 

Well, Mr. Muir did not like t he sy stem. If Your 
Honor looks a t p.2 of his r eport ther e was t he ut mo st co-oper a tion 
be tween Mr. Muir and Mr. Ryan a t t ha t stage and they worked out 
a system in which, d e spite wha t ever doubts you may have a bout the 
bleeder he~ding sys t em in t hi s patt i cular se t-up, it seems to 
have been eff ective in r elation t o the 2 heading system with 
the airflow being from l eft t o righ t and the auxiliary fans 
~eing po sition ed in th~ way in which they wer e . Mr. Ryan, 
~n 1961, wrot e , sent h1s ske tch ruid ther e wa s an inspection. 
That \va s on 16th May 1961. Mr .. Ryan again obeyed the law a ll 
the time . On 26th October 1961 he again did so, in each 
c a se f ollowed by an inspection. On 8th November 1961 he obeys 
the l aw , he is go ing t o put some fans in so he no tif ies the 
district inspector who c ome s down and they have a look a t it. 
After tha t year they do no t seem in any c a se t o have , if there 
wer e c a se s be sides 8 Righ t, and Your Honor will r ecollect ther e 
wer e fans in the area to which Mr. Parkinson w·ent in the 
west ern r e turns on t he morning he wa s t here - but ther e ha s been 
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no applica tion under the Gen er al Rule , according to Mr. Nuir, 
sinc e 1961 and ther e wer e c ertainly no applica tions for the 
use of auxiliary ventila ting f ans in 8 Right. Mr. Stone 
said, 11 I doubt if t hey have go t the poweru. Tha t is a matter 
for Your Honor t o c onsidere I would submit they have a lways 
had the power. 

HIS HONOR: In my opinion it is irrel evan t t o c onsider whe ther 
they have t he power or not. There is availa ble a mine s 
inspector who is willing t o co- oper a t e and the Department is 
pr epar ed t o inspect and give an opinion: One would have thought 
it would be f or t he benefit of everybody conc erned and full 
co-oper a tion is n ec e ssary. One vmuld have thought they would 
n ot t ake a point of law a s t o whe ther t he inspector ha s power. 

MR. SULLIVAN: And on the point of l aw I think t hey may have been 
wrong a bout ito 

HIS HONOR: Tha t is not the r eal issue . 

MR. SULLIV~N : Ther e they wer e , they had the men he r e and it 
is incredible when the co-oper a tion be tween ~x. Ryan and Mr. 
Muir had been so fruitful, and apart a ltoge t her from Gen eral 
Rule 3 one would t hink t he service s of t he se highly tra ined 
inspectors would be employed • In my submission, however, 
according t o Mr. Muir's evidenc e t ha t wa s t he end of it. The 
r ol e of the Department a t t ha t sta ge , a t any r a t e , particularly 
in r el a tion t o this Aoi.S. colliery s eemed t o be shrinking. 

HIS HONOR: I do no t know whe ther t here is c ompliance her e i.Jith 
t he second part of Rule 3. The Rule say s , 11 The manager shall 
give no tic e t o the i nspector o•• • ••• 11 • From t he plan Mr. 
Reynolds produc ed ye sterday of the i'ina l development it would 
app ear portions of t he se ar ea s -vwr e parts of a mine which c ould 
have been ventila t ed by t he main ventila tion system , wher eas 
they wer e no t so ventila t ed. The f ans wer e used to ventilate 
the working ar ea but ther e is a c e ssa tion, a s I see it, of 
ventila tion of t ha t part of t he ar ea from which there ha s not 
been c omple t e extraction. Ther e is c ertainly a part of the 
ar ea her e which i s not wha t one might accura t ely ca ll goaf 
whi ch wa s l eft, where c oal had no t been r emov ed, and it is 
part of a mine , a s I s ee it, which ha s t o be ventila t ed. 

HR. SULLIVAN : Wha t happened in 1964 obviously wa s tha t the 
Department probably had t he se points of law t aken on it by 
certain managers and decided t o put it beyond doubt. It may 
be of some j_mportanc e t o not e tha t the amm dment vJhich inserted 
tha t change wa s assented t o on 12th May 1964 so tha t c ame into 
f orc e on tha t day. Tha t make s it even mor e inter e sting a s 
f ar a s any r aising of points of l aw about it is c oncerned. 

Proc eedi ng fr om t her e , on 29th June 1965 inspector 
Longworth visited the panele He says a fan wa s working in 
tha t s ection, they wer e working in solid wor k a t tha t time 
and they wer e wor king a three heading sy stem. He give s a 
gener a l de scription of the systemo Mr o Longworth looked 
ar ound and f ound no inflammable ga s - they wer e working in 
oo lids a t t he time and he doe s no t seem t o have directed his 
mind - and I am no t blaming him - bec ause he wa s ther e 
inspecting some thi n g el se a t the mine - a s t o whe the r they had 
ever go t any per mi ssi on t o u se the fan s tha t wer e be ing used 
in this positiono However no thing happened then and they 
\v ent ahead to drive t heir three heading system on t o the f ault 
and then pr oc eeded t o sna tch coal a s is shown in this particular 
coloured drawing which is pinned t o the board. 

Your Hon or n otic e s th.a t when Mr. Ryan had t o bring 
f ans into a position wher e t her e wa s some diff iculty a bout 
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ventila tion he wa s on t o Mr. Muir and got his permission to 
use the fans and Mr. Muir came out and they discussed the 
gener a l position but the se fans seem t o have gone stra i gh t 
into opera tion without any approach t o t he Department wha tsoever 
and, a t a later stage , on 26th October 1965, well aft er the 
passing of the amended legisla tion , and Your Honor will see 
this at p.l66, ano ther fan wa s introduc ed and put in serie s, 
clearly in brea ch of gener al rule 3. I think my l earned friend 
said, when I a sked Hr. Puddle about this, 11A t echnic a l 
breachu. The point about the se t echnica l breoches is tha t if 
Rule 3 is carried out the inspector goe s and ha s a look . Tha t 
is t he point. When an applica tion is made , 11 I want t o put two 
fan s in seriestt tt~ve will see wha t will happen first. Why 
put t hem in serie s because a second on e doe s no t pull much mae 
t han the fir stn - the in spec t or would have a look and he yJould 
have seen wha t was going on. Remember tha t is 26th Octob8r 
1965, it is ge tting close t o the fa tality and if t hey obeyed 
~neral Rule 3 t he district inspector would have been out the re 
and seen the c onditions t ha t produced the tra gedy early in the 
f ollm.; ing month - a t echnica l breach of t he l aw c an have dire 
consequenc es. 

HIS HONOR: I do not t hink ther e is any such t h ing a s a t ecQnica l 
breach of a code. 

MR. SULLIVAN: If .A.I.S. Limited had obeyed Gen eral Rule 3 it 
is highly probable tha t this tragedy would n ever have happened. 
In giving their evidenc e the Departmental inspectors, par ticularly 
in evidence in-chi ef, conc entra t ed on a fundamenta l engineering 
woakne ss. When I say n engineering11 I mean a mining engineering 
wenl~ess Ln the system of ventila tion in f orc e a t the time of 
the fire. 

Following t he ad j ournment I would like t o tak~our 
Horror t o p .172. 

(Short adjournment) 

MR. SULLIVAN: I wa s going t o r efer Your Honor t o Mr. Longworth 1 s 
evidence . He wa s t he first Departmenta l expert called , Your 
Honor will r ecollect. I want t o r efr esh the Inquiry's 
r ecollection of tha t evidence. At p.l74 he wa s being examined 
in-chief by Mr. lee and about two-thitds of t he vJay down the 
page there is a r emark by Yo\U' Honor about being shown the f ault 
on Your Honor 1 s inspection, then Mr. Lee said 11 Q. Have you 
satisfied yourself tha t you ar e familiar as t o t he pa ttern 
of the workings •••.••• up to the t op of the plan?A. Yes.u 
He wa s referring t o the large plan then. 11 Q. Will you tEll 
~if you can when you think the ventila tion system •••••••. tha t 
goes in just below the yellow?A. Ye s.u He wa s then back on 
t o the coloured plan. 11 Q. What is t he fundamenta l r eason why 
you say tha t this problem would develop ••••••••• increase a little ." 
This very stage , and Mr. Longworth c ould no t have known this a t 
t ha t time , vJhen Mr. Lake and Mr. Stewart give evidenc e , tha t the 
lamp was extinguished - and a t heor e tical examina tion of the 
situation by an experienc ed mining man l ed him t o anticipate that, 
and tha t evidenc e had not been given a t tha t stage , so it is n~ 
a question of hindsigh t. Then Mr . Lee said nQ. No . 2 is the 
d~ive that goes in just behind the yellow ••••••• this fills up 
WJ.th gas. 11 Mr. Longworth wa.s indica ting the slide down on the 
contours. 11His Honor: Q. Would you tur.n tha t ar ound so tha t 
we can see it ••••••• this area , 11 and he is r ef erring t o the 
3-heading system a t tha t stage , 11Would have t o go this way •.•• 
•••• without crossing tha t working area?A. Yes." So once t hey 
started in on No . 2, onc e they wen t t o the left of the 3-heading 
system, according t o Mr. Longwur th t hey had a problem. I do 
not r emind Your Honor of his qua lifica tions. Now? if Mr. Longworth 
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was capable of estimating tha t problem·, why should no t the 
people in control of mine s, employed by the Austra lian Iron 
& Steel, be capable of appr ecia ting it also? 

Then ME. Lee said, uWha t do you say the alte~native 
,.wuld be •••••••• must f all in the goaf. 11 Contours agam. 
11 If the roadway had been driven tha t way •••••.• on this siden­
this is r eversing the airway - nyou would have had a tendency 
for the air t o go a long here •••••••• wha t we have h ere.u 

HIS HONOR: To what wa s Mr. Longworth r ef erring when he said 7 
11 If the r oadway had been driven tha t way11 ? The transcript 
doe s n o t show. · 

MR. SULLIVAN: I just cannot r emember tha t, but the point I am 
anxi ous t o mE~e a t the moment is tha t the first witness to say 
tha t the airway should have been r eversed was Mr. Longworth. 

HIS HONOR: Yes. He a lso wa s the first witne ss t o suggest tha t 
the contour wa s such tha t ga se s would fall into the goaf. Tha t 
is what he means . when he said tha t? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes. Tha t is the o ther point I wish t o make on 
that, tha t an experienc ed mining man looking a t the se t-up knew 
wha t wa s going t o happen and he knew it would happen from No . 2. 

HIS HONOR: I suppo se , c ontour or not, one would say tha t ga ses 
like bottom ga s would t end t o f all? 

MR. SULLIVAN : They c ertainly go t o the lowe st level, but h er e 
of course the po sition is so much aggr eva t ed by the contours of 
t he working. 

HIS HONOR: Cer t ainly if ther e had been an inspection of the 
contours a s you say , t here should have been, then ga ses would 
f all ba ck into the goaf until they spilt out. That is 
perfectly clear, I must acc ept tha t? 

MR . SULLIVAN : Ye s, it is perfectly clear, and we do not wish 
t o quarrel with Mr. Sellers, but it is so obvious. 

Then at the bottom of p.l76 in t he evidenc e of 
Nr. Longworth, 11 Q. Wha t is the system a s you underst,and it 
fr om your experienc e •••••• I think mining a t Bulli Colliery is 
planned ahead .. " The only pQ1anning ahead of \vhich we have 
evidenc e is fr om Mr. Stone , and tha t is tha t he blocked out wha t 
wa s supposed t o happen on the l eft aft er they deve loped their 
3-heading system. It wa s not don e in the heading in the way 
it should have been, in our submission. Going fr om ther e to 
further evidenc e fr om Mr. Longworth, tha t is the first thing. 
Given these c ontours and the f all of the ga s into the goaf, 
given the other problems,the airway should have been r eversed. 
I know Your Honor ha s had some evidenc e tha t it might be a maj or 
undertaking. We have heard evidenc e fr om Mr. Puddl e tha t the 
contours made it difficult with wheeling and so on and the 
plac ing of t he l oc oo In our submission t ha t doe s not matter a t 
all. If the Australian Iron & Steel Company ha s t he r e sourc e s 
t o get out t he c oal, it has go t the r e sourc e s t o change the track. 

HiaflENOR: To put it ano ther way, if the dif ficulty of the 
s i tua tion is such tha t t hey know or ought t o know tha t o~dinary 
rules for saf e ty ar e being breached, then if it is n ot prepared 
t o undertake t he major undertaking, it must find a sa tisfactory 
alternative or c ease oper a tions in tha t ar ea? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes. May I say tha t, a s Your Honor has pr obably 
seen from the Coa l Board r eports, coal pr oduction is a bout 
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23 million tons in New South Waleso The r e sourc e s of the 
industry are capable of moving a wheeling road, a travelling 
track, from one position to another. We submit tha t cannot 
be an excuseo 

At pp.210-ll Mr. Parkinson was cross- examllllllg the 
witness and he said to him 7 I!Qo Is it most de sira ble to eliminat e 
any l.JUantitie s of gaS ooee oocoand this WaS What they did. 11 

Now there wer e tw o other things they could have done: stopped 
l.IJO rking in tha t place and go t the men out; and there wa s a 
third alternative which has appeared during the course of the 
ca se, but no t a desirable alterna tive~ Mr. Parkinson said to 
him, 11 Q. Didn 1 t you t ell me this morning that if you f ound 
conditions such a s those which you found on Wednesday •••••• only 
one way and tha t is t o neutralise or dilute gas a s it is given 
off. 11 Tha t is not hindsight.. He has considered the 
workings, and I emphasise that what Mr. Longworth c ould s ee , 
Mr. Stone c ould see , Mrc Puddle c ould see and~~. Wright c ould 
see. 

Then at Po224 I was a skin.g him s ome questions. 
Perhaps I should go back to pQ223~ I am examining him on 
lOth December 1965 which was a Friday and it was be f ore the 
t e st when they r e-put the bra ttic e backo Tha t is the secom 
test. It was early on in the Inquiry. We had only been 
going three days and we did not know what the r e sult of the 
simulated t ests were going t o be in those days. I said t o 
him, nQ. As t o the simulated c onditions ~n the day bef ore 
yesterday ...... dilute those ga ses?A., Ye so 1

' That is Mr. 
Longworth's evidenc e . Starting fr om the situation as it 
appeared on No., 2 on the Colliery plan, they wer e developing 
ventilation difficultie s of a type which must lead to an 
accumula tion of gas in the sumpc As they went on it got \vorse 
and worse and it r eached its climax, as Mr. Longworth said, 
when they got to t he extension of No., 2 cut-through. Bad a s 
it would have been, I submit they could still have got a 
sufficient dilution of gas, even with their bad system, by bringing 
sufficient air r ound in A he8ding t o dilute the ga s comin g fr om 
the goaf edge . They didn 1 t even l eave it, they deliber a t ely 
put up a stopping t o prevenb the only feeble improvisation tha t 
was in their hands fr om be ing carried out. Hindsight? They 
knew what they were doing, Your Honor. The que stion I a sked 
of Mr. Menzie s later, if they had not had the bra ttic e in the 
shunt gas WJuld have been brought down A heading and because of 
the bad syst em and the position of the intake and t he return 
it would have ineyitably m ve been carried past the working 
place which a t that stago wa s down the ext ension of No~ 2 cut­
through. '.Chey had auxiliary f ans, two in series, with a vent 
tube going down ~ o the f ace which wa s dr awing air in across t he 
miner. Jmy gas t ha t would have got in a t t he intersection of 
No. 2 cut-through and A headli~g rlight have been into the miner 
plac e - I mean down t o t he working pl ace, down the extension, 
if there wer e no brattic e ac r oss ther e . Indeed ther e is 
evidenc e tha t when they first started driving No . 2 cut-through 
they did pick up s ome gas in the workj_ng pl ace , Your Honor will 
r ecall. 

HIS HONOR: You say tha t -vmuld be bec a'.lse of the f ans? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Ye s, because of the f ans. This is an incredible 
improv~s~tinn from an enginee~ing point of view when on e looks 
a t it. 

HIS HONOR: It is not neces 2~rily incredible, I suppose? 

MR. SULLIV.hN: vJell , we believe, bec ause of wha t happened.. 
Perhaps it is not incredible . 
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HIS HONOR: Let us put it this way: it is extremely unwise. 
Then the que stion is: Would you expect such from these people? 
That is a question I have t o de t ermine. You urge upon me tha t 
these men are so experi enced and so competent that they could 
not possibly have made such a stupid decision? Are you putting 
it as high a s that? 

MR. SULLIVAN: They did do it. 

HIS HONOR: I qua lify tha t by saying they could not have made 
it, at any r a t e , without taking a tremendous risk. 

HR. SULLIVAN: Yes, they did, because they actually put this Upe 

HIS HONOR: Of course , Hr. Reynolds argue s against th2 t, that 
when it was in No. 3 cut-through it was not such a bad thing 
and the deputy or somebody decided mer ely to r epeat the pattern 
in this one. 

MR. SULLIVAN: No, Mr. Puddle agrees with everything, and may I 
say that the inference Your Honor could draw, with respect, is 
that t he se officials wer e not looking for gas, they were looking 
for coal. They ar e in t he busine ss. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Tha t has been conceded right fr om the beginning. 
It has always been conc eded tha t we ar e in the business of winning 
coal and t ha t my fri ends 1 clients ge t their wage s for winning coalo 
This must n ever be overlooked. 

MR. SULLIVAN: And they ha ve t o pay pre tty heavily for those 
wage s, some time s. Of c ourse , because they want ed t o get coal, 
they ar e keeping the ga s out of the miner place where the miner 
ha s a lamp, because onc e he picks up ga s on his lamp he stops 
the miner. The deputy 1.v ould ge t a "Plea se explain11 about why 
t he production had dropped off. It wa s much be tt er t o have it 
in the shunt and if possible keep it back with a brattic e stopping 
and hop e t 0 ge t out of the plac e befor e the l evel of the gas 
ge ts to a sufficient height to spill over. It is raiding~ 

HIS HONOR: This is fund amental t o your argument on this asp ect, 
Mr. Sulliva n: tha t i mplie s tha t they knew ther e wa s a pool of 
ga s which wa s rising? 

MR. SULLIVAN: They knew it 1.va s flowing over. 

HIS HONOR , They obviously knew there had been some ga s th~e 
at times, but wa s it such a problem -

MR. SULLIVAN: They must have known - they ar e mining men. 

HIS HONOR: They shotitl have known is one thing; that they 
must have known is anothar. 

MR. SULLIVA N: But they are mining men, Your Honor. They 
know that gas forms in goaves. They know it consists of 
carbon dioxide and methane. 

HIS HONOR: I suppose what you put is a feasible proposition 
if they knew the ga s was ther e but thought it was only black 
damp1 

MR. SULLIV~ N: What about Gene~al Rul~ 1, Your Honor? It 
does not matt er whe ther it is carbon dioxide or me thane. 

HIS HONOR: I am not talking a bout whether they were doing the 
right thing, but whe ther in those circumstances they knevJ there 
wa s a pool of ga s ther e and continued to take this risk. I say 
that proposition is one which becomes easy t o accept if they 
believed it was black damp and not me thane. 
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MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, it could be, but there is no reason to 
believe it is anything, Your Honor. They are mining men. 
Your Honor can of course take two views - that they did not 
know, and I would say to that, they ought to have. kr:wwn. If 
they did not know, Your Honor can report to the Mlnlster the 
company's employees' incompe tence or Your Honor c an report to 
the Minister that they are competent but they are more interested 
in coal than in gas. They are the only t~ alternatives. Tha t 
is why people have to have certifica tes, so that they do knew 
the se things and they do know what happens to goaf gases in 
contour areas. Mr. Longworth assessed the position. He was 
not the clearest of 1,.; itnesses because we had not be en going 
long enough t o get t he general idea, the lay people here. But 
Mr. Longworth was speaking then not in r elation to the reconstruction 
and a grea t deal of evidence had not been given. He w~ s just 
speaking on the r e sults of what he discovered while carrying out 
his statutory duties as an inspector, and he said that from 
No. 2 on, the only way they could have ventilated that place was 
by reversing the airway. Secondly he said tha t they just 
started to improvise, they had to do something so they did this, 
and tha t is a condellinatory sta te ment of the management, in our 
submission, 11 They had to do something so they did this,n and the 
management should have withdrawn the men from the place. That 
is the first Departmental inspector. 

The next one was ~r. Menzies and I would like to r ef er 
Your Honor to his evidende at p.293. Tha t is a lead~up but 
I will come to the real gist of the matter and it is at the 
bottom of p.295 where my l earned fri end Mr. Lee said in 
examination in-chief, "Q. Tell His Honor what view you hold as 
to the appropriateness of the ventilation system ••.•• in the 
light of the results of your alterations. 11 So first of all 
he says there is no method t hen he says, "Well, you might be 
able to experiment and perhaps you would find a me thod. 11 Well, 
vJha t do you do while you are experimenting? You withdraw the 
men. 11 Q. What is the position if the management tries a method 
and finds that it is unsuccessful ••••••• not unle ss they change 
direction of airflow, 11 so looking a t it as a mining man, he 
looked at the panel and he said tha t the r e is no method of 
ventilating it successfully unless you changed the direction of 
the airflow. Hr. Lee then sa id, '1Q. I will put it to you in 
a slightly different f a shion •••••.. the direction of airflow in 
the goaf is always away from the work face the work area. 11 

The first rule in the book? Your Honor. JQ. With t he ventilation 
syst em as \ve know, which dld exist ••••.• It was not f ea sible. 11 

That is with the thing as it was. They could not do anything 
except r everse the a irflow. 

He was asked , 11 Q. What would happen to any gas which 
might come from the goaf ••••••. I would say Yes, Your Honor. 11 

(P.297) So much for the hindsight. Would that be obvious 
to the people in charge? These experienced mining men say 
"Ye s." He was then asked about the bleeds and Mr. Lee said, 
"Q • .Again, forget about the ventilating system as we know 
it was •••.••• practice been appli ed in various coal mines in 
New South Wale s?A. Yes. 11 Tha t is a very general question. 
I think we would like to look at the vmrking systems before we 
could say it wa s comparable to this, as it wa s in f)urple panel. 
It goes on, 11 Q .. Assuming tha t the plan ••••••.• dealing with h ere? 
A.Yes, 11 and that is the spilling over of the goaf gase s. So 
even the bleeder sy st em which they actually did adopt for a 
while created difficulties and in our submission created 
difficulties so great after they had t aken out No. 10 pillar 
on t he coloured ske tch that they could not even go on with 
that because the moment they tried t o hole a bleeder through 
at the extension of No. 2 cut-through they were going to get 
~ rush of gas from the goaf wher e the bottom of the pool was 
1nto the working place. 
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HIS HONOR~ I put this for your consideration in this matter, 
Mr. Sullivan. I have already r eferred to somathing about 
ventilating wha t has been called t he goaf here by the system 
of a bleeder. I find it puzzling as to wha t were t he existing 
bleeders or headings that were there from which coal was b eing 
extracted. Could not they in themselves have been used as 
bleeders with some proper ventila tion system t o t ake gases from 
the goaf? In other words, it is true that when you extrac t 
a full panel you no longer have a bleeder, bu t there ar e plac e s 
here wher e no such full panel was extracted; why they could 
not have been used a s you work back from them. 

MR. SULLIVAN: I am afraid my position her e is tha t I would 
not have enough knowledge of mining practice to a ssist Your Honor 
there. I could not help you there. 

HIS HONOR: It may have something to do \vith t he fact tha t once 
you have extracted the coal and have a lready been extracting it, 
then you form none and ther efore you have no ac tual bleeder, 
but for example if you look a t No. 7 it strikes me t ha t so much 
coal is standing there and so little has been extrac t ed , and 
again tha t pillar formed be tween 2 and 1, tha t bleed ers could 
not have been left ther e and used for t~~ing the ga s from where 
it was beLng made a t t he time . Somebody may be a ble t o 
answer me . 

MR. SULLIVAN: As I say , my r e source s pr event me from being able 
to answer Your Hono r 1 s question. I r ely a good deal on wha t 
my l earned friend Mr. Reynolds ha s sa id a bout t he system 
because we know he ha s c ertain people behind him who are experts. 
But a t any r a t e , ther e is YRddoubt tha t whatever the inadequa t e 
bleeder system was bef ore :::-'"/J.n our submission it must have been 
inadequate when you ge t wha t happen ed a t No . 3 - they did not 
even use t ha t when they go t t o the ex t ension of No. 2 cut-through. 
They just let it drift ther e and tried to hold it back with a 
tight bra ttice . Anything tha t Hr. Menzie s t her eaft er suggests 
like r unning a bleeder ven tila tion system t h..rough to the brattic e 
up over the top of A heading, he says it v1ould have been an 
improvement but he do e s not r e sil e a t all frorn his position tha t 
it wouJdi have been must be tter than \.Jha t they did. When I 
cross-examined him later I asked him some questions about se tting 
up the panel in the same way a s it was when Mr. Parkinson, 
the check inspectmr, and I went in, and he sa id Ye s, you would 
get a low count a s Mr. Parkinson did on the day we were there 
but still it wa s not t he an swer though it was 100 per c ent be tter 
than stopping goaf ventilation altoge ther. 

That is Mr. Menzies' evidence . I have no doubt your 
Honor will look at t hese witnesse s L~ more de t ail when Your 
Honor c ome s t o prepare your r eport, t han I have done. I have 
just r eferred Your Honor to particular pa ssages . Then a t p .302 -
and this is why he do e s not like t he bl eeder heading very much -
he goes on t o say what I r ead t o Your Honor yesterday about t he 
consequences of breaking into the goaf with t ha t pool of gas 
t here. Tha t is when we were dealing with t he que stion of 
bleeder headings. At p .358 he deals \vi t h this pi ece of br a tt ice 
and a t t he top of t ha t page he points out, \v here I sa id t o him, 
"Q. So we had t he position tha t when t he ex t r ac tion wa s r eaching 
the stage \vhich is shmvn on this pl an •••••••• i f me thane t o an 
: x t ent gr ea t er than 1. 2511 

- and I was wrong ther e , as long a s 
lnflammable ga s app ears a t t he working pl ace in any quantity -
nproduction would have had t o be stopped •••••• not n ecessarily." 
So there we ar e ; you either put up t he brs ttic e t o keep it out 
of the working pl ace and hope it doe s not become too much in 
t he shunt, or you ven tila t e the edge of t he goaf and you might 
ge t some inflammable gas in the working pl ace and you do not 
ge t any coal. It is not hindsight. 
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HIS HONOR: Tha t is as suming you know Jt is inflammable gaso 
What is the position if nox.ious gas j.s com]..ng into thu working 
place? Do you h a v e to stop? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Ye s , It i s a breach of Gen eral Rule 1 which 
says you have got to introduce sufficient air t o the working 
place. 

HIS HONOR~ You have to ,s1:op vml:k if any inflammable gas 
app ~ars near the TtJorking p l ace7 what about noxious gas, in 
any concentration or pr ) portion? 

MR. SULLIVA N: Noxious gas is the sameG If noxious gas 
appears, the rule is laid down by General Rule 1 tha t you 
have to pass sufficient air into the place to dilut e ito The 
Act says 11Air from a purer source.c ooeonl!o According to 
Mr. Menzies 'l tha t ts the position wi~h the bra ttice. 

The next Departmenta_ witness was Hr., Muir and from 
what he said at ppo383-4 it ~-s obvious tha t he would not have 
worked the sect:ion if i;h e a i rwc:y had not been reversed. He 
gave evidence on 16th Dec embc~r ~ 196r;·, ..'lt the ve ry last question 
on Po382 he was asked by Mr" Lee, uqo Does the system of 
ventila tion in 8 Righ t as at 9 th No vember ac c ord with the 
scheme which Mt'., Ryan u.ncl y cur s elf' d:Lscu .~ s ad and which he 
proposed for your c onsider a t·i_on u11 a t least three occasions 
tha t you hav e mentioned?.A~ Noo n {3 o mEch for any attempt to 
say it wa s a ~onstru~tlon of a system of bleeders in the same 
way as in t he other: p2r..e l ., nq 3 :'ie probo..bly know the answer 
by now but you had 1Je t ter cell us , ,,.., ... If tha t ls the intentlon 
then I would r eve r se the a ir o ' H:- ~ Mui~~ first s a ys 1 "As far as 
I am conc erned, with the panel a s it v.ms , :. ··, the thre e 
gentlemen in charge uf the work~ng of th~panel for the 
Austra lian Iron & S ~:eel were \vork] ng ~ - t ~ I would not work it 
at all.,t: P...n.d h e i3 nut deal:i.ng -·~·;=i_ {;h roof safet;y because 
r oof safe ty had not been meEtionedc He sai.d 1 tti would not 
work it at all? 1 and when a.~kod Hi f you \vere forced to work 
it 11 - pre suma bly :i..f the Depal'tr,K~rt descen ded on hj_m and under 
s. 53(B) (b) said ;,You have go t t o \·mrk j_\}1 ~ he would only have 

wrked it if he had reve:.:.- s sd t he aLr:" c, 

HIS HONOR; Which h e said '.JOuld be a consi.derable nuisanCJe at 
the time, but not a l arge opera tion" 

MR. SULLIVAN: 
remind you of 
fiddling .iobs 
to C heading ., 

This c ompany has r~sources~ Your Honor, and I 
tha t when it comes to puttjng one of the se 
through l "" k e changl.ng the i.-/heeling road from B 

Coming further "I!J i th H1"'" Muir r 3 evidence, he again 
adverts to the po sition a t PPc 389-90o I will not read this 
to Your Honor but it io pa~~ of wha t I a sked him, and he also 
said it wa s a rule of min:Lng to venti:J_ate the goaf areas .. 
There are some except ~ ~ns t o tha t which we ac cept from Mro 
Sellers, that .if i .t l s LJke l ·:/ to igr:~ ~e :::pontaneously or 
something lLLce tha t, you do not do it o But a s a general rule, 
Mr. Muir agrees tha t y ou v enti.l a'Le t he goaf edge. But of 
course the point about j. t l . that before you do any of those 
things you make sure tha t you get an adequa te supply of air 
to dilute the r..ox:L.ous and. o t her gases and render them harmless .. 

Our sutjniss1o.n to "7ou:·· Hono -~ on that Departmental 
evidence is thi s o 1'he evidence gi·'len by those men does not 
rely,. ins?fa~ as this is a. l?atter of mining engineering 2 on 
any hl.D.dslghco Of course ·chey knew the re had been a flre 
there but the ques~. ~l_on of ·,Jhether there was or vJas not a fire 
did not affe c t ~he fQc~ that they were t e ll~ng the Court what 
were the rules of ven".:;i.J. a cing a 1_1lac -Jo Tha t is c he point. 
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They are given a panel to ventila t e and, looking a t it, they 
all say, uwell, I would not haV() worked it." Mr. Menzies 
said, nr would have withdrawn the men, 11 Mr. Muir sa id, "I would 
not work it,'' and then "but if I wer e forc ed t o work it I would 
reverse the air,'1 but at first he s a id he would not work it. 
Hr. Longworth said virtually the same thing and tha t do e s not 
depend on hindsight bec ause they wer e sp eaking whether there 
had been a fir e or not. If they had been brought down and 
shown the panel a t tha t sta ge they would have said No, and the 
sa me goe s for the bleeder system whic h they did not even carry 
out. It wa s not the perfect answ er either. You can see wha t 
happened her e on their bleeder system. If I may go over to 
the coloured pl an , they got to t he stage with their so-called 
bleeder system tha t they had a number of ga s sumps tha t spilled 
over at t he intersection of 3 cut-through and A heading t o such 
an extent tha t they had t o crea t e a bigger sump t o t ake them 
back aga in. They were then confronted with the position tha t 
if they tried to put a bleeder heading in below tha t a t No. 13 
t hey wer e going t o hole into the bo ttom of t ha t ga s and the 
grade being against the ga s c oming up in No . 13 it wa s going to 
a ccumula t e down the bottom a ga in. Tha t is why Mr. Muir and 
Mr. Henzie s say it should no t he. ve been worked . They must 
run into difficultie s with t ha t situa tion. 

The only a lterna tives which have emerged from the se 
experi enced men, if it wa s intended to work t o the left of A 
h~ading, the a irway should have been r eversed t o take t he goaf 
ga ses away . If t he r eversa l could not have been eff ected the 
work in the section should have been strpped. Then if you 
1ver e f orced t o wor k the panel - and you would ha ve t o have 
presumably in the c a se of Mr. Muir a lot more forc e exerted on 
you to work it not only with the a irway not r eversed but without 
the bleeder heodings - the bra ttic e in A heading was the 
complete n ega tion of well known mining prac tic e of vent i lating 
the goaf. The se f actors pr oduc ed the inadequat e ventila tion 
which aga in pr oduc ed t he fir e . 

Thms must surely be deduced, tha t de spite what 
Mr. Menzie s says a bout not interferring 1.11ith c olliery manage­
ment, if it appears t o Your Honor aft er examining the evidence 
of the se Depa rtmental experts, n ot given the hindsight but on 
insp ecting t he panel, tha t those who ar e developing panels like 
this are either too inc ompe t ent or h eedless to carry out proper 
mining practice. If they break every rule in the book there 
should be a r ecommenda tion from Your Honor tha t before they 
make any hew section they should no tify the Departmental inspector, 
provide him with plans and t ell him wha t they ar e going t o do. 
If they are going t o break every rule in t he book a s they did 
her e , ther e is no a ltern ative r ecommenda tion Your Honor can make . 
If Your Honor doe s no t think it is n ec e ssary to do it in the 
case of solid \oJork, then I submit Your Honor ought t o r ecommend 
it should be done in t he c a seof pillar extraction. And of 
course it certainly should be don e in the c a s e of introd~ ing 
auxiliary ventila tion and tha t do e s not on l y include fans but 
things like tha t el ephant's trunk, a s it ha s been c alled. It 
not only did not do 1\/ha t they hoped it would do but it must 
inevitably have filled up with ga s and ~oJhilst it was not 
inflammable , it burnt a s long a s t he r e wa s fl ame in its vicinity. 
It should no t be used in tha t way. Improvisa tions of tha t 
na ture just should nd be used without the permission of the 
Department. 

If wha t my l earned fri end Mr. Reynolds said to 
Your Honor wa s right~ tha t Your Honor is carrying out an 
extension only of the Departmenta l inspector's activitie s a s an 
administra tive tribunal with just slightly mor e powers than the 
Departmenta l inspectors, you have go t those findings on their 
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investiga tion and it is a solid body of evidenc e that t his 
should not have been worked. 

HIS HONOR : I need not trouble you on the question of whe ther 
I only have the power s of a mining inspector • . I am of the firm 
opinion that I act a s any Judge does in determining que stions 
of fact; tha t I make a r eport t o the Minister stating what I 
f ind, and also my observations. 

MR. SULLIVru~: I am grateful t o Your Honor for informing me 
of tha t. 

(Luncheon ad journment) 

MR. SULLIVAN : I am going t o deal with the position in this 
disaster of the colliery manager. His duties, of course, are 
l a id d own in the broadest t erms by the sixth schedule of the 
Act and the very breadth of the dutie s which are assigned t o 
him by the schedule shows he is ther e for the purpose of 
exercising gener al supervision over everything tha t happens in 
the c olliery. I r efer to p.l7l, par a . 1, under the heading 
of 11 Manager 11 (read). 

A sugges tion wa s made by one vJitness tha t the t erm 
under-manager mean t t he underground manager. The manager of 
n colliery by virtue of the sta tute c anno t say 11my dutie s cease 
a t the pit t op11 • The schedule says he shall have full 
charge and control over all those empl oyed and of all operations 
in t he mine so he c annot say '1I am the manage r and the under-
manager is r eally the underground manager 11

• He must t ake 
responsibility fo r all operations anywhere in tha t mine and to 
ensure the obliga tions are carried out, including general rule 1. 

The manager in thi s c a se is Mr. Dennis Stone . He 
holds a first cla ss certifica t e under the Coal Mines Regulation 
Act and he became manager of t his colliery within the y ear in 
which t he tragedy occurred. He wa s appointed in Februa ry 1965 
and had no previous experienc e in the Bulli pit nor, indeed, 
of any mine working the Bulli Seam nor th of Wollongong on this 
side of the escarpment. He had experi enc e of the Appin 
Colliery and t ha t is of some importanc e beeause we know from 
evidence now t hat the Appin colliery has me t hanome t ers in c ommon 
use and , indeed, t he evidenc e is tha t t hey ar e there c arried by 
deputies. He had been t he ho lder of a manager's certific a t e 

sinc e 1961 and indeed his qualifications, his theoretical 
qualifica tions a t any r a t e , a r e much the same as the Mine 
Inspectors who wer e able t o a s se ss t he po sition in tha t panel 
in the way in which they did and which they gave in their 
evidenc e . He holds his po sition by virtue of his qualifica tions 
and experience and where it c ome s t o a mining difficulty and 
he and the men w1.der him crea te an tmsafe situR.tion, he c annot 
come in our submission t o this tribuna l and say 11 I did no t know 11 • 

When Mr. Ston e took over t he management the undor 
manager wa s Mr. J ack Puddle. Mr. Puddle had been in the 
colliery sinc e 1957, a t this particular colli ery, and indeed 
had been under m~~ager sL~ce 1959. Having r egard t o the size 
of the colli ery and the shortne ss of his experience in the 
colliery it i s doubtle ss true tha t Mr. Stone l eaned rather 
heavily on Hr. Puddle . This is an inferenc e thnt could easily 
be drawn and perhap s t ended in our submission t o l eave Mr. 
Puddle with t oo much discretion. Ho-vrever, Mr. Stone does not 
for one moment sugge st ru1ywher e in his evidenc e tha t he should 
not accep t his full sta tutory r e sponsibilitie s in this case . 
In the Inquiry here he elec t ed, apparently on advic e , t o give 
his evidenc e in-chief by way of statement pr epar ed by the 
company's ~olicitor. 
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HIS HONOR: Tha t wa s t he decision of counsel af~ er speaking to 
me . I think the decision i·lla s partly mine . 

MR. SULLIVAN: Is tha t so , Your Horror. At any rat e in tha t 
sta t ement which he put befor e the Court he says he wa s 
r e sponsible f or extending thG working s to the l eft of A heading. 
He take s full r e sponsibility f or tha t and he says he did tha t 
by blocking out the workings but he says nowher e did he c onsid~r 
the que stion of ventila ting the se n ew workings so a s f ar a s the 
overall plan of ventila tion of these workings t o the l eft of 
A heading WAS conc erned ther e is n o evidence bef or e us tha t when 
he blocked out t he workings he also l a id down a system of 
ventila tion. 

He l a st visit ed sect i on 8 Right bef or e the f ire on 
3rd November 1965 and in his sta t ement he did not mention ho 
wa s with Mr. Puddle , hovJGver it c ame Dut in evidenc e in cross­
examination of both Mr. Stone and Hr. Puddle tha t they were in 
f act t oge ther on tha t occa sion. At tha t stage A heading wa s 
stopped-off with the bra ttic e . 

MR. REYNOLDS: I n his sta t ement he sa id he i.Ja s with Mr. Puddle. 
"Whan I arrived the under manager ......... . 

MR. SULLIVAN: Tha t is not the way it c ome s out later. He wa s 
ther e with Mr . Puddle - not tha t Mr. Puddle wa s just l eaving. 
If a f alse i mpr e ssion is crea t ed I am n ot r e sponsible f or it. 
At this s t age A heading wa s stopped-off with the bra ttice am 
wha t ha s been r ef erred t o a s the bleeder tube wa s in op er a tion 
and despite t he fact tha t ther e wa s a bleeder tube in the shunt 
it wa s stopped- off with a tight bra ttic e screen and quit e ne~ 
to the day of his visit he seems t o have shown no curiosity on 
the evidenc e as t o why it wa s ther e , none a t all. He s ays he 
l ook ed a t t he ventila tion and he l eft t he s ection. In his 
sta t ement he said tha t t he s i tua tion i n 8 Right n ec essitn t ed a 
compr omise be t~Je en roof safe ty and ventila tion. If Y ur Honor 
turns t o the Gen eral Rule s dealing with each of those f a ctors 
t he main RultJ C. oaling with r oof saf e ty is Rule 22 and, at p.l07 
it say s - (Read). How do you c ompromise with tha t? We go 
t o Gen er al Rule 1 and it says- (read). How d o you compromi se 
,..,ith tha t? As soon as any parson '\!Jith any au thority in a mine 
starts t o compromise with the absolute saf e ty rule s which ar e 
l a id down by s.54 of the Act it means they ar e n o t c arryin g out 
one or the other. You do no t compromise with the s.54 rule s. 

I n his sta t ement he sa id furth er tha t Mr. Puddl e , 
without c onsulting him, had changed the system of working l a id 
down by him, t ha t is, the bleeder heading, f or wha t use they 
wer e . He say s this a lso a t p.623 and a t t he bo ttom of p.622 ? 
I think t his is Mr. Lee a sking the qu e stions, 11 Q. You say ther e 
wa s a r ea son why ••••••• still in good condition". Your Horror 
said, "You say you had no problems •••••••. n. He did n o t 
answer tha t que stion, he said, 11Well, when I say n o problems 
••••••. handle the situa tion 11

• It goe s on "Q. But Mr. Puddl e 
?hanged the system? ••••••.• it would no t be ef f ective aga in". 
He is r e sponsible for everything tha t goe s on in the mine and 
the observanc e of the r egula tions including General Rule 1. 
Then Hr. Lee o. sked him , a t the t op of p.62lt, 11 Q. Now you say 
tha t simply t o keep c ondition s ••••• & • I think \ll e kn ew wha t we 
wer e doingu. He was looking a t the situa tion . Ther e is no 
question her e of this n o t being done deliber a t e ly: UI think 
we kn ew wha t 1ve wore doingu. And, furtm r dmm, "Q. Le t us 
ge t it clear ••••••••• proc edure of ven tila tion adopt ed?A. No . 11 

Also , p.624 show s without any doubt tha t h e kn ew t he s e t up 
he looked a t it and it wa s a deliber a t e choic e - 11 I think ~e 
knew ...,,1ha t we wcr o doi n g11

• He knew about t he pr e senc e of noxious 
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ga ses and he r eveals tha t Mr. Puddle knew about t hem and he 
said tha t all the deputies had r eported noxi ous gases. Whor e 
did he think the ga ses were coming from? Whor e did he think 
they had gone t o? Tha t is the point. Ho knew whore they 
had gone t o , he knew when Mr. Puddle decided t o t ake out those 
pillars he i.J a s making a sump f or t hem t o go ba ck in to and he 
adopted n o substit ut e procedure for the dispensing with the 
bleed tube or t he bleeder heading, f or wha t t hey we r e worth. 
At p.627 again, and I think my l earned fri end Mr. Lee is a skL~g 
the que stion, this wa s the ext ent of his c onsider a tion of 
ventilation pr oblems a t this stage : "Q. When you c onsidered the 
ventilation se t-up ••••••• with gas coming from the goaf?" 
He doesn't dispute that but he sa id, •ti saw this set-up on 
the 3rd •••••• tha t things wer e good". Perhaps tha t might be 
r egarded as being a sufficient discharge of his duty qua 
ventilation under the Coal Mines Regulation Act a s the 
certifica t ed manag8r appointed by the c omp&~y t o make sure the 
provisions of the Coal Mine s Regula tion Act wer e observed, 
perhaps tha t may have been r egarded a s sufficient compliance 
with the pr ovision but in our submission it is not, it is an 
abroga tion of authority. I would like t o t ake Your Honor to 
p.689. I wa s a sk ing him some que stions t hen and a bout f our 
que stions down fr om the top of the page I said, 11You wer e awar e 
of the se t-up in 8 Right •••••• 11 • I t hen a sked him a bout Mr. 
Menzies 1 sta t ement tha t the sourc e of the me thane was the goa f. 
I r ef erred hi m t o previous evidenc e a t the bottom of p.697, 
the very l a st l ong que stion when I r ead some of his ov1n evidence 
t o h im: non p.617 of the transcript you sa id ••••..•• we knew 
the goaf had gas in it, tha t is vJha t I mean.n How c ould they 
no t know? They hnd reports of n oxious ga s which is heavier 
than a ir fr om every deputy, from Mr. Puddle and everybody else 
who inspected. Noxious ga s is heavie r than air ther efor e the 
goaf must have had ga s in it. Then I asked him a bout the 
question of why he used B h eading a s a shunt and apparently it 
is near er t o t he working pl a c e . 

In t he f ollowing pages which I will not read in any 
detail we are a sking him a bout the v entilation set-up gen erally 
with t he bra ttice across. Then, about two-thirds of the way 
down the page I sa id to him, "The main o bj ec t of the mine 
ventilation •••••• I c anno t say tha t.·" He on ly had t o look a t 
it. Then I go t hr ough the headings ther e . Then Your Honor 
a t p .700 a t the bottom said , "You were a sked is it c ontrary t o 
mining practice ••••• ". You see , he had been hedging somewha t 
in t he e vidence beforehand, if I may say so with r e sp ect. 
11 Is it c on trary t o mining practice •••••. 11

• How c ould he think 
so? "You t ell me how it wa s ventila t ed if you had a bit of 
brattice •••••• edge of the goaf?.A. Ye s". There we r e o ther 
que stions Your Honor a sked which probably Your Honor will look 
a t at a later time . 

The bleed tube was dealt with at p.702, the first 
que stion fro m the t op : 11 I have sugge sted to you if you wer e 
ventilating ••••• no, it din not cause me any c onc ern." Well 
there are r e sponsibilitie s on him and when Your Honor is enquiring 
into ~~ accident which c aused l o ss of l ife t o the extent this 
one did can the manager, in effect, come befor e you and say, 
uoh well Stewart and Puddle t old me ilt was all right. Ye s, 
the bleed tube c ould have indica t ed t he pr e senc e of noxious or 
inflammable ga s in the ~hunt. I s a1.v the position it wa s in 
up against the bra ttice. Yes, I knew it wa. s noxious gas there 
and knew ther e wa s n oxious ga s in t he goaf. I don 't worry 
a~out it 11

• Tha t is wha t it amounts t o. Tl;le same applies to 
h1s sta ted ignor anc e of t his file. He t ook over the c olliery 
in February I think it wa s, a s manager, and at p.703 h e wa s 
asked, "When you t ook ove r the managoment •••••. at tha t stage". 
It doesn't seem t o be in accordance with the f acts. Mr. Ryan s eems 
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to have consult ed the Department extensively judging fr om 
Mr. Muir 1 s file. I said (p.70L~) "Wa s tha t your view? •••••• 
••• everything seemed t o be in order a s f ar a s t hat wa s c onc c~ rn ed 11 • 
Is that the limit of the manager's r e sp onsibility when he is 
charged with the duty of see ing tha t everybody in the mine 
carries out the provisions of the Co a l Mines Regulations 
including Rule 3. I am putting this not in criticism of 
Mr. Ston e , I am putting it t o show tha t the l axity which 
r e sulted in the situat ion in tha t heading both as t o ventilation 
and c ompromise is r efl ected right up t o top management in this 
c a se. He seems t o seek t o evade r e sponsibility. Some of it 
rests upon him, in our submission and he seek s t o evade it by 
s aying "Well, I showed no euriosity a bout anyt hing, th erefor e 
I didntt know." When Your Horro r r eports on t ha t tha t is, in 
our submission, the contribution of the manager t o this inciden t 
by this a stounding l ack of curiosity as t o wha t wa s go ing on 
in his own pit - it wa s a heavily contributing f act or. 

We move briefly t o the r e sponsibility of the under 
manager in this case and I do no t move t o the responsibilities 
of the under manager to frg e the manager fr om his r e sponsibility. 
Mr. Puddle holds a second cla ss certificate of c ompe t ency. 
He knows this pit thor oughly. He has been und or m8nager ther e 
since 1959. However 1 his certific a t e of comp e t ency does n ot, 
in our submission, unless in the absence of the manager entitle 
him t o make decisions and take fr om t he hard of the manager 
decisions which ar e the pr ovinc e of the manager. He is another 
co mp romiser between ro of saf e ty and ventila tion. He doesn't 
explain how he c ompr omised be tw een tho se two general rules but 
he again, in his prepared sta t ement, c ompr omised. He gave the 
order of extraction on which I r elied yesterday at p~721. He 
says on tha t page when dealing with the driving of the ext ension 
t o rro . 3 heading - I am sorry - I canno t find the pa ssage I 
r equir e . It doe s seem he definit ely was the one when the ga s 
had spilled over in the intersection of 3 cut-thr ough arrl 9 
heading who decided t o try t o hold it back by putting up the 
bra ttic e. It wa s he who decided t o t ake out pillars 10 and 
11 and thus form a sump befor e driving the extension of No. 2 
cut-through. He seems t o b e definit ely the one. As f ar a s 
his knowledge of the presenc e of gas wa s conc erned , apart fr om 
wha t the manage r said, tha t he f ound it~ and the deputie s and 
anybody who had don e any t e sting, he admits t o knowledge of 
ga s a t p.731. Your Honor said t o him, 11 Tell me why •••••• behind 
the screen. 11 So, ther e is no question a bout him not having 
knowledge of wha t was behind the screen. Then Mr. Lee sa id 
t o him, a t p.7321 11 I t ake it fr om \AJha t you have just sa id ••• 
••••• tha t could happen, yes.u Then Your Honor, a t p.(33 
"You thought you wer e dealing with n oxious gas •••••• out of 
the shunt". I wa s infor med by my l earned junior that when 
Mr. Lee wa s addr es sing Your Honor had s ome doubt a s t o whe ther 
t her e wa s evidenc e a s t o why they put the screen up. Ther e is 
plenty of evidenc e fr om the man who put it up. 

HIS HONOR: I do not think I put tha t. 

MR~ SULLIVAN: Your Honor may have been misreport ed. Ther e is 
n o doubt about it, in our submission, there is ample evidence 
from the man who is r e sponsiblo f or putting it up. Incidentally, 
sp eaking of it a s t o mining practice Mr. Lee 's question on 
the n ext page is interesting, 11 This is the first time in the 
whole of the development •••••• 11 • If he is dealing with 
No. 2 tha t c ertainly is not so bec ause they were repeating the 
same se t up fr om 3. In r elation t o his know l edge of his 
r e sponsibilitie s at p.739 this question wa s put t o him, "You 
correct me if I am wrong but is not this tho po sition ••••••• hcd 
t o be k ept clear". Tha t was fully underst ood by all the peoplo 
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in the place. So , he knew wha t he was doing- they knew \rJha t 
t hey wer e doin g - he kne"J wha t he was doing. He knew wha t hi s 
r e sponsibilitie s wer e also when Mr . Parkinson said t o him a t 
p.766, "Then I asked what happened t o any accumula tion •••••• j oining 
up with t he main currentn. Your Hon or then sa i d nThe ar ea 
behind the stopping back t o the go af edge •••••• it wa s no t being 
ventila t ed a t all •••••• t hr ough t here , or ga s". "It wa s no t 
being ven tila t ed •••••• that is correct, it wa s no t 0

• I will 
now t ake Y ur Honor t o p.828 . He sa i d in his evidence in-chief 
tha t they Bad never de t ec t ed inflamma ble gas in t his panel. 
I said , nyou have t ol d us on a number of occ a sions •••••• u. 
I produc ed the r eports and sa id "5th October 1965 wa s a time when 
p illars wer e be ing extr acted". He sa id, 11 Ye s. 11 I showed him 
the r eport and go t t he acknowledgmen t of hi s c ounter-signa ture. 
I showed him t he r eport and go t him t o identify his signa ture 
again in r el a tion t o 6th Oct ober and t he re wa s again the r eport 
of inflammable gas . I n r elation t o ll.~th October he t ook my 
word f or it a s t o inflammable gas . Then t here wa s a r eport 
which I t hought wa s a s t o inflammable ga s but Mr. Reynol d s wa s 
good enough t o correc t me . On 4th No vember 1965 t here wa s 
a r eport of noxious ga s. Ther e wer e r eports of inflammable 
ga s c ount er-signed by Mr. Puddle prior t o t hi s fi r e . At pp.841 
t o 843, and I am only s el ecting things more or l e ss a t r andom 
as t o demonstra t e t he a ttitude of t he under manager, p. 841 deals 
with the bleeder heading and is introductory t o wha t app ears a t 
p . 843. At t he t op of the page I sa id, "Wha t if the crea tion 
of t he bleeder heading •••••• it did have s ome advant age s. 11 

The mos t mysteriou s t hing in t his ca se , and I no tic ed in the 
Press r eports Your Honor sta t ed you had t he f ee ling t he whol e 
story had no t be2n t old - I have had it c onfirmed tha t Your Hon or 
sa id tha t - but there is the que stion of holing int o the goaf. 
First of all it wa s obvious if t hey wer e go ing t o crea t e wha t 
t hey c alled a bleeder heading by t ho driving of two cut-through 
into the goaf t hey wer e go ing t o drive into the bottom of the 
po ol of ga s. Tha t is c omp l e t e ly obvious. The r e sults of tha t 
wer e a t l ea st hi ghly unc ertain as fa r a s t he miner cr ew wa s 
conc erned. Even if you t hink Mr. Menzie s put it perhaps 
extr emely, a t l ea st t hey were unc ertain. Now , Mr. Puddle 
on his own evidenc e , wa s last in t ha t section when he wa s t her e 
with Mr. Stone on 3rd November and se t up t hi s syst em of the 
ventila tion tube . On t he other hand Mr. Wright wa s t he re every 
day and his designa tion ha s been given a s a ssistant under manager. 
I t hink it wa s Mr . Cambourn said he did not ho l e int o the goaf 
because he thought t hat he had missed the goaf. It was a t 
the end of t he shift and appar en tly Mr. Wr i gh t wa s c ommunica t ed 
with and Mr . Wright said, "Don't ho l e int o t he goaf, bring t he 
ma~hine t o the n ext po sition, mo ve t h e machine t o the n ext lift 
and t ake your l ift fr om t hore. 11 Your Honor will be a sse ssing 
Mr. Cambourn on demeanour, bearing i n mind the various an sw ers 
he has given t o questions here and his evidenc e a s a whole. 
Do you t hink , and it will be open t o Your Honor t o t hink about 
this, having r egard t o the opinion you f or m a s t o the ver acity 
of t he witness, and I am not urging on e view on Your Honor or 
the other, but will Your Honor thi nk when Your Hon or c ome s t o 
prepa r e t he r eport t ha t t her e was any such mi stake ? May it 
n o t be , and the infer ence is, of c ourse , t hat everybody in 
harge of tha t pane l, including Mr. Cambourn, knew exactly wha t 
might happen if t hey ho l ed into the goaf bec0use it was aft er 
that tha t the machine was brough t back. The goaf wa s no t holed 
even though ther e wa s a surveyor's peg and a T-piec e splitting 
the pillar into the goaf in t he middle . Remembering t ha t 
Mr. Puddle wa s last in t he pane l early·in November and it wa s 
decided no t t o hole but t o split from end t o end, may it not 
be tha t everybody wa s well aware of the situation there and 
Your Honor is no t ge tting the who l e of the story. 
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HIS HONOR: I wonder whether the oper a tion of holing into the 
goaf would in some way come t o the know l edge of the men who 
were working thor e , for exampl e , the miner driver. 

MR. SULLIVAN: We will never know tha t, Your Hono r, he is dead . 

HIS HONOR: The o ther men who were working on the shift arentt 
dead. 

MR. SULLIVAN : Your Honor is speaking about the previous shift? 

HIS HONOR~ Yeso 

MR. SULLIVAN~ I am sorry~ I am confus ed. 

HIS HONOR: It has not been made clear t o me whether the men 
operating the shift know t o some ext ent wha t is going on: 
the miner driver would know that if he keeps on going in a 
certain direction some thing will happeno I have n o t heard 
any evidence about what the men ·understood was going to 
happen. 

MR. SULLIVAN: The tr o"uble is that under t he Coal .Mines 
Regulation Act the min e'r take s his orders first of all from 
the deputy and the deputy ~akes them from t he under manager 
nnd the miner t akes them fr om everybody r ound the place. 

HIS HONOR~ But from a practical point of view am I t o believe 
tha t the men ar e automatons and do not a sk que stions and 
know nothing about what is happening until they nr e t old? 
I do not mean t hat the mj~er driver knows what the whole plan 
of the development is going t o be~ but would he know where the 
next lift is going to be taken? He may not, but a t l east 
when a driver is t o hole in the direc t i on of the goaf and he 
knows that t he provious shift has gone in one direction and 
it has been taken back and put in ano ther direction, surely 
he must start to ask questions hi mself? 

MR. SULLIVAN~ That is why we called certain evidence. It 
wa s fr om three men who had made complaints abou t dusty conditions. 

HIS HON OR : But this has nothing t o do with a complaint. We 
are a ssuming by this that the only peop l e who knew 1.'-lhat wa s 
in t ended \vere the managemen t and the deputies, and I mean 
immediately intendedc I do n o t mean two or three shifts later; 
what was intended in a particular shif t o 

MR. SULLIV.PJ~· : They have very llt tle i dea . They ar e worl{ing 
in the dark down therec They are working on a miner. The 
situa tion is tha t the deputy se ts the c ont inuous miner on the 
line and the miner dr iver drives it and the shuttle oar driver 
brings down his shuttlo car, fills it and then shift men timber. 
You have go t t o do what you are told, Your Honor, otherwise 
you are sent out o I do not fol l ow t he inference t o be drawn 
from -what Your Honor says ., Ar e they t o take control of the 
operations - is Your Honor suggest!ng tha t? 

HIS HONOR: No, bu t one would have thought if the r e had be en 
any c ontrary intention t o tha t expressed by the deputies and 
the management here, without any sin.ister reason, for example 
the machine being pulled out of posi tion and being started again, 
ther e would have been some evidence from the men available as 
t o what was said or doneo You say t he miners wo~k in the dark? 

MR. SULLIV.AN: But the position is this, is it not: . evidence 
was called early on t o say that ~ertain.mon in the minor crew 
were given instr uction s that if they holed the goaf they were 
to immediately withdraw the machine and go.. Your Honor will 
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recollect that, s o that there is n o doubt; about .. t, th . .:;y wero 
told at one stage t ha t they were going t o hole into the goafs 
But what I am putting t o Your Honor t s that even thou gh they 
might hav~ thought t hey were going. t o ho:J into the . goai~ the 
fact remaJ..n s 7 that by an alleged ml c; take on the part. of the 
deputy \vho lays dO\>Jn the l:~n.e s of the miL.er driver? thoy dj d 
not hole into the goaf and there wa s then consultation between 
Mr~ Eage r and others as t o what they do ncxtu 

HIS HONOR. Yesu It has been saJ.d by M~:o !~ent 9 f or examp~e~ 
having gone so fa r someone realised it was exceed ing the length 
of c a ble tha t was being used ,, He rea::i_isod that and thought 
he might have made a mistake " Jt sta:r'i.;ed to run out of cableu 
Sure ly ther e must be some evidence available as to some conversa~ 
tion about the cable between t he men employed in the place? 
Doe s the deputy look at t hing s make a men t a l note that he ic 
running out of cable~ rush ~ o a telephone and say? ~1 Wha t do I 
d o n ow ?" Surely he says s omething to ·the men \Jork1ng on th G 

minar, such a s 11 Are you runni ng ou~ of cable? Is ther e s ome 
mistake somewher e?1

: 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ No 9 it occurred in the mj.ddle of the sh ift.. A ·:~ 
p.866 the r e is a quest~on in the middle of the page, ~nd this 
is Mro Cambourn being ques tioned by Yo-..:Lr Honor ~ uwe h ave been 
told here tha t this :repr esented two attempts to hole j_nt:.o the 
goaf, the first of t hem; the fur~heJt of these drive s r Gsul ted 
ln. the wl· '-hdr ·· 1 o·"' th" Yn-ire-.... ., ,~ eJJ ~-hem +-o out -: ~- rack V a \ l. ..l V lll-L.J.J. -- 0 .J c 0 a 0 (, .:.. - ~ l ) l. V ~ ~ .... ".J ...., 

on another li:fto Y 11 It is r..ot as ·Lhough there was a sudden 
withdrmval of a machine.. Tha t refGr ~~ +.:o a telephone 
conversation after '·he scop(' 

HIS HONOR : But the s itua)~., __ cn he \1las :r.epor·L;i.ng must have 
occurred during ~he course of the shif1;o I t s tr j_ko s me 7 if 
you are going to r ely on this aJ:gument as to I>Jha t the i n teE 1;ion 
was , some peopJ.e f.:-om the -..;o:r.k may have some knowledge of the 
circumstances and some may have been called to say what happened 
during tha t shifto 

MR. SULLIV.AJ.'J : Well 9 they cut coal on Ghe first lif ·c tlp to ten 
past t en, till the end of the sh1ft 1 and then I do not suppose 
th ey all went t o the telephone to j ~ ~n i _ the conversation wi~h 
Mr. Eager o Hr .. Cam bourn rang Hr v ·r::a ger and had a c o~ ver sa tion 
with hj_m and he was t old to change the lift , and of course vle 
have not seen Mr. Don Eager a 

\..' 

HIS HONORg Is the r o anybody to say ths rc were only three rolls 
d>.f cable l eft on the <.:rum? Can nobody confirm that that \,!as so 
or n o t so :? 

MRa SULLIV.AN. The next; th2.ng we have t o consider in relation 
to tha t is this ~ we now know . that whe t her there were three 
r olls of cable on the drum or not, h e 1:Jas not in f a ct going t o 
miss the goafo He was jn f a8t on the right l~n.e .. 

HIS HONOR~ Tha t is jf the d:r'a\·J]ng :!..s r i ght, but Hro Hu-rray 
tells me the drawing is not right c 

MR. SULI.IV.AN : The vi tness CaT"", bourn sa~Ld so 1 tha't. he was dead 
on the l j..ne o Furthe r moi'e there is evidenco that they did have 
a map which via s l eft i n the CI":ib r oom ar,_d I thh"lk one witne ss ) 
St ~wart, sald t hey i>Jere takGr. up and a;.:o~he:· witness , Cambourn 1 
~ld the y were destroyed by the fir e o .So where does this 
evidence of mistake c ome into the mat. ter q YouP ~-Ionor? I n fac t 
he was not making a mi.s takeo \1/hat we do know for c ertain ~ s 
that instead of holj..ng into t h e goaf vJhich ·would h a v o had the 
oonsequences ~hat Mra Monzie~ in one degree or another 3aid 
it would ha v e had : they dj.dn 1 to .C 1wnld submJ.t :1.s a matcer of 
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infer enc e tha t it is quite open t o Your Honor t o wcnder whe ther 
the circumstantial evidence here, the sequence ... of circumstances, 
does no t t o some ext en t sugges t tha t it wa s well known t o persons 
c onc erned what was "the danger of holing into t h(=J goaf a t that 
point. 

Now, the position is tha t we look at jhe situa tion 
from this point of view. I have dealt wi th t he manager 
briefly, perhaps t oo briefly. . The · same a pp lie s t o the und_er 
manager. I have only picked out particular passage s. The 
position is there is just a s great, if no t gr ea t er , dereliction 
of duty on t he part of J ohn Puddle a s there is on t he part of 

D~nnis Stone and he cannot e scape r e sponsibility bec ause he did 
no t know of the pr e sence of noxious ga s in the goaf, because he 
did know it. He eanno t e scape r e sponsibility bec au se of tne 
presence of me t hane in t ha t section bec .g_use he di d kno\rJ of it. 
He oanno t escape r e sponsibility by saying "I didn't know ther e 
\ve r e gase s in tha t shunt, 11 because he di d knoH, and he must t ake 
the f ull r e sponsibility in every s ense f or having tried t o 
conduat a dangerous oper a tion of holding them back in t he goaf 
until he c ould ge t t he coal out of the s ec tion t o the l eft of 
A heading. 

Your Honor is not a c oroner, and it is proba bly 
unnecessary for me t o S8 Y tha t in o ther circumstanc e s tha t 
negligence, befor e another tribunal, would be looked a t t o 
see whether it is criminal. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ If it is unnecessary t o say it, don't S P.Y it. 
That is a sound rule . 

MR. SULLIVAN: It would be l ooked a t f or tha t purpo se . This man 
was fully aware throughout of the dangers of w0rk in this 
section --

HIS HONOR~ Mr. Sullivan, l e t me r e lieve your mind and the 
minds of o ther counsel. I have not c onsider ed thi s and I do 
not say ther e is evidence of criminality arising. I have not 
made up my ~ind on e way or the o ther, but if I did c ome t o the 
conclusion t hat ther e was some form of crimina l lia bility in 
this ma tt er, I shall make tha t part of my observations. 

MR. SULLIVAN : I am grateful t o Your Honor f or tha t indication. 
However, tha t is the situa tion as we sea it. In t he end, 
I suppo se in Your Horror's r eport you must make a choic e be tween 
vJha t ha s been put t o you on behalf of t hese men by the Australian 
Iron & Steel Company and what ha s been put t o you by t he 
Department. The burden of what Mr. Reynol ds says, as I see it, 
is, "Put yourself in t he pl ace of t he off i cials. They did 
not know there wa s Illawarra bo ttom gas t here_fore they did the 
things t hey did under a misapprehension. You would have dono 
the same t hing. 11 Tha t is t he burden of my l earned fri end's 
r emarks. Tha t is no an swer t o this, Your Hon or. They had 
no right, with mens 1 live s in their hands, t o a s sume this wa s 
anything. They had a duty t o carry out their obliga tion s 
under the Coal Mines Regulation Act t o ge t rid of any ga s and 
they had no righ t t o a ssume this wa s n o t Illawarra bo ttom ga s. 
Once a heavier-than-air gas go t into t he shunt at a stage when 
it extinguished an oil flame safe ty l amp , tha t ga s should have 
been t es t ed. They had f acilitie s, as Mr . Puddle sa i d t o me , 
f or analysi s of gas . To block it up so t ha t it c ould no t 
be obtained or analysed or even t e st ed on a flame saf e ty l amp -
and a s Mr. Sellers sa id, if you put your l amp into it it wo uld 
have gone out where it wa s a t t he goaf - t o put up this pi ece 
of bra ttice and leave tha t ga s uninve stiga t ed in tha t shunt, 
is the gr osse st dereliction of du t y on the part of the 
management. The invita tion t o any Judge or jury t o identify 
t hemselve s with the appr oach of anyone bef ore them is quite 
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contrary t o judicial practice . Wha t we s ubmit Your Honor will 
d o is t o l ook a t this ca se obj ectively, as I said y esterday. 

As f ar a s the w~~ght you give t o the eviden~e is 
concerned, a s I see it ther e is on t he maj or issue s her e very 
little discrepancy be tween wha t Mr. Longworth, Mr. Menzi es, 
~~ . Muir and Mr. Griffiths have sa id and what Mr. Sellers has 
said. If you a r e looking f or expert t e stimony t o show tha t 
their prac tic e s in this pane l wer e i mp r oper, you have the 
evidence of the Departmen t a l insp ector. They were impr oper 
fr om t he mJment t hey started t o t ake out the coal. They did 
no t r everse the air, t hey did not c ontinue with t he bleeder 
sy st em f or wha t it wa s vJOrth , and t hen having got themselve s 
int o a hopeless, inexplicable me ss, they tri ed t o block off 
unidentified , heavier-than-air gas with a bra t tice screen. 

The c onclusions actua lly r eached by the inspect ors 
which I put t o you and which ar e implicit on their evidence 
and in all t he evidence given in the case ar e these. From 
the time the manager blocked up t he ex tract ed area s t o the 
l eft of A heading he wa s cr Ga ting a ven tilation problem which 
was c ontrary t o goai mining practice. If the goaf gases ·v.Ie r e 
t o be kept fr om t he 1-1or king places, the only practicable ~ 
way vJ a s t o r everse the a irways, t o draw by ventila tion the gase s 
away fr om t hose working pl ac e s. This would be standard mining 
practic e . Tha t is the evidence of ea ch Departmental inspector. 
·It is standard mining pr actic e t o draw goaf ga s e s away fr om 
working pl ac e s. 

The second t h ing is a departure fr om this practice 
mi gh t perhaps be sanctioned in certa in circumstanc e s by the 
creation of bleeder headings, and it wa s done by Departmental 
Insp ector Muir in Gr een panel, the one we discussed. It wa s 
done on t ha t occa sion; as Mr. Muir said when he wa s shown t ha t 
- no t the s ame position a t all. One can just dismiss any 
sugg estion fr om my l e2rned fri end that putting in bleeder 
head ings here wa s the same as wha t w·a s sanction ed by the 
Department in Green panel. This syst em had been put into 
oper a tion by the under manager in 8 Right, but he had a bandon ed 
it without t he au thority of the management. He or ea t ed an 
impossible mining situa tion which l ed hi m t o the c ompr omise of 
the bleed tube and the bra ttic e which wa s so dang erous tha t one 
could excuse Your Honor f or saying t o me 11You oould not sur ely 
submit t hat peop l e of this experience would do s ome thing like 
tha t?" Well, they did do it. He sc:dd r oof c ondition s 
forc ed him t o t ake pillars whilst they wer e still green and 
thus t o abandon the ventila tion heading t o get the coal. This 
l ed t o a c ompromise be tween r oof safe ty and ven tila tion. Well, 
I pointed out t o Your Honor tha t those tw o rule s, Gen er a l Rule 1 
adw~ts of no c ompr omise , Gen eral Rule 22 admits of no c ompromise . 
When you say tha t you have effected a c ompromise, all you ar e 
saying is, ui am not obeying one of the Rule s, 11 and the Rule 
he was no t obeying on t his occa sion w·as of cours e Rule 1. 
At any r a te, apart altoge ther fr om tho sG things , in eff ecting 
this c ompr omise this is what he did: he f a iled t o ventilate 
the goaf edge, standard mining practice, good pr aatice. He 
deliber a tely and designedly - "We knew wha t we v-1 e r e do ing11 -

crea t ed a dead- end a t the shunt in the ventilation system. 
He put up a stopping which he well knewW)uld let the ga s 
through, tha t blocked the gas fr om c oming into the vJO rking 
plac G thr ough_the action of t he fans. He prevent ed his saf e ty 
men fr ?m t e stlng t he l evel and the n a tupe of the gase s rising 
bel ow ln 11 fr om the l ower contours of the goaf. He ord ered 
the miners t o hole int o a pillar of ga s which c ould r e sult in 
the s equence t ha t Mr. Menzie s outlined . He saw the l ack of 
ventila tion and he did exactly tho same as the manager; he 
turned his back on it on 3rd November 1965 and he n evGr came 
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near the se ct ion or the panel again. Tha t is t he indictment 
aga inst the Under Ma nager, a nd do not forget that the Manager 
knew what the Under Manager was do ing , in s ome ca ses s aw the set­
QP and d id exa ct l y t he s ame as t he Under Manage r " 

Now, I will be brief on this: What of the position of the 
depQties? Well, fi rst of all the brat tice stoppings were put 
up by the Under Manager, Mr. Puddle . ~rr. Pudd le says he told 
them, so t hey ca nnot be blamed for that . Mr. Pud d le mad e no 
at tempt to test those gases with a methanometer, desp ite the 
f act that they had s pilt over in the way in which they had to 
No. 3. The deputies did not have a ny methan ometers, a nd there 
is no evidence that the company will give them a metha nometer 
if they a sk for one. Then, in our submission, t hey were lulled 
into a sen s e of false security by the way the peop le who are 
supposed to know about mine v entilation - that is, Mr. Pudd l e 
and Mr. Stone - behaved in respect of t his. That of course 
does not free them entirely from blame . Some of them ca lled here ­
and I say this s ubject to correction - did not show tha t frankness 
to the Inquiry which one would have expected in a situation a s 
serious as this. In many cases .their testing methods leave 
much to be desired. All those thing s ; but they a re not the 
ones to blame, primarily. fhe people who are to blame a re the 
people who set this up. As I sa id to Your Honor this morning , 
it is not a question of detecting gas and then ventilating it. 
I t is a question of putting in a proper system of ventilation 
which conforms with the provisions of Rule l, and t hen using 
your safety men, your deputies, to find out where that system is 
f a lling down bj testing for gas . Here there was never a system 
established which complied with the normal st a ndards of ventil­
ation which have been deposed to by mining experts - I me a n by 
that, the inspectors. It does not get back pr i marily to the 
deputies. What Your Horror says a bout the deputies is Your 
Honor ' s concern, really . They a~e valuable men and the miners 
depend on t hem a lot for their safety. It is clear that Your 
Honor is going to makes I would submit, recommendations that a 
methanometer be made av a ilable fothe m 0n every possible occasion. 
Some questions I a sked Mr . Stone about tra ining ; whether they 
could not be tra ined more adequately under pr actical conditions; 
matters like t hat are for Your Honor to consider. But here 
they are not the villains , even though they may have missed gas. 
They are not vill a ins ; the villa ins are · higher up in this case. 
It is so easy to say, "Oh~ a ll this management is lily white . It 
can turn its ba ck on a dangerous situation and say 'Le ave this 
to the deputies' "· It is so easy, but that is no an swer to 
this. 

We have some recommendations to make. As Your Honor probably 
has gat hered , I do not a ltogether agree with everything that my 
~e arned friend Mr . Lee said were undisputed facts yesterday . For 
lnst a nce, I would not be prepared to concede for a moment that 
nobody suspected the presence of Illawarra bottom gas there. I 
would not conc€'~de that; look a t IVI.r. Puddle, who has worked on 
the Coa st here. 

HIS HONOR : We have Mr. Stewart s aying that he suspected it and 
tested for it. Whether I ac cept his evidence t ha t he suspect ed 
it or not is anot her matter, but he sa id both th ose th ings -
he both suspected and test ed for it. 

MR. SULLIVAN~ Ye s, "but Illawa.rra bottom gas is no great mystery 
to people who have worked in mines . It is no great mystery to 
the people wh o prepa r ed the gas chart 9 and to suggest that it is 
a my~teriou s d emon

1 
~n mit?-e s in t hi~ a r ea· is p l ay ing a long bovv, 

and ~s to do somBtn 1ng l1ke the s a 1lors d id in the Voyage r 
Inqu1ry Vlhen they saw a lot of l a vyers a t the Bar t able . It may 
be s heerly a n attempt on tho par t of some pe op l e to pull the 
wool over Your Honor 's eyes, in our submission. 
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HIS HONOR ~ Frankly, lVIr . Sullivan 9 my remarks :vesterday were to 
that intent . I am still not satisfied tha t the attempt is not 
still going on. I am not referring to counse l at the Bar t ab le. 

lVIR . SULLIVAN ~ We do our best 9 Your Honor. 

MR. LEE ~ Before my friend goes on ; when Mr. Sullivan says he 
t akes issue with my statement 9 I recall the,t one of my points ·~va s 
that nobody ever suspected bottom gas . At p.l09, Mr. St~art 
said, "Q. You never suspected bottom ga s 9 did you?A. Not suspect­
ed it 9 no 9 but I bad been looking for it . " I am not aware of 
any evidence of anybody saying positively, "I suspected it was 
there ." They a ll maintain they looked for it ~ but tha t attitude­
there is a difference between suspicion a nd doing some thing. My 
view of the evidence wap that deputies, taking their case at its 
best, looked for it 9 but never thought they were going to find 
it. Th::tt is the way I took "suspicion . n 

MR. SULLIVAN~ Of cou.rse 9 one of the first things - and I am 
putting this very generally and I say it with no de r ogatory intent 
a t e, ll - is the necessity perhaps for a more broadly based Mines 
Safety Committee 9 not only with departmental inspectors a nd 
gentlemen of great experience like the Mines Department Chief 
Inspector, men like Mr . Donegan and others 9 but also represent­
atives from collieries and from working miners . That is a 
matter I throw open, Your Honor. 

The other thing we recommend is a reconsideration of the 
position in relation to check inspectors. Of course the powers 
of the check inspectors have been increased with the last series 
of ame ndments 9 but we submit that be cause of the assistance they 
g ive to the Department - a nd, we think, to the collieries, though 
often the collieries do not recognise this assistance - we thj_nk 
the district check inspectors, if I may say so 9 are primarily 
concerned with safety 9 that their remuneration should not entire ly 
be provided by the members of the union. 

HIS HONOR: Whom do you suggest would pay them - the colliery or 
the Minister? 

IviR. SULLIVAN~ The Minister or the Joint Coal Board, The 
Commonvveal t h is coming into the coal a reas now. It is foreign 
exchange now, a s we ll as rapidly becoming unlimited power for 
industry, 

HIS HONOR · How many check inspectors 2-re there? 

MR. SULLIVAN: There is ono dist rict check inspe ct or in each 
district~ and that is one of the reasons this matter is being put . 

HIS HONOR .. I am to l d by Mr . Mahon there a r e four in New South 
Wales. Whoever has to pay them 9 if I did make such a recommend­
ation ~nd if it were accepted, in those circumstances would not 
have to as sume a great burden. 

MR. SU~LIVAN ~ No 9 it is not a great burden/~tl. I understand 
Mr . Mahon may bo ab le to better inform Your Honor on this than I 
can -that there is such an arrangement in the State of Queensland. 

HIS HONOR ~ Mr . Mahon tells me that in Queensland portion of their 
wages and expe nses is paid by the ~i nes Department and porti on 
by the unj.on. 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ The first recommendation I would like to put to 
t be In q_uiry is th r; t maps of proposed development work 9 extra.ction 
and development work and proposed pillar ext r act ion, together 
with the scheme of venti.lRtt on 7 should be 8-pproved by the Chief 
Inspector of Mines or the Mini ster . 
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Secondly, that a regulation should be introduced making it 
a breach of the Act to seal off a goaf without the app rova l of 
the Chi ef Inspector or District Inspect br - goaf or w~ste work­
ings in a ny way , with brattice or with stoppings, without 
approval. 

It appears from some of the evidence tha t ha s been given 
here that deputies are not g iven precise p l ans of developments, 
proposed deve lopment, a nd precise written instructions a s t o 
method of ext r action and order of ext r a ction of pillars. We 
make a recommendation that it may be mad e necessary under th e 
Act for tha t to be done. 

The other matter is tbe f orm of r eport - and aga in. pe rhap s 
the Assessors may be able t o a ssist me - both for gas and other 
things in the mines, which t be deputy has to make. It has been 
before us a t the Bar t ab l e , but I had neve r looked at one with 
particular att ent io n before. In our submission, the a ctual form 
of it should ask for greater detail. 

HIS HONOR: I must say that struck me. 

MR . SULLIVAN: Ye·s. "Noxi ous gas beingdiluted" conveys nothing. 

HIS HONOR ~ What it ca n do is to say to the ma nagement, "We ll , 
it is t here ," and the management ca n then s ay, "Don't worry." 
But it may be quite necessary for some officer to go and che ck 
on i t. 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ Yes, and that is a matter which we submit should 
be looked into. 

As far as the shuttle car po sition is concerned, in our 
submission the brake situation ha s been proved to be highly 
unsatisf~ctory. I am not sufficiently experienced in mechan­
ical mB.tters to formulate some recomme ndat ion ab out that, but in 
our submission it would fall well with in the class Your Honor 
described a t the beginning of the Inquiry . To go to a ll this 
trouble to m:1ke sure t hese cablc:s will not overheat a nd short 
and then to have a shuttle car with disc brakes that rea ch a 
temper ature that makes vvater fi.zzl e ~ a s a matter of common 
wo r k i ng -

MR. REYN OLDS : And appr ove d by the Mines Department. 

~m. SULLIVAN ~ Perhaps they were not intended to be used in the 
conditi ons they were used here. One could not expect a ny 
brake to be efficient in a one in seven gr ade, a nd with 20 tons 
of c oa l on it, in a heading. But that is the situation ; it 
seems fantastic tha t in gassy places, whilst there is such 
precise care about e l ectrica l matters and such a widely regul­
ated thing, the se brakes have got to be. It ts not much go od 
leaving it to the manuf a cturers because th ey do not know a ny­
t hing of the circumstan ces in which they a re going to be worked. 
Certainly one thing arises fr om this - on th e weekly mainten­
an ce inspection recommended by the manufacturers on the inspe ct­
ion she ot produced as an exh ibit, week ly mai ntenance is not 
sufficient. I f you are go ing to ge t a build-up of co a l and 
other mater i al , you will get it on the shift, so with all due 
respect to the manufacturers, the y sh ould be ignored on that 
a nd a pr e- a nd aft er-shi f t i nspection c onduct ed ~ or at the same 
intervals as the deputies 9 four-hourly. 

The r esp irator equipment; of course 9 I suppose Your Honor 
ha s no doubt that we strongly support Mr. Murray's submissi on 
about the self-rescue 9 ~nd undoubtedly of course we strongly 
support the foa m machine at oach p it, r ath er than wait for an 
emergency. I do not join issue with him on the methanometers 
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or the fire -fighting equipme nt, but I certainly join issue w~th 
him if he is going to take the flame safety l amp away. It 1s 
the protection, because it goes out if you get into a place 
wher e the gas is likely to suffocate you . That is the v a 1ue of 
the safety l a mp._ 

Then , Genera l Rule 3: We stil l think it is not sufficiently 
comprehensive. Not only in installation, but its transfor from 
one pla ce to another should , in our submission, require thu 
inspector ' s approva l . 

I\'ffi. REYNOLDS : We c·annot move it a n inch without asking the 
inspect or . 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ That is the situation, because every time they 
move it, supposing the requirement previously wa s that it have 
a loose b.rattice behind it a nd in the second place they p ut a 
tight brattice round it, it would interfere with th~ circul­
ation and ruin the whole set-up. They can either be trusted 
with those fans or they cannot; and now they can 't be trusted, 
so why trust them? If the evidence was tha t it was a loose 
brattice, things may have been quite different ? it would have 
caused re-circulati on. 

HIS HONOR ; As regards the fans, I think it is a prob l em of 
ment a l attitude to them. It seems te me on the evidence that 
fans are a n auxili ary method of ventilati on of working places­
and that is precisely what they are - which tends to bring about 
an attitude to them that t e nds to divert attention from the 
real source of the peril - the areas which in fact are not 
being adequa t e ly ventilated outside of working places - a nd it 
seems to me that wh atever view one takes of the evidence here, 
whether it is a sudden onrush of gas or otherwise, there is 
gas there in t hese worked-out and partly worked- out places,which 
I think in error here have been called the goaf. One sees the 
impra ctica l s ituation hero, which is in the evidence, tht:3,t in 
the weekend t he f ans are stopped, ga s a ccumulates, then they 
are start ed up a nd they get rid of gas from the immedia te 
working area of the working place , a nd during that time there 
has been a cont inual a ccumulation of gas a nd a continua l build­
up. If that is the case, t hen there must be a cha nge of 
attitude by the management a s t o what f ans may do a nd what they 
are capable of, a nd I think that is the fund amental problem, 
rather tha n whether they should be shifted from p lace to place. 

MR. SULLIVAN : We say the General Rule here is necessary ond 
should be extended. That is our submission . 

Theother que stion , \1/e would submit it ca n only be done by 
some system that a mine should provide f acilities for giving 
pra ctical tra ining to people who propose getting their deputies' 
tickets ~ that deputies a s well a s att e nding the theoretical 
courses l a id down by the Department should be g iven pra ctica l 
training by managers, deputi e s ~nd so on a t minos, once they 
have enrolled for a deputios' course. A modifi ed apprentice­
ship system - a nd IV'rr . Stone said it would not i.nterfere much 
with thoir procedures. I am thinking pa rticula rly of ga s 
detect ion . Ga s t e sts should be done in mines a nd not in boxe s 
at t e chnical colleges, in our subillj_ssion . 

As I sa id i n the course of my address, these "elephant's 
trunks 11

, as t hey are ca lled 9 should be ba nned v;i tbout the 
permission of the Department; without the permission of the 
District Inspe ctor or Chief Inspector . - Whether the insertion 
of tha t e lephant ' s trunk in that T-piece is a breach of Genera l 
~ulo 3 or not, I a m not propRred t o discuss. I do not think it 
1s worth discussing, but they are a da ngerous thing when they 
are used irrespon s ibly, as this wa s - very dangerous be ca use 

1100. Mr. Sullivan ' s address. 



they neither ventila te by bringing in fresh air nor apparent ly 
do they exhaust. The greatest pull of that thing was 1200 to 
1500 cumins in a shunt having the capa.ci ty of this court room~ 
a ccording to Mr . Sellers. It is only a deceive r. 

HIS HONOR: They only;4Jork at the point of application . 

MR. SULLIVAN~ Yes - they arc hope l ess . It is not a v entil­
~ting device at al l. It is only something put in to g ive 
people a psychological sense of comfor t because every witness 
who J.n1ew anyth i ng about it sa i d it d i d not make any diff erence~ 
f rom Mr . Menz i e s onwards. 

MR . REYNOLDS ~ You should ha.ve another l ook at their evi dence , 
Mr . Sullivan . 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ 1200 to 1500 cumi ns in a n ai r v o l ume like this. 
And the ent r ance of . this shunt 9 30' from its mouth . 

The ot her question is that of the ass i stant under manaee r 
~ s aga inst the under manager , the queetion of whether the 
present Sections dealing with managers o.nd und er managers a r e 
sufficient ly st r ingent. It appears now from what ha s been 
happening a t this coll iery t hat the ass i stant under manager, M.r. 
Wright, wh il st he ha s some sort of qua lificat i ons that we have 
not heard of, is in f a ct doing the statutory dut i es which fall 
on Mr . Puddle . And he is not an official such as is c ont em­
p ~at ed by the Coal Mines Regulation Act . Furthermore , af te r 
Mr . Buck spoke to Yo ur Honor, I think Your Honor a nd Mr. Buck 
thought it would be a good i dea t o hav e tra ining fo r someon e to 
be an nnder rnan n.ger, and I would not disagree with that for a 
moment, but the point a bout that is that these mi nes are b ig . 
The Bulli Pit is a big mine and it i s p robably a physical 
i mpossibility under modern co nditi ons with th8 working p laces 
so s cat tered 9 for the under manager , with one under manage r 
there, t o carry out his statutory duties i n ev er y dist ri ct of 
the mi ne . There is now provision in the Act for the ex ist e nce 
of other und e r ma nagers. Th ere can be more than one under 
ma nager under the present Coal Mines Regulat i on Act . May it 
not be taken a step further and require th:1t where a mine reaches 
a cert a in a r ea, the owner or agent shou ld be r equ ired to appo i nt 
mor e than one under manager? Mr. Puddle h&d not been in this 
panel s ince 3rd Nove mbe r. 

HIS HONOR ~ In other word3, you would limit t he a rea of cont r ol 
for one man to pe r haps a numb er of sections? 

M.R • SUL 1 IV AN ~ Ye s . 
mine . 

You see, you do not giv e a deputy a whol e 

HIS HONOR~ You also h&ve the pr oblem of not having them on al l 
shifts ; the under manager cannot be expect ed to be ther e 24 
hours a day. 

MR . SULLIVAN : Tha t is so. Someone has suggested that under 
modern condit i ons the whol e Act ought t o be revi ewed, a nd indeed 
the Miners ' Federati on bas been urg ing that for a long time. 
But th at is j ust one of tbe aspects. Those are d ifferent sorts 
of mines now from whnt they used to be . 

The l a st r ecommendntion that we wou ld put to Your Honor i s 
that the deputi es sh ould bo employed exc lusively on the ir 
statutory duties and not be g iven oth er dutie s without the 
appr ova l of the Di stri ct Inspector. Th ey should be r osuonsible 
directly to the manage r an d Lmder manager ·oT unde r manager s . 
Ther e shoul d be no int ermediat e person such a s overma n c omin~ 
• 0 

1 n t o t he pane l . 

HIS HONOR : You are against overmen 9 a re you? 
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MR. SULLIVAN: I am not against anybody, Your Honor, but the 
trouble is tha t the se statutory duti~s must be perf~rmed in 
ac cordance with the sta tute and not ln accordance Wlth the 
directions of some person who himself has no sta tutory duties. 
I am not against anybody but I am saying tha t these things 
creep in and the tight chain of responsibility starts becoming 
disrupted at certain links. Tha t is ;vhat I am saying. 

I do not propose to put any mare to the Inquiry 
except this, and I think I can finish: In the case of the 
people whom I repr e sent we are going to ask Your Honor to m~ 
an order for our costs. Under Your Honor's power~ you have 
the power to do so, bec ause t he widovlS particularly have had_a 
vital interest in these proceedings and not only from the polnt 
of view of any actions they may or may not have in the future. 
I hav e no instructions about that, but because they fe el that 
the loss of their husbands may perhap s mean the saving of the 
loss of the loss of other peoples' husbands. They have 
engaged us to represent them and we feel that we may not have 
been mueh use t o Your Honor, but we have been no hindrance to 
Your Honor, and we do feel tha t if you consider you have the 
power to make orders for our •osts in these matters, we do 
ask for t hem.. 

HIS HONOR: I have looked at the Act in connection with this; 
it is not the f irst time the matter ha s crossed my mind. The 
Act gives me certain powers - I will hear Mr. Lee on this 
bec ause his client would have to bear the costs of any order 
I may make. 

MR. LEE: We would suggest that the briefing of counsel is a 
long way from investigation expenses ordered by the Minister. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ Your Honor would have t o say you had power under 
s.33(10). Our submission would be t o t he contrary. 

HIS HONOR: It sta tes that costs of any proceedings shall be 
in t he discretion of the Court. At any r a te, I will consider 
any argument on costs a s ~ separate matter. 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ If I may with respect r aise something else here, 
Your Honor, we were notified on behalf of the Minister tha t we 
give notice to appear, 

HIS HONOR: Yo u were given notice of the hearing, and notice 
also to nominate an assessor? 

MR. SULLIVAN : Yes, and tha t seems to have been done under 
s.33, does it not? I am surprised to hear counsel representing 
the :Minister now r a ising his voice in this Court to deprive the 
widows --

MR. LEE: I understood my friend Mr. Sullivan was appearing for 
a Federation. 

MR. SULLIVAN: I am appearing for certain organisa tions, but I 
am asking for the ~osts of appearing for the widows, not the 
Federation. 

}ffi . LEE: My position is controlled by interpre tation of the Act. 

HIS HONO R: Mr. Murray must also be involved in some way, not 
that he is repre sen ting a widow, but he .is r epr e s enting a party 
who is properly interested in the hearing. This is an 
important matter. 

MR. SULLIVAN : Section 33 having been used to bring us here, 
s.33 cannot be used to give them the oost of the proceedings; 
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it is as simple as that. 

HIS HONOR: I suppose one can say they were not brought here, 
they \v er e given notice and they chose t o come. The y wer e not 
compelled to be here. They might ha ve been c onpelled to come 
here as witnesses, but in f act they were not. They ar e not 
compe lled to att end this Inquiry and be represented; on the 
other hand they have every right to be. Tha t is the way it 
strikes me. The real issue is this: having exercised their 
right, have I power to c ompensate them for any loss they have 
susta ined as a r e sult of their being here? 

MR. SULLIVAN: I notice Your Horror made an order r egarding the 
expert called by the Austra lian Iron & Steel the other day, 
Mr. Sellers. 

HIS HONOR: I do not s'ee why he should not have co-sts in the 
ordinary way as a witness here. The section is mandatory -
it says they shall be allowed expenses. There is the speciffu 
sub-section, sub-section 2, but the question is whether 
professional costs of the party can be covered. 

I am prepared to hear this WBtter argued aft er I 
have heard the argument on the matters which are germane to 
this Inquiry, at . any c onvenient time but within a very short 
time . I would wish t o · hear .;}fr·. Lee on this subj ect sinc e under 
the Act his client would have to bear the se costs if I wer e to 
mw{ e an order. You might co nsider the rratter overnight. 
~e ther e any other mattars, Mr. Sullivan? 

HR. SULLIVAN: No, no further matters on the other asp ects of 
the Inquiry, Your Horror. 

HIS RONORi As to the pr oceedings t omorrow, who will addre ss 
n ext - Mr: McNally and Mr. Parkinson? I would like to know 
in advance. 

MR. PARKINSON ~ I understand Mr. Crane wants to mak e short 
s.ubmissions. 

HIS HONOR: I U..Yl.d erstand tha t he does not now int end to do so. 
I have received a messag e tha t said Mr. Crane \·Ja s involved in 
some Court proceedings and was not intending to make any 
submissions although e2rlier he indicated he did. If he 
appears tomorrow he may do so, but have you, Mr. Parkinson 
and Mr. McNally come to any arrangement? 

MR. PARKINSON~ Mr. McNally may have his wish now - whichever 
way he wants to go is all right with me . 

MR. McNALLY~ I prefer t o follow Mr. Parkinson. 

MR. PARKINSON: That would be quite sa tisfactory. 

HIS HONOR: Then you will have so me thing further, Mr. Le e? 

MR. LEE: There will be a short reply. 

HIS HONOR: Are there any other counsel who at this stage think 
they may wish to reply to anything which has been said? 
If there is anythi ng that has come out and may have. taken anyone 
by surprise, I indicate you may have a right of reply. 

(Further heqring adjourned to Thursday, 
17th February, 1966, at 10 a.m.) 

1103. Mr. Sullivan 1 s address concluded. 



IN THE COURT OF 
COAL MINES REGULATiON 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) 
) 

No• 1 of 1965. 

BEFORE HIS HONOR JUDGE GORAN 
ASSESSORS: Me s srs. MAHON and BUCK 

THURSDAY: 17th February, 1966, 

IN THE MATTER OF AN INQUIRY ll~ PURSUANCE OF THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION ACT INTO AN ACCIDENT WHICH OCCURRED AT THE BULLl 
COLLIERY ON 9th NOVEMB~R 1965 tJ'lD ITS CAUSES J..ND CIRCUHSTANCES. 

( PART HEARD) 

HIS HONOR: The arrangement made made yesterday was tha t 
you were to address before Mr. McNally, ~~. Parkinson. Are 
you ready now? 

MR. PARKINSON: Yes. Your Honor will r ecall on 2nd December 
last ye ar at the commencement of this Inquiry when appearances 
were being taken, I gave an undertaking to Your Honor on tha t 
day tha t to the best of my ability I would endeavour at all 
times to refrain from any repetition whatsoever. I think I 
can truthfully say that I honoured tha t undertaking up timl 
today. 

HIS HONOR: I agree with tha t, Mr. Pnrkinson. 

MR. PARKINSON: After the addresses by Mr. Lee, Mr. Murray 
and Mr. Sullivan, I think Your Honor will have a full 
apprecia tion being addresses on one subject, but it might be 
a little difticult during the course of my addre ss to r efrain 
from repetition to the same extent a s I have endeavoured to do 
previously. But I can assure you that I have endeavoured to 
do so in the preparation of my address. For instance, there 
are many things tha t Mr. Sullivan r aised yes t erday - and I 
would like to say that he handled them in a mu~h more eloquent 
manner than I would have been able to h~~dle them - which I am 
now eliminating from my address. 

Now, there have been twenty days of sittings on 
evidenc e alone in this particular Inquiry. That is not 
including addresses, and 99 5 pages of transcript. Much time 
and energy has been expended to deal with a tragedy tha t should 
never have happened if ordinary ~ccepted elementary mining 
practices and directions by the Mines Department had been adhered 
to by the management. My submission \~ill be to the effect tha t 
safety principles on the issues involved l eading up t o the 
tragedy were almost totally disregarded by the management in 
the interests of eoal production, and coal production only. And 
my submission will be tha t tho evidenc e adduced during the 
course of these proceedings clearly and emphatically confirms 
what I am saying. The tragic f acts ar e tha t four miners lost 
their lives, four women were widowed and six children were left 
fatherless, and it was most certa inly only good luck and not 
good. mc.nagement that the actual death roll did not r each a much 
larger figure. I venture to say that the ga s which had 
accumulated in the shunt and behind the bra ttic e in the shunt, 
had it exploded instead of igniting, this in turn could ha ve 
triggered off a chain reaction, dust explosion, which could have 
had r e sults which would be too frightening even to contempl a t e 
here, because the explosion tha t tha miner f ears most is not 
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just the ord1nary gas explo s~~ on Th e ezplo sion whic t. t he miner 
fears most is the chain :reac t :'on dust exp:t .osi.on" And wha t 
were the prec:au tions at the fan ::Ln re la t:i' on to stone du s ting? 
The r e we re r:..o precaut1cu s what so e ve : ~ When I cross- ex a mined 
Hr. Stewart on ev:Ldenc e of Etone dus t , the only evidence Mr. 
Stewart could submit to me l·i'a s :in. C h eadi.ngo And y e t the 
E.c t is v ery spec :l.f J.c " cloa:L"" and defln i. t o on \-rha t has to be done 
in rela tion t o ston e · du~ ~ ·;.ng o 

Tt.ere l E noi: sno n"inar who go c; s underground t oday or 
tomorrow who can say -vJj. th any deg~C'oe or' c crtain ty at any time 
that the next time ho soes daylight 9 if h e ever s ee s it 7 he will 
walk out of the m~.ne o tha~ h e will be ca:r·ri ed ou t of t he mine or 
tha t he will be bJ.c·wn. ou t o.f ·ch e m.i.ne ·- and tha t is the undoubted 
history of thi s indu s trya 

In Mr " Lee 1 s op en ing rema:r.'ks in his addre ss, I took 
particular notic e when he said that onl y good could come out 
of this Inquiry" Yolli"' Honor 9 I hop u w::.th every fibr e in my 
being tha t some good do es come out of this Inqui;:-y and I want to 
state now tha t I have a full appr.cc:i a t :i.on of the manner in which 
Your Horror ha s applted and ex e r ci sed your mj_nd 0~1 this particular 
problem~ and I have a full appresiat ion of wha~ Your Horror will 
do and the time it \v:U l t.::tk3 to sif t thr ough ·~his evidende and 
through the adclr c; sses b3fore you ~-'e c:: ch a fir:.al r e porto But 
the who l e h j_ sto:·y of my :~ .::-ldu:.-; ;~1"Y and my m·m expe r :i_enc e s do not 
inspire mo with any c o~f jdenco ~hac whateve~ obser vat ions or 
r e commenda t ion:::; Ym.U' Ho~1.or ma:y mak e vJ5.1 l be implemented in the 
interests of Eafai~Yo A'G t~i. a par.VLcular stage I think i t would 
be most appropriato 9 3.3 j"J.st a 1:1.'Ci.;J.e ba cke;round for us, to give 
these fi~urcs . on dis~ster8 i~ ~ aw ~outh. ~al e s? 1886, Lit~gow 
Valley i t- d eEn;hs 9 .. g87 ~ BL:...!,l :L 1 n_~ _ d e a 'Gh;:q J899, .A .. A.. l'hne, 
Newc a stle~ 11 deBtt•.sj 1.8~6 ~ Rtcck to.:-:t~ :i_ l deaths ; J_898~ Dudley, 
15 d ea ths ; 1-)CO ~ '1 ~-:e t a L i.T·e :- ~ deaths 7 1901 5 Burwood , 3 d ea ths; 
1902, Mt. Kembl~:: ~~6 dcachs; ~1_9 ?.~ ? Be J1b:.:.r·d, 20 d ea ths - and 
Your Horror may re~a1I ·:~h tJ :!.a s~ bod.y j_n Bellbird \-Ja s only f otL.'1.d 
l a st y ear1 or at 1ea;-1-: ~::.i{ele:on _errn.in3 sinc e 1923o An d then 
of course' U:ere ·was t:he C ~.) ou·ct:·u r s t a·i; Mr,t;_~opo;_itan 9 He lensburgh, 
in 195'48 Thore ·via s t>.o NGt·~·orK> l~_·:::an mJ.t:turs ·~ 5.n 19~9 .. There 
wa s the Me t;ropol.i. tar_ ot:.tb'iJr st ~i i1. 190~~-., .<'Lnd n ow \v e have t his 
particular Jisaster in 196~~ 

I would a lso ] -'~:. o to dr aw ·~o y our attention very 
very briefl y some fJgur 8s vih:LC""h vJLd_ give you some und erst anding 
a s t o why we c ome t.o t h o cor.:.clusio:1., t hat \ve doo This (indica ting) 
is the quart erly su::m:.1a"-'Y of h'\.u.s ·. I'al :Lan statj sties ? December 1965, 
by the Commor'weal<~h H~..: ··.,ean of C orJ.sus and Sta tj_stic s 2 Canberr a , 
Australia? ann he r e for ~_:he yac~r end~.ng D;c ember 1964: Heart 
disease i ncluding chronic rheumatic heart s, a r teria scle rotic 
condition s 9 degeneratj~ 3 c onditions and o t her fo rms, up till 
December 1964 f or that yea~~ acc ow.~t ed for 3 :; ?.19 d e a ths per 
million of mean p opulatloa in Ausr:ral.:;.o." All fo rms of c anc e r 
accounted for 1, -:63 cl ea eh.;;, per rillll:~ .. on of mean :Jopul a tion in 
Australia " 'r 12 ro =td toll .in No,,: S_ou~~h 1.Jal es en dj.ng Dec ember 
l a st y ear for the yee.r 1965 w::::.s 1 ~~l:+9 ·,ri·i:h a popu lation of 
four million i...Yl l'e1:J SouLh ~~rn.les ~ gi.vj_ng us a r· .::t t e of 287-l- per 
million of mean pcpilla·~t.o.n tr. NEYvJ S 'Ju!,~l Hal cso But then when 
we go to the m:l.ni n.g indv s t T'Y ? 1a fj ncl tha t last year in 
A us trr:lia, ., ~xcluc~~~ng B:rc~en . HL1 l o • •;jXC 1 udj_r1g mo ·~;a} ~~-ferous mine s, 
only lnclua.Lng bl a ck ·-.:oal mu1os H:;.th ·the exce:pt ion of Lo igh 
Creek and C o1lie l :l Ho stern Aust::ra l-i. q ~· ·~ho m·T .. no vJOrker s lost 
19 men and in a m9mba~ s~ip of 14 h 0~0 lhBt givo 3 a r atio of 
1,357 d eaths pol" . J .. l l.:ton o.L mean. ' pu r uJ..a 6·t o~1 in Australia 
making us a s big a kiJ.lor as cancer ·~ the s e ::!onci big.se st 'kille r 
in Australiac 

N0\-7 J Yo-l:t·.:- Honi)"' ~ 1:n·1ci'1.y I just 1,ran.t t o h a v e s ome t hing 
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on Tue sday of this week, and I think Mr. Reynolds wa s makin~ 
his l as t comment i n his addr e ss on t he t ypewritt en pape r whlch 
h e submitt ed. Tha t is where t he 1vord "consciousn was t he on e 
tha t was used. Your Honor a sked Hr. Reynolds did tha t monn 
"deliber a t e" and Mr . Reyno lds indic a t ed Ye s, and you sa t back 
then and you sai d , " Well, I will have to st a t e f r ankly t hBt I 
am disturbed tha t some thing is being c oncea l ed fr om me ond I 
am not gettL~g the true picture . 11 I want t o say unequivoca lly 
tha t things are being conceal ed , Your Honor, but it is purely 
and s imp ly on the ba sis of your Terrr1s of Ref er enc e . How many 
time s have I been obj ect ed to on t he ba sis of irrel evanc e? 
And I wa s agreeably surprised and I t hough t you wer e going to 
go on with it ·.yes t erday , Your Honor, or maybe it wa s t he day 
befor e , when you r ec alled Mr. Stewart and you start ed t o a sk 
~~. St ewart que stions re l a ting to production. When I st art ed 
to ask que stions of Mr. Cambourn, did he r ec eive any o t her 
r emuner a tion other t han his award conditions, an i mmedia t e 
obj ection wa s t aken, and i f public inquirie s suc h a s this ar e 
to be confined t o just r eally b~r e is sue~, then obviously, Your 
Honor,you c annot ge t t he r eal pictur e . I have a full appr ecia tion 
of the t a sk which c onfronted you . Your Honor c ame in green, 
if I may use t ha t t er m, t o deal wi t h a mo st c omplic a t ed industry, 
t o ge t used t o t he t er ms, t o go t us ed. t o the me thods of work 
pertaining, because t her e is not ano t he r industry anywher e in 
Australia, anywhere in t he world , like coa l mining industri es. 
They cannot be c ompar ed v.Jith any other industri e s . And I am 
not fo r one moment sugg e s~ing, de spite t he f act th3. t we asked 
the Minister t o have a public Inquiry tha t would t ake in the 
que stion of gen er al saf e ty, unti l such t ime s a s we could hav e 
something i n r egard t o t ha t and in r el a tion t o it, I f ee l 
c ert ain t hat t her e vJill alv~ays be this f eeling of c onc ealment. 

I want now t o point out t o you 99 5 page s of 
transcrip t not e s on t his que stion c..J.'1.d I \~fill say w.ithout any 
f ear of con tradiction tha t 90 per c en t of wha t ha s tran spired 
during those 20 sitting days in evidenc e centred a r ound on e t hing 
directly or indirectly and thnt wa s t he que stion of ventila tion: 
a mo st paramom1 t issue , t he most pa.r amount issue i n mining . 
Ven tila tion is indis so luably l inked up with every f ac e t of saf e t y 
in the coal mining industry. It is ba sic. But my submi ssion 
is tha t the company did no t view V8ntila tion a s the No . 1 
r equir ement. Now my submission is that pr oduction vla s the 
omen which c ommanded priority, and saf e ty -v1a s c onveniently 
pushed into t he background and I am going t o prove t his pur ely 
and simply on evidenc e tha t ha s been submitt ed to t his Inquiry, 
on admis sions by the c ompany's witne sse s t hemse lve s. 

I wan t t o t ake Your Honor to p.238 of the transcript 
not e s and Hr. Reynolds is ther e cross- examining Hr. Longworth: 
11 Q. Likewise it will be \.vorking in t he s~ me position in the 
pillar •••.• so f a r a s it can be consist ent \vith t he solution of 
other mining engineering problems'?A. Ye s." I want to say 
the infer enc e of tha t question on its f ace va lue cannot bo denied, 
tha t there are other pr oblems than ventila tion in mining but 
I submit t ha t the question her e wa s i mp licit ina smuch as it 
meant t hat t he ventila tion problems were of no more major issu e 
than any o ther problem tha t may be c onfront ed in the mine . Tha t 
wa s ver y early in t he proceedings. I want t o t ake Your Honor 
t o p.325: 11 Would you agree \v ith mo unle ss thor e is an adequat e •• 
••••••• 

11 and it is very significant this wa s obj ect ed to by 
Mr. Reynolds but it vJas a llow ed by Your Honor. It was si gnificant 
in the l ight of my l a st st a tement a bout t he company and their 
a ttitude to ventilet tion "Would you agree ·with mo unless ther e is 
an adequa t e •••.•• coal production wha tso ever. 11 It wa s object ed 
to by Mr. Reynolds. Tha t is t he significanc e but Your Honor 
a llow ed t he quewtion because obviou sly you saw t he significance. 
"Will I answc~ r the que stion ••••.•. ". I r epea t ed the qu os tion 
fo r him and Mr. Menzi e s agreed t h ,::J r e c ould be no c oal p roductio~ ... 
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unle ss t here was an adequate and correct syst em of ventila tion. 
Over the page, a t p.326, I asked , ttTher ef ore it is true t o say •• 
•••••••• it is a prime consideration". Only ventila tion can 
dilute and r ender harml ess c onc entra tions of gas encounter ed 
underground . Only ventila tion can r emove har mful airborne 
dust and this is an indisput able fac t, t hat if roof c onditions 
are bad coa l can still be produc ed i n saf e ty oniliy if ventila tion 
is adequate but you can have the be st r oof condition s in t he 
world, it is a s safe a s a church , whic h is a t e r m u sed in t he 
mining industry, and if ventila tion is inadequate you can 't 
produce coal and tha t is pr ecisely wha t happen ed on this 
particular occasion. 

Any c ompany which would try or endeavour t o disprove , 
belittle or disregard this undisputed f act r evea l t hemselve s a s 
unfitt ed t o be charged with the r e sponsibility of the safe ty and 
welfare of employee s under their supervision. 

I want to deal with a question <:Jhich ha s not been, 
in my opinion, adequa t ely dealt with: the r ea son why t he 
ventilation me thod was changed. The evidenc e e sta blished ther e 
i.•Ja S a big f ault in t his particula r area t o whic h t he A, B and C 
headings wer e driven and you do not ha ve t o have any special 
mining qualifica tion s to know tha t when you drive t o the faul t 
you are a l most sure t o encounter some roof difficultie s and 
every possibility of ga s. Of course it is only natura l to 
expect tha t with hee vy conditions or difficult roof c onditions 
when pillar extraction commenc e s tha t particular a r ea could 
become much more difficult. So, you see , it wa s on l y mining 
logic and t he se conditions that t hey were anticipating should 
have been no surprise t o t hem when t hey encounter ed them. They 
knew what t he area wa s. They kn ew wh2 t t hey wer e going to. 
They kno i.•J wha t a f ault doe s and it was also r ea sona ble t o a ssume 
that a s t he workings r e treated from t he f ault the se roof c onditions 
could i mprove . Mr. Puddle emphasised t he r ea son why he changed 
the vent ila tion me thod was tha t roo f conditions were s o bad tha t 
it was nec e ssary and imper a tive in t he inter e sts of sa f e ty, 
and if we look a t p . 723 1-Je might ge t just a li ttle more clearly 
vJha t I am l eading t o . He sa id, 11 It is our pr actic e aft er 
splitting the pillar ••••••• ". This is in c onnection with 
expecting the r oof conditions t o probably i mpr ove a s \ti e r e trea t 
from this f aulted ar ea . I t hink Mr . Lee is cross- examining hi m. 
11 Q. Having not had trouble bef ore with t he ventila tion sy stem ••• 
.•••• tha t is so a s a f ::1ct, is it not?A. Ye s"( p .. 724). So it 
is clear here t ha t condttt ions v1 er e improving on the r e trea t, 
but two or t hr ee paragr aphs furt h er down Mre Puddle give s 
another r ea son and I want t o S3 Y tha t under ordinary mining 
conditions I can find no quibble with this, "In your opinion wha t 
time f actor wa s involved ••••.•.. five or six wor king days". 
He is obviously saying it would be much be tter in t he inter e sts 
of pr oduction if I dispense with the bleede r and form my pillar 
which bec ome s a green pillar and I extract my pilla r quickly and 
then he advance s the fact tha t by no t doing t his and having t o 
drive the bleeder heading that crea t ed a time l a g of five or 
six day s which would ena ble r oof c onditions t o d e t eriora t e . 
At p.917 we see , and thi s is Mr . Sellers' 103rd par a graph : 
"With r eference to tha t part of the district •.•...• u. This pla c e , 
when this inspection wa s made, had been standing f or five or 
six weeks . Ye t, Mr. Puddle indica t e s t ha t five or six day s 
vruld make a differ ence and tha t is why, one of t he r ea sons why, 
he did not drive t he bleeder heading. I go to p .757 where I 
was cross-examining Mr. Puddl e in connection with whe t her he had 
discussed with the manager this ma jor que stion of t he change in 
th~ ventila tion a s a r e sult of roof c onditions. 11Hi s Honor: Q. I 
thlnk your an sHor i.v as t hat you though t you had •.•••••• r e strict 
production in any way?A. Ye s. 11 11 Qe and I would sugge st t o you 
•••.••• subs t antially r educ e production?A. Ye s11 • You 
may then see the third question f r om t he bo ttom of t he page aft er 
I had asked ano ther seven or e i gh t que stions. Mr . Reynolds sa id: 
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"I suppo se t his wil l be connect ed with t he f ir e shortly , Your 
Monor? 11 I will connect t ha t w·i t h t he f ire a s I . devel op t he 
point I am on n mv. 1Ne go t o p.756. We e stabll ~h fr om t he . 
witne ss hi mse l f t ha t c oa l pr oduc t i on had been serlously r e strlct ed . 
This is i n t he t hird paragraph f r om t he t op of t he pa ge "You 
sta t ed a bou t these r oof condition s ••••••• solid s and pi llar 
extr action , ye s." The witness hi mse l f admits in t he f~al 
analysis t ha t t he r oof c onditions a t thi s area wher e ven t l l a tion 
was chan ged is no wo r se and in f act is be tt er tha~ some o t her 
condition s i n t he gener a l run of t he mine , bo th i n pillars and 
solids. So t he pictur e bec omes a little clear er when you link 
up t he r e str i cted pr oduction, and of a substan tia l char acter 
acco r d i ng t o Mr . Puddl e , an d t hen a pictur e beg i ns t o fo r m t ha t 
confirms wha t I sa id in my opening r emar k s, t ha t sa f e ty we. s 
disr egarded on t he ba sis of coal pr oduc tion and coal pr oduction 
only. I am sur e t he interj ection of Mr. Reynol d s on p.757 was 
bec ause appar ently he had no t quite gr a sped t he import ~~c e of 
t he cross-examina tion of his own witne ss because a t t hfu time 
in t he pr oc eedings Mr. Roynolds i:.J itne ss , Mr. Puddle , had, and 
t his is my submission, clearly been c ompelled to admit Qnder 
cro ss- exami n a tion the r ea son why he cfuanged the me t hod of 
ven tilat i on in t hi s a r ea wa s in t he int er e sts of c oal production 
a~d n o t i n t he int er e sts of safe t y a s he c la i med in evidenc e 
in-chi ef. So t hi s is my summar y of t his particular portion 
of my submi ssion s . From pp.723-4 t he r oof conditions had 
i mp r oved . Hr. Puddl e gave the len g t h of time of five or six 
day s it t ook t o drive a bl eeder head i ng as a r ea son a lso why 
t he ven tila tion wa s chan ged bec au se t his time , he claimed, 
induc ed be tter r oof c onditions. I have alre .J. dy submitt ed the 
r oof c onditions had c hanged and Mr. Sellers evidenc e indica t ed 
t hat r oof conditions, when he examined t he disa ster a r ea , we r e 
only slightly le s s t han ave r age and a high degree of extraction 
c ould be expec t ed , t his de spite t he f act t he pillar in que stion 
had been st andi ng f or ~uit e a number of we ek s, not f ive or six 
days - f ive or six ·w eek s. Mr. Puddl e unequivoc a lly admits a t 
the bo tt om of p.726 t ha t t here vJa s substan tia l ly r educ ed production 
and admit s t he gene r a l r oof conditions r e l a ting t o o ther ar ea s 
of the mi n e wer e worse t han in t h i s par ticular a r ea . He sa id 
t he miner s a lways \vo r ked in safe c onditions and Mr. Puddle was 
very adaman t on thi s po in t. I want t o t ake Your Hono r t hr ough 
tha t par tic ul ar evid enc e becau se Your Honor a sked some que stions 
her e a l so . I t hi nk Mr. Lee i s cro s s- examining a t p .725 and 
h e is in t he mi ddle of his cro ss- examina tion: "D o I understand 
you c or r oct l y ••.•.•.• a deci si on t o do a c erta in t hing?"- tha t 
is t h e c hange i n ven tila tion - 11 A. Ye s. Q. And tha t d ecision 
wa s on e ••.••.• i n opera tion bef or e?.A . Ye s.'' nr vJant you t o 
t ell us nov.J if you can add any t hin g fu rther •••••.• a gr ea t er 
extr action of coal con si st enc -wi t h safe ty. 11 11 You decided 
tha t i n t he inter e sts of pr oduction ••••..• saf c--: t y and pr oduction. 11 

11 I n t he inter e sts of safe ty you d i spensed with it ••..... t ha t is 
t he cho ic e you made ?A. Ye s 11 • Her e again is an admission of 
saf e t y c ompr omi se and it vla s n o t c ompr omise i n t he int er e sts of 
saf e t y but wa s compr omise i n the inter e sts of ge tting out more 
coal, mo r e pr oduction. The se ar e some very int er e sting qi estions. 
uMr. Lee : Q. When you say you addr e ssed your mind ••••• . 11 of 
course it is c ommon mi n ing pr actic e t ha t a mi n er mak e s his own 
pl ac e safe a s f ar a s r oof c onditions ar e c onc er ned. 11 They have 
t o make it safe •••••• \ve work in a condition t ha t wa s unsafe". 
You wer e ver y quick, Your Honor, t o s eize on tha t particular 
answer and you i mmedia t el y sa id, "Q. vJould you pili.ea s e r ep ea t 
t ha t?" Mr. Puddl e sa i d , nr sa id thGt vJe had extr act ed. ••••.• 
••• I don't t hink the men t hems elve s woul d wor k und er unsafe 
~ ondition s." Then t he r e is ano t h er qu estion by Hr.Lee , 11 Tha t 
ls wha t I put t o you~ or I wa s trying t o put t o you •••.••• They 
ar e exp erienc ed men.' 

Your Honor may r ecall anothe r que stion of mine tha t 
appar ently mo tiva t ed some idea tha t it wa s a bit of a j oko or sil l y, 

1108 . Mr. Par kinson's addr e s s . 



when I asked Mr. Puddle what wer e t he r ogula tions in r ela tion 
to pick mining when he wa s digging coal and he sa id he c ould no t 
be any further than six f ee t from the f ac e and then you may 
r ecall I a sked him, 11 VJhatis the distance •• o•o•• 15 f ee t, approxi-
mately". When I a sked Hr .. Puddle would he a sk mine workers 
to work in heavy c onditions like tha t, 15 fe e t of expo sed roof, 
he said No, he did not a sk them t o do tha t and tha1 he went on 
to point out how he cut the ribs with the continuous miner and 
how they advanced the t imber t o make the conditions safe and vJhen 
I asked him whe ther this would t ake some time he sa id Ye s, and 
I s a id, "This would havo an eff ect on production?" and he 
answered tha t it would have an effect on pr oduction. So, 
what is the basis of this idea tha t the ventila tion me thod was 
changed in the inter e sts of safe ty a s far as roof conditions wer e 
conc erned? 

The ventilation method wa s changed in the inter e st of 
production because all the evidence befor o Your Horror, and by 
admission by the witne sses themselve s, clearly indica t ed the roof 
conditions had improved and clearly indica t e s roof conditions 
were be tter than in o ther portions of the mine and the idea of 
five or six days for the sake of driving the bleeder heading 
wa s, I thilh~, vory effectively answered by Mr. Sellers, when 
this pillar ar ea had been standing for five or six weeks and 
I have a lready expla ined t o you just exactly wha t Mr. Sellers' 
es timatmon was of the amount of extraction that would have been 
~le t o have been produced in the physical conditions he saw. 

Ther e cannot be any r eo son abl e doubt, any r easonable 
doubt whatsoever t ha t Mr. Puddle compromised safo ty in the 
inter e sts of production. Can ther e be any c ompromise with 
safety anywhere, Your Horror? The Mines Departmen t says No . 
Your Horror yourself clearly indica t ed tha t the r e c ould be no 
compromise wi th safe ty but appar ently the company says Ye s. Tha t 
is t he only c onclusion tha t can be drawn and it is not i mplicit, 
this has alr eady been s ta t ed in Mra Puddle 1 s own sta t ement, in 
his evidenc e in-chief a t the bottom pf p.722 and , if my memory 
serves me c orrectly, you cross- examined Mr. Puddle a t some 
l ength when I r aised this que stion in cro ss- examina tion and 
this is wha t Mr .. Puddle sta t e s 9 "In my experienc e an important 
function of an under mantager., •• o ••• but ventila tion had been normal. 11 

I t hink I clearly e stablished t hat the r oof c onditions were 
not a s ~ndicated in evidenc e in-chief. And I think it is mo st 
important, and certa inly very r el evant t o submit tha t the manager, 
Hr . Stone , comple t ely c ondon ed the under mana ge r 1 s ad!tion. 
This cr oss- examina tion on roof c onditions, in my opinion, had 
a, very big bearing on the fir e,and of course it is this question 
of pr oduction being the primary t ask tha t permea t e s other 
company staff members of lower grade a s witnessed on p . 97 vJhen 
Mr. Walker had this t o sayo Charlie Stewart had appar ently 
sta t ed 11 How is things mate? •! and Mr .. Wa lker sa id, uThey are 
lovely. They ar e very nice., They ar o a s swee t a s a nut and 
you should ge t a thousand skips t oday& You should fill a 
thousand skips t oday" 11 Do you see the emphasis: 11 a thousand 
s.kips t oday 11 i Well, tragically, Your Honor, life itself ha s 
de t er mined tha t we only go t four skips and f our coffins. That 
is what life has de t erminedo 

Then Mro Cambourn during the course of cross­
examina tion - and I think it wa s Mr. Lee questioning him -
indicnted tha t prior t o or just shortly after the c ommencement 
of the No . 2 ext ended cut-through from th~ intersection of A 
heading, ther e had been some problem and ther e wa s no production 
t aking pl ac e tha t aft ernoon and he r ef erred t o the f act that 
the overman came into the district . He wa s a sked the question 
by Mr . Lee , ttQ., Wha t did the overman come into the district f or., •• 
••••• had no t been producing .. 11 He did no t c ome in t o see anything 
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or to test anything in r elation t o tha t particular area - to 
see what had happen ed to production~ The se f e llows might not 
be doing their job so we have got t o have the watchdog s on them, 
the overmen, who ha ve no st a tutory authority under the Act. 
Then there is of course a further illustra tion of this c ompany's 
practice of production be~ng of overall importanc e , in the 
statement of MrB Reynolds on Tue sday morning~ I cannot 
quote verbrztim because I have no t the benefit Df the transcript, 
but Your Honor will r emember· Hr. Reynolds wa s dealing with the 
alterna tive methods tha t had been suggested and he wa s r ef erring 
to Mr. Henzies., He said 1.;ords t o this effec t, "Of course , Your 
Honor, you know M:eo Menzies indica t e($ that the bleeder tube 
through a s eal into the goaf out over into the main r e turn 
a irway but if this would have been achieved they would have been 
a bout 30 to 31 inche s in diametero I know Hr. Menzie s wa s 
only thinking of some al t erna tive that could have been done 
tha t would have been of int er e st~ but obviously he had not taken 
into c onsider a tion tha t the 30 inch diame t er tube would have 
prevented the shuttle c ar fr om ge tting into the shunt, so if 
it prevents the shuttle car fr om ge tting into the shunt no 
matter how safe tha t applica tion would ha ve been ~ well then , 
that 1vas just too sil ly to suggest a thing like . 1 You see , 
Your Honor, this is undeniableo It is ther e in black and white, 
just t he same a s the history of our industry has very very 
eloquently shm.;n in every c emetery in a mining to-wnship. And 
of course there was th e rib brattice and Your Honor will r emember 
the evidenc e of Mr r Cambourno He did apply an ordinary siwple 
mining act of practice~ When this ga s was being complained of 
he immedia t ely had er ected rib bra t'Gic e from the intalce a irway 
a long the shunt. Does Your Honor r emember that - the diverting 
brattice, the rib brattice - and t hen tha t rib bra ttic e wa s 
teJcen dov.n ., When I asked Mr c Cam bourn c ould he t ell me 1t1ho 
had t aken it d own he said he could not t ell me who ha d taken it 
down, but then further cross- examina tion elicited the fact tha t 
had t ha t brat tice r emained there then the shuttle car would not 
have been able to shunt in tha t shunt and this would have 
automatically had the effoct of r estricting production t o the 
point - or a t l east r estricting production by virtue of the 
f act tha t the shuttle cars wouJd h ave a longer trip each lift. 
And of course ther e j_s nothing acciden t a l about this because t his 
company must derl.ve profi t from it s oper a tJon s., It must derive 
maximum profit - that is the law under which it works. Maximum 
profit demands maximum produc tion and with maximum production, 
safety is invariably l o st sight of and that i s pr ec isely what 
happened on this occasion~ 

Your Honor will r ecall I cros s- examined Mr. Puddle a s 
to why he had not discussed with the manager the f act that he 
intended t o change the ventila tion o Did he not think this wa s 
a maj or issue and warranted discussion with his superior? But 
all t ha t c ould be extracted fr om Mro Puddle was that he did not 
think he had discussed ite He didnrt think he had disuussed 
this ma jor problem of changing a ventilation method tha t was 
directed by the Mines Department 7 tha t 'f•Ja s agreed by the c ompanyo 
He did no t think tha t vms nGc e ssaryo This appar ently wa s one 
of his day t o day j obs .. .hiS Mr . Reynolds wa s putting it on 
Tuesday, in a r eally ph:i..l.osophical way that Mro Puddle was a 
mner; he had come f rom the rankse Mro Reynold s did not use 
those words and again I cannot quot e him ve rba tim, but he was 
a miner, a prac tica l man who had come up fr om the ranks. Who 
t:...:, r e capable or qualified ·~-o make decisions such a s this? Wa s 
it nec e ssary, Mr ... Reynolds said ~ in making the se decisions tha t 
the under manager should kno\IJ how many cubic f ee t of gas were 
in ther o and how many cubic f ee t of a ir -.,.Ja s coming through her e? 
Well, Your Honor, if tha t is the at titude then there have got to 
be more r efr e sher c ourses than r efr e sher courses f or deputies. 
And this is further evidenc e of t he comple te l ack of r ecognition 
of the adequacy and iwporto.nc e - I should say for adequate 
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ventila tion. But of c ourse in the fina l analysis it did not 
matt er much whe ther Mr. Puddle discussed it with the manager or 
not because t he mana ger had a lready indic a t ed in evid enc e he 
agreed. To wha t wa s he in f act agr ee ing? He wa s agr eeing, 
in eff ect,-vJith a compromise of saf e ty in the interests of 
production., 

My submission t o Your Horror is tha t the changing of 
the ventila tion me thod by the under manager r e sulted in t he n ew 
method of ventila tion pl aying aoo j or r ol e in the subse quent 
disast er. I \vould just like t o int erpo se her e tha t I hope 
the Court Report er , if he find s I am r eading or t a lking too 
quickly, will l e t me know bec ause I have a full appr ecia tion 
of the t a sk they pe r fo r m. But of c ourse ? they ar e \vo rk ers. 

I submit it pl ayed a ma j or r ol e in t he subsequent 
disa ster, t hat the under manager and t he manager wer e bo th 
guilty of gross negligenc e~ a disr egard f or sa f e ty, and a breach 
of a mo r al, i mport ant trust placed in them by virtue of t heir 
certifica tion and authority ~ and I say tha t t he evidenc e bef or e 
you is very clear on t ha t particula r point. So is it any 
wonder tha t miners go in this mo r n ing and they do n o t know 
whe t her they ar e going t o walk out, be carried out or be blown 
out, when t he se things ar e being perp e trat ed. 

I want t o deal briefly with the bleede r tube an d I 
think my first r ef er enc e i s on Po729a Incidenta lly, and just 
for inter e st 1 bef or e I l eave this question I would like t o 
point out tha t it was a funny sort of a goaf ar ea, if you 
und erstand wha t I mean . You only hnve t o look at the map 
Exhibit JJ, t he col our ed plano It is like a pakapoo ticket, 
but I am no t .in any 1.vay being deroga t ory of anyon e vJho drew up 
tha t partic ul ar pl an., When I say it is lj_ke a pakapoo ticke t, 
I think Mr~ Sellers made some r efe r enc e t o it 7 but you see ther e 
is n ot a gr ea t deal of goaf ther e 1 Your Hon or? until we c ome 
t o 11 and until we c ome t o 10., 

HIS HONOR ~ I have already r emarked on t ha t. 

MR. PARKINSON ~ And of c ourse , with tha t amount ofcoal i~, 
but bear in mind the evidenc e tha t the r e is quit e a f a ir amount 
of dyke intrusion in tha t part i cular part and of c ourse dyke 
intrusion would have a high a sh c ont ent, I \v ould say that the 
company would no t be t oo k een abo ut mining tha t particular type 
of c oal. 

HIS HONOR. Ther e is n o evidenc e bef or e me .. 
0 

MR. PARKINSON ~ No , tha t is so , but it should be perfectly 
cl ear t o Your Honor tha t t he amount of c oal Hllich was l eft in 
th~ t goaf ar ea would have been a s ourc e for Ghe emanation 
of ga s, and a very big s ourc e ~ 

HIS HONOR: Tha t is amply pr oved, 

MR. P.ARKINSON: I will not go int o tha t. Now, Mr. Le e is 
a sking t he se questions a bout this ble ed er~ 

(Short adj ournment) 

Briefly I want t o deal with the question of the bleeder. 
On P129 a bout on e t hird of the way fr om the bottom it is Mr. Lee 
asking questions, '' Q., When you intr oduc ed i.t - earlier on -
did you r egard it a s experimental?A. No . 11 Tha t is when it 
was introduc ed in No ~ 3~ "Q. You had no bleed ther e , did you •• 

. t l I! ••••.. exper1men a o 

HIS HONOR~ The first r ef erenc e wa s introducing a piece of 
brattice and of c ourse t h8 bleed tube t o go with it? 
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MR. PARKINSON: Ye s. "Q. So you wer e dispensing with thG bleed •• 
... • • • did no t r egard it a s experimenta l?A. No . 11 This is 
perfectly obvious and is my submission, tha t this is clearly, 
on t he evidenc e , no t an experiment de spite t he f act t 11at it 
wa s t he first time used in this ar ea and I thi~~ the infer enc e 
which can be drawn fr om this is if it wa s n ot an experiment it 
was t hen t o become a permanent f ea ture of the method of 
ventila tion. And of course , you see , if tha t submission be 
accepted this t hen entirely cuts across the submission which 
has been made and brought out in e videnc e tha t the y intended t o 
split the pillar tha t had been f or med by the ext ensi~n of No . 2 
where the s i tua tion developed because ther e the y said t hey wer e 
going t o go back t o the old system of the bleed er he3.ding. Do e s 
Your Horror f ollow me ? 

HIS HONOR. Yes, I see wha t you me an • . 
MR. PARKINSON ~ And I think tha t this is evidence tha t t hey 
had no intention of going back and r e suming the old bleeder heading 
type of ventila tion system. Mr. Puddl e wa s a sked, nw. You 
did no tc onsider you might have t o de t ermine whe ther it worked 
satisfactorily, a s you could no t a sffi me it would?A. I did no t 
assume it would.'' I can only infer fr om tha t tha t it wa s no t 
an a ssumption, t ha t it wa s an acc ep t ed f ac t by Mr. Puddle t ha t 
it would work, tha t it vJ CJ. S not an experiment. 

HIS HONOR: I do n o t k n ovJ vJha t t ha t answer means, Mr. Par kinson; 
it may be · capable of the me aning you say you give it • It is 
a lsJ capa ble of the infer enc e tha t it could mean 11 1 believed it 
would, it was no t mer e a ssumption." 

¥B. PARKINSON: He is a sked whe t her it is an experiment and he 
s g_y s " No , it is no t an exp eriment.'' Then surely tha t person 
must be c onvinc ed in his own mind th t t hGre is n o n eed f or 
any experiment a tion . So , a t t he bo tto~ of p .722, and this is 
wher e I link t hi s up again, and f ollmv ing the c onc e ssion t o 
r oof c ontrol, Mr. Puddl e says this in his st 3. t ement, "I ther ef or e 
fo r med t he conclusion t ha t, f or a short time only, the bleed8r 
fr om t he goaf could be omitted. 11 I do not vJan t t o deal with 
tha t portion ailY further, only in a fina l submission. 11 This 
appear ed t o be working sa tisfactorily a nd I beli eve tha t it would 
have c Jntinued t o do so had it no t been f or a build up of ga s 
which must have either been very sudden or e scaped de t ection.tt 
He said, ntha t it \v ould have c ontinued t o do so 11 - n mv, no 
experimenta tion. My submission is a c onviction in Mr. Puddl e 's 
mind and in his o-wn sta t ement tha t ttit would have c ontill.Bd t o 
do so11 doe s not indica t e t o me by any stre tch of t he imagina tion 
th~ t t her e wa s any intention on the part of t he company t o 
r e sume bleeder headings and he split the No . 12 end- on. Of 
course , tha t is no t my sta t emen t; tha t is the sta tement of 
Mr. Puddle hi mself, t he man \<Jho vla s i n charge of the district 
under gr otmd and the man who introduc ed t he bleeder tube . 

I want t o touch briefly on this in pas sing because I 
think it is ra t her inter e sting. On p.732 it is Your Honor 
who is que stioning Mr. Puddl e , and I knm<J Your Honor ha s t o 
sif t a ll the evidenc e . You alc sed hi m, " Q. Is this wha t you 
sat : you used two t hings •••..• Tha t is t he po sition you put, 
is it?A. Ye s . 11 Then Mro Lee goe s on . He f ollowed the 
cross- examina tion, "Q. I t ake it fr om \vha t you havG just saj_d 
t ha t you c onsider ed the quantity of ga s ••••••• It had t ~ be 
c ontrolled, yes." Ther e is n o t a lk about dilution but t here is 
t alk a bout controlling i t which could i mp ly a certain amount of 
dilution and dispersa lo "Q. You vmuld no t maint ain, would you 
tha t t o c ontain gase s in a goaf ••••••• actua l ga ses wer e no t ' 
contained - they wer e no t sea l ed in.'' It bec ome s a question of 
degree here. 11 Q. But it vJ a s quite obvious t o yo u tha t you 1..J"ero 
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inviting a bui ld-up of ga s ••.•..•• It c ould happen, ye s.'' 

Would Your Honor t hen go t o p.ll5 and you may recall 
t ha t Mr. Puddl e also i ndica t ed he had given c ertain instruction s 
t ha t t his had t o be i n sp ected r egul arly. I t hink t here is a grea t 
deal pen tred ar ound t his que stion of t he word "regul arly ." 
This is Mr. Stewart's evidenc e about half way down p .ll5, "Q. Wha t 
did y0 u understand by t ha t, wha t did vent i l a tingthe shunt mean •• 
• • • • • apparently 11 t tle t o do '\v i th r e moving any kind of gas; 
is tha t right?A. Tha t is right.•• Then t her e is f urther 
evidenc e f r om Hr. qbewart t hn t thi ~ question of r egularity , 
keeping an eye on things, boiled down t o ordinar y r outine insp ection . 
I would n ow submit; in f act I would say tha ~ i f I _ hav~ a v . 

sta tutory duty which c ompels me t o make an lilVe stlga tlon .1\. t lme s 
per shift, if I wa s t ol d t o see t ha t it had t o be r egularly 
i .nsp ec t ed, tha t c oul d only mean X plus. 

HIS HONOR : Or it c ould mean tha t t he und er manager who t ol d hi m 
t ha t did n o t beli eve the deputy wa s going t o c arry out his 
X i n spections per shift t ha t he wa s r equired t o do and was r eminding 
him he would have t o do tha t. 

HR. PARKINSON~ Tha t is an i mplica tion also and I r ef r a ined fr om 
~tting tha t f or war d bedause I accep t ed t he fac t t l~ t t he deputie s 
car ried out t heir r outine inspections. I -vwn t t o go t o p.814 
and a t t he t op of t ha t page - your Horror had a sk ed a c oup l e of 
que stion s on t he pr c: vi ous page . I think I must have been cross­
exami n ing a t t he time because Mr. Reynold s ha s i n t erpo sed there . 
Hr. Reynolds sa i d this 11It is c onc eded a t all time s in his 
sta t ,_< ment" - tha t is YIT. Puddl e 's sta t ement - 11 and it \IJill be 
by me a t t he end 11 

- ther e s eems t o be some thing l eft ou t there -
11 tha t when t he ~illar mar ked ll 1.va s extrac t od ••.•.•.• and n ever 
will be." Now t her e i s no is sue t ha t the me t hod wa s depjrted 
fr om. 11 Then t his cross-examiner goe s on t o sayn - tha t is 
myself - 11 and deba t e s with t he witne sse •..•..• and t his vlil l 
po ssi bly be a ma tt er f or argument l a t er." Well, Mr. Reynolds 
did make a submis si on on t hi s in his addr e ss - "be tween t he 
danger tha t exists when we were extractiilg from No. 11 and the 
danger t ha t exi s t ed a t t he time of t he fire 11 - well, t he only 
danger tha t existed when t hey wer e extrac ting No . 11 or prior 
wa s t he se so-called bad r oof conditions and of course If Your 
Honor acc epts my submission and acc ep ts t he admission s of t he 
witne s s himself, t hen Your Honor can- only c ome t o Dn e ®Dnclusion 
t ha t t he c ondition s on Wtr. Puddl e t s o\n evidenc e i ndicat ed t ha t 
t her e ar e worse c onditions in the mine than t hose obta i ning i n 
t ha t area , "becau se a t t he time of t he fire , depending on t he v i ew 
one t ake s ••• ~ ••.•. n o t pr ecisely i dentica l per hap s but akin t o 
t his • 11 Then Your Hon or put some thing t o ~lr. Reynolds and he 
sai d , "Pr ecisel y S :.) •••••• it is being ha shed and r e- ha shed when 
it is no t an issue .'' Wel l , I d on't kno-,., how many c ooks we 
had on this occa sion but I c erta inly do say tha t t his is an issue 
Mr. Reynolds in his addr e ss submitted ano ther pl an but f or 
purpo se s of my own I want t o use the original document Exhibit JJ. 
Mr. Reynolds still maintained in his addre ss t ha t it wa s a r e turn 
t o t he me t hod s pr eviously adop t ed , This I seriously c on t e st. 
You see t he f irst extension , the bleeder heading No . 1. Then 
t hey went back a pillar l eng t h and dr ove No . 2 and t hen bef or e 
doing anything else they came right down and drove No . 3. That 
meant they had t wo pillars of coal prior t o t he ext raction of 
No . 7. If you have a l ook at the Exhibit JJ document you 
wi l l find t ha t t ha t i s portrayed ver y clearly. You will see 
t he purple No. 1, the n ext work ing wa s t he pink No . 2. It wa s 
driven in and conn ected with No. 1. Then N8. 3 - I thi~k 
it mi ght be callod a sa l mon col our, 1,11a s driven. It w.:t s 
lli!succe ssful in its link~~p and then they drove No . 4, t hey 
came furt her back No .. 3 and drrove No. 4, and t hen t hey had t o 
go into No . 1; drop back t o hol e t he brown and pink . Tha t wa s 
bef ore the r e wa s any extrac tion in No . 7. 
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MR. REYNOLDS: Tha t is no t the evidence. 

MR. P J~RKINSON : Well, if t ha t is no t t he evi denc e t his c _nno t 
be right, Your Honor, and wha t I am submitting is \</ha t is on 
Exhibit JJ. Am I incorrect in my surmi se t ha t t hese figure s 
only de t er mine t he s equenc-e ? .Am I corr ect i n saying t ha t Mr. 
Reynolds a t one time during t hese pr oc eed ings did say ther e 
coul d be a matt er of diffe r enc e of opinion be tween t he under 
m~nager and t he manager on t his particular que stion? Is thi s 
right or is it wrong1 I do no t know. I did no t submi t this 
document. Mr. Reynolds submitted it, and t hon Mr. Reynolds 
submitted another on e t o f ottify his argumen t. If I may go t o 
t he bi g pl an ( appr onching board) Mr. Reynolds' submi ssion -
apart f r om 1-Jhether this is t he evidenc e or no t - i s that t hi s 
wa s t o be a bleeder he :~ ding and tha t would become a bleeder 
heading by virtue of t he f act tha t it would hol e into t he goaf 
and then t he intej tion \-Ja s t o split Emd- on in t he pillar. 
I 1-1ant t o say t o Your Honor tha t it is my submi ssi on t ha t at 
no t ime i n the oper a tion of t his ar ea has such a split as tha t 
cont emplated been driven , and I put it t o you thqt t hi s i s a 
55 yard c en tre pillar. Thrr t give s us s Jmm.,rher e in t he vicinity 
of 48 yards of coal, appr oxima t ely. To split this pillar I 
would say t ha t we would drive 21 f ee t and with fr e tting ribs 
possibly r each 2t1- f ee t - another 8 yards. So if we t ake 8 
hards of f 48, the original, tha t leave s us with 40 yards of coal 
t o be split with a 20 yard pillar a t each side . 

Now, I defy anyone , Your Honor, and I am subwi t ting 
tha t nowher e during t he working-:rwa s t ha t ope r a tion put i n to 
eff ect and yet Hr. Reynolds in his submissions says, "This is 
identic al", or words t o tha t eff ect, and in that transcrip t of 
the no t e s t her e is precisely so in answer t o a que stion by 
Your Honor. I n e ff ect it is my submission tha t tha t could not 
have worked - t hey c ould n o t have extracted tha t pilla r and our 
men would have been subj ected t o working a long side 1-1ha t was the 
equivalent of a ga some t er. So again you vlill see this clearly 
r eveals the a ttitude of this company t o ha ve this iwportant 
ques tion bru shed a side a s no t an issue . Why doe s His Honor 
want t o worry a bout this, t here is n o issue in t hi s - this is 
t he a ttitude of t he c ompany. And of c ourse it is a ver y vory 
de signed a ttitude , gr a sping a t any straw - any straw a t a ll. 

I want t o go on t o the que stion which I kno~<T ha s been 
fully discussed - maybe t ha t woul d be t he wron g t e r m t o use , 
because I am sure and it i 1JOul d be my submission tha t Your Honor 
would no t be sa t i sfi ed with t he que stion on wha t ha s been 
exploined t o t he Court rel~ ting t o t he withdrawa l of the machine . 
Early in the pr oc eedings Your Hono r may r eca ll I was cross­
examining on wha t instruction s had been is sued t o any members 
working L~ t he clo se vicinity of the face in t he event of t he goaf 
holing - doe s Y0 ur Honor remember .tha t - and t he r e wn s an obj ecti.Jn. 
b. t t hat par ticul a r time Your Honor a sked me what v.1a s the r e l evanc e 
of t his particular ques tion a .~1d I po inted out t o you t ha t my 
conc ern wa s t he SC\f e ty of our members. And so you see the 
r el evancy of holing into the goaf has become very i mportan t in 
t hese pr oc eedings. 

HIS HONOR: It has become far mor e important than I r ealised o. t 
t he time . 

MR . PARKINSON: Tha t is tnue , Your Honor, but if I may say so , 
lvithout infla tion , it wns obvious t o me a t th?. t particul ar time 
of the nec e ssity -

MR. REYI'J 0 LDS • Is this p.l3 5 t o whi~ h you ar e r eferring, 
Mr. Parkin son? 
MR . PARKIN SON: I havo not had time t o go through - it may be . 
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MR . REYNOLDS : Ther e wa s no obj ee!tion t ak en ther e . 
be making a mistake ? 

You may 

HIS HONOR~ Ther e was a que stion about t his holing into t he goaf, 
on t he question of whe ther a bleed tunnel wa s t o be driven or 
not. This became an important i s sue of which X wa s no t awnr e 
a t the t i me . 

MR. PARKINSON: I would now like t o go t o p . 8oo on 1this 
particul ar matter and whi le ther e may not havt-.; been an obj ection 
a t p .l35, a t the very l a st paragraph on p . Soo I had been cross­
examining Mr. Puddle on the withdr awal of this ma chine . Mr . 
Reynolds st a t ed~ 11 Your Honor will r emember on Friday I obj octed •• o 

•••••• it hnd l ittle or no r e l evanc e t o the problem. 11 Tha t wa s 
t he Friday which would be 4th Fe bruary. This appears in 
t he transcript of Monday 7th Februar y . So the c ompany 's 
a ttitude her e wa s tha t it had little or no r e l evanc e t o t he 
problem because this is oilly a que stion .)f ventila tion and this 
only l i nks up ver y very closely with 1,vhat I have sa i d pr ·3Viously 
this morning about the importanc e of ventila tion and t he l nck of 
r ecognition by the comp any. Mr. Reynolds goe s on , "Hhe ther 
Your Honor thinks t ha t s ome body ha s t ol d lie s about t he matter, 
I do no t know •••••.• complete confusion be tween f act and the 
r el a tion of f e.cts be tween other peop l e . 11 If t her e we.s any 
confusi on be t \veen f act and t he r el c:. tion of f acts, this was 
entirely t he r e sponsibility of t he c o~pany because on a que s tion 
of t his i mportanc e ther e should no t have buen any nec e s sity 
wha tsoever. "His Honor : This problem do e s not arise through 
hear say .•..•.• That is all I wish t o say." There must be some 
link-up here . It is sa id it had li t tle or no r e levanc e to the 
que stion. Wa s the company becoming concer n ed because th~ee wa s 
a probing into this? Then of course t her e wa s t he adjournment . 
Then r·'ll" . Reynol ds had this t o say , immedia t ely on r e sump tion 
aft er t he short adj ournment : "Might I make a sugges tinn .... Would 
Your Honor accep t my suggestion?11 The implic ation is here, 
and I do not under any circumstanc e s deny Mr . Reynolds right 
to discus s with his client during t he short break but aft er 
discussing 1..rith his client to come back t o Court an d in effec t 
say his c ompany could be prejudic ed is , in my opinion , a slur 
on this Court . Mr . Reynold s had the right of r e-examina tion to 
clear up any conf usion tha t may have existed in Your Honor's 
mind as a r e sult of this fr agmentar y que stioni ng and the 
fr a gment ary an swers, appar ently , tha t wer e be ing given. But l e t 
us have a l ook a t this f r agmentary que stioning. If we go back 
to p .799 a t t he top and we coLmt the qu estions, a ll l eading up 
to Mr. Reynolds obj ection and t o t he conclusion of his sta t ement 
prior t o t he adj ournment we find tha t ther e wer e 27 paragraph s . 
I had asl-ced five que stions and in one par agraph made a c omment 
a s t o t he fac t tha t the dogwa tch deputy could be a man who coul d 
give us so me l ead on t his. Mr. Reynolds made six sta tements 
out of 27 . Mr . HcNal l t 2 , and Your Honor made 13 . Le t us 
have a look a t wha t the situa t ion r ea lly wa s on p . Soo. It is 
a t the top of p . Soo, uHis Honor: Q. Wha t do you s ay about it 
Hr. Puddle •••.•... in charge of t he n igh t shift .u The note 
\v a s left in the l amp room or in t he crib pane l . It coul d have 
been posted for all Hr . Puddle knevJ . 11 •••• 0. who \.Jn s the 
n i ght shift f oreman •.••••• and nobody a t t he :moment can t ell me 
psitively •••.••• little or no r e l evanc e t o the problem." Tha t 
1.-Ja s wha t -went on prior t o Mr . Reynolds s ta t ement tho. t a lso 
motiva t ed the sta t ement of an unfair situa t ion. Is thGre 
so me times a desire to f orge t this I nquiry is inve stiga ting t he 
cause s and t he r easons for the dea t h s of·4 men? 

I wan t t o mak e it clear tha t we ha ve made our position 
very clear. I do not know whe t her t hi s particula r qu estion wa s 
clear ed to the sa ti sfac t i on of Mr. Reynolds beca u se Mr . Reynol o ~ 
sa i d , "Would Your Honor be good enough to i n t erven e ? ••..•.• i 
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be too l a te." Now, I don't know whe ther it has been too l a t e 
but I don 't r ecall any r e- examina tion on this que stion by 
Mr. Reynolds of Hr . Puddle. I clon't know of any unfair 
situa tion tha t deve loped or could have developed but one th~g 
is clear in evidenc e and tha t is the fac t t ha t the company dld 
not want this matter ven tila t ed because t he sta t ement tha t it 
had no r elevanc e or very little r e l evanc e t o the problem is a 
most r emarkable a ttitude and quite in keeping with the pr evious 
at titude d~ring these proc eedings . Probably one of the r ea sons 
that the company did not wan t the matter ven tila t ed could be 
found in t he Coal Mines Regul a tion Act p .l719 2A (Read). 
All I can say , without in any way wanting to appear to be 
deroga tory to the surveyor, if this instruction ha s been given 
to t he surveyor then he r equires a refresher course. Wha t 
evidence has t he manager submitt ed to this Inquiry t hat this 
Regula tion was carried out in r el a tion t o t ha t particular areq? 
There is evidenc e tha t t here is a surveyor's peg ther e . Ther e is 
that evidenc e . The whole incident of the withdrawal of this 
machine is r eally Gilbertian and only for t he fact tha t it is 
so tra gic it would have been a joke . In the first pl ace the 
under manager knew nothing about it till Monday morning , tha t 
the machine had been withdrawn - knew nothing a t all. Mre Puddle 
sa id in evidenc e he knew the width of that pillar to be a 55 yard 
c entre. Mr . Stewart sa id in evid enc e he knew the width of tha t 
pillar to be a 55 yard c entre . Mr o Cambourn sta ted in evidence 
he tho ugh t it wa s a 33 yard c en tr eo 

We ar e t alking about ventila tion here , Your Horror. 
We are talking about ventila tion irre spective of t he build-hp 
of goaf gase s . We a r e t alking about who knew v1hat was there , 
who knew wher e t hey wer o going. Then of course we had the 
plan t ha t was in the crib room and tha t wa s drawn t o sca l e with 
the A, B and C headi ngs and then we have the evidence tha t 
v-1orkings fro m there on 1!/Gre pencilled in by the deputi es not to 
sca l e but to wha t t hey t hought it would be . I don 't know if we 
step io out, we have trave l led so many yards, and we use t he 
sca l e and A, B and C and use our pencil and state we have 
travelled tha t f ar, t ha t we have t he scale, we will put tha t on . 
This is t he manner in which t hi s wa s developed, Your Horror, but 
of course according t o the company t hing s like this have no 
r e l evanc e t o wha t Your Horror is investiga ting. And, of course , 
the plan wa s destroyed. Ye s, the pl an was destroyed . The 
heat of t he f ire destroyed the pl an in the crib room but it did 
not destroy the d eputie s' r eports, they wer e r ecover ed . Could 
t his be one of the r easons why t his que stion \-Tas irrelevan.t and 
the compru1y did not wan t it ventila t ed? I don tt know, Your Horror~ 
and you will have to draw your own conclusions. 

I wish t o r ef er to p8797. Halfway down tha t page I 
asked Mr . Puddle "So it wa s very important ........ not tha t 
part icular lift.'~ So here it was obvious that t he company 
wer e no t very concerned whe t her they holed into the goaf a t tha t 
particular lift. On Hro Sullivan 1 s submissions y es t erday about 
the sump, as he t ermed it and the heavy concentra tions of gas 
tha t had developed, i f t he company had suspected he.qvy conc entra tions 
of gas along the same lines a s Mr e Sullivan and did no t intend to 
hole until much furth er r e trea t ed back up the cut-through , I 
wan t t o r efer now t o vJhat I think is very i mportant on p .798 . 
There I a sked this que stion, "Couldn 1 t this have been the 
situa tion •••••• etha t wa s se t up with the T~piece and t he vent 
tube". D.oe s tha t indica t e tha t they wer e going t o split No .. 12 
heading end-on? 

Ther e is one ine scapable f act and tha t is the f act 
that t he r e wa s absolutely no me thod or plan associated with this 
venture and oper a tion in No . 2 ex t ended cut-through. J..nother 
approaeh by t he c ompany could have been tha t the company strongly 
suspected heavy conc entra tion s of gas in the goaf a t this point 
and had no intention of holing and no intention of splitting the 
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pillar end-on and int ended to conta in the suspected ga s in the 
goaf area by the use of a fender and the use of a bleeder tubo 
to keep the shunt clean., I think I have r ef erred to the 
r e-examina tion by Mr~ Reynolds of Mro Puddle on this question~ 
If you look a t Hr~ Reynolds r e.-examj_na tion :n1 pa864, he asked 
22 questions of Hro Puddle and not one on why wa s the miner 
withdrawn. 

Hro Lee 1 s submis sion of be ing l ax and off-handed 
generally in his submissi ons, tha t the company wer e lax and 
off-handeJ, app ears to bu a most t empera t e poin~ of view an~, 
I would submit 7 an lJnd ersta t oment ~ Clearly evldence on thls 
quewtion of why the machine wa s r emoved - the c ompany 1 s apparent 
reluctanc e t o have t he ma tt er discussed on the basis of 
irrelevancy, when this que stion is such an importan t point of 
r e levanc e a I would like to submit, :t ':l concluding on this 
matt or~ tha t this wa s on e ma tt er in t his h earing that you 
wer e not fully inf ormed on and the l ack of information in my 
submission r e sts entirely on the shoulders of the company • 

.At p . 828 Mro Sullivan wa s cros s- examining Hr. Puddle 
and he sta tes 9 

11You have told us on a number of occasions •• . . 
• • •o•owhen pillars wer e being extracted?A. Ye s .. n These have 
been counter-signed.. The finding of ga s \va s of such little 
importanc e tha t fro m t he 5th to t he 6th, on this particular 
question }tto Puddle coul d not r. eca llo Linking the r emoval of 
the machine with Mro Puddl e 's an swer s t o . Hro Sullivan 1 s cross­
examina tion l ean s me to this submi s si on: How long have our 
members to be subj ected to this type of adminiJtra tion? I 
submit tha t Raff erty woul d blush on t he evi denc e before Your 
Honor. Hro Puddle come s t o t his Inquiry and give s evidenc e to 
t he effect tha t inf l ammable gas had no t been found be tw~en 
c ertain d a t e s pr:.or t o 'ChG f ire vJhen h e had counter- signed 
deputie s' r eports indica t~ng tha t such ga s had be en found . 
He disre gar ds t he r equirement s and di r ec tions of the Hine s 
Department r ela t i ng t o t he bleeder head~ng . He c an give only 
scant evidenc e abou t t he withdrawal of t he IT13. chine - ga ve the 
original order s t o er~ct the bra t ~ic e in A heading which 
prevent ed the a r ea i n by the bra ttic e screen from being inspected 
and which f i na lly deve l oped in an a.cea 1.vhich could rightly be 
de scribed a s a ga some t er.. I t h ink the amount of ga s indica t ed 
by Mr a Donne gan \va s s omewhere in the vj_cini ty of 10 or 12 thousand 
cubic fe e t of gas behind a bra ttj_c e screen i mmedi a t ely prior to 
the ignitiono In some que stions I a sked he admitt ed you co uld 
not inspect be tween the bra ttic e screen and the goaf edge in 
A heading - not becCluse of oof diff icultj_e s - not, I submit, 
because of it being inacc e ssible but due to the f act of 
concentra tiGn of ga s. Mro Puddle went on t o t e ll me tha t 
he a s the .under mana ger had n ever a ttempted to ge t round ther e 
to s ee wha t the situa tion '\va s - in traduc ed the bleeder tube, 
a ventila tion which Hr. Wa sson de scribed at Po793. I do 
not think ther e is any n ec e s sity for me to go through the 
evidence Mro Wa sson gave . I a gree 'l.vith Mr. Reynolds in his 
submission t ha t the company did not ha ve any n eed to put Mr . 
Wasson in the box o Surely they did n ot think Mro Wa s son wa s 
going to say vJha t he did say about the bleeder tube and ·the 
ventilation - about how it wa s tota lly inadequa t e - how it 
was a form. of ventila tion t ha t he c ould n o t a pprove of _ but 
then he di,d make the c onc e ssion tha t some t hings might be 
differ ent in mining pr actic e - they c ertainly wer e different in 
t his mining pr ac t ic e at Bul l =L: by the c om}l·any. 

With all this you aro be ing a sked, in Mr. Reynolds' 
submissions, t o acc ept tho. f act tha t the pr actical mine r has 
to make decisions on the ,jobo That is \vhat you are be ing a sked 
to acc epto Can yo u acc ept that? I submit noto I would 
like t o mak e it per f ectly clenr i.:ha t my refer enc e s to Mr . Puddle 
so far this morning ar e not ba sed on any personalitie s wha tsoever, 
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it is based entirely on the evid ence. I also want to make this 
clear: tha t I do not for one moment contemplat e t ha t Mr. Puddle 
would deliber a t ely do anything tha t would c r ea t e even injury 
to his own personal employee s. I do not for one momen t 
contemplate tha t but what I do say is t ha t ther e wa s gross 
negligence here of a type thn t should not be toler a t ed in this 
year of 1965, vJhen t hi s happened 7 when we have Lunar 9 wa lking 
a round the moon, when we ha ve all the t echnologica l development 
and k.nmvledge tha t we have a t our hands, that we should be 
subject to the se forms of so-c alled safe ty. 

I want t o have a fev.1 word s to say abou t the manager 
and to deve lop thate I would like t o r efer to p . 613 and I 
think this must be acc ep t eda This is in Mr . Stone 's st a t ement: 
11As events have t urned out •. Goooooo and no Inquiry". Well, 
ther e is no ambiguity about this sta t ement. 

HIS HONOR~ You do not have to convinc e me the me thod of 
ventila tion was obviously inadequa t e . That has quite clearly 
been admitt ed by the manager and a lso by Mr. Reynolds on behalf 
of t he management. I suppose t he que stion is, was it obviously 
inadequate a t the time the ventila tion was installed and if it 
wa s so, wa s it so obviously inadequa t e tha t anything should flow 
from tha t. 

MR. PARKINSON~ Again, I link it up to wha t it does . Again , 
this l ack of approach t o t he que stion of t he cardina l importance 
of ven tilation and where inadequa t e ventilation c an l ead us. 
As I poin t ed out t o you it wa s not my intention to go a long the 
line s t ha t had been submitted t o you in addre sse s by Mr . Lee , 
Vir . Sullivan and Mr. Hurray bu t I think this is a very very 
important addition. It says 9 

11 Ther e would be no fir e and no 
Inqui ry"" Then, if vJe can go to p. 617 Mr.. Stone ther e says, 
11 0f course t her e wa s a ga s problem , t here alwa ys is, - detec tion 
and dispersal". .A. t p . 622 Mr. Stone said 9 

11 So vJhen you ar e 
extrac ting ........ t hat was correctn. Now, you r e l a t e that to 
the ga s problem previously and a t p o618 1""' . Reynolds said, 11Would 
you t ell us brieflY o••••••whcr e ther e a r e dead- ends," You 
r emember Hr. Sellers ' evidenc e. Her e I can agr ee one hundred 
per c en t t ha t v.re t r en t a 2-l ga s a s inflammable until proven 
other 1t1i se but we must always t r ea t all ga ses a s dangerous. · 
These are t he instructions tha t have be en issued now. Your 
Honor said, 11 Do you say you have a sked them ••••••• novJ we have 
cea sed t ha t prac tic e ~'. Tha t has creat ed some problems for 
them in t he past but r a t her t han stop the machine a ma tter of 
an hour or t !:lree- quarters of an hour and wi thdrm.; the machine 
to somewhere else , no , t hey rob and t hey r ob in t he inter e sts 
of production and it crea t e s some safe ty problems. Tha t has 
now c ea sed. 

I wan t to go to ppe856~7 . I have t o r ef er back 
again to ~IT. Puddle t o bring t his point out. Firstly, from 
p.856, 11 You 1t1ent out of t he mine and t elephoned Mr. Stewart ••• 
• . • • • • used for a shunt". 1ihi s is 1tJ hen Hr. Puddle , you will 
r emember, fir s t found t he g3S in A heading and er ected, or 
caused the bra ttice sc reen t o be er ected inby side of No o 3 
extension cut- t hrough . Do you r ecall v.1ha t I am driving a.t? 

HIS HONOR~ Yes. 

MR. P.hRKINSON: "You actually arran ged for t he bleed tube •••••. 
• •• the manager who ar r anged tha t. 11 I have heard Hr. Stone 
sa y in evidence tha t this me thod of the change of the bleeder 
heading had gone too far for him to stop it but there is one 
th~_ng for sure , Mr . Stone must have known of the i.~troduction 
of t he bleeder tube i .nby side of t hr ee cut-- through because they 
r equired certain ma t erials and they cont cted the manager amut it 
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on October 5th, who in turn rang Appin Colliery t o get t he 
r equired materialo Is it r easonable to assume tha t Mr . Stone 
would acdep~ tha t particul ar t elephone call from Mr . Puddle 
without saying, "Wha t do you want this for?" Wouldn t t he say , 
"What have I got t o get it from l~oppin for?" Is it reasonable to 
a ssume Mr. Puddle would not t ell the mannger 1.>1ha t t he situa tion 
wa s? Is it r easonable t o assume t he manager should not have 
had some doub ts a t l ea st about the sy stem at th&t particular 
time? The evidence is tha t the machine wa s only in 100 f ee t 
from~ heading in the ext ension of Noe 3 cut-through. Is it 
beyond the r ealms of po s sibility tha t t he manager should ham 
seen tha t situation and should have endeavoured to devise some 
alternative method then such a s withdrawing the machine from 
tha t particular area where it had only travelled 100 f ee t am 
probabl y c onnecting - cormnencing t he No o 2 heading ext ension? 
I don 't know. Surely it vJa.s some t hing t hat r equired a t tention . 
I r efer also to pe629 . This is another quest i on where 
production intrude s. I think Mr . Stone is be ing asked a 
couple of ques tions by Mr . Lee and then , of course, Your Honor 
a sks q1,re stions .. 11 Tha t is so, you don't •..•••.. t aking a risk 
a t a ll?A. No 11 • Que stions are a sked again by Mr. Lee of 
Mr. Stone about the side bra ttic e and the question is, "You 
can t ake it the side bra tticeo •••••• and put the tube in . 11 Then 
I t hink t his is ver y good , Your Honor ~ 11 I n your opinion wha t 
1.vould you say .••.•... and around there". 11 The thing" is the 
way it is described4 VIT . Stone indicates tha t t he under mana ger, 
if he succeeded, told t hem nothing . Then he indicates tha t 
Mr . Ryan - his version of what Mr~ Ryan sa id was t hat t here 
was no n ecessity for any applications to be made t o the Mine s 
Department and au thority given t o i n stal fans but of course 
Mr . Muir, in his evi denc e , mekes it perfectly clear tha t tha t 
was not his . I t hink this is ra t he r r emar kable, "I see you 
do not agree \<Jith the evidencec .•... I do not t hink it would do . 11 

But firstly he said he doe sntt even know, and t his is the 
manager of the colliery: "You do not think it vJOuld •••••• but 
I don 't accep t them." He admits he did not know a bout the 
pressure decreasing a t the bra ttic e but he disagrees with Mr . 
~iffithst evidence . 

Mr . Stone goes on abou t floor heave and, of course, 
t here is no evidenc e whatsoever of that . 

The last matt er I want to deal wi th in c onnection 
with Hr. Stone is his inspection, at p o647, "You heard witnesse s 
~ive e~fdence ••••... 11

• This is when t he manager made his 
nsp ec on on 3rd November. He sa id he wanted t o go in and see 

t he f ace and the ventilation. 11When you wen t t o t he ext ension 
of No . 2 cut. through •••..• tha t is true .. 11 Mr . Stone went in 
t o have a look a t t he ventil a tion and make an investiga tion and 
I don 't know what he inve stiga t ed . Tha t was November 3rd, 
the deputies ' r eports clearly indicate t hat noxious gas wa s 
de t ect ed on t he 2nd November and 3rd November. Mr. Stone did 
not see fi t t o make his own per sonal inve stiga tion. According 
to t he evidence he c ould not get out of t he shunt quick enough, 
as he may have been stopping some production or stopping the 
shutt l e car fr om ge tting in or out. You see , when I asked 
Mr . Stone the question did he pl ace himself in t he s ame category 
a s a c ap t a in on a ship - of course that go t a little hilarity -
but t he fact r emains the manager i s the equivo.lent of t he captain 
on t he ship . I find it ver y difficult a s a trade union officia l 
t o brook wha t is called managerial pr erogative . I say here 
wi thout any qualms wha tsoe ver t ha t both Mr . Puddle and Mr . Stone 
the trust .put ~in them by.c~r~ific ation ~d by their j ob, they Qr~ 
charged Wlth uhe r e sponslblllty of safety and welfare of large 
numbers of men under t heir supervision and this has all been 
breached and there has been gross negligenc e . The c ompany mus t 
accep t t his r esponsibility. If anyone in a mo tor c ar had been 
guilty of such negligence and killed. four peopl e I certainly wou:::..d 
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not wan t t o be confronting a Magistrato , in Wollongong 1 tha t 
would have been looked upon as a mos t serious t hing. I am 
submitting t o you tha t this must a lso be looked upon a s a 
very sorious offence and tha t it wa s gross negligence by the 
company r elating to t his par t icular disa ster o I want t o make 
a submission on Mre Sellers! evidenc e but it won 't be very 
long and I wan t to link it up \·J i th t he gene r al a ttitude of the 
company and t hen I would like t o make some r ecommenda tions 
which I do not t hink vJi ll be very long because I t hought l a st 
Friday you made it perfec tly clear you dmd no t want t o hear 
a.ny submis sions of mine :ill connect:..on with t he J oint Coal Board 
and j oint l egisla tion a s it r el a t e s to the Coal Mine s Regulation 
Act, and I accept tha to 

(Luncheon adjournnent) 

MR., PARKINSONg I have given some con siaera tion t o my submissions 
during t he luncheon adjournment and I do not intend t o go very 
f ar with Mr o Sell ers 1 evidenc e other t han t o say that I think 
it would have ineen muc h more preferable had Mr .. Sellers gone 
into t he box as a witness of t he Aus t raliru1 Iron & Stee l 
Company and not , as he v!a s portrayed by M..r., Reynold s when he 
produced ~ITn Sellers 9 as an independent wi tness . I have no 
argument with Mr o Sellers= qualifications. The only t hing 
I fo und it very hard t o accep t en the basis of independence 
was t he fact that Mr o Sellers had been r equested t o a cc ep t 
nomination as a.l assessor on behalf of t he company , and then 
of course when t hat did not eventua t e he was called upon to 
give evidence as an i.ndepencient witness and t hi s was r egarded 
as a magnanimous gesture on the part of Australian Iron & St eel. 
It was done for the purpose of a~sisting Your Honor and Your 
Honor did ask the question as to whether we had been abl e to 
r each common gi·oun.d of ag!.'eement and Mrc Reynolds said words 
to this effect, :· well, j_t Has not necessary , l.:·.:.a re will not 
necessarily be much dj_sag~"eemen t ·;., I a lso wan t ed t o point 
out t ha t it would have be8n a cardinal error t o t ake t es ts 
of ga s and send them t o ti1e Australian I T. on & Stee l analyst 
because I think the ~>Jitness would know ft.tll -vrell t ha t the 
Australian Iron & Steel have ther own dus t counters and our 
members will not accept dust coU11.ts of the Aus tralian Iron & 
Steelc- I find it 'jery infrequent tha t the Austr a lian Iron 
& Steel accep t s dust counts of t he Mines Depart ment . And so 
this is the atmosphere in which this spirit of independency 
is developed, To save me wading through thi s, may I have your 
tran script, Mr o BovJie? (Transcript handed to Mr o Parkinson) 
At p.964, this appear s in the statement about halfway doiD the 
page, uQ o Tl'J.:..,n you go on to say 1 it is not uncommon for mines 
to be wo r ked w:J.ch unventila ted. goafs ono••• • • ••I have never 
known of one case of heat ing in the Bulli Seam., 11 I go on 
to cross- examine on t he quest i on of unven tila ted go aves . This 
was an expert in mining ma tters~ all egedly assist ing Your Honor . 
There had been much evidenc e and discus sion around the 
~uestion of unventilated goaves, and t o my way of thinking 
this statemen t if left unchallenged ',..;ould in no way have 
assisted Your Honor t o a correc t c onclusion . We are discussing 
unver:tilated goaves in t h~s instance? the.r: the sta t ement says, 
"It lS no t uncommon f'I)'Y' rn1.nes t o be worked ~>J ith unvent i lated 
goafs," then he goe s on to tall-t ubou t i.oJhere there is spontaneous 
combustionD I wo uld say now tha t ~his was de signed t o l ead 
Your Horror t o the poin t of saying '!Thls is an unventilated 
goaf, it is not an uncommon oc:cui·rence?i, but then Mr . Sellers 
admitted t o me i n cross--examina tion tha t there wa s n o 
similarity betwe en that goaf and the goaf in the northern 
district where spontaneous combustion do e s occur. Ther e wa s 
no similarity, so if t here was no similarity how could that in 
any shape or form be a ssisting Your Honor? 
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You will r emember of course the sta tements of Mr. 
Sellers in connection with floor heaving and how he finally 
was brought down t o the point in cross- examina tion tha t he . 
found no evidence of f l oor heave whatsoever. Then, Hr. Henzles' 
answers to my que stions on t he que stion of floor h eave where he 
too found no evidence of floor heave. Your Honor asked a 
question of Hr. Men zie s, "Would you have found evidenc e of 
floor heave 11 , and Mr. Menzie s said he vlOuld have found evidence 
of floor heave. Then t her e is this thro r y of Mr. Sellers' 
that ther e was no lOO per c ent degree of certainty t ha t the 
holing in the goaf would ha ve been abl e to bleed gase s away. 
He t hen goes on to outline a theory of roof stre sse s, dykes, 
coal tha t had been l eft tha t could have been crushed to pulp 
and made into what we turn a tight goaf. But then you see 
Mr. Sellers knew on his own inspection t ha t ther e wa s not a 
tight go af . The goaf was not tight. He expl a ined to Your 
Honor in his sta t emen t t hat t he position in r e l a tion to t he roof 
condition at the goaf edge , he went to No. Lf- cut-through, and 
then the conclusions of Mr. Sellers were of course not accepted 
by the exper t wi t nesse s of t he Mines Department, particularly 
in r elation to pressure s, and fan s, and t hings of tha t description. 
I do not of course se t myself up as an expert in coal mining by 
any stretch of imagination and wha t I know about pressures and 
fans, tha t would be one of the t hings you could write on tbe 
back of a stamp and t hen ~:.:. .ill have room for t he Lord's Pr ayer. 
But the fact r emains that this evidenc e of Mr. Sellers' I say 
without any f ear of c on tmdiction, if you accept tha t evid enc e in 
globo then all that happened at Bulli Colliery on 9th November 
1965 wa s a negation of probably 9 5 per cent of what t he Mine s 
Departmen t wa s saying through its inspectors. And if you 
accept Mr. Sellers' evidenc e a s i t was produced originally in­
chief, then you would say,and it is my submis sion,that this wa s 
an act of God. 

1'1 
There is Mr. Seller s' evidenc e then in connection 

with the splitting of the pillar, the one that is formed by the 
driving of No ~ 2 ext ension; tha t h e wo uld not have holed into 
the goaf but he would have split the pillar and crea t ed tw·o 
dead- ends. When I put it t o him tha t he would ha ve created two 
dead- ends, he said "At l eas t you vnuld have had two open places." 
But he was creating t wo dead- ends and you will r emember I asked 
the que stion of ~tt. Sellers tha t the manager had already 
instructed that there shall be no d ead- ends and n ever a t any 
time in Mro Sellers' sta t ement - tha t is his evidence in-chief -
did he r efer t o t ha t thing tha t Mr. Dennis Stone r eferred to 
as the bra ttice acro ss A heading. I would have t hought an 
independent wi tne ss would have given you some indication of what 
tha t wo uld have done t o t he ventila tion, what t ha t would have 
done to the circumstances t ha t surrounded the particular ar ea 
at tha t particular poL~t. So tha t is all I want to say in 
connection with t ha t. The cros s- examination of Mr. Sellers 
is ther e and t he whol e of his s t a t ement with t he exc ep tion of 
tha t dealing wi th the analysis is a que stion of "may , possibly, 
it could, ther e is some pr obability." 

Finally I -want to deal very briefly with the company's 
attitude t o these proc eedings. They say ven tila tion wa s only 
one of t he problems, the infer enc e here being tha t ventilation 
is only equal tn problem to other problem s. They object to 
the holing into the goaf question a s nothing, or having little 
whatsoever t o do with the f ire . Obj ections wer e r aised to 
the question of the m~chine being r emoved, _ a s irre l evant. 
Obj ections were made to certa in questions on t he bleeder· inter­
j ection on t he roof c onditions on t he ba sis that "-vrhen a; e you 
going to ge t t o the fir e? 11 and on one occasion Mr. Lee, very 
gently I t hought, had t o r e~uke Mr . Reynolds on the basis tha t 
he could not understand why Hr. Reynolds so consistently embarr a s sed 
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his client by prima facie placing him in the position of being 
the defendantG Then the legal argument developed before 
Christmas on the question of Your Honor 1 s jurisdiction within 
the Terms of Reference and as it applied to s.3l of the Acts 
Legal argument developed again on the same particular question. 
As an ordinary layman, I have to work it out in my own crude 
way and I worked it out this way and I make this submission, 
that the companyis position in this hearing was by no means 
a good position a t all from the point of view of r e sponsibility 
in this tragedy and it was t actical to suggest or prevent, lf 
possible, legally of course , the ven tilation of certain matters 
that could throw more light on to this tragedy and tbus give 
Your Honor a be tter opportunity of being able to arrive at a 
decisiono The legal argument then centred around the right 
of Your Honor to make a decision - or at l east tha t is my 
understanding - and on my reading of the appropriate section 
of the Act I understand that there is no appeal against any 
decision which may be made by this tribunal. So, if there 
was a decision against the company, ther e could be no appeal 
against it and it would go on to the r ecord for all time. That 
is my submission to Your Honor; tha t is my honest statement. 

In his address on Tuesday morning, I think it was, 
Mr. Reynolds did not bring forward any r ecommendations from 
the company ~ not one, and I am not too sure because I did not 
hear what Mre Reynolds said and I could be corrected here -
whether he r:~_ in he agreed on behalf of the company with the 
propositions put forward or the r ecommendations put forward by 
Mr. Lee ; I don 1 t know . Mr. Reynolds then said, and I can't 
quote him verbatim, that the minimum of regula tions should 
become the maximum. Well, I can understand thRt too, because 
in the r egulat.ions tha t should have been carried out here in 
certain instances they were not c arri ed out, or certain directions 
were not carried out, because Your Honor see s that the Austrruian 
Iron and Steel are a law unto themselve s. 

In my submission the company bla tantly defied the 
~:.tnes Department in relation to the bleeder h~ading. It defi ed 
the Department and it ignored the Depar tment in r elation to the 
installa tlon of fans, and I gather maybe there is going to be 
some other l egal argument a s to vlhe ther the company's attitude 
in relation to fans, the ignoring of what is in the Act, as I 
understand it, or there might be some legal argument about that. 
The hallmark of being a good manager, under manager or overman 
or a deputy today is no t necessarily the ability and knowledge, 
technical and otherwise, in mining lore but is determined by 
the greate2' ~moun t of coal they can produce from the mine, 
from the district, or from the panel. I submit tha t the weight 
of evidence a t thi~ ho~ring has boen conclusive, is overwhelmingly 
to the point that I can say this: Safe ty was compromised in 
the interests of production and r e sulted in the deaths of four 
men. And I only hope they have not died in va:!n .. 

I want no\AJ to expre:=;c thron~h this Court the sin~'"'-: ~-.:. 
gratitude of the Central Executive and Centra l Counct1 0f the 
Miners' Feder a tjon to all those people who lent their assistance 
on the day of this tragedy and particularly to those, irrespective 
of what organisation they belong to, who r eally endangered their 
own lives in an effort to try to save the lives of these 
unfortunate members of ourso 

"•.TAry briefly I vJant to deal with recommendations. I 
do not say that I am dealing with r ecommenda tions briefly because 
I do not recognise the importance of these r egulations. I do 
not say it frolli ~ny point of view that I have become cynicalo 
Isay it because I 2g=e.e with the r ecommenda tions in the main 
submitted by Mro Lee . Also I agree with the recommenda tions 
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submitted by Mro Sullivan with one exception, and her e it is 
an amendment~ tha t wo a s a union 1 and I r ecognise that Mro 
Sullivan would have c ertain instructions from his district 
down here which is of course a branch of the Miners 1 Federation -· 
but we would not want our check inspectors to be paid if i .t 
was going to mean tha t our independence in relation to their 
work was going to be placed in j eopardy but we would want and 
would accept annual exp ense s for travelling because the districts 
in the Miners 1 Feder a tion in New South Wal e s, particularly 
this one and more particularly so the Northern District, ar e 
a very big i temo 

First of all I want to deal with the matt er that wa s 
developed a s the r e sult of s ome submissions made by Mr. Murray 
to Your Honor, and this wa s the subj ect Mr. Lee asked Your 
Honor to make a sta t ement a bout which Mr. Lee attributed to 
a personal attack on Mro Anderson by Mr. Murray. It r evolved 
around the que stion a s to approva l o Well, I was personally 
a little amused a t the argument thnt developed on this, but I 
r ecognise t ha t fr om a l ogal point of view it wa s not a joke ~ 
I r ecognise tha t You~ Honor ha s a specific task to perform and 
that when it is performed and finally sent on t o the Minist er 
it has to be the type of job tha t one cannot shoot hole s thr ough. 
But it is true tha t the Chief can approve but tha t do e s not 
compel anyone other t han t o tha t particular type of development 
that the Minist ::: -~ ha s appr ovad. Wha t we want a r e recommenn.::1 +-.;,..,.,­
that will become amendments to t he Act, will be polic ed, and tha~ 
we will see tho ben efi t of such r ecommendations arising out 
of this Inquiry. But just as soon a s it become s nec essary 
to have an amendtr.-:;nt t o the Act, tha t is when the New South 
Wales Government Minos Department lose s its identity because 
ther e is not one r ecommenda tton which Your Honor can bring down 
that will not have t o be agr eed t o by the Federal Government 
or the department ac t ing on behalf of the Federal Gove rnment 
which is the Department of Development of vJhi~h the Joint Coal 
Board is a parto 

HIS HONOR: I thinl{ you ar e a little pe ssimistic. I do no·' 
know about the history or what ha s happened in the pa st, but I 
have taken the trouble to see tha t it is worth my while making 
any r ecommenda tions. I f they wer e not going to be acc epted 
by anybody, then I would mer ely be writing so many words on 
piec e s of paper o But I understand the attitude of the Joint 
Coal Board - and they are the one s which in the long run will 
count, and they ar e t he one s you ar e t a lking about? 

MR. PARKINSON: Tha t i s right. 

HIS HONOR: I understand the attitude of the Joint Coa l Boa rd is 
that if the Minister accepts my r ecommenda tions and the New 
South Wale s State l egi.sl a ture is prepar ed to hav e the m made law, 
particularly sinc e they ar e dealing with this Coal Mine s 
Regulation Act which the J oint Coa l Board r egards a s being in 
a peculinr r")"ovinr 0 of the Sta t e Government here, the Joint 
Coal Board itself will in all probability see no obj ection to 
it and will advise the Commonwealth Government accordingly~ 
Tha t is wha t I am told by a very well informed sourc e as to 
what the attitude will be to such r ecommenda tions if they are 
accepted, if they a r e approved by the Hinister and of course if 
in turn they ar e appr oved by the New South Wal e s Parliament~ 
~herefore I say you may bo a little pe ssimistic ther e , and if 
I am to start making observa tions i.Jhich c ontain r ecommendati.ons 
as to the future which I thought for one moment were unlikely 
to be acc epted, not by the Minister although it is in his 
province but by somebody else afte r\ITards, I should f ee l v ery 
unhappy about making themo I understand this t o be the 
position. 
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HRo PAT K dJS!JN ~ I h rlVG gi v -:;n c J t: s..;_r'lGl' a tJon to tb.i. s par :_;}.c U~L :·y :: 
que st:ion dw .. "ing the c Jurr:., of ·~h .::: se p L' Oc0ed]rogs anri I ca tr t.J 'G,J 
the conc lu .sion 'S hat I conld r.'.o ·~· vi~ue.l :i. so ..... ~n _,·r l.quiry J ~'.Le t!:J.'l.s 
a11d a Judg EJ makj_ng ~~ C.!Co nme , :la;-; ~ons t~ 1.1 3. G wouJ r1 .. o t be et.c~;op ; .• !{b2 u 
or would -~ ' the basis for·, shall -w ·, :~ ay ~ .-:: =1.u.aLbl :~n.t;;" I I.Jou.1/t 
not thir..l:..: that~ bu c my t-xrJc:J."i c .i.-:eo J.1a s b,j v ;. ove . .:- many many ~ve o. J:" G 
that t hat has .i.:.o c w o:;:~{ Qt,~ out j~. J pr a. e: ·c::L.:.:tJ , ;-: .:,caU 3C I vJ~uld l 'k e 
briefly to indic a~3 tha~ when we ha~ tho ac cidcn~ in Bull~ Jl! 

May 196!+ ~ · very ~:~ o riou:.; a .:: c i dGn·t :- :i. ·c took .::t1mo s l:; n~ n ·J montt. .:3 .. 
How eve r 3 T cnn 'l.ssu r 0 Yc.t.u: Bon o:· of ~.hj __ s ; that l·lhat ovEJ :"' 
r ecolllinen.daV~ons you br·ins d~Jv?n •.qu -vJ:;.l. l fi t::; i1t for th c... m -:Jc.:.: a.usc 
th J. • 1 ..... f' . h ' ~ f'' : ac lS our rL, o! '.Jo l g .:: .~.or sa ecy" 

HL.S HONOR~ It; i . s good to kno .J I h3.V t~ t he ::mp.tJor c of i~hC.! ~~nGl.' R ·· 
F ede r a t . .i.OL a 

JR., PAHKINt30N~ VI e have :i:ought for safety evo:r: sinr.;e this was ar~. 
indus t ry? ::::nd as I s y s to('la;Jr i n. 1966 1,, e s ·~lll h1v e to fight ,, 
No1.v;- ba~l1 ' o thi.s quo :"'~.f c1. of ap~ rcvalo ':"h. .::. M.: .. r~e ~; Depar ·t.no: ... ::~ 
ha s approac. od e v e r y m1rd.-:_g r .. 01up any :i n NGiA; Sou 1: ~:1 t'fa1es pD5 nt; jLg 
out to ~ham t hgt ~he L0par~~ont would app~ovo sc ~ ~ - r u scu3 
equi.pme1.1t b GilJg i.u f~ t- .J. l J.. · d~ a:1d sha t ·was done ovr'1:" t~ 1-n yua~C :..j o.go:. 
: thi:.-:.k t h e r e ar e abm.:: ~ l·.hro .J ':!o:_l _: g :c ~ _ os l .IL th.i s dj_str ic t v.l}}::_r:.ll 
ha ~~-e ..L:.t...,~··\·a·' l "d i ·· T , .. ~r. li·. 1 • ' h e-• r -: so,...,..,,._ · -l ,:;, r ·y r_, t 1 ~-,a~. ;:·. )' '" . ..t.0 - ~•· .. · __ ~_. ,:, _ ' · • 1 I~_Yl.. 1f - ~ ..... ~ ... v ._.v ~ - - - V C:.. .._, . ......, J 1 '''.l. 

i rl the G'.L'l.ncdah 'll ' Ga. ~ Ul2_·:: ~: a. s tnedL, cu t in the ma jori.t·v of 
othee:-· c c.se s t he :~' cua.J.• tr-~en .:: h.1 3 ;:..::;._;n m--:·~ 1-d th l:;he -TG a tewanb J 
n1 .~"' Wl. ,..,, w·1,.1 ... ~ ··r·: -s ,..... .. ~r. -"·' ''n --r •·' 0 1' r.:.., J,.. :l~J -,,.. 7Ua l' al--~ ~ ,·,,-V\v ...!.- L - '- ' cl.!.~- ~-v- l. l. vv ..._ .v .L .... ,.., . "-' J __ .- --"''; 0 ... .,., v '-..J 

the;: the y i.lr t:, t n.:. ~: ~1- q ~n~ ol'~K:gc: of GF'-'ry\;rnng o ·' , . li e v.rllJ._, 
-waJ .. 'C anJ 3ee~L ·~ :-.:.at h:1s t.-::.cn -ch0 ctPP~~oach ·,:o .-:. nL ... que st.Lon) 
Th'.Jn of ~..: o 1.~.::.:s"' ~ d o r~ ot ur: c~o':' •J st i ng_t:<::J the D0 !:5 S .~ !)i 1 :~ -:;io s aE•.1 
the nec c ::; c; ,::'.._ t; y oi' a.LI a t2. ln~ccut :' ... 7 e h a .. ./J..ng t o c~ r) ,c; omothing 
abou ~..; l.-h:i s '?' q_·.li.p rnG. t - ~<J l'l 8.:.l nr.2. w;'l t: l. 8 i -_, i s L ! - ~ t a lle d , ooc;qu s.:; .J.. 

r e me nb e-r· \.th e D. :=.: ... u:"e; y h .::; ] :rv:J t ~:; 1.w ru 5.~ 1 .. :Poduc orl ',Je had to \Jage -"' 
d oc cn "·,; so-r. ·~ · of ~3.mpaJ 5.n .. :-: f :JC ·~·. ha ·:..: safot.r h cdmGts b ecame cul 
acc e p'- od fac ~.: :;; o f·:: 2:~ c. s tJ ll-~' nE·r .. l~ a s wer ·J C.JD.•~ m."' .. l C; d., I ;:;c,}.~_ Gvo 
some of m1.r 10 11 ' -JI":J .·::i lJ. sr:: ,,·~:0 ~ .. 1 : -vJll q t, ::..s ~J ho zo orl of th•~ m? 
l.fe can l ·L' c...,r·· l' V ;·.hrJC!:' ~ h....,l, ·: · :;. ~·: u · . I · ~ ... 1. , l. _l ' 1r -1 *' ·;, J...l "' ·r> n · ,... a· r-.or·r.., ec ·?·· IJ J. I (."l ..... . r V ......., ......, c't.- V . ~ ~ ~ \.: t...: - · u~ .J.,_ ... L V ..... .J ...... ..._) .. \._ - V 

nppr oa cl Oil t h.i..s q ,_ ,; , .. ::.en ~< :t.aY~ ~1. ') uou t::: ';,' 'J wi 2 ....... p ~Lay OU.L' p a r L 
a s 3. u::1:..on ir '. thos0 r cc or!Jn8r,d a ::. :_on~~ tha'li i1 3.J' b e brou gh;~ C..mnlo 
The O'l1y rhi ··· fJ' .. ,, ) 'J d"';.. ·l· o ,.... ' ' -· L ' l- h c · ·,·· rla ']C· mLl n~ ··::o a "'t O'I ''cw· g the l . ___ .• ..:> ~vU v l.... • • .; _,c.. U • " ' • L • . ~ b ·~ vJ . .c .._, '-' ' · y - . 

s ame att i tud ...; . 
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to deal with safe ty is needed, surely safety bec omes cardinal 
in the l~fo of a c ommunity and in the life of society, so f ar 
as that is conc erned. 

Side by side with this I would like t o make a 
revolutionary r ecommenda tion and in all probability I will 
see quite a numbor of r a ised eyebrows. I am firmly of the 
opinion, and I make this submission, t ha t deputies a s we know 
them today should be under the ~omple t e control of the 
Government Mines Department of New South Wal e s. They should 
be employed by the Government Mine s Department of New South Wa l e s. 
They should be sel ected by the Government Mines Department of 
New South Wales and they should be paid by t he Government Mines 
Department of New South Wal e s. And this is a simple matter: 
a levy could be struck by the colliery proprietors on the same 
ba sis as they strike a l evy f or their r escue sta tions and t his 
could be the pool from which the deputie s would be paid. Under 
this scheme t ho Government Mine s Department would have a pool 
of wha t could be t ermed junior government mines inspectors who 
wer e doing no thL~g else a t a colliery but carrying out their 
statutory dutie s. I am t elling Your Honor and I am making 
this submission tha t until we get t o tha t particular stage we 
will a lways be caught up with the problem tha t confronts us. 
Who se l ects deputie s t oday? The manager has the sole right of 
selection and immediately anyone is s elected tha t person become s 
inhibited. He become s inhibited t o the point tha t his 
sta tutory obliga tion can be impeded and ~ in f act impeded. 
On the on e hanc he has the under manager or the manager; on 
the o ther hand he ha s got the overman brea thing down his neck, 
and I heard Mr. Stone in the witnoss box de scribe the overrr:.en 
as senior deputie s - and they have a bsolutely no sta tutory right 
under the Act. So Your Honor see s this would then t ake mvay 
from the deputie s the po sition in which they ar e today where 
they have sta tutory obliga tions, they a r e inhibited by other 
factors, but they still carry r e sponsibility and in my opinion 
they should be divorc ed from them. To say that a deputy is 
a foreman is an over-simplifica tion and a oomplete under-
e stima tion of the r e sponsibilitie s of a deputy. Ther efor e I 
make tha t recommendation and I only havo thEee more to make. 

I will n ever r est until I see every batt ery loco 
and every shuttle c ar withdrawn fr om t he coal mining industry 
a s they are a potential source of danger each and e very moment. 
Here Your Honor heard the evidence ru!d a sked a aue stion of 
overheating and :rou r emember then Ivlr. Reynolds'~ -quo stion about 
this question of ov erhea ting on the ba sis of "l.vhen does overheating 
become overheating and when doe s overheating become a danger 
pointi Battery locomo tives tha t give off their own ga se s -
any short, a fire. In the first eight days of t his Inquiry, 
nine fir e s, eight of t hem a ttributable t o electricity. I 
think Your Honor should give every c onsider a tion t o within a 
limited period of time , the same a s the c ompanies wer e given t o 
remove flammable be lting and introduce non-inflammable belting, 
that battery locos, shuttle cars and cable cars should be r emoved 
from this industry and r eplac ed by de isels. Far be it fr om 
m to be advoca ting deisels, and I r ecognise tha t ther e could be 
a problem with deisels in r e l a tion t o CO but in my opinion it 
is a problem tha t c ould quite ea sily be overcome - quite easily. 

The other r ec ommGnda tion could be look ed upon more a s 
a minor r ec ommendation but not t o us. In the general cont ext 
of the Act it could not be looked upon a s rtinor. Tha t is we 
feel provision should be made f or the unionsr right t o have an 
aectrical check inspector on the same ba sis a s we have a district 
mine s inspector. Our district check inspector, Mr. Parkinson, 
ha s a vary high degr ee of knowledge in r e l a tion t o mining 
industria l matters, but when it c ome s t o the question of 
complica t ed involvement in el ectricity in a mine it is a differ ent 
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question. So we fe e l a r ecommendation along those lines would 
be something tha t would be most acc epta ble ID the unions. Of 
course it could well be argued tha t if you a re going to r emo ve 
shuttle cars and you are going to r emove c able cars and battery 
cars, what elec tricity is there? But then you will notice - I 
cannot visualise anything a t this particular stage that would 
replace the continuous miner, and it has electricity, and there 
are other t hings which require electricity. 

I am not too sure whether this would be a superfluous 
r ecommenda tion, tha t bleeder tube s should be withdrawn and t hey 
should be t aken to Ball 1 s Paddock just up here and they should 
be se t on fir e in Ball's Paddock. I do not a sk Your Honor to 
make the r ecommendation in exactly t hose words, but I t hink 
Your Honor ge tw the i mport of wha t I mean. I think that 
bleeder tubes should be completely condemned and they should not 
be allowed in the mines. 

Arising out of t his Inquiry, Mr. Anderson, the 
Chief Gover nment Mines Inspector, ~IT. Donagan, and quite a 
few of the check inspectors - I feel still tha t there should be 
gr ea t er supervision by the Mine s Department on pillar extraction. 

Those are the r ecommenda tions and tha t c ompletes my 
submissions. 

HIS HONOR: Thank you for your a ssistance, Mr. Parkinson. 
Yes , Mr. MeN ally'? 

MR. McNALLY : Ye sterday Your Honor dir ect ed Mr. Sullivan 1 s 
a tt en tion t o various r ecommendations conc erning the p~ entages 
of ga s tha t could cause work to stop and machines mbe shut off. 
I say this only a s a ma tt er of a ssistance; those regula tions 
are conveni ently se t out in Inspector Muir's r eport a t p.977. 
There ar e four r egulat ions, t he f irst one being General Rule 1, 
s.54E in which it is sta t ed among other t hing tha t a place is 
not in a fit st a t e for working or passing if t he air conta ins 
either less t han 19 per cen t oxygen or more than l i per c en t 
carbon dioxide , so it is in t he al t er na tive . General Rule 7, 
Regulation 27 , the 7th Schedule , and Regulation 69 of t he 
7th Schedule all deal wi th me thane , inflammable gas (read ). 

HIS HONOR : If one used a methanometer it may be nec essary to 
do somethi ng about tha t? 

~ffi . McNALLY: Yes. The r egulation itself 
inflammable ga s is found on an oil saf e ty 
in the same schedule provide s - (read). 
per cent, so in effect things happen both 
dioxide and me t hane at li per cent. 

provides tha t 
lamp. Regul2 tion 67 

It is roughly Jl 
in r el a tion to carbon 

In an effort to short en my addr ess to Your Honor, we 
~uld say generally sp eaking tha t we agree with the 17 propositions 
of fact put forward by Mr. Lee, with possibly two exceptions, 
and the se are only minor amendments to t he propositions which 
Mr. Lee put forw ard. We do not have the confidenc e tha t the 
fire was caused by ignition of wood tha t Mr. Lee perhaps ha s. 
We r ealise tha t it is nevertheless significru~t that wood can 
ignite, tha t hydraulic oil can cause a f ire , tha t brakes gen erally 
may cause a fire 1 but Your Honor will r ecall the e vidence of 
Mr. Donegan deallng with the wood at p.444 ~the transcript in 
which he expr es sed the view tha t it would be- sufficient for the 
piece of wood not nec e ssarily to ignite but to gbw only. 

HIS HONOR: I thought if wood did glow it could ignite? I 
suppose ther e is a fine distinction in t erms. I suppose ignition 
means ther e is a flame. 
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MR. McNALLY: We do not concede even tha t the wood glowed and 
caused the fir e . There is tha t doubt still in our minds, 
but when one t a lks of ·wood igniting one has a pie tur e of a large 
fire. One is inclined to believe tha t Mr. Mangles looked 
around and saw t he wood on f ire ; in fact this is most 
unlikely. On p.444 it wa s put to Mr. Donegan and he added 
this which in our submission is significant. It is the 
third last question on tha t page, 11 Q. You say the wood may have 
been glowing befor e the car went into the shunt ••••••• ignitable 
composition.u The r ea son I r ef er to tha t is t ha t one does not 
have the picture here of a shuttle c ar going into a shunt, 
hydraulic oil or wood or whatever be the cause suddenly occurring 
ther e and t hen .9t tha ·same time a s it came in c ontact with the 
gas. It could '"ell be tha t the '><JO od, if it wa s t he wood, had 
been glowing the time before and t he gas may not have been there. 
One then starts to consider things, as to whether or not people 
wo uld s mell it. I think Mr. Donegan expressed the view tha t 
perhaps Hr. Mangles would not smell it, t hen l a ter he suggests 
tha t miners could smell it, but he did mention the possibility 
that t his wa s not the first time that the brake wa~ in such a 
condition a s t o cause fire. It depends on two things, the 
wood being in tha t sta te and the ga s being there in such 
proportions as to ignite. And we would make that distinction 
from the expr ession of fact that Hr. Lee put. 

HIS HO NOR: Is this your proposition: if in f act the vJOod 
had been glowing on a pr evious journey the gas could then in 
all probability have c ome into the shunt during the absence of 
the shuttle c ar on tha t pr evious journey? 

MR. McNALLY ~ Well, not even exactly that. In our submission 
this is t he difficulty in making a submission to Your Honor 1 that all the se t hings must be possibilitie s only. I am not 
going t o sugge st any interpre t a tion of the f acts that we say 
should be f ound because it is a matter for Your Horror. We can 
only sugges t alterna tives. It could well be tha t the wood 
wa s glowing and t he fact of the shuttle car going into the shunt 
itse l f a s Hr. Hangle s put it would c ause ga s to come through 
the bra ttic e . It is possible t he ga s wa s not in the ~unt 
until t he shuttle car itself attracted the gas into the shunt. 
At all time s it must be r emember ed tha t t hi s fir e was a gas fire, 
but not n ec essarily the ga s tha t \..Jas in the shunt at the time 
the fire started because no one knmvs or will ever knovJ a t wm t 
stage the shuttle car went through the screen. And we know it 
is conceded by everyone tha t behind this bra ttice screen t her e 
\vas a big build-up of gas and it could well be tha t was most 
of the ga s everyone thought they saw on fir e . This is a 
possibility, but n evertheless it is conc eded that ther e wa s 
ga s in t he shunt at the time of the fir e . 

Our second distinction , our second point of differenc e 
from Hr. Lee 1 s submissions of 17 facts, is this: we do not 
concede it is beyond doubt by any means tha t the c omposition 
of the g a s in t he shunt a t the time of the fire vJaS the same a s 
the composition of the gas on 12th and 15th November when the 
samples wer e taken. We say tha t for this reason~ f i rstly 
one must r emember ther e had been a fire and this may affect 
the gas itself. We do not for one minut e sugge st it was not 
Illawarra bot tom gas, we simply say tha t the X3 per cent, 
I think it wa s, earbon dioxide may not have been of that 
perc entage . We do not concede tha t the 40 per cent methane 
wns of tha t percentage or the 2 per cent nitrogen was of that 
percentage . I am novl speaki_Ylg of the airfree mix~ures, not 
the atmosphere as found. 

HIS rtONOR: In other words wha t you say is t his , that it is 
bottom ga s in both ca se s but different proportions, different 
components? 
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MR. McNALLY~ I will shortly be submitting t o Your Honor th t in 
all likelihood ther e \va s more than one type of g as 1h this 
go af, and there is evidence to tha t aff ect. 

It was put to Your Horror by ttt . Reynolds and in 
substanc e we wo uld agree with t his, tha t the immedi a te cause 
of th e fir e wa s twofold. · I do no t nec e ssarily say one must 
necessari ly go further than this in lo oking for immedia t e 
causes, but t hey were twofold· the fa ilure to ventilate the 
shunt a s it ought to be ventiia t ed , and secondly the f act that 
ga s wa s not previously de t ected. For t he sake of brevity, 
Your Honor ha s heard Mr. Murray , Mr. Sullivan and Hr. Parkinson 
on t he que stio~ of ven tilation. I only propose t o deal with 
t he question of de t ection of ga s, whe t her anyone had failed t o 
detect and whe t he r it could be said tha t on the e vD ence one can 
only co me t o one conclusion tha t ga s should have been found if 
t e st ed for pr operly. We say t~ one ~nt nec e ssarily come 
to tha t conclusion. One might have one's suspicions but one 
might no t. But on t he evidence we submit ther e is one more 
possibility open t o Your Honor. The po ssibility, a s we see it, 
as to why t he gas wa s not foQnd cannot include the fact tha t 
t he deputies did not t e st a t all. There is not one wi tne ss 
to come forward either from the Feder a tion or manag ement or any 
other union t o sugg e st tha t deputi e s in f act - illLd when I say 
"deputie s" I am sp eaking of the four who were working in thjs 
section - did not t e st at all for anything a t any time . vlo 
have t he r eports. It cannot be suggested tha t they sit down 
and make them up. 

To our mind ther efore tha t lead s to three alternatives 
a s t o why the ga s wa s not f ound befor e the fir e : (1) It was 
due t o f aulty t e sting t echnique s· (2) It was due to f aulty 
or inadequa t e equipment; or, (3~ It wa s due t o t he fact t_hat 
it wa s not pr e sent in detectable quantitie s in areas wher e the 
t e sts wer o made . -

HIS }IONOR: Tha t covers up another possibility, Mr.Ma.Nally and 
tha t is tha t al though I have t o agr ee it c anno t be sa id 
deputie s did not t e st a t all a t any time , it could be that no 
t est wa s made a t the time befor e the fir e , the particula r time . 
fia t is the other alt erna tive . Wha t is your submission about 
tha t other al t er na tive . 

MR. McN.ALLY : Well, I fo el that the main allegation I have to 
answer at this stage is the allegation made by Mr. Lee in 
his summat i on t o Your Honor. His submission t o you wa s, a s 
I und erstand it, tha t the ga s which caused the fir e wa s ILlawarra 
bottom ga s. We agree with tha t. The . gas, had baen ther e the week 
previously, ruLd r eport ed a s noxious gas. It has not bemL 
suggested by Mr. Lee tha t the gc.s came there shortly befor e the 
fire. Your Honor is now dealing ivith Mr. St mvart separ a tely~ 
an~ propose to direct some r emarks to his evidence a t the end 
of my address, but it is tha t allega tion I seek now to f ac e , 
that the ga s wa s there. As be st a s I c ould I did ge t the 
words of ~IT. Lee , tha t t he finding of Illawarra bott om gas 
af t er t he fir e l eads t o the 8pinion t ha t it wa s pr e s ent before 
the fir e and wa s being r eported a s noxious gas . VJe submit t ha t 
that is not support ed and not borne out by the evidenc e , tha t 
the presenc e a t the time of t he fir e l ead s t o the opinion it 
wa s ther e befo re the fire and r eported a s noxious g1s. 

Ther e have been various ·op i n ions expre ssed a s to 
the corr ect t echnique of finding Illawarra bottom ga s. This 
ha s been discussed by witne sses around the flo or and people have 
expr e ssed opinions in Court, and 'Ghis is a ma tt er which sinee 
the fire has been a gr ea tly deba t ed proposition. To me at the 
outset, knowing nothing nbou t t he subj ect before c orning into it , 
t here 111as muc h r oom f or argument a s t o t he corr ect me thod of doin g 
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the ba sic thing, and from tha t one must realise tha t little 
though t was given t o t his by a l arge body of people. 

HIS HONOR : It is ver y disturbing t o say t he l ea st. It 
could also l ead t o the inference £hat people had done worthle ss 
t e sts for bottom ga s since it was discovered there. 

MR. McNALLY~ I propose t o c ome t o this at a l a t er stage , but 
the pr e sence of tha t gas in tha t mine wa s not known t o the 
inspector fr om I think 1957 t o 1960. Its presence in t he mine 
wa s not known t o the manager till the day of t he fir e . 

At some leng t h I pr opose t o deal with the descriptions 
of t he various t es ts by the witne sse s and firstly I want t o go 
t o t he description given by Deputy St ewart a t p.llO of the 
transcript. He was a sked by Mr. Lee t o describe the t ests and 
he t her e de scribed t hem. In order t o save time I will not 
r ead a lot of it, bu t he turned t he fl a me down fr om the nor mal 
carrying height and he low er ed the flame , lower ed the light . 
He wa s a sked by Mr. Lee 11 Q. Wa s t he fl ame used t o detect 
carbon dioxide ••••• :.I am positive . 11 
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Tha t, Your Honor, wn s his me thod of t e sting, the same l amp 
for c arbon dioxide, a little be low nor mal c arrying flame and 
he is positive it will de t ect me thane . Deputy Walker, a t p .70, 
de scribe s t he t e st t ha t hG carried out in 9oing into the shunt 
and his t e s t is as described in a bout the oth paragr aph: 11 1 
turn my light down ••..•.• 11 • It wa s t e sted lrJ i th th~ t e sting 
flame . This wa s done on t he shif t before the f ire . So 
apparen tly Mr . Walker wa s i n the practice before the fi re of 
t e sting the who l e aroa with this s mall t e sting flame . 

HIS HONOR: If you t e st a t the floor with t he small t e sting 
flame his a ttitude is you might find me thru1e itse lf on the 
f loor l e vel. If he is doing it with t ho s mall t es ting glame 
he do e s not think he will f ind it in the pre senc e of carbon 
dioxido,. :l..f he is going t o start a t t h8 r oof and go t o the 
floor he i s go i n g t o run ~he ·r ·iek- -c..£.. .:t.t eo~ gut, 

MR. HcNALLY ~ He is ther e describing his t e sts. 

HIS HONOR : I r e alise tha t. 

MR . McNALLY~ One doe s not rely sole ly upon t he l amp to de tect 
carbon dioxide . Your Honor will no tic e in Mr . Longworth's 
8v i.d enco wher e he says ur detected X perc entage of bla ck damp 
and I smel t the me t hane 11 • Mr. Walker WC:J S apparent l y sa tisfi ,.:;d 
in his mind ther e wa s no black damp ther e when h e di d tha t t e s t. 
In f act he d i d no t lose his light so it could not have been 
ther e . 

HIS HONOR : Why is he t e sting with t he little flame for me thane 
a t floo r l ev el? 

MR. McNALLY : To de t ect for inflammable ga s . It is a t est he 
carried out. I am simply trying t o point out, with out saying 
it is t he correct me thod, thAt vari ous me t hods were used . 

HIS HONOR : I r eali se tha t, bu t this is causing me some t hought. 

MR . HcNALLY~ Mr. Longworth d emonstre t ed almost t he sa me ma.nnr 
of t e sting. I sp eak subj ect t o correction h ere bec au se this 
is no t clearly shown i n t he transcript, bu t my r ecollection is 
tha t Mr . Longworth r educ ed t he sma ll t e sting flame and l owered 
his l i ght ever so gen tly with t he s mall flame showing. 

HIS HONOR : For me thane a t t he floo r or me thane in the pr e s ene e 
of bo ttom ga s? 

MR. McNALLY: He lovre r ed the small t e s ting flame f r om high up 
down in t he direction of the f loor. Tha t i s wha t Mr. Wal ke r 
doe s. The only di ff er ence appar en tly being t ha t Mr. Walker 
ho l ds the lamp undernea th so t ha t he c an r oadily turn t he flame 
up if it shmv s any t endency t o go out but Mr. Longworth holds 
t he hook a t the top . Inspector Menzie s descr ibe s h is t e s t a t 
p.339 . I r ealise by now Your Honor may hav e worked out your 
own way of lflinding ga s, a s I have . Mr. Henzie s has n ever 
de t ected it hims elf . He wa s asked by Your Honor wha t wa s the 
righ t me t hod of do t ee ting Illawarra bo t t om ga s ar1d he sa id , 11\tJhen 
Illawarra bo ttom ga s i s being de t ected , ••••••• of tho flame 11 • 

Tha t is the me thod of t e sting t h a t Deputy Stewart adop ts. 

HIS HONOR : You see \flha t f ollows? 

MR . McNALLY: Yes . I inb:md t o go on . Wher G t hey differ, and 
this may wel l be expl a ined by t h e f act t hat Deputy S t e1.rart ha s 
never in f ac t enc oun t ered Illawarra Bo ttom Ga s like Mr. Menzie s -
Mr. Menzies, Your Horror will r ec all, h ad enc ount er ed it but in 
proportions where it would no t show on a flame sa f e t y lamp . He 
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goes on: nwe t ake the furth er step •••.•• a s a cap on a flame 
safe ty lamp. 11 Ther e ar e ther efor e two steps to find the 
existenc e of the methane and t o then a sse ss the perc entage . 
That is as described by Mr. Menzie s. I am not suggesting tha t 
is sufficient in itself because .one might say even if you did · 
not de t ect the increa sed luminosity on your carbon dioxide flame 
you would never t heless still t e st the fringe area . ~tr . Longwor t h 
said you may miss the increased luminosity but the first l eg 
of t he t e st de scribed by Mr . Menzies is t he t es t Depu t y Stewqr t 
used. Now , if on one occasi on he no tic ed the increas ed 
luminosity, who knows , he may 1.vell do wha t :tvir . Men zi c s ~aid he 
"'ould do and say, "There is me thane , I wonder how muc h ls ther e". 
It is highly likely tha t is wha t he will do,. He is a sked in 
the witne ss box early in the piece and he know s he is always 
~oking with tha t flame , he has a lway s don e the f irst t es t 
Mr. Menzies doe s in the oper a tion of finding me t hane . One 
a sks is ther e a grea t deal of difference . One knows , now the 
fir e ha s occurr.ed and everybody has discussed the ma tter, what 
course to adopt. 

A further t e st was demonstra t ed by Mr. Selle rs, 
being the scoop me thod a t p . 908 where the lamp is lower ed quickly 
into the ma ss of ga s and r aised and t hen examined for the 
presence of methane . This t e st was r e j ected by Mr. Menzies a t 
p.337. The signifi.cant part of Mr. Sellers' evidenc e is a t 
p.966 wher e it is put t o him the me t hod t ha t Mr. Stewart 
adop t ed. The first ques tion tha t was asked by me, in the 
middle of t he page wa s, " If one wer e t o use the saf e ty lamp •.•• 
•••• tha t is the me t hane causing it? 1.. Yes." He is de scribing 
i!Jhat 1t1ould happen if one were using t he me t hod Mr . Stmvart wa s 
using, or using t he first leg of Mr. Henzies' t e st and he sa id 
you would ge t this increase in flame caused by t he me t hane . I 
thiru{ it is fair t o say because of t he c omplica t ed n 8 ture of the 
Illawarra bottom gas t ha t it would not matter wha t me thod one 
adopted in using the flame safe t y l amp . On some occasions, 
depending on the skill of the oper a tor, he would miss Illa.warra 
bot t om gas. Thi s appears t o be eviden t fr om the opinions 
expres sed by various people but to say tha t in the circumstanc e s 
befor e t his fir e all t he peopl e who t e s t ed with the flame 
sa f e ty lamp had missed its pre s enc e I would submit would be 
stre tching the e videnc e a little t oo f ar. The evidence is 
undoubted , there were 13 people i n the section who t e sted a t 
various interval s of time . 

HIS HONOR: In t he shunt? 

lffi . McNALLY g No , not all in t he shunt but t he sugges tion is 
tha t the g a s wa s elsewher e than the shunt previously and r eported 
as noxious ga s. 

HIS HONOR~ You say t he ga s wa s elsewher e than the shunt ar ound 
this t ime? 

MR. McNALLY : I t is sugges t ed by Mr. Leo tha t the ga s tha t 
caused the fir e was I llawarra bottom gas and had been r epor t ed 
as noxious ga s during the week pr eviously. Tha t pre suppose s 
one ga s only. How c an one say the gas found earli er in the we ek 
was nece ssarily Illawarra bottom ga s without Gsking someon e to 
acc ept tho proposition tha t ther e wa s only one gas a t a time . 

HIS HONOR: It c ould have been both .Illawarra bottom g as and C02? 

MR. McNALLY: Ther e could hevo been more t han one compo sition 
of Illawarra bottom ga s. lher e co uld have been black damp ther e . 
Ther e could have been me t hru1e . 

MR . LEE~ Tha t is not wha t Mr . Donnegan said, his evidenc e wa s 
tha t ther e wa s only one gas in t ho goaf, Illawarra bo tt om gn s. 
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HIS HONOR: I a sked a question a s to whether ther e was .fre e 
methane and when Mr. Doneganr s evidence '\.fqS r ecalled to me I 
r ealised I was wrong. Mr. Donnegan's evidence was tha t any 
methane would be in the form of Illawarra bottom gas but t here 
was only one gas in the shunt. I t hink tha t is the effect 
of it. 

MR. LEE: Tha t is the effect of it. 

MR. McNALLY~ My fri end's submission must presuppos ~ the fact 
tha t ther e wa s only one ga s ih the shunt. 

HIS HONOR: The goaf or the shunt? 

MR. McNALLY~ Well, in the goaf. 

HIS HONOR: I dontt know if it goes that far, there may be 
gas ih the goaf but the only ga s in t he shunt at a particu~r 
time may be Illawarra bottom gas~~ any other ga s, for example 
some k ind of mixture of bottom gas and C02, you might have a 
bit of both. 

MR. McNALLY : It is pretty obvious on the evidenc e the ga s in 
t he shunt came from t he goaf. I thought Mr. Donnegan sugg~.sted 
t he r e wa s only one type of gas in t he goaf. I t hink my 
fri end would agr ee with tha t. From this f act my fri end t hen 
t akes the next st ep of SEl ying w·ith one gas in the go af wha t was 
reported t he week befor e a s noxious ga s must have been that 
one gas. 

HIS HONOR: If ther e wa s only one gas in the goaf obviously 
any ga s t ha t came out into t he shunt must have be en tm t gas. 

MR. McNALLY: It is our submission t ha t t here is a high possibility 
t her e wa s mo r ,.=J than one ga s in the goaf. 

MR. LEE: At p.405 Mr. Donnegan sa id uThe go af ga s is this 
mixtur e of carbon d.iocide methane and nitrogen". The whole 
effect of his evidenc e was tha t the go af had Illawarra bottom 
gas, that t ha t wa s t he gas in t he goaf. 

HIS HONOR : Only Illm-1a r ra bottom ga s plus nitrogen. 

MR . LEE~ Yes. 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is a component of the bottom ga s, I 
S1 ould think. 

HIS HONOR: Yes, it h~ s some nitrogen. You ar e suggesting the 
evidenc e shows ther e was more than one gas ther e? 

MR. McNALLY: Ye s, t he evidenc e shows it is possible . How could 
Your Honor hold tha t wha t the deputies r eport ed a s being nNmious 
gas was in f act Illawarra bottom ga s unless it '\va s e st a blished 
it was only pos sible ther e wa s one ga s in the go af? 

HIS HONOR: I could do it as a matt er of inference. 

MR. MeNALLY: It is possible there was mor e t han one type. 

HIS HONOR: An infer en~ e can still be drawn fro m the circumst anc e s. 
For examp le say t he situa tion was tha t five minut e s before the 
fir e broke out a deputy had t ested in the shunt and said it 
wa s C02 and then the fire br eaks out a nd iw..rnedi a t e ly aft er the 
fir e it is t e sted again and we knmv it conta ins inflammable 
matter from the fact tha t it burn t and we kno1.<1 tha t the 
i mmedia t e t e st aft er ward s snows it is Illawarra bottom ga s, even 
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though it could be shown there were other gase s in the shunt I 
am entitled to draw the inference the gas the deputy tested 
was Illawarra bottom gas but on the other hand I am most 
interest ed in your proposition of the possibility of other 
ga ses in the goaf. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Do es my friend mean it was not of the same 
composition all the time although it was there? 

HIS HONOR: I t ake it as meaning there were some other gases, 
for example C02 , fre e , or methane, fr ee of C02. 

MR. HcNALLY: Or 9 a different composition of Illawarra bottom 
gas - all of those must be possibilities. 

HIS HONOR~ Free methane, free C02 and then bottom gas varying 
~ to its composition? 

MR. McNALLY~ Yes. 

HIS HONOR~ Where do you get that fr om? 

MR. McNALLY~ On the day the t es ts were tak en by the Department 
on 12th and 15th November t e sts were also t aken by the company. 
I underst and thes e t ests were not taken by Mr. Sellers but by 
the company. In Mr. Sellers' r eport you will see two 
certific a t es of analysis, one da t ed 17th November 1965 where 
samp les were taken on 16th November 1965, that is the same day 
as t he ones t aken by the Department. The only sample there 
tha t is not nearly pur e air is the fourth sample which is almost 
exac tly the same, the airfree calculat ion works out almost 
exactly t he same as the airfree calculation in Mr. Donegan 1 s 
t able 4 in Exhibit X. The only calcula tion I have made on 
the company 's quantities is the one tha t is not almost pure air 
and the a irfree sample of that includes 57.2 per cent carbon 
dioxide, 38.8 per c en t methane and 4 per cent nitrogen which 
is almos t the same gas a s the sample lA t aken on 12th November 
1965 so tha t it would seem that two days after the fir e , or 
three to five days af t er the fire the gas tha t was present 
near t he edge of the goaf and in the shtmt is roughly speaking 
wha t my fri end sa id in his address, assuming the a ir is t aken 
out, 58 per cent carbon dioxide, 40 per c ent methane and 2 per 
cent nitrogen. 

If one looks at Mr. Donegan 1 s t ables the samples 
whi ch are not very close to being a lot of air, 96 per c en t, 
and 99 per cent and ther eabouts, all almost calcula t e to 58 
per cen t carbon dioxide. For examp l e , samples lA, 2A and 4B-
58 per cent carbon dioxide, 40-odd per cent methane and 2 per 
cen t nitrogen. If one goes to the samples t aken by Mr. Sellers 
on 18th January 1966 there are four sampl e s. This is Mr. 
Sellers' r eport, the certificate of analysis dated 20th 
January 1966. 4 samp les of ga s were taken, two were t aken 
at the floor, one wa s taken halfway up and one was t aken at 
the top and they calculate2 dealing with the first sample , tbat 
is 56.9 per cent air and 4jol per c ent airfree - I have had 
the assistance of Mr. Donegan and Mr. Sellers in making the se 
calculations to some extent - it is an airfree cont ent of 
carbon dioxide, 62.4 per cent - methane, 30.1 per c ent and 
nitrogen 7.5 per cent. The second sample is 51.7 per cent air 
and 48.3 per cent airfree. No. 3 con ta ined - firstly, the 
airfree conten t works out a t 63.3 per qent carbon dioxide, 
24.1.1- per cent methane and 7.3 per cent nitrogen. The third 
sample gave 62.2 per cent air and 37.8 per cent airfree. The 
content of the a irfree sample is 62.9 per c en t carbon dioxide, 
28.6 per cen t methane and 8.5 per c en t nitrogen. The fourth 
sample is 84.2 per cen t air, 15.8 per cent airfree. The 
airfree content is 62 per c ent carbon dioxide, 27.8 per cent 
methane and 10.2 per c ent nitrogen. I will hand Your Horror a 
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document which se ts this out. 

(Document t ender ed and marked Exhibit uoo") 

The four samp l es show a consistency and, Your Honor, 
dispensing with the decimal figur es they c ont ain 63 pe r c ent 
carbon dioxide on t he aver age , 29 per c ent me thane and 8 per 
cen t nitrogen which r epresents a f all of ll pe r c ent in t he 
methane content. So, this es t ablishes one thing, tha t a t 
l east in tha t time , t hat is from November to January thor e wa s 
a differ ent ga s in 8 Right section than ther e wa s 3 to 5 days 
aft er t he f ire , the me t hane cont ent was r educ ed by ll per cen t. 

MR. LEE: Mr. Sellers' samples wer e t aken a t t he f ace , I am 
r eminded . 

MR. McNALLY: Tha t is so. Your Honor will r ecall tha t it wa s 
on 13th J anuary that he first notic ed it and -...ren t into the area 
and it wa s 25 yards back from the place, there wa s an ar ea of 
ga s accumula t ed t he r e and the ar 8a , in the meantime , had not been 
ventila t ed. 

That crea tes a number of possibilitie s and it leads 
one to wonder whe t he r in f act Mr. Donegan is right when he says 
the gas in t he goaf was of t he one sort - it may well ha ve been 
on t he day of the fir e but one must wonder wha t it wa s before 
the fir e . Your Honor will r ecall tha t a t t he foot of t he 
ex t ension of No . 2 there is a goaf area formed by the extr a 
lift tha t wa s t llicen off. It would be impossible t o say if 
this ga s thHt wa s do·wn near t he miner pl ace had come up from 
the big goaf and gone down or whe t her it came from the goaf 
a r ea itself in 8 Right. In our submission one cannot 
nece ssarily say ther e is only one type of gas and tha t it is a 
ga s which con t ains 40 per c ent of me thane in its airfree samp l e . 

HIS HONOR: It would all be bottom ga s on those samp l e s, wouldn't 
:it? 

MR. McNALLY: I don 't know. I don't know whe ther it is. 

HIS HONOR: Otherwise it cuts right across not only the opinion 
of t he experts but par ticularly Mr. Sellers' evidence of the 
collection of bottom ga s which built up. 

MR. McNALLY: One would wonder wha t would happen if at t he same 
time black damp and Illawarra bottom ga s were issuing from 
two differ ent sourc e s in the goaf . 

MR. REYNOLDS: I t hink Your Hono r migh t be slightly in error in 
saying it cuts across Mr. Sellers. As I underst and it he wa s 
not necessarily denying the actual constituent par ts of tha t 
ga s might vary fro m a further emana tion from time t o time of 
exce ss CH4 or C02. I don 1 t t hink it cuts across it in tha t 
way. 

HIS HONORg That was not put t o Mr. Sellers. To acc ept Mr. 
McNally's proposition one would have t o forg e t the significance 
of the infer enc e t o be drawn from Mr. Sellers' evidenc e . 

MR. REYNOLDS: Tha t is why I t hough t Your Honor might not be 
underst anding the position. I t hought pos sibly Your Honor had 
not app r ecia t ed wha t he wa s putting. He wa s saying this gas 
which caused the ignition, which wa s found af t erw ards, although 
ther e was a l eak of ga s bef ore , it might have had diffe r ent 
constituen t el ements, they might have not been of the proportions 
tha t wer e found. I migh t . be wrong a bout tha t. 

HIS HONOR: I r ealise vJ ha t Mro l'1cNally is putting , tha t ther e 
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may have been different ga ses, ga se s in addition to Illawarra 
bottom ga s and that the ga s tha t wa s ther e as Illawarra bottom 
gas could have differ ent proportions of C02 and methane and 
tha t the goaf itself might have been from time t o time r ec eiving 
inj ections of C02. I do not t hink he wa s suggesting it wa s 
r eceiving any methane .· 

MR. McNALLY: It l eads to three possibilities; firstly t o the 
conclusion tha t t he ga s in the goaf need not necessarily be the 
same fr om day to day, that ther e is perhap s mor e t han one em: .. rc e 
and more t han one type of Illawarra bottom ga s in t he goaf , 
or in 8 Right. It l eads to ano ther po ssibility, tha t ther e is 
a source of carbon dioxide in 8 Right. I would submit it 
l eads t o a conclusion tha t th er e may be a source of pure me t hane 
in 8 Right. The l a tter alternative is consisten t with the 
t hr ee r eports or four r eports made during October. I Q~der­
St 8.nd ther e '\.J er e other r eports but during October ther e were 
four r eports of infl ammable ga s. It is consistent with it 
being q5ource of inflammable gas . Th~re ar e numerous reports 
of noxious ga s which is consisten t with two things, either 
there wa s in f act carbon dioxide and nitrogen or bla ck dAmp or 
ther e wa s Illawarra bottom ga s in unde tecta ble proportions. 
Your Honor will r emember ther e is t he e videnc e from Mr . Menzie s 
tha t wher e you have a combina tion of ga s in which the carbon 
dioxide exceeds - the propor tion of carbon dioxide to methane 
t 3.2 t o one you will not detect it on the safe ty lamp. He 
said "Yes, you would find it11 but he wa s dealing with it 
generall y, but when looking for it with the safety l amp you would 
not find it. 

We have a mixture which Mr. Sellers found wher e the 
me thane content had r educed from 11 per cent - from 40 per e ent 
to 29 per c en t - if it r educed another 6 or 7 per c ent you have 
tha t perc entage where your carbon dioxide is 3.2 time s the 
amount of me thane . I only put thi s forw ard a s a possibility -
with)our limi t ed finances we have had some difficulty getting 
our own expert . It is a possibility. Ther e ar e other 
possibilitie s from this f act and it would be our submission 
tha t one canno t say , as Mr . Donegan has sa id, and Mr. Lee 
ha s drawn t he inferenc e , tha t it wa s Illawarra bo ttom ga s there 
on t he day of the fire which must have been ther e t he week 
bef or e and wa s r eported a s noxious gas . Wha t Mr . Lee says, 
of course , is a possibiiliity but a s long a s these other possibilitie s 
exist one cannot say the deputie s should have found it. The 
suggestion that t here wa s a different type of ga s ther e or 
perhap s n oxious ga s in the ar eas t es t ed and till Illawarra bottom 
ga s in t he goaf, not yet built up, during the we ek befor e the 
fi r e , but in the ar ea s t ha t wer e t e sted t her e was noxious gas, 
is consistent with t he fac t tha t it wa s no t found before and 
consistent with the f act tha t it WRS f ound so easily aft erwar ds. 
If you t ake Mr. Sullivan's t he ory, and we do not dispute tha t 
theory a s another possibili ty, and i t is substantia ted by a 
very significant f act ths t when Mr. Sell ers went t her e on 
]th January the bottom ga s he found wa s back down the end of 
the extension of No . 2, it had not ye t bui lt up t o the stage 
wher e it wa s closer up to A heading . I think he found it a t 
some 25 yards back from t he f ac e . Mr . Sullivan 's theory is 
consistent, a s perhaps all t he theories tha t have been expr e ssed. 

MR. SULLIVAN: It is not my theory, it is in the transcript. 
It is the expertsT t heory. 

MlR •. HcN.b.LL~: It_is cons~st er: t w~th \A~ha t_I ~ut , Yol;lr Honor? 
it lS n?t.lr:conslstent wlth lt~ JUst a s lt lS conslstent wlth 
thepo sslblllty of the barome trlc pr e ssure being the l a st straw 
tha t pushed it over the edge , just a s it is c onsist en t with t he 
heave of the flo or opinion expre ssed by Mr. Sellers. This c ould 
have been the l a st straw tha t pushed it through. 
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HIS HONOR: As far as I am conc erned it is not a possibility 
unless ther e is s ome evidence of floor heave . I cannot gue ss 
at it. 

MR. McNALLY~ But I do not sugge st the 
wher e it would be noticed, it would be 
it must always r emain a possibility. 
common vray for the ga s to ge t in the 

floor heave is anywte r e 
in the gonf . Surely 
I mean this is the 

goaf in the first pl ace. 

HIS HONOR~ Ultima t e ly I may have t o use some standa rd such as 
that. 

MR. McNALLY: It is a little hard t o s ay on th0 probabilitie s 
tha t thi s happened and then therefor eit should have been found 
on the s afety lamp. Your Honor must have some r egard to the 
standard of pr oof one is going to apply. 

HIS HONOR : You may take it I am fully aware 0f the principles 
to be adopted as to what standard of prrnf t o be used . I should 
need co gent evidenc e on wh±h t o base a finding in r e l a tion to 
one of your clients, a finding which pl ac ed his futur e or 
Bputation in some j eopardy. Baving s aid tha t, if I do so ~ind, 
I must find there is very cogent evidenc ~ . 

MR. McNALLY: All I seek to do is t o point out to Your Honor 
that t her e ar e a n~mber of po ssibilities tha t could happen. 
V~ . Leo 's is not the only po ssibility, he starts with a 
proposition in his opening, and I do not say this critically, 
that bar ome tric pr e ssure caused t ho gas t o c ome out. Well, 
poo ple have expr e ssed opinions abou t the eff ect of t he bar ome tric 

ppe ssure bu t t he fact r emains tha t bar ome tric pr e ssure c an have 
an effect on goaf ga se s. It may have been , according to ~ 
Mr. Sullivan's t heory, it may have been t he l a st straw. Mr. Lee 
r e jects the theory and r elie s upon the f act tha t it wa s always 
t her e - not Mr. Donegan. My fri end cannot draw tha t fr om the 
evidence . There has been a lot of evidence direct ed t o what 
the deputie s di~ and did not do and wha t under managers did and 
did not do and who t e sted and t here have been a lot of que stions 
asked in tha t r egard, but his theory is inc onsistent with the 
fact tha t they did t e st. Ther e a r e a number of ot her possibilities 
which ar e c ~n sist en t with the f act tha t they did t e st. They 
are a lso c onsistent with the f act tha t t he ga s wa sn't ther e t hen 
or wasn't de t ect ed then . We don't sugge st tha t th e faul ty 
t e sting t echnique would accoQ~t f or the f act tha t t he gas wa sn 't 
f ound, it is t oo much t o say , too much t o find, in our submission 
tha t 13 people could miss it. 

We do not suggest t ha t the equipment provided wa s 
such tha t we could not h e1 ve f oLmd t he ga s . Ther e is ampl e 
evidence befor e Your Honor a s t o the inadequacies, in some 
r e sp ects, of the safety l amps but it is not s o inadequa t e tha t 
n number of people c ould no t find t he gas • One person using 
it may, because of the l amp, not find it, but n ot 13. 

Now if I may direct Your Honor 1 s at t ention to 
certain inadequacie s from th~ evidence in r el a tion to the 
lamp: Firstly, it c annot t e st near the roof and n ear the 
tha t is established, and ther e is no a rgument about it. 

saf e t y 
flo or, 
The 

second inadequacy is tha t it will not find the me thane in 
Illawarra bottom ga s - 3.2 to one part of carbon dioxide - t o 
one part of methane - it vJill not de t ect.- We submit tha t is 
an inadequacy of the instrument - me than e a t ;below approximately 
lt per c ent, by whic h stage the concen tra tion is r eached when 
machinery must be t urned off acc ording to r egul a tion 69 of the 
7th Schedule . Is it sufficient t o say 11it is ther e , turn it 
off 11 or is it better t o say 11 it is so much t oday and we will 
keep an eye on itn. We would submit t ha t is an inad equacy. 
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Similarly with carbon dioxide it c annot be de tected 
till ~ per cent has been r eached a t which stage the rule, 
Rule ~' provides that the work shall ~top~ We would fubmit 
that lS an inadequacy, you h0ve t o walt tlll you_ge ~ 14 per 
cent before you know it is ther e . It will not lndlcate the 
perc enta ge of carbon dioxide - the light_ may be lost and it 
cannot be re-lit. I think Inspector Grlff iths actually lost 
his light. Tha t is appar ently a common o~curr enc e . There 
is evidence from Mr. Donegan at p.44l that ln bott om g8 s carbon 
dioxide t ends to r educ e the flame c aused by the me thane so tha t 
the possibility of de t ecting in the a tmosphere even lt per 
cent - I think we wer e then t a lking about 1.4 per c ent - ~f 
methane in Illawarra bottom ga s, may be r educ ed, so tha t lf you 
have a mixture wher e you have got 1~ or lt per cent me thane and 
you have got carbon dioxide there you may well miss it. Mr. 
Menzie s, at p.339, expressed the opinion tha t the saf e ty_lamp 
will be extinguished a t be tween 4 and 5 per cent. I think 
in f act it is a little above 5- 5.4 or 5.2 per cent. If 
there is any per c ent of methane i n the atmospher e and the 
light is extinguished this surely is an inadequacy of the 
instrument. Even if you have got 6 per cent me thane you have 
lost your light. 

For t e sting generally f or Illawarra bottom ga s the 
instrument we would submit does not give the degree of 
precision r equired but de spita the se inadequacies we wo uld 
agree tha t whilst on e person might? because of the inadequacie s, 
f ail t o de tect the ga s the number of pe ople who t e sted in the 
section could not have f ailed t o de t ect it bec ause of the lamp, 
so we would agree tha t t he inadequacy of t he l amp wa s n o t the 
r ea son for the f a ilure to de t ect t he ga s befor e the fir e 
and tha t the true r eason, or it is possible tha t the r eason 
why it wa s no t de t ected wa s tha t it wa s not ther e when people 
wer e looking for it, tha t f or t ha r easons I have indicated it 
was either a differ ent ga s or it wa s n oxious ga s or ther e wa s 
just no ga s a t a ll. 'vle would submit tha t whilst it c annot be 
denied the Illmvarra bot tom ga s wa s ther e a t the time of the 
fir e ther e is no r eal direct evidenc e fr om which Your Honor 
can infer tha t it was ther e when Deputy Stewart t e sted before 
the fir e . I say tha t meaning this: It may have be en ther EJ , 
wha t he smelt may well hRve been it but he may have failed to 
de t ect it f or a number of differ ent r easons - it may n o t have 
been mo r e than an inch or two inches fr om the ground - the l amp 
may miss it. For a number of r easons he may not ha ve d e t ected 
it. It Calli!ot be sa id, from any part of the evidenc e , tha t 
it wa s ther e with any degree of certa inty when he t e sted and 
it c annot be said tha t it was ther e in a de t ectable f a shion 
when he went in. Th er e was appar ently, fr om his de scription 
of it, v ery l ittle ga s ther e a t t he time. He d e scribed how 
he t ested, could no t ge t it, smelt it, r emoved it, t e sted am 
l eft the shunt. It could be that in the half hour odd tha t 
elapsed be tween t ha t and the fire , until finally the shuttle 
car went i n and it itself a ttracted ga s int o the shunt - this 
opin ion is expr e ssed by Mr. Sellers - the oper a tion of the 
shuttle car 'l.vould have the effect of a ttracting ga s. It may 
~ ve been, alterna tively, because of the barome tric pre ssure e 
If you look a t the chart you \vill n o tic e tha t be tween 6 ani 
10 o'clock the barometer f ell more than it had earlier. It 
may well be tha t in tha t half hour thG barome tric pre ssure 
began t o have an ef fe ct and brought trapped ga ses out of the 
go e.f which the e l ephant trunk wa s no t r emovLYlg. Ther e ar e a 
number of possibilitie s. If on e is told a pt3rson went into 
the shunt and t e sted for ga s a t 8 o 'clock and he did n o t find 
it the a ssumption must be it wa sn't there unless for some o ther 
r ea son on e c annot believe that witne ss and we would submit 
tha t tha t r ea son her e doe s no t exist. 
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Another thing one cannot be sure of is the amount of gas tha t 
wa s behind the brattice . Just how much was behind the brattice 
9~ow much was outby the brattice or i nby the brattice one 
cannot be certain. We kn ow there was sufficient there when the 
fire started to burn. We do not know whether the fire would 
have continued if the brattice had rema ined ther e " It cannot 
be said with any degree of certainty that that shut t le ca r 
going throug h that bratti ce did not release a l arge volume of 
ga s and t hereby ca using the fire to be much bigger tha n other­
wise it necessarily would have been . It is of course a poss i b­
ility that i n a ny event the brattice would have been burnt down, 
if there was suff icient gas there to burn it down. Of these 
two f a cts one cannot be sure. And we cannot be sure of just 
how much 9 just what gas was ther e when Deputy Stewart t ested. 
Your Honor will recall tha t r~. Mang les des cribed the s hunt a s 
being nothing out of the ordinar y on tha t day. He did not 
suggest it was a day when he detected a lot of noxious ga s. He 
sa id he ha.d smelt it in t he s hunt while working there , but this 
wa s not any day out of the ordinary. Until suc h time as it can 
be known just how much gas was in that shunt 9 one cannot sa y it 
was t here when Deputy Stesart tested, with any degree of cert­
a inty9 beca use whether it had got into the shunt beca use of the 
barometric pres sure drop 9 whether i t got into the shunt beca use 
i t had built up to tha t st age 9 or whether it got into the shunt 
beca use of the operation of the shuttle car - these are all 
possibilities and these are a ll consistent with it not having 
be en there half a n hour before t he fire. 

In our submiss i on, i t is sign ificant that Deputy Walker 
wa s so i mpr es s ed with the state of t he pla ce . This surely 
indicates , and must ind i cat e to Your Honor , that t hings were 
pretty good i n that s ect ion s o far a s ga s was concerned. He 
had found none. Your Honor will r ecall the evidence that at 
2 o'clock in t he norning tw o men came in to prepare a shuttle 
car a nd t hey wer e sitting on the f loor of t he s hunt. He me n­
tioned t o t hem, "You s houldn 't be doing t hat. If t here is any 
smell of gas or if you get a headache 9 come and let me know." 
They d i d see him on the wa y out and they didn't let him know. 
We have not beard fr om t hose men, s o we may a ssume that a t 
l east ther e was no gas i n t he shunt. There were t hese two men 
sitting on t he floor 9 wor k ing on the s huttle car f or some time , 
so j ust when the gas got i nt o the s hunt or a t what stage 1 one 
ca nnot be sure. Dep uty Stewart says it wa s not t here half an 
hour before; he couldn' t ge t it on his light, but it was there 
when the f ire happene d a nd we do not :Y..:now how much wa s there. 

We would say t hat one ca nnot a ccept the pr opos ition that 
there wa s noxious gas ther e in t he shunt during t he week befor e 
the fi r e that was not r eport ed a s Illawarra bottom gas, beca use 
it was reported a s noxious ga s not Illawarra bott om ga s, a nd 
there are too ma ny alternatives open to your Honor - other 
a lternatives. There are too many ot he r possibilitie s to a ccept 
the proposition which Mr. Lee s ubmitted to Your Honor. I f tha t 
in fact be truey that t he Illawarra bott om ga s wa s rep or ted a s 
noxious gas , in our submi s sion one must hav e a pretty g ood 
rea son for rejecting the other a lternatives. There is insuff­
icient evidence, in our su.bmissi on, before Your Honor for you t o 
reach a conclusion tha t the gas wa s there wh en Deputy Stewart 
test ed. It came ther e at s ome time , but it ma.y well have come 
there after he test ed. I do not t hink I need sa y anything to 
Your Honor on th e question of the standa rd of proof in the way 
Your Honor has i ndicat ed . 

As rec ommendat ions : We f s ol sufficient ha s been said about 
r e commendaFl. ons,-··· butespecia lly we would like Your H~nor to 
recommend the use of metha nometers. 

1139. W.tr . McNa lly' s a ddre ss. 



HIS HONOR ~ You will be particularly concerned about that? 

MR. McNALLY: Yes 9 it is our earnest desire to have methane­
meters . I think it is sufficient to say that any other 
recommendation which Your Honor makes that will improve our 
probabilities of (a) finding gas and (b ) reporting it9 will 
meet with our full co-operation. Yesterday it was mentioned 
about the facilities for reporting on the Rule 4 form. We 
would agree that they are insufficient . It encourages someone 
just to put short words and not to describe particularly the 
percentage of inflammable gas found and just where it is f?und. 
I know Mr. Lee is going to say something further about var1ous 
recommend ations 9 and that is all we would say 9 unless Your 
Honor wishes to hear more. 

HIS HONOR~ Tha nk you for the way you have put your case9 Mr. 
McNally. 

(Short adjournment) 

I\ffi. LEE: If Your Honor plea.ses, there a few matters to which I 
would likG to rep ly in regard to the addresses that have been 
given. In particular 1 there have been charges made in this 
hearing by certain of the i nterested parties as to the conduct 
of the management , am the Department is quite neutral in any 
matter which has come before this Court and it is concerned 
only to ensure that Your Honor will arrive at conclusions which 
will be ac cepted because they are correct. It has been said 
by my learned friend Mr. Sullivan and by Mr. Parkinson 9 for 
instance 9 that there was gross negligence on the part of the 
company 9 even criminal negligence and dereliction of duty, 
and such like phrases have been used. 

Now 9 the Department ha s put to Your Honor 9 through me 7 

that the true inference from a ll the evidence w~s that there 
was a laxity and an offhandedness both in the deputies and in 
tho management which was basically responsible for the conditions 
that arose. And t~ Department wishes to repeat that submission 
because we submit that other descriptions of the conduct of 
the deputies or of the management lose sight of one very fund­
amental f act .:tnd that f a ct is this~ Illawarra bottom gas was 
little known and little encountered before this fire 9 th8.t the 
evidence shows that it was "known" ( o.nd perhaps that word shoLtld 
be put in inverted commas) by Mr. Puddle a nd Mr . Stewa:rt - and 
I think they are the only two in the colliery who knew anything 
about it - and a.s far a s that goes~ Mr . Stewnrt had met it one 
one occasion several years before and Mr . Puddle ' s knowledge 
went back some years. But the fundamental fact is that the 
persons who were respon Sble for safety in this mine had had 
virtual ly no practical experience whatsoever with this gas~ and 
one of the great benefi-ts that this Inquiry will achieve is the 
publication of the fact that Illawarra bottom gas can be found 
in tremendous quantities in the Bulli seam. That is new know­
ledge, in our submission . One has to be fair about this. Mr. 
Menzies~and I am sure Your Ilonor holds him in very high regard 9 
had no knowledge of the existence of this particular gas before 
this fire. Mr. Longworth had met it 5 years beforo but not 
since~ as a practical matter. 

And so we make our submissions on behalf of the Department 
to Your Honor~ paying wbut we consider to be a proper regard to 
the fact that the p~~sons who were involved in this Inquiry 
were persons who9 Whllst legally one may say ought to have done 
this and ought to have donEl that, none the less had very little 
if_any practical experie~cc in dealing with the particular gas 
wh1ch was the gas that k1lled the four men in this fire. It 
was not some other gas ; it was Illawarra bottom gas 9 and there 
has been a tremendous benefit conferred upon all miners in tho 
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Bu l l i seam, by this Inquiry exposing the f oct that bottom gas is 
a rea l peril . Previously it was simply a gas which was kn own 
to exist in this colliery. I say those things beca use I do 
submit that Your Honor , whatever your conclusions may bo , will 
have r egard to the f act thnt it is v ery c')asy after tbe fire ha.s 
occurred and aft er a gr:eat body of evidence ha s been put before~ 
this Inquiry t o fal l int o the trap of r at her f orgetting that 
thnt procedure highlights knowledge. It does not t ake int o 
a ccount the fact tha t before the fire the consciousness of those 
concerned was, on the question of bottom gas 9 pr obably very 
l i tt lo indeed . 

The Department does not in a ny way suggest that it is not 
the duty of the ma nagement a nd of the deputies to be g,t al l 
time s conscious . Indeed, that is the who le bas is of the sub­
mission s I put to Your Honor: tha t the e nemy of the men in t he 
mine i s not gas but it is an a bsence of a l ertne ss to the 
dangers which follow if tho full knowledge av a il8,b l o i s not 
brought to be ar in a ny particular si tuat i on . It is f or that 
r eason bere that I would criticise my learned friend Mr . 
Reynolds ' submissions a s to the practical minor dea l ing with 
a situation i n pr actica l t e rms. Tha t is what the practical 
miner must Jo, but W8 now know he must bring to benr not merely 
a n appreciat ion of what he see s immediat ely 9.round h im but he 
must a l so bring t o bear t he who l e fund of his know ledge as t o 
tho colliery, it G work i ngs, its pr evi ous dispositions as t o gas, 
however ~ninut e o..nd i nsign if i cant they may have been 7 a nd I wou.ld 
put this to Your Honor because in my orig ina l add ress I did ssy 
to you th~t this Inquiry will no doubt a chi 8ve a great deal if 
it brings ba ck int o the collieries the necessity for tha t a l ert­
ness to danger which must exist if safety is to be ensured. 

Your Honor saw a number of deput i es, a ma nager a nd an und er 
manager 7 ~mongst other witnesses. It would be our submission 
that those deputies and t ho manager a nd the under manager are 
no do tJ_bt typ i~a l cf the deputi e s 5 t he type of man i.n th e manage -· 
ment of collieri~s in this seam and e l s2where ~ and further, 
tha t their a t t itude s 7 the ir methods 9 the ir approa ch to probloms 
as rev ealed in ev id e nce i s in a ll probab i lity the same a s you 
would find amongst the deputies or t he management in v irtua l ~y 
a ll other collieri~R 

MR. SlJLLIVAN~ I think most of them obey basic rules in mine 
ventilation. 

r~. LEE ~ I would point out to Your Honor t hat it is pr obab l y 
not idle spe cu l ation to say that many e., deputy from 3.notber 
col l i er y, or a manager or a n und er manager from anot her co l l ­
iery , when reading the report s of the cros s - examination of the 
deputies and the manager and und er ma nager in t hi s inquiry 1 

have not quietly sa id to themselves~ "1'her e 1 but for tho gr acG 
of God 9 go I . " ·-

In this Inquiry a great doa l has bee n l e~rned a nd I do 
submit to Your Honor that you will boa r in mind in coming to 
your proper conclusions tb::.tt competent 7 a ble , highly sxilJ_e d 
men like Mr . Menzie s co.me into this Inquiry and open ly a dmitted 
to having no knowledge wba.tsoever of thG pr esGnce of Illawo.rra 
bott om gas i.n the Bulli Colliery. Tht1t is some indicati on of 
wh~::: t I would refer to as the l a ck of knowle dge a ncJ appreciation 
of the pr ob l em which in fact existed~ which we know existed and 
whic h br ought about t his tragedy . 

The Dep.2rtment r epeats its su.~missi on t hat the laxity n.nd 
compla cent appr oach made by t he deputi e s a nd tbe management 
to problems of gas and ventilat i on wa s the essenti n. l a nd basi c 
reason for this happening. The hi g h degree of Rl ertness - ond 
it is ver y high- that must be shown was absent. I wanted to 
make that perfectly clear, that tbc DopartmGnt • s a tti tt,.,_de 3.Dcl 
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appreciation of this evidence here and my submissions in respect 
to it are along those lines. 

If Your Honor looks a t the evidence of the inspectors, I 
think Your Honor will find that thought which I have been put­
ting asto the two positions~ (l) "Yes, we know of bottom gas"9 
and ( 2 ) "We don 1 t know very much about it 9 11 emerging fairly 
clearly throughout the whole of the evidence. With that in 
mind 9 we will submit that Your Honor will properly come to the 
correct conclusions as tc tho extent to which this one or th~t 
one failed in c arr~ing out a particular obligation cast upon 
him . Nor does the Eepartment take the view in this Inquiry 
that it is proper for Your Honor to make a ny distinctions 
between those who may have failed in this regard and those who 
may have f a iled in that regard. Your Honor is concerned with 
the tot a lity of the causes and circumstances surrounding this 
fire, and if t he fact be that Your Honor finds that the deputies 
did not test fo r bottom gas - and I have a lready put my submiss­
ions on that - then there is no occa sion 9 we submit 9 for Your 
Honor to weigh that aga inst any failure by the ma nagement. It 
is a f ac t that is found and that is whs re the matter rests . 

There are some comparatively minor matters to which I 
would ref er Your Honor in the addresses of other counse~ 7 and 
in particular Mr. Murray made certain submissions . Your Honor 
v1ill re member that be counselled you against drawing conclusions 
adverse to particular individuals a nd then, having advocated 
the abol i tton of tbo Davis s afety lamp 9 launced an attack upon 
tho Department. I do not propose to a nswer that attack except 
to remind Your Honor briefly of a series of events which 
occurred from which Your Honor might fool the Department is 
very a l ert indeed as to its obligations. There wa s a fire in 
1964 which came abou.t because a safety lamp failed to detect 
at roof l e:vel a l aye ring of gas. Immediately after that fire 
wa s investigated, the legislation was amended t o require the 
use of me thanometers in any situation where an oxy-acetylene 
torch wa s to be used, that being the cause of the fire on 
that occasion. 

HIS HONOR : You say 11 immediately after 11 - Mr. Parkinson says 
it was about nine months after? 

ImR. LEE~ That is not bad, for a n amendment . Then, soon after 
that, the Chief Inspector went overseas a nd, as Mr . Menzies 
s a id9 for the speciftc purpose of investigating an improved 
safety l amp . When he returned a report was made to tho 
Mini ster . Your Honor has not that report , but I can put what 
I want to put in that regard in this way: If anybody h~s 
sugge sted that the Department has not recommended to the 
Minister the i.ntroduction of automatic safety devi.ces, tha t 
report might have the lie to that if it wore produced in this 
Court. 

HIS HONOR: You tell me about it, a nd I will nocept this fr om 
the Bar table. 

MR. LEE ~ Mr. Andcrson 9 Chtef Inspector, when he returned from 
overseas made recommendations to the Minister in respect to 
the introducti on of Butomatio devices in mines . 

HIS HONOR ~ Has there been any recommend ation regarding the 
self-lighting oil flame safety lamp? 

IVIR. LEE ~ I will deal with that 9 Your Honor. In regard to the 
self-lighting lamp , that hau been under review - I wil l not 
take time to point it out nov•1 , as no doubt You.r Ho nor will go 
through it all - but it had been under review, and Mr. Muir 
mentioned it9 that the Department was not sat isfied with the 
particular st age of efficacy a chieved by the l amps 7 tho re-
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lighter lamps 9 up till/¥~f¥ntly when one was r ece ived from 
England. I think it was a f ew weeks ago . It has been test ed 
and the Department is quite satisfied it i s a safe l amp. That 
is tho l amp Your Honor saw - it arrived only a f ow week s ago . 
I do not think I wo uld wish to say anyth ing more about the 
pos ition of the Department exc ept tha t it i s a pity Mr. Murray 
is not here to hear me say that his surprise that I should be 
asking Your Honor to make rec omme nd ati ons comes r ather oddly 
fr om a man a s practical a s Mr. Murray i s 9 because the fact is 
that the Depa rtment hGre quit e openly admits that it willing ly 
take s adva ntage of this Inquiry t o bring about a situation that 
Your Honor will make r ecommendat i ons which und oubtedly will 
have 2. far greate r eff ect because they have been the result of 
a pubU_c Inquiry than recommendati on s which are merely inter­
departmental between the Chi ef Inspe ctor and the Minister. 

HI S HONOR ~ I suppo s e some of the gentlemen in the Department 
who have been present a t thi s Inquiry frankly admit they have 
le arnt some new material just as we al l have. 

~rn. LEE ~ I am quite sure that the inspectors have 9 and they 
have said so . In f a ct, Mr. Longwort h quite openly came up 
with the f a ct that as far as this villa in in the pioce 9 bottom 
gas , is co nc erned 7 they have l earnt a gre at deal about it since 
this Inquiry - and that is not an a dmission of any f a ilure on 
their part 9 before ; it is an event that has happened . 

Then 9 ~rr. Murray having adv ocated 9 as I say 9 the abo liti on 
of the safety l amp , a ls o went on to rej e ct I\'Ir. Donegan 's theory 
as to the wood 9 a nd Mr. McNa lly t ended to f oll ow his line in 
that regard. I do not want to refer to the evidence in det a il 
except to remind Your Honor that Mr. Donegan tested the wood. 
He got the v ari ous temperatures; he est ab lished that it would 
burn at a l ower temper ature t han either hydraulic oil or 
coa l dust. In ad dition 7 he pointed out that the wood could 
have been cha rred 9 or be i ng charred ov er quito a l ong period, 
a nd that that f act a lone wo uld be suffi c i ent to a ccount for it 
ignit ing a t a much l owe r t emper ature than th e wood itsGlf would 
ignite at " In re?pect to Mr. Mu.rray's and IVIr. McNally's SL1_b ­
missions 9 I can only say that you have the choice of accepting 
the firm opini on of a very highly qualified man or - a nd this 
is not sa i d in any off ensive fashion 9 but it illustrates the 
choice open t o Yo ur Honor - the sugge sti on s of counsel 9 because 
there is no other opinion expressed in this matter in this case 
other than the opinion of Mr. Donegnn that the wood was the 
cause of the f ire. 

I hope that Mr. McNally 9 a nd Mr . Murray if he were here 
too 9 will not object to my saying thi s but it is perhaps proper 
to say i t 9 a nd r~. Don egan can go into ~he box to repeat it ~ 
since the Inquiry ha s been going orl, Mr. Don egan ha s in f a ct 
made some tests on the hydraulic oil, having it inj ected aga inst 
the brake disc and in that aroa 9 and he has been quite unable 
to get any ignition. Howev er 9 the evid~nce is quite cogent 
without any evidence of that nature, in our submission . 

As f a r a s Mr. Murray 's recommendati on s a re c on c erned ~ he 
gave quite a number and the Departme nt t akes exception to quite 
a number of them. In th e first place 9 I am quite sure Your 
Honor will not make recommendati on s on every little side- issue 
that has come into this Inquiry. The type of recommendati on 
I am confident Your Honor ha s in mind is a recommendation th o_t 
directly relates to this fire a nd which arises dire ctly from 
it9 and which will a chieve s ome posit.ive result wi thout tying 
down either the Department or the ma nageme nt or the deputy 
or any otbor source concerned to a recomme nd ation which may be 
very good in a particular limited number of circumstances but 
of no va lue a t all genera lly. Mr. l\1urray suggested to Your 
Honor that we put development p l ans up a t the top of t he pit

9 
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and he said it is not practicable to have the proposals a s to 
ventilation systems which I put forward put into operation. ' · 
Well 7 Mr. Reynolds did not say that. He accepted the proposals 
and in fact this has been done, as we know 7 through the year 
1959 and l960and without any incohvenience to anybody. 

He wanted Your Honor to recommend that there 
fire-fighting purposes 9 including all stoppings. 
prefezyto quote the Mines Rescue Act which appears 
adequate to cover anything .of that nature. 

be a map for 
I simply 

to be quite 

Then he wanted fire hoses in the crib-room. Well, that 
aga in is something which, made a general proposition, could 
cause inconvenience - unnecessary inconvenience and expense -
because in the case where the mine is worked with a conveyor 
when the shuttle car delivers the coal on to the conveyor, there 
is specific provision already in the Act for fire hoses to be 
readily available, and Mr. Murray's submission could only apply 
to a situation such as you have here where you are not working 
with a conveyor. 
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Likewise , t ap c onnection s every seven f ee t - t hey 
ar e now a t 50 yard intervals. I n this situa tion ther e might 
be some good poin t in suggesting mor e t ap c onnections but t hi s 
is a particularly l i mi t ed situa tion where tha t app ears t o be 
necessary and I would sugge st Your Honor would give that very 
deep though t befo r e you made any general r ec ommenda tion. He 
a sks for devices for carbon dioxide and nitrogen to be availabl e 
t o deputies when r e quir ed .· The pr obe. lamp a ttends t o t he 
carbon dioxide and t her e is no ne ed f or any type of device in 
r el a tion t o nitrog en, nitrogen is in t he a t mosphere. He alro 
sugges t ed tha t Your Honor r ec ommend the Act be amended t o 
provide that counsel t o a ssist the Inquiry be appo inted . 
Per hap s Your Honor would l eave t rnt go ? 

MR. SULLIVAN: I don't see why. 

MR. LEE: I would have t hought a suggestion a long those lines 
wa s quite outside the Terms of Reference. If I may l eave 
Mr. Murray. Mr. Sullivan did deal with Rule 3 p.86 a t some 
l eng t h. I do not wish t o ent er int o a debate with him on 
the ma tt er either for or against the c ontention whth he put 
because it does see m t o us a s fa r as t he fir e was c onc erned the 
actual pr e s enc e of t he auxiliary f ans made little , if any, 
contribution but it is the submission of the Dep artment tha t 
ther e wa s a breach of Rule 3 - t he only br each - in the 
introduction of t he second fan . Tha t, a s I have sa id , is 
something which a s f ar a s t he fire itself wa s concerned has had 
little eff ect, unless you go through a pr oc e ss of r eamning fro m 
t her e t o the bleed tube and t h e inadequate ventila tion ru~d so 
forth but tihat i s the br each which we submit occurred, in 
r el a tion t o Rule 3. As far a s Mr. Sullivan 1 s r ecommenda tions 
ar e concerned t o a l arge extent I t hink t hey f ollowed the one s 
we put and he has added some others. Your Honor may think 
t ha t t hey ar e somewhat unnec e ssary in view of the other 
r ec ommenda tions which will be made but one I c an r efer t o is 
the one about t he ga s r eports n ot being sufficien tly illumina ting. 
Tha t would not appear t o r equir e any al t er a tion t o t he Act or 
the fo r m pr ovided but rather an alter a tion by the deputie s of 
t he manne r in which t hey fill in t he form. The act provides 
for full infor ma tion . It is Rule 4 p.87. If t he deputies 
content t hemselve s and t he managemen t c on t en ts itself with 
acc ep ting such sta t ements a s unoxi ous ga s being dilut ed'', t ha t 
is not c omplianc e with the Rule and one would have thou ght tha t 
a person in the po sition of Mr. Ston e or Mr. Puddle c ould very 
easily say t o the deputie s uWhen you put your r eports in in 
future be mo r e specific". 

MR~ SULLIVAN : You c ould put a pl ac e for the perc entage . 

MR. LEE: I am not going into precise ly what should be done , 
it is a ma tt er of ge tting the full informa tion on t o the f orm 
and then it can be of some worthwhile value . 

Then Your Honor r aised a matter which bec ame 
appar en t in r el a tion t o t he f ru1 s, and tha t is t he eff ect of 
cutting them off where you have a situation as did in f act 
exist here. Tha t, to our way of t hinking, was mo st ger mane 
to the likely build-up of gases in r e l a tion t o the fir e but 
would be complet ely cover ed by the gener a l r ec ommendation we 
a sk should be made a s t o the subnussion of ventila tion plans 
whic h r equire the positioning of fans t o be shown and the number 
ther eof, so tha t wo ~ld be c over ed . 

Then we c ome t o whor e Mr. Sullivan and Hr. Parkinson 
c ame t o some very int er e sting r ecommenda tions, somewha t differ­
ent, bu t perhaps the t hought wa s t he sa me . Mr. Sullivan's 
was tha t the deputies be emp l oyed exclusively on safety duties 
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and not given other dutie s unle ss the chief inspector approved, 
and Mr. Parkinson sugges t ed t ha t t he deputies be paid by the 
Government and be, in effect, Government employe e s. As f ar 
as t he Department is c oncerned it takes the view tha t this is a 
ma tter which would r equire ver y close c onsideration and the 
t aking into account of all f actors tha t might bear upon the 
problem and we fe e l tha t this is a little away fr om any direct 
connection with this f ire but it is clearly some thing which 
conc erns the mine r s and it can be said tha t ther e is much t o 
be said for the propositions tha t have been advanc ed. I would, 
with r e sp ect, sugge st t ha t should Your Honor c onsid er t ha t 
worth while r ef erring to tha t You:r Honor might well d o so but 
any positive conclusion would hardly be open t o Your Honor on 
the matter e It clearly c oncerns the men and it must conc ern 
the deputie sl one would think, and it must ~ I would t hink, a lso 
be some thing that would probably wor ry t he man agement and if 
th.- re is a solution can be come t o then if any thing Your Honor 
says c an con tribut e t o the solution tha t is all t o t he good . 

Mr. Parkinson also mentioned a matt er which fell very 
favour a bly up on the ears of t he Chi ef Inspector when he suggested 
tm t ther e should be an increase in the in spec tors in t he 
Department of Mines . I r egre t t o say I canno t c omment on 
tha t exc ep t t o inform Mra Parkinson tha t it did fall upon very 
r ec ep ti ve ears. 

Then, if I may go t o Mr . McNally 1 s submissions very 
briefly in this vary brief r e sume of the points which I f ee l 
should be dealt with in r eply t o Mr G McNallyo He ~ in our 
submission, ha s t o a large ext en t fall en into the same error 
whi ch I submi t Mr. Murray f ell into when he would no t a cc ept the 
wood theory9 ~IT . McNally ~ s error be ing? wi t h r e spect, t ha t he 
ha s put it t o Your Honor that there are po ssibilitie s t ha t t he 
ga s wa s of a differ en t c ompos ::_ tion befor e t he fir e than after. 
Tha t, Your Honor, again 1 and there i s no offenc e meant in this 
at all ~ a s Mr~ HcNally has obviously c onsider ed t he evidenc e 
very cio sely, is i n fac t a suggestion which c Jme s only from 
counse lo This is no t a case of a misunderstanding of the 
na ture of bottom gasJ it is a misunder s tanding of the na tur e of 
l~. Donegan 1 s evidcnc eo Mr ~ Donogan 1 s evidenc e , when Your 
Honor c ome s t o r ead it; makes it perfec tly clear t ha t this 
goaf had a gas in it which wa s of a c ertain prop ortion and n o 
o ther pr oportion and if tha t ga s came out andgo t into t he work 
ar ea s that proport.:Lon would be main t a i ned ., I might jus t make 
ne fina l r ef er enc e t o Mrft Sellers who supported tha t view, a t 
p.933, 11 The ga s that was found on 2nd and 3rd November •••.. goaf? 
A. Ye s. 11 He wen t on t o say in hi s view tha t wha t ever came 
out of the goaf had t o be , not s ome other ga s of proportions 
differ ent fr om Mr. Donegan but of tho same proportions. The 
evidence tha t Mro Sellers gave a bou t t he composition of the 
ga s tha t he de t ected i~ somewhat significant becaus e it is r a the r 
odd , if you l ook a t hi s analysi s ~ that cho f irst ga s he go t on 
the sample , t ha t the anR:iyst got 1 via s virtually the same 
composition a s the one t ha t Mr~ Donegan got a lso ye t t he o t her 
s amp l e s a r e consider a bly differ en to NovJ, i f they wer e all f r om 
t he same plac e tha t could not be , ~nd I do no t make tha t 
statement fr om myself 7 but from Hr~ Donogan 1 s evidence. Ther e 
is the po s sibility~ . w~ suggest , tha t t he analysis may n o t have 
been made with tho; ~i~ecise Gqui.pmcn:~ a s Mr o Donegan hnd availabl e 
to him. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ ~his is evidenc e fr om tho Bar t able , Mr . Lee o 

MR. LEE: Tha t may ba ~ 

MR. McNALLY: Mr . Sellers did r efer t o t he cru nge in the 
char acter of the gas at PP ol l and 12 of his repor t. 
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MR. LEE: Hr. Donegan makGs it clear tha t you can ge t bottom 
ga s f r om differ ent plac e s in t he same mine with a diff er ent 
c ompo sition but you cannot ge t it c oming fr om t he same pl ace 
with a differ ent c omposition nnd I am going t o t ake the 
opportQnity of a sking Your Honor and my l earned fri ends, 
because t his is a ma tt er of import ance, whe ther they have any 
objec tion a t t his stage t o the t ender of a pamphl~ t called 
11 Coal Mine Firesu, writt en by Mr . Donegan and c on t a ining a 
chap t er which is headed "Tendency t o Ultimate Unifor m Compo sition 
of Atmosphere of a Seal ed Ar ea 11 • That goes righ t t o the 
propo sition tha t Mr . Donegan advanc ed in his evid onc e a s to 
t he- c ompo sition of goaf gas . Of c ourse if my fri snds obj ect 
I cannot tender it but Your Hono r has c ert ein po·wer ---

HIS HONOR: I wan t it, Mr. Lee . 

MR. SULLI VAN : I hav e had a l ook at it and I would agr ee with 
its t ender . 

MR. LEE: I will mark t he particula r chapter which is so 
r e l e,ran t. 

(Pamphl e t t end .:~ r ed and marked Exhibit 11 PP") 

MR. LEE: I t hink t hose ar e t he ma tt ers t o which I wish t o 
r ef or in addr es s . 

MR. PARKINSON : I -~,\rould like t o h8s.r Mr. Lee ' s views, or t he 
Dep .!J.I' t mr:;nt 1 s vi e1.v s, on t he r ecommnndation I made in C:Jn.."lection 
with t he gradu3l e limina tion of ba tt ery c ars and cable cBrs. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Lee may dr:;al vJith t hn. t, I don 1 t knov.J . 

Ivffi . PJJ.RKINSON~ Bec aus e the. t was dir ectly c onc erned with t his 
f ire , with t his pi ec e of wood. Wi t h di.sel we would have n o 
prob l em such a s tha t. 

MR . LEE : Tha t h3.s n o t boen given close c onsidera tion by me 
because it ha s been t hough t t ~ be somewha t outside t ha scop e 
of a..1y r ecmnmo.nda tion Your Boner woul d make and I am no t 
suff iciently instruct ed on the ma tt er except t o be a bl e; t o 
say t 0 Your Hana r t hat t he DepartmGnt is c onsidering, and ha s 
been c onsideri11g f or s ome time t he; ques tion of the shu ttl8 c a r 
and o thor electrical equi pment j_n t he mine vith a view t o 
a tt emp ting t o make t hem saf er than t hey ar o. As t o t he 
broad pr oposition Mr. Parkinson pu t I am no t in a positi Jn t o 
info r m Your Honor of the Department a l view. 

HIS HON OR: I think bef or e I made a r c:: c ommend 3. tion tha t die.:>els, 
f or oxctmp l e , r eplac e ba tt er y oper a t ed machine s I would hove t o 
have far more evidenc e , firstly, a s t o the nature of di e sels 
and sec ondly as t o the safe t y of di e sels. However, tha t is 
a sugge stion i..vhich ha s boon put forw a rd and my vi ew is it 
should be looked a t by those vJ:ID know. I am certa in there are 
p eople in the departmen t paying clo s e a tt ention t :J it. 

MR . PARKINSON: Die sels ar e being introduced , you know , Your 
Honor . 

MR . LEE: Those are t he matt ers which, in the time available t o 
me, I have t hought wer o the most i~port an t t o put . 

There is just on e o ther ma tt er I fe e l I ought to 
r efer t o and tha t is t ha t Your Hon or has had th E.~ benefit her e 
of an extr emely extensive Inquiry and I think it is proper t o 
say t ha t tha t has been brought a bout no t by the efforts of any 
one individual but by the c ombined e f fo rts of all person s who 
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have been intere sted in this Inquiry. I have to some extent, 
indeed in the main ex t en t, I hop e , occupied t he role of 
counsel a ssisting Your Honor and I would like t o expre ss the 
appr ec i a tion of the Min a s Department to t he c ontribution which 
has been made by all per sons .involved in t hi s Inquiry to a 
solution of t he problems and t o the promotion of safe ty. 

MR. SULLIVAN : There is the que stion of the awarding of costs 
and I und erstand Your Honor wan t ed t o heQr so me thi ng from me . 

HIS HON OR: I will h ear you again if yo u vJant t o add anythi_ng. 
I do pro pose t o r e s erve my decision. 

MR. SULLIVAN: It is quite a short point: The que stion depend s 
on whe t her this is a proce ed i ng under s.33. In construing a 
s ection of a Sta tut e such a s this one c an a lways look a t the 
sitnn tion a s it was earlier, in construing the vJording of the 
s ection and if Your Honor looks a t s.33 a s it wa s before being 
amended in 1964 Your Honor will see sub-section 9 wa s 
r epeal ed and a substitu ted section put in l a t er. There is a 
r eference to Inquirie s under s.31 a s proceeding s . I think , 
with r e sp ect, tha t ge ts over any l ega l diffic ulty • . 

MR. LEE: It has been r epeal ed. 

MR . SULLIVAN : We a r e looking a t it f or t h~purpose s of 
c on struction and not for t he purpose of in troducing tha t 
section i n to the Act. 

MR. LEE: Onc e it is rep ea l ed it has gone f or all purposes. 

MR. SULLIV&~: It is l egitima t e t o lo ok a t it in its form 
from t he earlies t times i n construing it. They r efer to 
proc eedings under s.3l. The r epe e. l of sub-section 9 wa s 
because of the new provision of s.33(2) (read). 

HIS HON OR: I am inclined t o t he view t ha t if a ma tt er is 
refe rr ed t o thi s Court, and I u se t he i>Jord 11 r ef err ed 11 in a 
gener al sense , it become s a proc eed i ng of t he Court. Then, 
if t ha t wer e the co rrect view I have a discr e tion as t o costs. 
I would depend up on wha t principle I t hough t I should use in 
exercising t hat discr e tiono It co uld be t ha t I \vo uld say the 
discretion shoul d be exercised i n a way tha t I should not award 
cos t s unle s s t hey we r e in fact par tie s. I know t hat \\lOuld be 
a vi ew adverse to Jour ~r e sen t con t ention but tha t is one way 
I c ould exercise discre tion. The other \vay is t o say if anybody 
ha s an int er e st in any proc eedi ngs before this Court, and a 
right t o be here, and they t hems elve s have not be en a party to 
anything which brough t about t he proceedings, tha t I should 
award costs. It is fo r me t o c onsider on wha t princ ipl e I 
exercise my discr e tion. Have you any t hing t o say a bout t his 
m&tter, Mr. Lee ? 

MR. LEE~ Ye s, I should point out tha t Mr. McNally and Mr. 
Murr ay a r e a lso asking for costs. 

MR. McNALLY: If I can clear this up: The Illawarra fieputies 
and Shot Firers Associa tion apply and Mr. Murray a sked me to 
make applica tion on behalf of Barry Kent. 

HIS HONOR~ Not on behalf of t he Associa tion he r epr e s en ts? 

MR. MeN ALLY : No. 

HIS HON OR~ But you are affi~ ing f or costs for your Associa tion? 

ME. LEE: If you look at s.33 you will see wha t t he jurisdiction 
is. It is t o de t ermine Inquirie s, Appeals and r ef er ences. May 
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I give Your Horror the se r efer enc e s to show Your Horror wha t t he 
section does: Section 15 is an inquiry. Sections 36(3A), 
53B sub-section 1, 53B( a ). 53B( 4) , Regulation 221 
5th Schedule, p.170, Regula tion 5, 7th Schedule ~ p.~l3. 
Rule 1, sub-paragraph (d) p.8o and Rule 12A p.9b a r e all 
described a s Appeals, in ~hose sections and r ogula tions. 
The following r ef er ences ar e t o r eferences specifEally so-called, 
they being the 3rd of t he categorie s mentioned, s.28 , sub­
sections 5 and 6 s.57 sub-sections 5 and 6, Regul a tion 236 1 
6th Schedule , p . 2o4, Rule 16B( 2) p.l05, . Rule 23 ( 5) (c) p .109. 
So, they ar e t he parts which deal specific a lly with Inquiries, 
Appeals and Ref erenc e s and when yo u come t o look at sub-
s ection 10 in the light of t he jurisdic tion c onferred on the 
Court it is apparen t in our submis sion t he on l y proceedings 
to which t hat section can appl y are those Inquiries, Appeals 
and Refer enc es and s.31, in our submission, is a comp letely 
independen t section which is brought into opera tion, not by 
the Cour t, but by t he Mini ster directing a formal inve stiga tion 
and all he do e s is to use the servic e s - not t he rnachina- y -
t he servic e s of t he Court of Coa l Mine s Regula tion because 
s.31 sp ecifically provide s for t he machine r y t o be used and 
i f t ha t were not so, if you wer e a Court of Coa l Mines Regula tion 
sitting, in effect, and usli~g t he machinery of t hat Court you 
vlO uld not need par agraph ( 3) (b) summon ing people to come before 
t he Court a s witnesses. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Hi s Honor illegally appointed the a sse ssors 
under sub-section (4) of s.33? 

MR . LEE: That section has nothing to do with t hi s, with r e spect. 
Ther e was a misconc eption, appar ently, in t he early stages. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Sub- section (8) do e s not apply'? 

Yffi . LEE: May I say with re spect 1 because it is n ec e ssary, 
tha t in r el a tion to sub-section \8) ther e was a misconception 
a t the outse t tha t t his was a proc eeding under s.33. It is 
of no practical va lue a t all. 

MR . SULLIV.il'T~ Wa s it a misconcep tion till the i.J idows appli ed 
for costs'? 

MR. LEE: There it is and these comments my l earned friend make s 
do not add t o the legal situa tion. I can only put it tha t t he 
ma tters I submit 1.;ill enable Your Honor to arrive a t a correct 
solution t o t he problem. May I r efer to one matter t ha t 
concerned some of us earlier in t he proceedings and tha t is 
sub-section (6) of s.33 - (re ad). If yo u look a t s.l5 and 
others of those sections I mentioned you will find ther e are 
situa tions wher e you hem to both come t o a decision and also 
make a r eport t o the Minister. It is clear in our submission 
tha t t his investiga tion is one ca lled by the Mini ster and all 
he does is use the Court of Coa l Mine s Regula tion a s his melli~ s 
of making t he r eport which is c ont empl a t ed by the s ection and 
t ha t the only r efer enc e t o expense s is t hnt with r e gard to 
witnesse s expense s~ t hure a r e no pmr.ler s in Your Honor, in our 
submission to do anything other t han make t he r eport. Ther e 
are no powers to grant costs and, indeed , it would be extremely 
difficult. 

HIS HONOR: Apart from having power i t is manda tory for me to 
gr an t witne sses expense s. 

}ffi. LEE: It appears tha t it is manda t ory for Your horror t o do 
so, or the o ther v iew mi 6h t be t hRt Your Honor do e s not have t o 
make.an order and tha t th~y can mer ely apply although t he 
machlnery seams t o be a blt def ective . 



HIS HONOR: I certainly have t he pow er, furthermore I t hink I 
have the power to make c erta in "expenses". 

MR. LEE: Wher e is tha t? 

HIS HO ~ OR: The f ee s, for exampl e , for as se ssors ar e within 
my power to asse ss. 

MR. SULLIVAN: They ar e illegally appointed if my fri end's 
argument is right. The se tvJO gentlemen have been illega lly 
appointed ther efor e Your Honor cannot make an order. 

~~. LEE~ Of course they are. 
said uinvaliclly". 

I would have pref erred to ha ve 

HIS HONOR: The section I \vas r ef P. rring to wa s s. 31 sub- section 
( 6): An.y expense incurred is to be pa id by the Minister. 
I think I have not the right to incur expenses a s such and 
charge t hem to the Minister. I think tha t is wha t tha t section 
means. Whe ther it ena ble s me to pay somebody else 's exp ense s 
is a furt hor que stion. 

MR. LEE: The Minist er is protected from having a personal cla im 
made against him, tha t is all. Tha t protects him and he puts 
his expense s in a s a Minister under the Act. Ther e is one 
other fundamental r ea son why the construction we urge whould be 
put upon it and t ha t is upon wha t pos sible ba sis could Your 
Honor ever work out which party shoul d bear t he costs of this 
\1Jhole Inquiry? 

HIS HON OR: I think it is their own costs they are asking for ani 
I do not think anybody a sks for anyone to bear the costs of t he 
Inquiry. 

MR. SULLIVAN: It is only in r e spect of the four. 

MR. LEE: I i magine t he Minist er could be somehow or other 
order ed t o pay his costs. 

MR. SULLIVAN ~ They ar e not my costs, th,ay a r e the widows' costs. 

MR. LEE ~ It doe s not make a ny diffe r enc e t o the amount of costs. 
It • . .;oul d be r a t he r a startling proposition to announc e t ha t the 
Minister, having c alled an Inquiry and the persons inter ested came 
forw ard and •f1ant ed t o be heard and decided to brief counsel and 
t ha t sort of t hing, tha t they should be abl e t o just pl ace t he 
bill a t his door. Whe t her t her e is roo n for an approach i n 
another direction , not through Your Honor a t all, is a ma t ter 
upon whic h I mak e no comment. We ar e conc erned here with 
Your Honor's powers. I am sure Your Honor doe s not want t o mak e 
an. order against t he Minister or t he c ompany or the Miners' 
Feder a tion if you h0ve no power t o do so. 

HIS HONOR: Is t her e anythi ng furt her? 

MR. SULLIVAN: It arise s r eally from the que stion of t he a sse ssors. 
If Your Honor cannot drm1 pmver s fro m s.33 it is quite obvious 
tha t Your Honor has , a s I said fro m t he Ba r t able , no power s t o 
appoint a ssessors. Your Horror's power to appoint a ssessors 
only c ome s from s.33 and t hen j_f you turn t o sub-section (6) 
of s.31 you s eo this - (read). So obviously if the only power 
to appoint an a sse ssor arise s fro m s.33 this is r egarded a s a 
Proc eeding. They need the word "Proc eeding" in s.33 because of 
the first paragraph. Then , fina l l y there is the r ep eal ed section 
9 which boars out wha t is said in sub- section (6) of s.31. 
Ther e is no doubt a bou t the pmv er, we woul d submit - no doubt a t a ll. 
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Otherwise this whole thing has been c ompl etely illegal. My 
fri end says it wa s based on a misc onc eption - the Minist er 
misconc eived - he t hought this wa s being he l d under s.33? 

MR. LEE: The Mini ster did not misconceive , he did not send 
out the notic es. Tha t wa s done b~ the District Court. 

MR. SULLIViiN: We got notic es, obviously under s.33 - not that 
we may appear - 11Take notice 11

• 

HIS HONOR~ Tha t was s ent out by the Registrar under the rule s 
made by t he Judg e s of the District Court. 

MR. SULLIVAN : Under s.33 and tha t power \vas given t o t hem 
under s.33 and my fri end says t he power s under s.33 don 't come 
into a s.31 investiga tion. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Sub-section (8) of s.J3 says the f ee s of the 
a sses sors, tha t t he Rules should provide for the f ee s to be 
paid to such a sse ssors out of funds provided by Parliament. 
The Rule s did provide for it and they sa id, in Rule 21 - (read ) •. 
That is out of -bhe funds of Parlinmont. 1tle go t o s.31 and they 
pay t he expenses of t he Minister. I don rt know ~ow you r econcile 
t ho se t·wo sections, it is almost impossible. One can ge t a 
general view of it. 

HIS HON OR: My vimJ is they have to be r e0d toge ther insofar a s 
they ar e not incon sistent with each other and when t{ley are 
L~c onsistent you r ead them do~m. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I disagreG v.1ith Your Honor on tha t. S9ction 15 
is another s ection 1>1hich deals lvith an Inquiry and it hRs its 
own sort of code but it has t o some ex t ent to be r oad v.rith s.33. 
When yo u look at sub-section (10) it is quite curious. 

HIS HONOR: I will c onsider the matter. 

Befor e I adjourn I wan t t o thank all persons who 
ha ve a ssi s t ed in this Inquiry. I am obliged to t hem. As 
to my a ssessors, I shall person.q_lly t ha.n}: them and any other 
person in an officia l capacity. 

I propose to c onsider this ma tt er and make my r eport 
to the Hinister. I make no promise as to how long tha t is 
going t o t ake exc ep ting I shall do it a s soon a s it is humanly 
possible . All people who have been pr e sent a t t hi s Inquiry 
w·ill not only r eali se t he gravity of t he ma tt ors r a ised her e 
but also the i mportance of the issuos t ha t ha ve arisen and 
ther efor e the consequence of any r eport I m~ . I therefor e 
propose t o make a r eport in as muc h de tail a s I properly can 
aft er a proper c onsider a tion of the de t ail svailabl e t o me. 
I shall make my r eport t o t he Minist er and I have t he benefit 
of some informa tion fro m the Minist er a s t o the matters r a ised 
earlier, namely my giving my decision in t his Court. I shall 
give, a s a kind of judgment in this Court, such portion of the 
r eport I make to t he Minister a s I deem fit af t er I ha ve 
r eported to t he Minister. By t ha t I do not mean anything is to 
be kept secre t fro m the public bec ause obviously t he Minister 
has t he right, if he so wi she s, t o t able the whol e of it but 
it is virtua lly impossible to give the whole of a r eport a s to 
proceedings including parts of t he evid ence and o t her details 
thn t generally appo~r in r eports of this kind so I shall s elect 
wha t I c onsider the ma tt ers of gr ,.c t e st r (3 l evance and grea t e st 
inter es t t o the public and shall r 0a d those in open Court her e 
aft er I have handed my r oport to t he Minister and I shall do tha t 
on a da t e t o be fixed . 
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